Public Document Pack

Cambr |-"1 TR ||||l."

CAMBRIDGE AM rou
£ CITY COUNCIL _

JOINT DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE:
CAMBRIDGE FRINGES

Membership

Cambridge Council: Clirs Blencowe (Vice-Chair), Dryden, Reid, Smart and
Tucker, Alternates: Marchant-Daisley and Tunnacliffe

Cambridgeshire County Council: Clirs Kenney, Orgee, Pegram and
Shepherd, Alternates: Brooks-Gordon and Reynolds

South Cambridgeshire District Council: Clirs Bard (Chair), Lacey,
Corney, Kindersley, Nightingale and Shelton, Alternates: Wotherspoon,
Scarr and Lockwood

Date: Wednesday, 8 August 2012

Time: 10.30 am

Venue: Small Hall - The Guildhall

Contact: Martin Whelan Direct Dial: 01223 457013

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members are asked to declare at this stage any interests that they may
have in an item shown on this agenda. If any member of the Committee is
unsure whether or not they should declare an interest on a particular
matter, they should seek advice from the Head of Legal Services before
the meeting.

3 MINUTES

To follow



4 C/11/1114/0UT & S/1886/11 LAND BETWEEN MADINGLEY ROAD AND,
HUNTINGDON ROAD, CB3 OLH (Pages 1 -242)



Voting Rights of Members and Quorum for This Item/Application:

All members of the Joint Development Control Committee are entitled to vote on
these items/applications. The quorum for the Committee comprises 3 members of
Cambridge City Council, 3 members of South Cambridgeshire District Council and 2
members of Cambridgeshire County Council.

Speaking at the Committee by Other Members of the Councils

A member of any of the councils who is not a member of the committee or a member
of a parish council (in respect of applications relating to sites in their own parish)
may speak at a meeting of the committee at the request or with the permission of
that committee or of its Chair made or obtained before the meeting. Such request or
permission shall specify the matters in respect of which the member shall be
permitted to speak.



Information for the Public

Location

Public Participation

The meeting is in the Guildhall on the Market Square
(CB2 3QJ).

Between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. the building is accessible via
Peas Hill, Guildhall Street and the Market Square
entrances.

After 5 p.m. access is via the Peas Hill entrance.

All the meeting rooms (Committee Room 1, Committee 2
and the Council Chamber) are on the first floor, and are
accessible via lifts or stairs.

Some meetings may have parts, which will be closed to
the public, but the reasons for excluding the press and
public will be given.

Members of the public who want to speak about an
application on the agenda for this meeting may do so, if
they have submitted a written representation within the
consultation period relating to the application and notified
the Committee Manager that they wish to speak by 12.00
noon on the day before the meeting.

Public speakers will not be allowed to circulate any
additional written information to their speaking notes or
any other drawings or other visual material in support of
their case that has not been verified by officers and that
is not already on pubilic file.

For further information on speaking at committee please
contact Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

Further information about speaking at a City Council
meeting can be found at;

http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/public/docs/Having%20your

%20say%20at%20meetings.pdf

Cambridge City Council would value your assistance in



Representations on
Planning
Applications

Filming, recording
and photography

improving the public speaking process of committee
meetings. If you have any feedback please contact
Democratic  Services on 01223 457013  or
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

Public representations on a planning application should
be made in writing (by e-mail or letter, in both cases
stating your full postal address), within the deadline set
for comments on that application. You are therefore
strongly urged to submit your representations within this
deadline.

The submission of late information after the officer's
report has been published is to be avoided.

A written representation submitted to the Environment
Department by a member of the public after publication of
the officer's report will only be considered if it is from
someone who has already made written representations
in time for inclusion within the officer's report. Any public
representation received by the Department after 12 noon
two business days before the relevant Committee
meeting (e.g by 12.00 noon on Monday before a
Wednesday meeting; by 12.00 noon on Tuesday before a
Thursday meeting) will not be considered.

The same deadline will also apply to the receipt by the
Department of additional information submitted by an
applicant or an agent in connection with the relevant item
on the Committee agenda (including letters, e-mails,
reports, drawings and all other visual material), unless
specifically requested by planning officers to help
decision-making.

The Council is committed to being open and transparent
in the way it conducts its decision-making. Recording is
permitted at council meetings, which are open to the
public. The Council understands that some members of
the public attending its meetings may not wish to be
recorded. The Chair of the meeting will facilitate by
ensuring that any such request not to be recorded is
respected by those doing the recording.

Full details of the City Council’s protocol on audio/visual
recording and photography at meetings can be accessed

\'



Fire Alarm

Facilities for
disabled people

Queries on reports

General
Information

via:

www.cambridge.gov.uk/democracy/ecSDDisplay.aspx?N
AME=SD1057&ID=1057&RPID=33371389&sch=doc&cat
=13203&path=13020%2c13203.

In the event of the fire alarm sounding please follow the
instructions of Cambridge City Council staff.

Level access to the Guildhall is via Peas Hill.

A loop system is available in Committee Room 1,
Committee Room 2 and the Council Chamber.

Accessible toilets are available on the ground and first
floor.

Meeting papers are available in large print and other
formats on request prior to the meeting.

For further assistance please contact Democratic
Services on 01223 457013 or
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

If you have a question or query regarding a committee
report please contact the officer listed at the end of
relevant report or Democratic Services on 01223 457013
or democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

Information regarding committees, councilors and the
democratic process is available at
www.cambridge.gov.uk/democracy.

vi



Agenda ltem 4

CAMBRIDGE FRINGES JOINT PLANNING COMMITTEE

Reports by:

Application Number
Date Received

Parishes/Wards

Site
Proposal

Applicant

Recommendation
Application Type

Patsy Dell, Head of Planning Services

C/11/1114/0UT Agenda Iltem
23" September 2011 Officer Mark Parsons
Castle

Land between Madingley Road and, Huntingdon Road, CB3 OLH
Proposed development comprising up to 3,000 dwellings; Up to 2,000
student bedspaces; 100,000 sq.m. employment floorspace, of which: up
to 40,000 sq.m. commercial floorspace (Class B1(b) and sui generis
research uses) and at least 60,000 sq.m. academic floorspace (Class
D1); up to 5,300 sg.m. gross retail floorspace (Use Classes A1 to A5) (of
which the supermarket is 2,000 sq.m. net floorspace); Senior Living, up
to 6,500sg.m. (Class C2); Community Centre; Indoor Sports Provision;
Police; Primary Health Care; Primary School; Nurseries (Class D1);
Hotel (130 rooms); Energy Centre; and associated infrastructure
including roads (including adaptations to Madingley Rd and Huntingdon
Rd), pedestrian, cycle and vehicle routes, parking, drainage, open
spaces and earthworks.

University of Cambridge

Approve subject to conditions and completion of S106 agreement
Outline (approving access points Departure: No
at this stage)

Application Number
Date Received

Parishes/Wards

Site
Proposal

Applicant

Recommendation
Application Type

S/1886/11 Agenda ltem
23" September 2011 Officer Mike Osbourn
Girton

Land between Madingley Road and, Huntingdon Road, CB3 OLH
Proposed development comprising up to 3,000 dwellings; Up to 2,000
student bedspaces; 100,000 sq.m. employment floorspace, of which: up
to 40,000 sq.m. commercial floorspace (Class B1(b) and sui generis
research uses) and at least 60,000 sq.m. academic floorspace (Class
D1); up to 5,300 sg.m. gross retail floorspace (Use Classes A1 to A5) (of
which the supermarket is 2,000 sq.m. net floorspace); Senior Living, up
to 6,500sg.m. (Class C2); Community Centre; Indoor Sports Provision;
Police; Primary Health Care; Primary School; Nurseries (Class D1);
Hotel (130 rooms); Energy Centre; and associated infrastructure
including roads (including adaptations to Madingley Rd and Huntingdon
Rd), pedestrian, cycle and vehicle routes, parking, drainage, open
spaces and earthworks.

University of Cambridge

Approve subject to conditions and completion of S106 agreement
Outline (approving access points Departure: No
at this stage)

The above application(s) have been reported to the Joint Development Control Committee for
determination by Members in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation for the Joint
Development Control Committee for the Cambridge Fringes

Page 1



INDEX

Page | Appendix
Introduction and Background 4
Site Description/Area Context 4
The Proposals 6
Relevant Site History 8
Publicity 9
Policy 9 A,B&C
External and Internal Consultees 10 D&E
Neighbour Representations 10 F
Assessment 10
e Principle of Development 11
e Urban Design Principles and Visual Impact 13
e Transport 24
e Affordable Housing and Dwelling Mix 39
e Community Development and Infrastructure 45
e Open Space and Recreation 52
e Local Centre and Retail Provision 63
e Education 69
e Employment 71
e Sustainable Development 72
e Flood Risk and Drainage 75
e Ecology and Landscape/Heritage Assets 79
e Environmental Health Considerations 83
e Lighting 83
e Soil and Contamination 84
e Noise and Vibration, Dust, Fumes and Odours 85
e Air Quality 87
e Health Impact 88
o Waste Strategy and Management 88
e Archaeology 92
e Third Party Representations 93
e S106 Planning Obligations 93
Conclusion 100
Recommendations 102
Conditions 103
Reasons for Approval 141

Page 2




APPENDICES

Ref Title Page
A Government and Regional Guidance and Advice 144
B Structure Plan, Cambridge City and South 145
Cambridgeshire LDF Policies
C Supplementary Planning Documents and Material 148
Considerations
D External Consultations 149
E Internal Consultations 171
F Neighbour Representations 191
G Red Line Site Boundary S/1886/11 208
H Red Line Site Boundary 11/1114/OUT 209
I lllustrative Masterplan 210
J Application Drawings 211
K S106 Heads of Terms Schedule 225
L NPPF Reference Table 234
M Quick Reference to NWCAAP Policies 237
N CSRM Modelling Outputs 238
0] lllustrative Underground Bin Proposal 239

Page 3




0.0

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

1.0

This is a proposal for a mixed-use extension to the north-west of
Cambridge, known as the ‘Land Between Huntingdon Road and Madingley
Road’ or the ‘University site’. The scheme comprises up to 3,000 dwellings
(of which 1,500 are to be affordable key worker units), 2,000 student bed
spaces, 100,000sgm of employment floorspace (of which at least
60,000sgm will be academic employment space), a primary school, open
space, recreational facilities, and a local centre which includes retail and
community facilities, a hotel, police, health facilities, senior living
accommodation and an energy centre.

The University site was proposed as an area to be released from the
Green Belt through the review of the 2003 Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough Structure Plan, and is allocated for predominately
Cambridge University related uses in the Cambridge Local Plan, adopted
in 2006. The policy required that the land was only to be released from the
Green Belt in order to meet University needs, given the importance of the
University locally, nationally and internationally.

The North-West Cambridge Area Action Plan (NWCAAP) was
subsequently prepared jointly by South Cambridgeshire District Council
and Cambridge City Council, working with Cambridgeshire County
Council, and adopted in 2009.

The NWCAAP established a footprint for the development, and revised the
Green Belt boundary. It planned for the site comprehensively, and set the
development principles, including high-level design integrated with the City
and connected to the countryside, and established the housing,
educational, commercial and community principles for the site, alongside
aspirations for transport, sustainability and the environment.

The applications were originally submitted in September 2011, with
amendments submitted in April and June 2012 addressing the concerns
raised by the local authorities.

The site is one of three sites in the north-west of Cambridge released from
the Green Belt. The ‘NIAB1 site’, located to the north of the University site,
between Huntingdon Road and Histon Road will provide for a
predominantly residential development, comprising 1780 dwellings, a local
centre with mixed retail and commercial facilities, a primary school, open
space and recreational facilities. A site adjacent to this land, between the
administrative boundary and A14, has also been allocated for residential
development through South Cambridgeshire’s Site Specific DPD (NIAB2).

SITE DESCRIPTION/AREA CONTEXT

1.1

The application site is located on the north-western edge of the City of
Cambridge, to the south and west of the village of Girton. It is bounded by
the M11 and the A14 to the west, Huntingdon Road to the north-east and
Madingley Road to the south. It is currently functioning as a University

Page 4



1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

farm, with some academic and research functions at 307 Huntingdon
Road, to the rear of 181 Huntingdon Road, and also in the area to the
north of Madingley Rise.

The north-eastern boundary of the site consists mainly of large residential
dwellings, the Travellers Rest restaurant (with Hotel to rear), and some
existing farm buildings at the northern tip of the site which front onto
Huntingdon Road. The southern boundary, along Madingley Road,
consists of a mix of residential dwellings, most significantly at Conduit
Head and Landsdown Roads, Colleges, University buildings and a Park &
Ride, managed by the County Council. To the south-east, the site is
bounded by residential properties in All Soul's Lane and Storey’s Way,
Ascension Parish Burial Ground and the University Observatory, which is
accessed from Madingley Road.

At present the site accommodates the University farm and outbuildings, a
significant area of arable farmland and livestock, other University research
facilities, a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) known as the
Traveller's Rest Pit, and some areas of ecological value such as the
Washpit Brook, which is an awarded watercourse. For the most part the
site is free from landscape features away from its fringes, although the site
does contain a veteran Oak tree, located broadly in the middle of the site,
an avenue of Horse Chestnut trees that line the access to a range of farm
buildings from Huntingdon Road, and various trees and hedgerows around
existing field boundaries, most notably in the vicinity of the western edge.
Along the southern edge of the site is located an area of ridge and furrow
field that separates the Park & Ride site from dwellings in Lansdowne
Road. Located within the site, but excluded from the application site area,
is the World Conservation Monitoring Centre (WCMC), immediately
adjacent to the aforementioned SSSI.

The site broadly features a topography at its highest along the Huntingdon
Road boundary, with a relatively flat profile initially. The land then falls
away towards the M11 at approximately its mid-point, from a distinct ridge
that serves to broadly connect the farm buildings located in the northern tip
of the site with the residential properties to the south-east, in Conduit Head
Road.

The site is largely screened from immediate public view, by existing
residential development on Huntingdon Road to the north, and residential
development at Conduit Head Road, University-related development, and
the Madingley Park & Ride, to the south. Views are afforded into parcels of
the site where soft landscape features exist, most notably along the
Huntingdon Road frontage near to the Travellers Rest restaurant. The site
does not have a significant frontage, aside from its western edge, which
runs parallel to the M11. Long-distance views are afforded into the site
from Madingley (to the west), across various agricultural fields located
between the village and the M11.

Page 5



The proposed development falls within the administrative boundaries of
Cambridge City Council and South Cambridgeshire District Council, whilst
the site is located entirely within the joint NWCAAP boundary area.

Outline planning applications were submitted to both South
Cambridgeshire District Council and Cambridge City Council on 23™
September 2011, and amended on 3™ April 2012. This report relates to
both applications, although two separation decisions will need to be

The proposals seek outline planning permission, in their totality, for the
following development, with details of appearance, landscaping, layout,
and scale (save for the matters submitted in respect of zones A and C)

e Up to 3,000 dwellings; (Class C3 and C4)
e Up to 2,000 student bedspaces; 98,000 sg.m. (Class C2)
e Up to 100,000 sq.m. new employment floorspace, of which:
e Up to 40,000 sq.m. commercial employment floorspace (Class
B1(b) and sui generis research uses)
e Atleast 60,000 sq.m. academic employment floorspace (Class D1)
e Up to 5,300 sgq.m. gross retail floorspace (Use Class A1/A2/A3/A4/A5)
(of which the supermarket is not more than 2,000 sq.m. net floorspace)
Senior living; up to 6,500sq.m. (Class C2)
Community centre; up to 500-600 sq.m. (Class D1)
Indoor sports provision, up to 450 sg.m. (Class D1)
Police; up to 200 sq.m. (Class B1)
Primary Health Care; up to 700 sq.m. (Class D1)
School; up to 3,750 sq.m. (Class D1)
Nurseries; up to 2,000 sq.m. (Class D1)
Community Residential; up to 500 sq.m. (Class C3)
Hotel (130 rooms); up to 7,000 sg.m. (Class C1)

Pedestrian, cycle and vehicle routes

Energy Centre; up to 1,250 sqg.m.
Provision and/or upgrade of services and related service media and
apparatus including pumping stations, substations and pressure

e Drainage works (including sustainable ground and surface water

e Open space and landscaping (including parks, play areas, playing
fields, allotments, water features, formal/informal open space,
maintenance sheds, pavilions and support facilities)

Earthworks to provide revised ground contours
¢ Demolition of existing buildings

1.6
2.0 THE PROPOSALS
2.1

reached.
2.2

reserved:

[ )

[ J

[ J

[ J

[ J

[ )

[ )

[ )

[ )

e Access roads

[ J

e Parking

[ )

[ )

regulators
attenuation and control)

2.3

Proposals for which full permission is sought include:

Page 6



2.4

Huntingdon Road - Highway and Utility Works involving:

Construction of a new three arm and a new four arm signal controlled
junctions, including pedestrian and cycle crossings, to provide access
to the proposed development from Huntingdon Road

Installation of a toucan crossing across Huntingdon Road

Construction of an unsegregated footway/cycleway on the southern
side of Huntingdon Road

Diversion and/or replacement and/or protection of existing utilities
affected by the proposed highway works

Provision of new telecommunications infrastructure and connection to
existing utility infrastructure situated along Huntingdon Road

Related landscaping, accommodation works, street furniture, drainage,
telemetry and utilities

Madingley Road - Highway and Utility Works involving:

Junction improvement works at the High Cross/Madingley Road
junction to alter it from a three arm priority junction to a four arm signal
controlled junction, including pedestrian and cycle crossings, to provide
access to the proposed development

Installation of a toucan crossing across Madingley Road

Diversion and/or replacement and/or protection of existing utilities
affected by the proposed highway works

Construction of an unsegregated footway/cycleway on the northern
side of Madingley Road

Installation of a retaining wall along Madingley Road

Provision of a new pumped foul water rising main, including chamber
connection, and new telecommunications, electricity and gas
infrastructure and the associated connection to existing utility
infrastructure situated along Madingley Road

Related landscaping, accommodation works, street furniture, drainage,
telemetry

Documents accompanying the application

The application is accompanied by the submission of the following

documents:

e Planning Statement (March 2012)

e Design, Access and Landscaping Statement (March 2012)

e Statement of Community Involvement (September 2011)

e Environmental Statement, including: Flood Risk Assessment,

Geological Site Management Plan, Construction Environment
Management Plan and Biodiversity Strategy (updates in March and
June 2012)

Transport Assessment (September 2011, with March 2012 addendum)
Travel Plan (September 2011)

Sustainability Statement (September 2011, with March 2012
clarification)

Carbon Reduction Strategy (September 2011)

Page 7



2.5

26

3.0

e Sustainable Resource and Waste Management Strategy (September
2011, with March 2012 addendum)

Site Waste Management Plan (September 2011)

Key Worker Housing Statement (September 2011)

Retail Impact Assessment (September 2011)

Hotel Needs Case (September 2011, with March 2012 clarification)
Senior Care Needs Case (September 2011)

Community/Faith Needs Case (September 2011)

Health Impact Assessment (September 2011, with March 2012
clarification)

e Public Art Strategy (March 2012)

Although two separate applications have been submitted, this is to reflect
the cross-authority boundary nature of the proposed development and for
administrative purposes only. The development should be considered as a
single entity, except where specific issues relate solely to land within either
the South Cambridgeshire or City Council administrative boundaries. Any
such issues will be addressed in detail within the assessment of the
proposals.

The drawings and plans being approved are listed within condition 69.

RELEVANT SITE HISTORY

3.1

3.2

3.3

The application site has an extensive planning history, related to its current
use as a University farm and research facility. Numerous consents have
been granted, over a significant period of time. Permissions have included
consent for animal research facilities, laboratories (including the Centre of
Agronomy, located to the north of the Travellers Rest SSSI — C/02/1214),
agricultural buildings (including animal enclosures, glasshouses and
chemical stores), and agricultural workers accommodation. The consented
structures are largely contained in two main clusters. The first is located in
the northern tip of the site, adjacent to Huntingdon Road. The second is
located in the south-eastern corner of the site, located in the area
adjoining Conduit Head Road and the University Observatory. The latter is
accessed via either Madingley Rise (using the Madingley Road east
junction that is proposed to be altered via the application), through the
Observatory site, or from Huntingdon Road, via the Horse Chestnut lined
avenue, which is to be retained as part of the application proposals.
However, whilst some of these consents have the potential to give rise to
contaminative uses on site (the consequences of which area addressed
through the Environmental Statement that forms part of the application),
there have been no previous applications for the type of development now
proposed for the site.

Further to the history of the application site, there are a small number of
adjoining sites that have uses which have some relevance to the current
proposals.

These are:

Page 8



4.0

e The Park & Ride site, located to the south of the application site,
immediately adjacent to the proposed Madingley Road west
junction (S/94/0806 & C/99/0769)

e The World Conservation Monitoring Centre (a research
establishment), located immediately to the north of the Travellers
Rest SSSI and accessed via Huntingdon Road (C/90/0700)

e The Travellers Rest Public House/Restaurant and Premier Inn
Hotel, also located to the north of the Travellers Rest SSSI and
immediately to the east of the proposed Huntingdon Road East
junction and adjoining open space/sports pitches (06/1251/FUL &
C/81/0748)

PUBLICITY

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

Advertisement Yes
Adjoining Owners Yes
Site Notice Displayed Yes
Public Meeting/Exhibition Yes

The applications have been subject to extensive consultation and publicity.
In addition to standard consultation letters, statutory press notices and the
display of site notices, an extensive series of public meetings/workshops
and exhibitions have been convened leading up to and following the
submission of the applications.

This community engagement has included a number of site-specific public
exhibitions held between January 2005 and July 2010, alongside various
meetings that the University of Cambridge have undertaken with Parish
Councils, residents associations, student groups and faith groups between
November 2009 and April 2011. Throughout the pre-application process a
dedicated website was available informing the community of consultation
events and hosted relevant material and news regarding the scheme.
Further to the site specific briefings, the Councils’ North West Forum has
also provided a platform for public engagement as the scheme has been
progressed.

In addition to the public consultation events, seven stakeholder events
were staged between January 2005 and June 2010, whilst numerous task
group meetings, dedicated to specific topic areas, took place between
September 2009 and June 2011 to inform the application design process.
A full statement of community and stakeholder engagement, outlining all
dates of pre-application discussions, forms part of the application.

Following the submission of the applications, two further public
consultation events were organised (15" and 20" October 2011) by
Cambridge City Council and South Cambridgeshire District Council to
present the applications and provide the opportunity for questions.
Approximately 300 people attended these events. A summary of all
consultation responses has been included in Appendix F. Full responses
are available on the public file.

Page 9



5.0

POLICY

Government and Regional Guidance and Advice

All relevant guidance is set out in Appendix A.

Structure Plan, Cambridge Local Plan and S. Cambs LDF Policies
All relevant guidance is set out in Appendix B.

Supplementary Planning Documents and Material Considerations

All relevant guidance is set out in Appendix C.

6.0 EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL CONSULTATIONS
All external and internal consultee responses are set out in Appendices D
and E respectively.

7.0 NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS
All neighbour representations are set out in Appendix F.

8.0 ASSESSMENT

8.1

From the consultation responses and representations received and from
inspection of the site and the surroundings, the assessment has been
structured under the following headings:

Principle of Development

Urban Design Principles and Visual Impact
Transport

Affordable Housing and Dwelling Mix
Community Development and Infrastructure
Open Space and Recreation

Local Centre and Retail Provision
Education

. Employment

10. Sustainable Development

11. Flood Risk and Drainage

12.Ecology and Landscape/Heritage Assets
13. Environmental Health Considerations:
14.Lighting

15. Soil and Contamination

16.Noise and Vibration, Dust, Fumes and Odours
17. Air Quality

18. Health Impact

19. Waste Strategy and Management
20.Archaeology

21.Third Party Representations

22.S106 Planning Obligations

©OoN>OAWN=

Page 10
10



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

23.Conclusion
24. Recommendation

Principle of Development

After the adoption of Regional Planning Guidance 6 (RPG6) in 2000, a
sub-regional study was undertaken, and the Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough Structure Plan Review considered sites that should be
released from the Green Belt. Policy 9/2 of the Structure Plan stated that
Local Plans shall make provision for housing land and mixed use
development on land released from the Green Belt, specifically identifying
the land between Madingley Road and Huntingdon Road for being
reserved for predominantly University related uses, and only to be
released once the University has demonstrated a clear need for the land to
be released.

Although the status of RPG6 and the Structure Plan has been the subject
of review through the Localism Bill process, the site allocation has
remained through formal designation in the Cambridge Local Plan (Policy
9/7), allocating the site for predominantly University related uses. This was
then subsequently superseded through the adoption of joint Cambridge
City and South Cambridgeshire North West Cambridge Area Action Plan
(NWCAAP) in October 2009.

The NWCAAP identified the site upon which the current proposals relate,
recognising that the University’s development needs relate not only to
residential accommodation for staff and students, but that need arises from
the University’s research activities being carried out in collaboration with
public and charitable sector research institutes and industry. Accordingly
the policy reflects this relationship by allowing for a mixed-use
development, provided that an adequate needs case is provided to support
specific proposals.

Notwithstanding the needs of the University, the policy also recognises the
need to maintain the purposes of the Green Belt and states that the
proposals should provide an open space buffer in order to respect the
setting of Girton and avoid coalescence with the City. This should link with
the strategic gap, which straddles Huntingdon Road between Girton and
Cambridge.

The policy also proposes several key objectives that relate to the quality of
the environment, climate change and sustainability;

To create a sustainable community;

¢ To make the best use of energy and other natural resources, to be built
as an exemplar of sustainable living with low carbon and greenhouse
gas emissions and be able to accommodate the impacts of climate
change;
To secure a wide range of housing types and tenures;

e To secure high quality development of both built form and open
spaces;

Page 11
11



8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

e To create a community which respects and links with adjoining
communities;

e To achieve a modal split of no more than 40% of trips to work by car
(excluding car passengers) and to maximise walking, cycling and
public transport use;

e To provide an appropriate landscape setting and high quality edge
treatment for Cambridge;

e To provide standards for infrastructure provision including renewable
energy, open space, car and cycle parking, sewerage and surface
water drainage;

e To provide an appropriate level of community services and facilities to
serve the development satisfactorily;

e To determine appropriate phasing of development taking into account
that development should only proceed when the University can prove
the need for it;

e To secure the infrastructure needs of the development, including green
infrastructure; and

e To protect special geological interest, existing wildlife and wildlife
corridors and secure a net increase in biodiversity.

All of the requirements in this policy are assessed within the relevant
section of the report below as well as all other relevant policies in the Local
Development Framework.

Some ‘in principle’ concerns were expressed through neighbour
representations that there should not be any more loss of Green Belt land
around Cambridge, that the full environmental impact should be assessed,
and that the City will lose one of its ‘green lungs’. The allocation of this
land has gone through the due process, over a number of years, taking
into account the special justification provided by the University. The
principle of developing this land has therefore been established, and the
proposal submitted has, by virtue of the accompanying Environmental
Statement (ES), assessed the full environmental impact of the
development in line with legislation. The Environmental Statement
identifies a number of mitigation measures, including the provision and
enhancement of strategic green spaces throughout the development, to
ensure that it has an acceptable impact on the wider environment.

Subject to the detailed assessment below the broad principle of these
applications is in accordance with Structure Plan Policies 9/2b and 9/2c
and the joint North West Cambridge Area Action Plan, and therefore
considered to be acceptable.

Since the submission of the applications, the Government has replaced
the previous network of Planning Policy Guidance Notes and Statements
(PPGs and PPS) with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).
The NPPF advises that, whilst it is a material planning consideration, full
weight should continue to be given to policies adopted since 2004,
meaning, therefore the NWCAAP policies remain in effect (an assessment
of the NWCAAP against the NPPF is provided in Appendix L). Changes to
national planning policy are reflected in the assessment, but as with the

Page 12
12



8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

8.16

8.17

suite of local policies, subject to the detailed assessment below, and
recommendations contained therein, the development is considered to be
acceptable in principle when considered against the NPPF.

Urban Design Principles and Visual Impact

The NWCAAP requires a development of the highest quality in terms of
design. Policies NW1 and NW2 outline the vision and the development
principles for any proposal, which looks to set a high standard in terms of
design, and how this site addresses its context in terms of character,
connectivity, climate, and community. In addition to this Policy NW4
emphasises the importance of how this site impacts upon the setting of
Cambridge and its relationship with the village of Girton.

The outline application is accompanied by a number of parameter plans
(and parameter plan statements) for formal approval along with an
indicative Masterplan and supporting Design, Access and Landscape
Statement (DALS) in line with the requirements of policy NW3, and
relevant legislation.

The DALS documents the design evolution of the Masterplan, from the
work done to inform the NWCAAP process, through to the plan that
evolved during the pre-application process, and finally submitted with the
planning application. At every stage public and stakeholder consultation
has played a key part of informing the process.

The DALS also details the influences from the surrounding environment
and context that has gone into the design process. The Masterplan has
taken strategic influences and drawn upon the character of Cambridge’s
open spaces, residential neighbourhoods, academic clusters, Colleges
and local centres to help inform this mixed use development.

The Masterplan also has a duty to respond successfully with the
constraints of the site. Elements such as the Green Belt boundary,
topography, drainage, existing land features and the Site of Special
Scientific Interest (SSSI), as well as noise and air quality issues all have to
be address and integrated into the design.

The Cambridgeshire Quality Charter for Growth sets out four headings that
development proposals should respond to: Connectivity, Character,
Climate and Community. The proposal in design terms has been assessed
under these headings below, cross-referencing the NWCAAP policies
where relevant.

Connectivity

The Masterplan aims to provide connected, walkable neighbourhoods,
both internally within the site and externally to the surrounding residential
areas and beyond. The connectivity must also provide strategic
connections for public transport links and private vehicles in conformity
with the NWCAAP.

Page 13
13



8.18

8.19

8.20

8.21

8.22

8.23

Throughout the site strategic walking and cycling provision is made,
starting with the ‘Ridgeway’, a cycle and pedestrian spine running through
the centre of the site from Bunker's Hill (and Cambridge Road, Girton),
through the local centre within the proposal, across the strategic gap and
linking with Storey’s Way to the southeast of the site. The route links with
the orbital cycle way which runs from Madingley Road to Huntingdon
Road, and then through the proposed NIAB development towards the
North and Northeast of the City. The Ridgeway links in with a cycle route
from Madingley Rise and the avenue of Horse Chestnut Trees connecting
to Huntingdon Road. Links are also made with the green fingers within the
development running down to the western edge.

Two main vehicular routes (primary streets) through the site are proposed
as prescribed by Policies NW14 and NW15 (and Figure 6.1 in the
NWCAAP), with several other routes serving as secondary and tertiary
streets, which will form a permeable network around the site. It is
envisaged that development will be at a higher density around the primary
streets maximising opportunity to house people and employment uses
close to the main transport routes proposed.

The primary and secondary streets, along with the primary and secondary
cycle routes are fixed within Parameter Plan 02 (PP02). Each ‘fixed’ route
has a certain level of flexibility that can allow for slight variation during the
detailed design stage, but without compromising the principles of the
route(s). Also set within PP02 is a restricted zone through the local centre,
which will give public transport and softer modes of travel the ability to
move through the local centre, with cars taking a more circuitous route.

PP02 also limits the proposal to vehicular access from only four access
points: Huntingdon Road West, towards the northwest of the site close to
Girton College, Huntingdon Road East to the west of the strategic gap
opposite Hotel Felix, Madingley Road West adjacent to the existing Park &
Ride, and Madingley Road East utilising Madingley Rise. The latter of
these access points will not connect to other roads within the development
(effectively a cul-de-sac for cars). All other access points (Bunkers Hill,
Storey’s Way and the Avenue of Horse Chestnut Trees) will be cycle and
pedestrian provision only.

PP02 also establishes the principle that vehicle routes will be designed to
low speeds. This commitment is consistent with Policy NW14. Indicative
sections have been provided within the DALS to support this statement.

Overall the connectivity of this site, both internally within the site and
externally both towards the City and either directly or indirectly to
countryside destinations, is based on sound design principles. The street
hierarchy is clear, and there is a commitment within the design towards
supporting softer modes of travel consistent with the NWCAAP.

Character

Page 14
14



8.24

8.25

8.26

8.27

8.28

8.29

8.30

The sheer extent of this site means that the development will have several
character areas that will evolve from how the land uses, densities, heights,
streets and open spaces are distributed across the site. The distribution of
land uses around the site is informed by several factors including the
constraints of the site, and the need to fit in with the character of adjacent
land uses/designations.

There are four main neighbourhoods identified in the DALS, these are: The
Local Centre, Storey’s Field, Ridgeway Village and Huntingdon Road
West. Below each neighbourhood is discussed in terms of character, and
how this is represented within the parameter plans in terms of land use
(PP04) and heights (PP05).

Local Centre

The local centre is situated in the heart of the development adjacent to the
strategic gap, well served by public transport and cycle/walking paths as
required by NWCAAP Policy NW21. The local centre will be the primary
focus for the community, and amenities such as shops and the primary
school. The proximity to facilities and sustainable transport options along
with its location in the centre of the site means that it has the potential to
accommodate higher buildings and a greater density.

The local centre will be mixed use in nature comprising several community
and commercial aspects, which gives vitality and viability to the proposal.
PP04 complements this by allowing for a range of uses within the local
centre such as retail uses (Use Class A1-A5) student units, senior care
units and residential units (C1-C3), and non-residential Institutions (D1-
health centre, nursery etc.), and assembly and leisure (D1- community
centre).

Heights within this area are potentially up to 18m high (typically 5/6
storeys) to reflect the aspiration to have a high density near to facilities and
transport node. That is not to say that all building in this area will be that
high, merely that the flexibility is given here to establish greater height
where appropriate at the detailed stage. The indicative details within the
DALS show the potential for residential units above the retail elements
within the scheme.

The buildings in the local centre will be diverse and will be tied together
with strong public realm. The area will be vibrant and active with key
frontage addressing the main streets, local centre, and strategic gap. The
spaces will be well enclosed by the surrounding buildings.

Storey’s Field

Storey’s Field neighbourhood sits to the east of the strategic gap and is
predominantly residential in nature. The exception to this is the area to the
south of Storey’s Field adjacent to Conduit Head Road/Madingley Rise
which is designated for Academic/Research use by PP04, forming a
cluster with the existing University uses located off Madingley Rise.

Page 15
15



8.31

8.32

8.33

8.34

8.35

8.36

8.37

Between the Academic/Research uses and the residential uses within
Storey’s Field is an additional zone proposed with PP04, which allows for
uses such as local shops and/or a nursery if viable.

The heights set for Storey’s Field vary to reflect the character of the site
and adjacent land users. Zones S and T within PP05, which sit adjacent to
residential properties, are limited to 10m high (which typically represents
two storeys and a pitched roof). Zones P, Q, and R, which are the
remaining zones within this part of the site, allow for buildings up to 15
metres high (5 storeys). This reflects a gradual increase in height as the
scheme builds towards the centre.

This area of the site accommodates some key existing features such as
the avenue of Horse Chestnut Trees and woodland as well as providing
one of the key frontages addressing the strategic gap and SSSI. An
important green finger runs east-west providing a green feature linking to
the strategic gap.

Ridgeway Village

To the west of the local centre sits the ‘Ridgeway Village’ that will
accommodate a number of different uses. To the east of the Ridgeway the
use is residential with heights limited to 10 metres high to respond to the
neighbouring context. The potential for higher buildings then moves up
towards the Ridgeway allowing for up to 18 metres adjacent to the
Ridgeway.

To the west of the Ridgeway the uses change to Academic/Research uses
and Collegiate housing which will also address the western edge of the
site and play a key role in the setting of the site and the city. The heights
on this site edge are scaled down to 15 metres, and particular sensitivities
about the design of these building and how they front the western edge will
be something that will need a lot of discussion at the more detailed stages.

The Ridgeway Village will be a vibrant area with a mix of densities and
uses with a strong frontage onto the Ridgeway itself. A small zone which
allows for uses such as local shops and/or a nursery if viable is also
situated here.

Huntingdon Road West

Huntingdon Road west represents the northwest tip of the development
and will provide for two distinct areas for development. The area to the
east of the primary road will be low density residential development which
will include an element of residential fronting Huntingdon Road and
complementing the existing character of that road.

On the opposite side of the primary road are Academic/Research
buildings, which will act a potential landmark cluster and will be prominent
from views from the A14 and M11. This area could also accommodate the

Page 16
16



8.38

8.39

8.40

8.41

8.42

energy centre which does not form part of this application, but could come
forward separately in the future.

Density

Policy NW5 requires an average net density of at least 50 dwellings per
hectare to be achieved across the site as a whole in order to ensure that
efficient use of the land is made. Net density is calculated by working out
the number of dwellings per hectare, when subtracting strategic space and
infrastructure such as large open spaces, primary roads and elements
such as the primary school.

The applicants have proposed that the density of residential development
will vary significantly across the different areas of the site, taking into
account the various character aspirations for the development and the
existing constraints around the site. For example, they propose a much
lower density on the edges of the site, to reflect the surrounding residential
character as highlighted through neighbour representations, compared
with a higher density in the local centre, away from existing properties and
close to facilities and transport nodes. Overall, notwithstanding the need to
meet such challenges, they propose to provide residential development to
at least a minimum net density of 50 dwellings per hectare across the site,
which therefore complies with Policy NW5.

Impact on Neighbouring Properties

The limits on height are aimed to respond and reflect the character of the
existing low density residential uses on the edge of the development,
building up the heights and density more central to the site. A lot of
consultation was undertaken with local people adjacent to the site and the
complementary character of the areas on the perimeter of the site reflects
that.

Through the amendments to the application an additional zone was
introduced (Zone T) which limited height in that zone to 10 metres,
reducing the potential impact for properties in Conduit Head Road, which
was initially raised as a concern through the consultation process. To
complement PP05 (the Parameter Plan which limits building heights) PP06
has been produced which limits the overall heights of buildings above
ordnance datum (AOD).

The numbers set within zones on PP06 give the local authorities comfort
that the overall height can be fixed (otherwise a building can still be 10
metres high, but the land can be built up several metres to extend the
overall height to subsequently impact neighbours). This is considered
necessary on a site such as this with a varied topography. Although Zone
T was introduced at the amendment stage, PP06 did not vary with it
resulting in concern that although buildings with zones T are limited to 10
metres the land could be built up significantly (up to 5 metres) while still
sitting within the parameter plans. A condition (Condition 67) is therefore

Page 17
17



8.43

8.44

8.45

8.46

8.47

8.48

suggested to protect the amenity of the properties on Conduit Head Road,
which limits the AOD in Zone T to 33.5 AOD.

Neighbour representations generally support the low-density approach on
the edge of the site, and the back to back relationship is supported by the
architectural liaison officer as well as most residents. The depth of the
building zones on the edge of the site is sufficient to allow relatively large
back gardens, and although not explicitly secured through the parameter
plans the 20m minimum distance requested by neighbours could be
achieved at the reserved matters stage.

Some neighbour representations have asked for a minimum of 30 metre
back gardens adjacent to the existing Huntingdon Road properties. While
development at the reserved matters stage should reflect and respect the
character of adjacent properties, and therefore slightly larger back gardens
than normal could be justified, this has to be balanced with the efficient
use of land on allocated sites such as this, and thirty metres would be
extremely generous. It is considered that the parameters as proposed
allow for back gardens that reflect adjacent character, and other issues of
concern such as window orientation and removal of permitted
development rights would be looked at, at the detailed stage and imposed
if justified.

Clearly a site of this size will vary in character throughout taking influences
from existing character adjacent, existing and proposed site features.
While a lot more work will need to be done to evolve these characters
through the design coding and reserved matters stage, the parameters
proposed offer a robust platform to help realise the vision set in the
NWCAAP.

Climate

The NWCAAP is ambitious in terms of sustainability, and that ambition is
reflected in the documentation submitted with the application, (discussed
in more detail later in this report). These sustainability aspects have been
incorporated within the Masterplan design to ensure that it does not
prejudice delivery.

Sustainable transport measures have been central to the evolution of the
Masterplan, allowing for walking, cycling and public transport links
throughout the development as discussed above. Sustainable Drainage
Systems (SuDS) play a large part in the Masterplan design. They have
influenced the strategic green space throughout the Masterplan and
connecting green fingers throughout to allow a solid network of drainage
and green spaces which work their way down towards the western edge.

The western edge itself has been designed to accommodate large storm
events (discussed in more detail elsewhere in this report), and
complement the SuDS system proposed.

Page 18
18



8.49

8.50

8.51

8.52

8.53

8.54

The application proposes Code for Sustainable Homes (CfSH) Level 5 to
be met on this site. In order to achieve this Combined Heat and Power
(CHP) and district heating is proposed across the application site. The land
uses proposed, their location and densities have been carefully sited
throughout the site to ensure that CHP can work effectively and efficiently.
Other aspects such as planting and ecology have been carefully designed
to ensure optimum solutions are achieved.

A lot of the commitments to sustainable living are delivered through other
strategies such as carbon reduction, waste, water and drainage. The
Masterplan and corresponding Parameter Plans need to be able to
accommodate these strategies to ensure they can be delivered at the
detailed stage. To this end it is considered that the way the scheme has
been designed should allow for the scheme to achieve its ambitious
targets within the NWCAAP.

Community and Open Space

Social infrastructure is important to any new development. The Masterplan
has to be designed so that it can help the community thrive with essential
facilities accessible to all on the site. As outlined above the local centre sits
within the heart of the development ensuring that it is easily accessible for
all residents of the site. The elements that make up the local centre are
important, as is the phasing of provision, and community support available,
all of which are covered in detail later in the report. There are also potential
neighbourhood hubs that are allowed for in the Parameter Plans should
they be viable.

Community elements such as outdoor sports pitches, informal play space,
children’s play and allotments are distributed throughout the proposal
ensuring that each area of the site has facilities locally. PP03 (Open Land
and Landscape Areas) establishes where these open space areas will be
within the development, identifying the Green Belt areas and open spaces.
This will enable elements such as the Youth and Play Strategy (secured by
Condition 9) to build on the plans in more detail.

Urban design officers have been closely involved in the development of
the above design principles and support the scheme as amended, and
consider that the proposed development has the potential to create an
exciting and high quality new development.

Visual Impact

Policy NW4 of the NWCAAP requires development to create a high quality
built edge to the urban area and provide an appropriate setting to
Cambridge that maintains the purposes of the Cambridge Green Belt.
Policy NW29 further seeks to secure the timing and delivery of strategic
landscaping for the development, to ensure that the visual impact of the
development is minimised. The Environmental Statement submitted as
part of the application looks at the Landscape and Visual Impact of the
development.

Page 19
19



8.55

8.56

8.57

8.58

8.59

8.60

There are two main strategic elements to the visual setting of the site; the
western edge, which provides the foreground of the site from westerly
views which includes long distance views from Madingley and close up
views from the M11, and the Strategic gap (sometimes referred to as the
Girton gap) which is positioned to ensure separation is maintained
between Cambridge and Girton village. Both of these areas are retained
within the Green Belt. A third area of Green Belt to the west of the Park &
Ride will provide additional green space for outdoor sport and allotments,
however due to its position below the M11, and the existing woodland
adjacent, this area doesn’t have significant impact in terms of visual
impact.

Western Edge

The western edge of the development is the area of Green Belt between
the development boundary as prescribed by the NWCAAP and the M11,
which varies in width between 170 metres and 270 metres.

The western edge is an extremely important element of the proposal. The
design evolution has been informed by responding to drainage, ecological
and landscape issues while performing noise mitigation measures and
providing parkland space adjacent to the development. It must also
maintain a ‘rural’ element to the western side. The indicative design
accommodates existing features and constraints, key aspects such as the
Washpit Brook, existing planting and historical field patterns are used
within the design. Elements such as phasing, landform, spoil and an
existing gas main have been factored in at this stage also.

The NWCAAP rules out the use of an acoustic wall adjacent to the M11
and, therefore, the proposal is to carefully use topography, utilising
arisings from the on-site construction activity, to act as a buffer from the
road noise. The overarching concept is then to provide two ‘sides’ to the
western edge; a more natural landscape to the west adjacent to the M11
providing a rural foreground to the development, and informal parkland to
the east relating to the new development. The berms created by the
arisings will be carefully crafted to adjust and control views into and out of
the site. The berms will include tree planting helping to control the setting
of the development.

The Washpit Brook will be integrated into the new landform with an
additional channel to the east of the berms. The green spaces will provide
for informal play and walking/cycling through the network of paths. These
spaces will also provide for the floodplain area in large storm events.
Ecological enhancements will be provided using the existing features and
introducing habitat for Voles where possible. Some allotments are
proposed to the north end of the western edge set behind the berm.

Noting English Heritage’s comments, there is no doubt that this landscape
form will differ greatly from the pastoral setting currently in situ. However it
must be acknowledged that the site will change once developed and the

Page 20
20



8.61

8.62

8.63

8.64

8.65

8.66

landscape form must respond to both its historical context and its new
form. The indicative design submitted will provide for attractive, useable
landscape which from within the development will limit views to the M11
(and limit noise from the M11), making the spaces between the berms and
the development edge available for informal play and walks. Both English
Heritage and Conservation officers note the importance of the buildings
that front the new western edge, and great care and attention should be
given to these buildings at both the design code, and reserved matters
stage.

The views from the west and the M11 will change, however the new
landscape form will provide an interesting and attractive foreground for the
development helping soften the development form and creating a green
edge to the city and the village of Girton. The landscape will still be
designed so that, save for some very small areas, the landscape will be
less than a 1:3 gradient. The green fingers set within the developed area
will link up with the western edge allowing the western landscape to ‘bleed’
into the development.

The design submitted within the DALS is indicative, and the detailed
elements and final landform will be subject to further discussion and
detailed applications. A Parameter Plan (PP07) has been submitted, which
details the topography in the western edge, and strategic gap, and gives
some certainty over the proposal, however the contour lines are subject to
a +/- 2.5m variance, which also allows some flexibility at the design stage.

Considering the various functions required of the Western Edge,
landscape officers have noted that it will be important that the proposed
typical gradients are not exceeded in public areas, as it will be difficult to
walk on, plant and maintain.

Conscious of the comments from landscape officers, a statement has been
introduced within PP03 that limits the earthworks visible from the west of
the site to a 1:3 gradient, to ensure that the gradients proposed at the
detailed stage are acceptable in visual terms as well as being useable
spaces (i.e not too steep). Based on the level of information submitted
reducing the variance from +/-2.5 to +/-1.5 could limit the flexibility at the
detailed stage and therefore it is considered that the level of flexibility
within parameter plan should remain as proposed.

The NWCAAP acknowledges that the built part of the development will be
visible in the landscape, and it states that the Masterplan for the site
ensures the provision of a complementary high quality and distinctive built
edge to the extended urban area and appropriate landscaping. It is
considered that the proposal as submitted conforms with this statement
and is therefore consistent with Policies NW4 and NW29.

Strategic gap

The developable footprint as set out in the NWCAAP is set in two parts
either side of the strategic gap. The principal function of this area of Green

Page 21
21



8.67

8.68

8.69

8.70

8.71

Belt is to ensure that Girton does not coalesce with Cambridge. The
challenge within the proposal is that while the space ensures the
separation, it must also form a connecting part of the Masterplan providing
a central open space, rich in amenity, biodiversity and recreation that bring
the two areas of the site together, a concern repeated through neighbour
and Parish Council representations.

As proposed through the Masterplan the strategic gap will be a series of
spaces with different character, albeit all open spaces, and all Green Belt
compliant. Towards the Madingley Road side of the gap, the existing ridge
and furrow field (a system of ploughing used in the middle ages) will be
retained and possibly used for grazing. The space then moves into the
large central space (named Storey’s Field within documentation submitted
with the application), which is approximately the same size as Parker's
Piece.

The proposed space will be different in character to Parker's Piece. Some
elements will be similar (a cricket pitch is proposed to the south, which will
also offer informal space when not in use, and a major cycle route runs
through the centre of the space), but the location of the SSSI will give the
space a much different feel. The SSSI will be ‘open’ allowing people to
access the base of the SSSI area, and the applicants are exploring with
Natural England a route through the bank of the SSSI which would
enhance access further. At the north end of the open space the existing
World Conservation Monitoring Centre will continue to operate. There will
need to be careful attention paid to how this area integrates with the open
space at the reserved matters stage.

The space then moves through a narrowed area (in reality this narrowed
area will be around 30 metres wide) between land behind the Traveller's
Rest restaurant and the primary school site. This element of the Primary
School site is indicatively shown to be the school playing fields, which will
complement the openness of the gap from long views. Through the
narrowing the space opens up to land that can be seen from Huntingdon
Road. This area will have some low-key formal outdoor sports
(floodlighting is excluded in this area within PP03), and informal space with
planting around the edges.

Girton Parish Council has asked for further design work to be carried out
before the proposals are considered to be acceptable. The level of detail
provided thus far is compatible with the status of the application as an
outline submission, but does provide some comfort that a number of
landscape solutions are possible for the site. Detailed design proposals will
come forward through the reserved matters application process, during
which the Parish Council will be consulted.

The Strategic Gap, as proposed, fulfils the aims of the NWCAAP and the
statements approved with PP03 limit the development of this Green Belt
space to uses compliant with Green Belt policy, as set out in PPG2 and
reaffirmed in the NPPF. PP03 also identifies the secondary open space
within the development, which connects the two strategic open spaces as

Page 22
22



8.72

8.73

8.74

8.75

8.76

8.77

well as identifying those elements of existing open land that will be
retained. Tertiary open land isn’t identified on PP03 as these will be the
spaces that are identified at the detailed design stage.

Parameter Plans

The application comprises a set of nine Parameter Plans and Parameter
Plan statements for approval. Many of these Parameter Plans (PP 02, 03,
04, 05, 06, and 07) are discussed above. In addition to this, PP01 sets
three zones which are referred to in the description of development; Zone
A being the Huntingdon Road and proposed junctions, Zone B is the
development site, and Zone C is the Madingley Road and site access.
Parameter Plans 08 and 09 relate to highways and utilities works, which
will be discussed within the transport section.

All the Parameter Plans contain a ‘for approval’ box, which will be the
information that is formally approved on the plan, and a ‘contextual
information’ box that would not be formally approved. The Parameter Plan
statements are also recommended to be formally approved.

Contextual Plans

To supplement the Parameter Plans a number of contextual plans have
submitted which, although not for approval at this stage, give some key
background or supporting information such as land ownership, tree
preservation orders and landscaping options at the access junctions.

The Masterplan is also not for approval at this stage. The Masterplan is
illustrative and represents one way in which the scheme, using the
Parameter Plans submitted, could be drawn up. The Masterplan provides
comfort that the Parameters can work and achieve the aims set within
policy. Although an important tool in assessing the application, the DALS is
also contextual and doesn’t get formally approved through any granting of
permission. A lot of the concepts and illustrations within the document will
be subject to further scrutiny and testing at the design code and reserved
matters stages.

Conclusion

The Masterplan has been worked up over a long period involving input
from officers at district and county level, key stakeholders, and members of
the public and amendments to the proposal were made in April, to address
some key issues raised. The Masterplan has then be drawn back into
more general ‘Parameters’, which create a successful balance between
fixing key elements of the site to ensure an acceptable development in
policy terms, and allowing some flexibility for the design to evolve at a later
stage.

Urban Design officers are supportive of the proposal, and both
CABE/Design Council and Cambridgeshire’s Quality Panel have
acknowledged the qualities of the masterplan, the former stating that the

Page 23
23



8.78

8.79

8.80

8.81

8.82

Masterplan is clear and logical, well connected and respectful to its
surrounding and commending the resolution to the western edge, and the
strategic gap. All parties acknowledge that the work done to date needs to
be built on through detailed design to ensure the development provides the
highest possible quality.

Responding to English Heritage’s concerns about the width of the green
fingers, the amendments to the application widened these spaces to allow
for views around the site and glimpses into the wider city. Their comments
in relation to landmark buildings not necessarily requiring height are also
noted, and will be taken on board at the design stage. Concerns from third
parties about the density are noted, although the NWCAAP does establish
a minimum density to ensure efficient use of this land, this shouldn’t come
at the expense of neighbour amenity for quality of housing provided.
Parish Council and Residents’ comments about the respecting local
character with design and general quality of design are also noted, and
something that is set as a key objective in the NWCAAP.

It is considered that the proposal represents a well-considered and robust
Masterplan both in terms of design and landscape. The next stage of
design will be a design code, which will help bridge the gap between the
broad parameters proposed here, and the detailed design stage. A
condition (Condition 7) is therefore suggested to secure a site wide design
code that will help steer reserved matters applications. The proposal in
terms of urban design and visual impact is compliant with the vision and
aims of NWCAAP Policies NW1, NW2, NW3, NW4 and NW29.

Transport

Introduction

The NWCAAP emphasises the importance of sustainable travel in relation
to the proposed development. Policy NW11 states that development will
be planned in order to reduce the need to travel, and maximise the use of
sustainable transport modes encouraging people to use non-car modes of
travel. It aims to achieve a model share of no more than 40% of trips to
work by car.

The NWCAAP also identifies policies in relation to highway infrastructure,
vehicular access, highway provision and linkages, as well as directing the
need for public transport, cycling and walking provision. How the
development relates to these policies is assessed below.

Through the documentation submitted with the application, namely the
Environmental Statement, Transport Assessment, Travel Plan and
supporting plans the applicant has tried to show that the policies can be
achieved through providing a combination of: complementary land uses on
site, focussed travel demand measures, encouraging the use of non-car
modes of transport, discouraging the use of the car and ensuring that
future residents can access work, amenities and recreational facilities
locally without the need to use a car.

Page 24
24



8.83

8.84

8.85

8.86

8.87

8.88

8.89

Throughout the public consultation both at pre-application stage, and
during the application transport issues have accounted for a significant
proportion of comments and concerns. The applicants have worked with
the County Council, and the Highway Agency to ensure that all the issues
relating to transport can be addressed through some form of mitigation to
address concerns and comply with policy.

The site is well located with respect to existing public transport, pedestrian
and cycle infrastructure as well as being well connected to the local road
network through two arterial routes (Huntingdon and Madingley Road),
both of which are busy at peak times. The site also offers links to the
strategic network (A14 and M11), although the two, existing, local junctions
are limited to westbound (A14) and southbound (M11) carriageway access
in the immediate vicinity.

Transport Assessment

The applicant has assessed the likely impact of the proposed development
using a methodology agreed with both Cambridgeshire County Council
and the Highways Agency. The Cambridge Sub Regional Model (CSRM)
has been used which is an integrated land use and transportantion model
and incorporates the County’s SATURN highway model, providing a high
quality representation of the capacity and traffic flows on roads through the
sub-region, ensuring that crucial congestion effects are represented. The
model also includes individual public transport services such as bus,
guided bus, park and ride and rail and allows also for Cambridge’s unique
transport patterns in terms of walking and cycling. The assessment used
2026 as the assessment year (when this site, and other anticipated growth
development will be fully built out), to provide a robust assessment of the
full impact.

The applicant also independently checked the predicted impacts from the
development using the CSRM with a ‘Person Trip Model’ to help give
greater confidence to the estimated figures.

The CSRM has been used to examine the area-wide implications of
development growth in Cambridgeshire, and the need for infrastructure
enhancements where applicable. In addition to development-related tests,
the model has also been used to examine the impact of transport
proposals including the Highways Agency’s A14 Ellington to Fen Ditton
scheme.

The Department for Transport (DfT) sets challenging standards which
transport models need to comply with so that investment and planning
decisions can be taken based on robust evidence. These standards are
set out in guidance documents known as WebTAG (web-based Transport
Appraisal Guidance) and DMRB (Design Manual for Roads and Bridges).
The CSRM complies with these standards.

The model has been set up to:

Page 25
25



8.90

8.91

8.92

8.93

8.94

. For a ‘base year of 2006 for which data on observed patterns of
behaviour are used to ‘calibrate’ and ‘validate’ the model;

. For a number of future years to provide forecasts of future
transport patterns using information about existing and predicted
future homes, employment, education, shopping development, as
well as existing and proposed transport links.

For the purposes of this proposal, a 2026 future assessment year has
been used as this reflects the likely completed development assessment
year set out in the Environmental Statement. Two runs of the model have
been undertaken for 2026 to reflect the following scenarios

° 2026 ‘Do minimum’ option test- which includes all existing,
committed and consulted development and transport infrastructure
in 2026, but excluding all the new road links and trips generated by
the proposed development.

o 2026 ‘Do something’ option test- which is the same as above but
including the proposed development and associated new roads
and links.

These model runs help identify both the growth of trips regardless of the
proposed development, and the number of additional vehicular trips
generated by this development on the transport network in the assessment
year. A ‘Person Trip Analysis’ was also undertaken to understand in more
detail how the local internal trip-making patterns work within the
development.

Results

Detailed results of all the traffic impact analysis are contained within the
Transport Assessment. This identifies first and foremost the percentage
difference in peak hour flows between the 2006 Base model, and the 2026
‘Do Minimum’ (without the development), which shows that through
background growth (i.e not trips created by the development) that the M11
and A14 both experience significant increases in peak hour flow (8%-25%
and up to 30% respectively), as does the A428 (increase of at least 53%).
There are also increases in the peak hour flow on both arterial routes into
the city (Madingley Road and Huntingdon Road).

The results of the comparison between the 2026 ‘Do minimum’ and ‘Do
something’, essentially the impact that this development will have are key
to identifying the impact of this particular proposal on the highway network.

Impact on Strateqgic Network

Policy NW12 requires sufficient highway capacity in order to support the
proposal, and that development must contribute to measures to mitigate
any significant adverse traffic impacts on the M11 and/or A14. Discussions
with the Highway Agency throughout the pre-application process, and

Page 26
26



8.95

8.96

8.97

8.98

8.99

following submission of the application have taken place to ensure that the
Transport Assessment identifies any potential impact.

The results show that there is minimal influence on the strategic network
(A14 and M11) as a result of this development. When comparing the 2026
Do minimum scenario and 2026 Do something scenario model flows show
(between various junctions) generally between a 1.4% increase to a 0.8%
decrease. The exceptions to this are the section of Dry Drayton Road to
the M11 merge on the A14, which shows a 2% increase in the AM peak,
and the A14 and A14 service roads - from the M11 merge to A14
Eastbound slip - which shows a 1.9% and 3.7% decrease in the AM and
PM peak respectively. The A428 experiences an increase of between 5%
and 7%. It should be noted that these are changes in traffic flow in 2026
between the ‘with’ and ‘without development scenarios. Under both
scenarios there is still significant growth in traffic from the base year of
2006

The Highway Agency is satisfied that these changes will not have a
material impact on the strategic network, and has not objected to the
proposal. The strength of the proposed travel plan will ensure that any
impact can be monitored during the lifetime of the development. The
applicant proposes to provide additional transport measures beyond those
incorporated into the model which should reduce the impact further. The
applicants will also monitor the use of the M11 J13 slip road, and should
levels exceed those anticipated a cascade of penalties for the applicant
could be enforced, starting with enhanced travel plan measures, and as a
final fallback physical works to the M11 slip road or alternative payments.

The applicant remains in a unique position, in that they are able to
influence trip patterns into the city through changes to other employment
areas within the city. Although the University already have a University-
wide travel plan, by targeting employees at other sites, who have real
potential to change their trip into the city (for example those who live close
to the Guided Bus). Measures such as a car sharing scheme, extended
car club scheme, and subsidised bus passes could reduce the AM peak
trips into the city by as much as 695 car trips. This would also have
significant benefit to both Huntingdon and Madingley Road.

The Highway Agency has no objection to the application subject to
securing the University Site Wide Travel Plan, which includes the
mechanism to monitor and secure if necessary the improvement works at
the J13 slip road, and a Construction Environmental Management Plan.
The application is, therefore, compliant with Policy NW12 in this respect.

Local Roads

As a result of this development, the profile of traffic on Huntingdon Road
will change. Peak hour traffic going both ways west of the new Huntingdon
Road West access will increase by around 270 vehicles, however flows on
the sections of Huntingdon Road to the east of that junction will decrease
by around 70 vehicle trips in the AM peak and 150 vehicle trips in the PM

Page 27
27



8.100

8.101

8.102

8.103

8.104

peak. It should be noted that these are changes in 2026 between the ‘with’
and ‘without development’ scenarios; both scenarios show increased
traffic flows on Huntingdon Road compared to the base year.

This reflects the likely changes in travel patterns across the area, including
the change of modes and public transport services. It is also reflective of
the application site creating a new orbital transit route through to
Madingley Road, intercepting vehicles that would otherwise have exited
the A14 and travelled the length of Huntingdon Road onto either Storey’s
Way or Mount Pleasant to access the Madingley Road area. Overall the
journey time along Huntingdon Road increases by approximately 45
seconds in the AM peak, this is primarily due to the two new signalised
junctions.

There is a similar impact on Madingley Road. The two way flow on
Madingley Road to the west of the new site access is predicted to increase
by around 200 vehicular trips. However, on the section to the east of the
new High Cross junction the two way flows decrease by 170 vehicles,
reflecting the changes in travel patterns and improved public transport.
The average journey time increase in both directions in both peaks is
around 23 seconds, again brought about by the new signalised junctions.
Again, it should be noted that these are changes in 2026 between the
‘with’ and ‘without development’ scenarios.

Most local roads experience small changes as a result of this development
although there is a large increase in vehicular movements through
Windsor Road and Oxford Road between 45% and 41% in the AM and PM
peak respectively. The applicant proposes S106 contributions for
mitigation of this impact. There are also increases in traffic along Girton
Road and Grange Road identified by the model, however it also shows a
significant reduction in traffic through Storey’s Way.

The table in Appendix N shows a summary of the total vehicle movements
from the ‘Do Minimum’ and ‘Do Something’ tests. The origin of the journey
is listed down the left hand side as the (row headers), and the destination
of the journey is listed along the top (column headers). Two sets of two
tables are shown, one comparing the AM Peak and one showing the PM
Peak. By comparing the figures in the bottom right hand box the overall
impact on the network as a result of this development, when compared to
without the development (but including background growth) can be
identified.

Transport Strategy

In order to reduce trips by the private car and encourage more sustainable
transport modes an Access and Movement Strategy has been included
within the transport assessment and factored into the model results above.
The strategy has been derived to ensure that the development complies
with Policy NW11.

Page 28
28



8.105

8.106

8.107

8.108

8.109

8.110

8.111

Land uses

The Policy requires good levels of day-to-day facilities within the local
centre to help internalise trips. The applicant has proposed a good range
of facilities on site, including shops, community facilities and primary
school to ensure reducing the need to travel of day-to-day needs.

Walking and Cycling Strategy

The proposed development needs to enhance and expand on the existing
cycle and pedestrian network in Cambridge. Parameter Plan 02 identifies
the pedestrian and cycle connections between the proposed development
and the existing network. In addition to the site access points (discussed in
more detail below) cycle and pedestrian connectivity is provided to
connect with Huntingdon Rd at Bunker's Hill linking to Cambridge Rd,
Girton, at the eastern side of the strategic gap, linking to the western side
of the NIAB development, and at the avenue of Horse Chestnut trees.

The proposal has links to Madingley Road, via Madingley Rise, which
along with the Madingley Road access point allows for connections to the
West Cambridge development and the Coton footpath. There is also a
proposed cycle and pedestrian access point at Storey's Way which links
into the Ridgeway (a cycle and pedestrian highway), which runs through
the heart of the site up to Bunker's Hill.

Adjacent to the site, a new cycleway will be provided from the junction with
Cambridge Road, Girton to the new Huntingdon Road west access.
Improvements will also be made to the cycleway on the north side of
Madingley Road, linking in with the current County Council scheme to
improve the cycle provision on that road. The S106 will also provide for
improvements in the local area, described in greater detail in that section
of the report.

Walking and cycling links to the countryside have also been secured. The
provision is outlined in detail in paragraphs 8.271 to 8.276 below. It is
considered that the proposals comply with Policies NW17 and 18 of the
NWCAAP.

Public Transport

Policy NW16 of the NWCAAP requires high quality public transport to be
provided as part of the development. The proposal provides for a
comprehensive public transport strategy, developed by the applicant in
conjunction with the County Council to address this policy. This strategy
identifies the phasing of, and long-term viability of the various route
options for public transport on this site.

The Public Transport Strategy concludes that the following services be
provided as a result of the proposed development.

Page 29
29



e |In year 1 (as soon as practically possible) the Uni 4 service will be
extended into the site, with its existing 20 minute frequency. A 30
minute frequency Saturday service is introduced at the same time.
This service will connect the site with the western part of the city, with
an option to link to the Railway Station and will connect with
Addenbrooke’s Hospital.

¢ Once the commercial/academic floorspace is provided on site the Uni
4 service will be increased in frequency to every 10 minutes.
Concurrently with this the Citi 4 service will not need to divert through
the West Cambridge Site and can operate directly on Madingley Road
connecting Cambourne with the edge of this site, through to the city
centre.

e At 800 dwellings a new service (Citi 8) running between the site and
the city centre will be introduced and will operate every 20 minutes
Monday-Saturday daytimes and hourly in the evenings and on
Sunday.

e Once the commercial/academic floorspace is provided (and on
completion of the radial route through the site) on site the Citi 5 service
(Bar Hill to the city centre) is to be diverted via the site, and will
operate every 10 minutes on Monday-Saturday daytimes and every 30
minutes in the evening and on Sunday. Once this service is in place it
will supersede the Citi 8 route in the above.

e Upon completion of the NIAB through road (which will complete the
orbital route, and have public transport priority) and after 400 dwellings
completed on this site, an orbital hourly service from West Cambridge
to the Science Park will be provided.

8.112 The applicants will provide subsidy for these services in the early years, to
ensure that the bus is there, even when unviable in the early years, to
establish habit for residents of the development.

8.113 The applicants will provide subsidy for these services in the early years, to
ensure that the bus is there, even when unviable in the early years, to
establish habit for residents of the development.

Car and Cycle Parking Provision

8.114 The NWCAAP identifies the car and cycle parking standards for the
development. These are expressed as a maximum for car parking and a
minimum for cycle parking.

8.115 The applicant has made a commitment through the Transport Assessment
to comply with the maximum standards, which will be monitored through
the reserved matters applications. There is a clear balance to be struck
ensuring that adequate provision is provided, as lack of available spaces
often leads to illegal/dangerous parking and harming amenity and ensuring

Page 30
30



8.116

8.117

8.118

8.119

8.120

8.121

that use of the car is not encouraged. A distinction needs to be made
between car ownership and car usage.

A condition (Condition 40) limiting the overall car parking spaces on the
site is suggested, ensuring that some flexibility between development
parcels can be accepted (some parcels of family housing may want to
exceed the 1.5 total average), without concern that the overall site limit will
be exceeded. A condition (Condition 41) is also proposed to look at the
local centre comprehensively where parking for different uses may be
covered through one central parking area. This gives comfort that parking
will not be significantly under, or over provided.

In terms of cycle parking, applying the standards in the NWCAAP will
result in over 12,000 cycle parking spaces on the site. The applicants are
committed to meeting the standards, and where necessary to achieve
code for sustainable homes (CfSH) level 5, exceed them. In addition to this
BREEAM standards will require things such as showers, changing facilities
and lockers, and drying space for wet clothes to be provided in the non-
residential uses.

The applicant has identified areas where reducing the car parking further
could potentially reduce trips on the network further. This is supported in
principle, however this needs to be achieved in context and carefully
considered. Under-providing for parking could result in detriment to the
streetscene, with fly-parking and loss of amenity, or overspill into the
streets outside the development site. Lower levels of parking for key
worker and employment uses would appear to be achievable through the
implementation of the University Wide Travel Plan measures, whilst
inhibiting fly-parking and loss of amenity will be managed through the
wider estate management proposals being put forward by the applicant.

A commitment at this stage has been provided to adhere to the NWCAAP
standards, with the Transport Assessment outlining a target to significantly
better the standards, by considering the potential mix of units on site and
the various Travel Plan measures being proposed. The maximum parking
provision, outline above, will be monitored and enforced through the
detailed application stage. As such the proposal is compliant with Policy
NW19.

Internal Roads

Policy NW13 requires that the vehicular access points into the
development be minimised, and a concept diagram is shown in the
NWCAAP identifying three points of access, two from Huntingdon Road
and one from Madingley Road. These roads are shown as an orbital route,
which runs parallel to the strategic gap, and a radial route, which runs
parallel with the western edge. The proposed development is consistent
with the NWCAAP and can, therefore, be supported in principle.

Policy NW14 states that 'a new route will be developed linking Madingley
Road with Huntingdon Road'. The policy requires its design to be based on

Page 31
31



8.122

8.123

8.124

8.125

8.126

8.127

low vehicle speeds, with priority for pedestrian and cyclists. Parameter
Plan 02 states that ‘All vehicle routes will be speed limited to 20mph, or
less’, meaning that the through detailed design of the road, it is anticipated
that speeds will be kept within this target. Indicative sections of the internal
roads are provided to support this statement, for primary routes this
involves a narrow carriageway with planting either side, and a separate
cycleway, and pedestrian footpath. Secondary and tertiary routes will
provide for narrow carriageways with on street parking and planting, with
cyclists on road. While the detail will be approved through the reserved
matters applications the indicative sections show that the low design
speed on the site can be achieved and the policy adhered to.

Travel Demand management Strategy/Framework Travel Plan

Managing travel at this site is key to reducing the number of trips on the
network. The broad objectives of the travel plan(s) will be to reduce
reliance on the car, promote the softer modes of travel, promote car
sharing, encourage behavioural change. The travel plan should aim to
achieve and exceed the NWCAAP policy of less than 40% car driver mode
share.

A Framework Travel Plan has been submitted with the application which
highlights the measures available to help manage movements to and from
this site. The overall demand management strategy looks at five ‘tiers’ of
travel planning ranging from the location itself and the built environment to
a travel plan coordinator, the services and facilities and promotional
strategy.

The site is in a sustainable location, and with good design and layout such
as permeable footway and cycleways, high levels of cycle parking, 20 mph
limit to internal roads and good public transport links the proposal lays a
foundation for sustainable travel.

The applicant has committed to provide sufficient resource to a
Development Transport Co-ordinator, who will be supported by community
‘champions’ and individual work place/school/residential co-ordinators.
Also provided will be funding for a stakeholder group consisting of
representatives from the residents’ groups, major occupiers, the Councils
and the applicant.

Proposals within the travel plan include cycle pools/hubs that will be
located near nodes of activity, cycle ‘clinic’ facility in the local centre for
works and repairs to cycles, the creation of a cycle club and cycle
discounts. Car Club spaces will be located on the site, at the rate of 1
space per 200-250 residents which will result in between 12-15 car club
parking spaces on site. Extra incentives for key workers to use the car club
could be provided increasing the number of car club spaces further.

There will also be a large marketing/advertising campaign for sustainable
travel. This will involve recruiting champions, creating social networks
within the community and developing a dedicated website with up to date

Page 32
32



8.128

8.129

8.130

8.131

8.132

8.133

information. Staff induction packs and household welcome packs will
include maps, bus information with health and financial benefit information.

Funding will be set aside for measures within the travel plan, as well as
money set aside to address any shortfalls in targets for the travel plan. The
travel plan will be a working document, monitored annually and adapted
over time to be as effective as possible. It will be secured through the
S106.

Further mitigation measures

The ‘Do Something’ Model runs have incorporated the benefit of the Travel
Demand Management Strategy highlighted above including the public
transport measures proposed, and the results show a negligible impact on
the network. Notwithstanding this the applicants are proposing additional
measures to ensure that the development creates even less of an impact
than the model results show.

These further mitigation measures are either secured through condition,
S106, or are part of the travel plan. The measures look to minimise vehicle
trip reduction such as looking at reduced parking spaces or funding
promotion of the Guided Bus, or look at preserving/enhancing capacity on
the network such as improvements at the Queen St/Madingley
Road/Northampton St Junction, or demand management such as
MOVA/SCOQOT at junctions (see below). There are also improvements for
pedestrian and cyclist movement within the nearby roads.

Junction Analysis

The proposed development introduces three new controlled junctions, and
changes to an existing junction on Madingley Road. The Transport
Assessment has applied the most appropriate modelling software to look
at the capacity and operation of the proposed junctions, as well as the
impact of the proposed development on existing junctions in close
proximity of the site to ensure that they can work within capacity and
operate safely for cyclists and pedestrians.

Detailed drawings of all junctions have been applied for at this stage and
therefore will not be reserved for further approval. Therefore, the detailed
design needs to be fully interrogated now. Indicative roadmarkings and
signal heads have been provided on the plans.

Huntingdon Road West

The Huntingdon Road West junction will be situated opposite Grange
Drive, close to Girton College. The junction will be a new four-arm signal
controlled junction, including pedestrian and cycle crossings. The
modelling carried out on this junction showed that all arms operate well
below 100% in the assessment year, and the maximum queue length can
be accommodated within the space available without any knock-on
impacts.

Page 33
33



8.134

8.135

8.136

8.137

8.138

8.139

To help this junction operate efficiently with the other junction proposed on
Huntingdon Road, and the new junction serving the NIAB developments
MOVA/SCOOT (a linked electronic signal optimisation system, that
connects the junctions to manage traffic flow by responding to demand)
will be provided to help reduce any delay. This junction also facilitates the
movement of the 40 mph sign on Huntingdon Road to the west of this
junction.

Indicative landscaping plans have been provided to show how the junction
can be softened in design terms to help fit in with the character of
Huntingdon Road. Although one protected tree will need to be removed as
part of the junction, this tree is has little amenity value, and the loss can be
compensated for through the new planting provided. This junction is
therefore considered acceptable.

The junction plan also shows the provision of a cycleway connecting the
cycleway that ends just west of the junction with Cambridge Road, Girton.
The cycleway proposed will help aid cyclists travelling to the north-west
part of the development. Third Party correspondence has been received
raising concern that this cycleway could have an impact both on highway
safety (conflict with egress of residents on Huntingdon Road), and the
trees that are subject to a Tree Preservation Orders), and questioning
whether it is necessary at all.

lllustrative Junction Plan 1 submitted with the amendments to the
application shows the visibility splays (in alternate green and orange
colours as they overlap) indicating that a 2.4 x 25m visibility splay is
available (for the off carriageway elements), and will allow private vehicles
and cyclists to see one another. On carriageway elements are not
affected. All of the houses have sufficient space within their cartilage to
enter and leave the properties in forward gear. It is considered that the link
is necessary in order to promote cycling as a viable alternative to the
private car.

The protected trees are important to the setting and character of
Huntingdon Road, and to that end it is agreed that the provision of the
cycleway should not compromise the trees. There are locations where
rooting may be infringed upon although not enough to ultimately damage
or impact the trees. The illustrative junction plan includes a topographical
survey (so reliance isn’t just based on an ordinance survey base). The
suggested condition requiring details of this junction/cycleway prior to
implementation includes a requirement for further details of tree root
zones, and construction details where the carriageway infringes on a
protected root zone. Subject to this suggested condition (Condition 45) it
is considered that the proposal complies with NWCAAP policy.

Huntingdon Road East

The Huntingdon Road East junction will be situated to the western side of
the strategic gap as identified within the NWCAAP completing the ‘long

Page 34
34



8.140

8.141

8.142

8.143

8.144

stagger’ with the NIAB junction. The junction will be a three arm signalised
junction and provide for cycle and pedestrian crossings, including a
demand activated crossing on the eastern side of the strategic gap which
will link up with the strategic cycleway on the western edge of the NIAB
proposal.

The junction modelling shows that the junction would operate very near to
capacity with city bound traffic in the AM peak and outbound in the PM
peak. The junction would provide enough space for stacking vehicles and
therefore would not interfere with any other junction. Although close to
capacity the junction analysis has been carried out in a ‘worst case
scenario’ not taking into account the further mitigation measures proposed
by the applicant, and not including the addition of MOVA/SCOOT
operating system proposed which will enhance efficiency and
effectiveness. While it operates close to capacity in the peak hours, the
junction operates well below capacity the rest of the time, on balance it
would not be justified to require a larger junction just to cope with the peak
time period.

The landscaping proposals, indicatively shown, result in significant
changes to the appearance of the strategic gap, including the loss of the
existing hedge along the roadside. While it is unfortunate that the hedge
will be lost, inserting a junction in this location, for a scheme of this size
mean it is necessary in this instance. A comprehensive planting scheme
will be proposed to complement the new junction and will, over time more
than compensate for the loss of the hedge.

Work was undertaken with the applicant to see if the left-hand turn into the
site from Huntingdon Road, going outbound was necessary. The results
showed that, with the loss of that lane, stacking queues would interfere
with the adjacent junction. It is therefore necessary. Safe pedestrian and
cycle provision is provided at the junction.

Madingley Road West

The Madingley Road west junction serves as the only access point from
Madingley Road that connects through to Huntingdon Road. It is proposed
in a location consistent with the NWCAAP, to the west of the Ridge and
Furrow field adjacent to the Park and Ride. The junction is a complex one
requiring a four arm signalised junction and being situated in close
proximity to the P&R junction and the junction with the M11. There are also
issues with ground levels in this area.

The model testing for this junction is done alongside all the other junctions
in close proximity for the assessment year. All arms of the junction, and
associated junctions will work within capacity, and the stacking lengths can
be accommodated so that the queuing at one junction won'’t interfere with
the others. The MOVA/SCOOT system will be fitted to the signalised
junctions optimising the system along Madingley Road and reducing
delays to traffic along the corridor. Public transport priority would be fitted
to the junction to ensure that the bus service has priority.

Page 35
35



8.145

8.146

8.147

8.148

8.149

8.150

Due to the nature of the junction and the levels involved there will be a loss
of mature vegetation between Madingley Road and the Ridge and Furrow
field. This is an unfortunate loss as this planting enhances the character of
Madingley Road. While regrettable, this loss is unavoidable given that this
is the location earmarked within the NWCAAP, and given that it can be
replaced comprehensively with new planting to mitigate the impact, on
balance, it is acceptable. Modelling was carried out to test whether the
park and ride could be accessed from the proposed junction, regaining
some of the Madingley Road frontage for landscaping. This arrangement
resulted in over capacity at the junction and there was not considered
viable.

Any replanting scheme must help keep the character of Madingley Road
intact and should also be provided along the new road into the site
including the area between the road and the P&R if possible, to help
minimise the impact of lighting on residents in the adjacent roads.

Madingley Road East

The Madingley Road east junction already exists with Madingley Rise,
which will simply be extended into the site. The junction will remain a
priority junction but a crossing will be provided close to the junction to
assist with pedestrian and cycle movements across the road. The road into
the development will essentially be a cul-de-sac for cars, but will allow for
connection into the rest of the site for cyclists and pedestrians. There are
no junction capacity concerns at this junction.

Junction analysis conclusion

The proposed junctions have been subject to stage 1 safety audit and no
significant safety issues have arisen. Conditions (Conditions 45, 46, 47,
and 48) for each of the junctions are suggested which will require the
submission and agreement of the MOVA/SCOOQOT details, road markings,
landscaping details, and any additional works applicable to that junction,
along with the relevant timing of the works.

The location of the junctions proposed are consistent with those identified
through the NWCAAP and have been agreed with the County Council. All
of the junctions work within capacity, with available space for stacking of
cars for queuing in the peak periods. The methodology used for the work
has been agreed with the County Council. The figures are robust figures
using the assessment year, and do not include improvements that could
be made through the further mitigation measures proposed by the
applicant or the MOVA/SCOQT addition at the signalised junctions.

While the new junctions inevitably impact on the character of the existing
roads, with the loss of some landscape features, the applicants will be
required to provide for a satisfactory solution in terms of replanting which
will both complement the new junctions, and the character of the arterial
roads.

Page 36
36



8.151

8.152

8.153

8.154

8.155

Parameter Plans 8 and 9

In addition to the Parameter Plans 1-7 discussed earlier in this report, two
additional Parameter Plans are proposed to cover the extent of highway
works. PPO8 relates to Huntingdon Road, identifying the zones where
works are required to facilitate access to the proposed development and
associated utility diversions. Zones are also identified for installation of
utility apparatus. PPQ9 identifies similar works associated with Madingley
Road.

Third Party Representations

The agents for the neighbouring NIAB development have expressed
concern that the NIAB2 development has not been considered within the
Transport Assessment. The applicant had agreed the scope and
methodology of the TA with both the County Council and Highway Agency,
which should include NIAB1, but as NIAB2 is not a committed
development (only allocated and not a submitted application) it does not
need to be included. The NIAB2 application will need to be assessed with
the traffic generation from this proposal included. Other queries are made
in relation to the potential routing of traffic, however the model allows for
access into the site from both Huntingdon and Madingley Road, and
therefore the model will allocate the most appropriate access used based
on cost/time for that particular trip.

With regard to a query raised on contextual information within the
submitted plans; where this occurs on parameter plans it is intended to be
just information only and provides just background context and is not being
approved, where this occurs on detailed drawings such as highway plans,
the intention is that elements of the drawing that are contextual will be
secured through condition. This allows for tweaks through the safety audit
process to evolve prior to final sign off and implementation.

With regard to a query regarding the ability of the transport model to reflect
higher than national average mobility in the Cambridge region, it is
important to remember that the CSRM was developed for Cambridgeshire
County Council, and is one of the most sophisticated models in the country
for assessing the impact of new developments. It is largely based on
locally derived data and so reflects Cambridgeshire-specific features, such
as high levels of cycling, and it has been calibrated and validated against
local observations which demonstrates its robustness. Some national
relationships are built into the model, but these will not tend to have a
significant impact on model results. For example, Cambridge City might
experience higher levels of 'churn' within housing compared to the national
average. However, the types of residents who contribute to this higher
turnover will typically have similar behaviours to those they replace, which
means this has limited impact on the model results.

With regard to the red line for the application, the land, subject to the
application, is situated either within the highway boundary or the

Page 37
37



8.156

8.157

8.158

8.159

8.160

applicant’s ownership. Any cross over with third party land is due to the red
line ‘thickness’ and the scale of the plan.

Construction Traffic

The transport assessment has identified the peak period in construction
movement associated with the development, and has assessed the effects
of these movements on the highway network. Phase 1, which contains a
significant amount of road carriageway and non-residential development
such as the foodstore and other local centre uses, as well as the provision
of some earthworks and balancing ponds should be the peak of
construction traffic, and the movements anticipated have been used as the
basis for the assessment.

The transport assessment provides a clear estimate of the peak
construction traffic, which when looking at all of the activity in phase 1 will
be a total of 544 total movements per day. This figure comprises 274 light
vehicle movements, and 270 HGV movements. These movements have
been inserted into the transport model, and shows that they can be easily
accommodated due to the fact that most deliveries will not take place
within peak hours to ensure reliability of delivery.

In terms of the construction impact the largest increase in flows would be
in terms of HGV flows on Madingley Road between the M11 and the site
access. There would be a circa 60% increase in HGVs, although this
would remain well within the overall capacity of the road. The increase in
traffic during the construction process in terms of impact on the road
network is considered negligible. A Construction Environment
Management Plan is suggested as a condition (Condition 52), which will
control the environmental impacts and management aspects of the
construction process.

Conclusion

The Transport Assessment (TA) submitted with the application is
considered to be a robust document supported by both the Highways
Agency and the County Council. Although both Girton and Coton Parish
Council, and a number of neighbours, have raised concerns regarding
specific details contained therein, the methodology and modelling were
undertaken in accordance with Department for Transport guidelines, using
up-to-date information and the subsequent conclusions within the TA are,
therefore, considered sound.

Where an impact has been identified within the TA, suitable mitigation has
been identified and will be secured through the S106 agreement (see
S106 section of the report below). The Framework Travel Plan is
considered to be a strong, realistic document, which will be monitored and
updated through the lifetime of the development, and will also be secured
through the S106.

Page 38
38



8.161

8.162

8.163

8.164

8.165

8.166

The applicant’'s strategies to minimise the use of the car through
masterplanning, with strong walking, cycling and public transport strategies
make for sustainable development in line with the ambitions of the
NWCAAP. The proposed junctions, are consistent with the locations sited
within the NWCAAP, and operate within capacity when the development is
completed and including other growth within the city. While these junctions
will have an impact in landscape and character terms initially,
comprehensive replanting will be required which will mitigate any impact in
the long term.

The Transport Assessment has identified those trips to work that will be
from a car driver over a 12 hour period which shows that the trips
associated with residents and employment on this site will be
approximately 36% of all work based trips, in conformity with Policy NW11
of the NWCAAP.

The proposal is deemed to have negligible impact on the strategic
network, and it is hoped through wider travel planning by the application it
could have an overall positive impact. Subject to the suggested conditions
regarding the proposed junctions, parking strategies, and location of car
club spaces as well as securing location of bus stops and a mechanism for
public transport priority through the local centre, and, subject to mitigation
measures through the S106, it is considered that the proposal accords with
policies NW11, NW12, NW13, NW14, NW15, NW16, NW17, NW18 and
NW19 of the NWCAAP.

Affordable Housing and Dwelling Mix

Prior to the 2003 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan the
University of Cambridge identified this site to address its long-term
development needs for a number of uses, including housing for their key
workers. The Structure Plan accepted that the proposal site should be
released from the Green Belt for the needs of the University and
developed once evidence for the need can be shown.

The University’s Housing Needs Study 2008 (UHNS 2008) was produced
as evidence by the University for the examination into the NWCAAP, and
identified a clear need for the land to be brought forward for development,
with a current need for University key worker housing. Due to the
longstanding difficulties in the local housing market, the University needs
to achieve a fourfold increase in its provision of housing available to staff in
order to deal with recruitment and retention problems arising from local
house prices and rental levels. The findings set out within study are still
relevant today, and survey work carried out by the University post 2008
continues to support the findings within the UHNS.

Policy NW6 of the NWCAAP requires housing development on this site to
provide 50% affordable housing, in the form of University key worker
housing. The occupation of these units would be limited to Cambridge
University and College key workers in housing need and available in the
long-term. To respond to this policy, and Policy NW7 relating to balanced

Page 39
39



8.167

8.168

8.169

8.170

8.171

and sustainable communities, the applicant has submitted a Key Worker
Housing Statement (KWHS) that identifies the policy context, the allocation
principles, key worker characteristics and how the proposal will achieve a
mixed and balanced community.

Allocation Principles

The proposed development provides for 3000 dwellings, 1500 (50%) of
which will be key worker housing in line with the above policy. Despite this
new housing, the University will not be able to meets its full need for key
worker housing through the proposed development and, therefore, further
work has been undertaken to determine how to prioritise the housing that
will become available as a result of this development.

The UHNS 2008 identified housing needs across all University staff
groups:

. Academic staff (lecturers as well as support staff including
administrative, technical and manual posts). These posts are
usually a permanent contract, and are a small proportion of the
2,100 staff recruited per annum.

. Contract research staff (researchers who are nearly always
appointed on a fixed term contract and have a high turnover- in post
for 2.5 years on average).

. Academic related staff (administrative, computing, technical and
library staff).
. Assistant staff (supporting functions such as clerical, secretarial and

manual occupations). Turnover is high for support staff- staff
staying in post 4 years on average.

Annual recruitment rates will continue to increase in the future as staff
numbers continue to grow. The growth of the University is likely to focus
on its research functions, therefore growth in contract research staff will be
the most significant. Consequently, contract research staff are likely to be
a high proportion of the priority key workers targeted here.

Another important aspect of the survey work completed by the University
relates to where staff are recruited from. Approximately half the staff
recruited in the five-year period 2004-2009 moved from elsewhere in the
UK or abroad. This in-migration to Cambridge, both from elsewhere in the
UK and from overseas, clearly adds to the existing pressures in the
Cambridge housing market, and these employees are generally those who
will not know the local housing market and will be in greatest need of
housing support.

As the need for this housing still exceeds the supply, principles need to be
established to decide which staff are given priority. Allocation principles
have evolved through discussions with the local authorities and, as such, a
four-step approach will be applied to all housing applicants.

Page 40
40



8.172

8.173

8.174

8.175

8.176

8.177

8.178

8.179

Firstly there is a need to establish eligibility. Remembering that this
housing is for employees who cannot afford open market rent, anyone
who, on the basis of 30% of net household income, can afford open
market rent is excluded (and so would not take part in the next steps
identified below). The applicant must also have a contract with the
University (or College, or affiliated organisation) with at least 12 months
remaining, and exceeding 18 hours per week. It should be noted that this
is total net household income, not individual net income, so a partner in
the same household earning would mean that someone in the higher
grades would probably be ineligible access to the affordable housing on
this site.

The level of affordability identified on this site (30% of net median
household income) is consistent with advice in the City Council’s
Affordable Housing SPD (Annex 1 para 5.9) which states that for
intermediate rent; rents are not to exceed 30% net median household
incomes.

The second step is to prioritise those people in ‘hard to fill posts’. The
University will work with their HR division to identify posts that have been
vacant for considerable time and/or can only be filled by a small specialist
workforce. These people will be prioritised in the context of the University
needing to remain competitive with other international Universities. This
criterion could also apply to existing staff that need to be retained.

The third step will be to assess the geographical classification, which will
prioritise those people who are totally new to Cambridge, or coming from
overseas who would be unfamiliar with the City, its geography and housing
market.

Finally within each priority group, applicants will be reviewed to take into
account their individual/family circumstances and immediacy of housing
need. Applicants in greater need will be given a +1, +2, +3 etc. and those
with lower priority —1 etc.

Tenancy agreements/contracts will be for one year at a time, and there will
be a review of the tenant to ensure they still meet the eligibility criteria.
However, the University will not discontinue tenancies without reason,
creating unnecessary churn in properties, or inconvenience for the key
worker. Typically it is envisaged that the occupation by key worker
households will run for 2 or 3 years at a time.

The research work undertaken by the applicant shows that the estimated
profile of the site (by applying the allocations policy to likely applicants,
and making assumptions about family circumstances and additional
household income) is likely to comprise 73% research: 24% support and
3% academic occupiers.

Within each of those groups identified above research workers (74% of the
total) most are paid at Grade 5 level (£26,523 median) and grade 7 level
(£32,620 median), support staff (24% of the total) has a much greater

Page 41
41



8.180

8.181

8.182

8.183

spread of people on lower grades (with most paid on Grades 1-5
representing medians of £14,550 - £26,523). Academic workers (3% of
total) are generally paid on Grade 7, 9 or above, however most paid at the
higher end of the grade scale would not be eligible for the key worker
housing.

Mixed and balanced community

Once the above steps have been taken the key worker will be allocated a
housing size depending on whether they are single, a couple with no
children, or have a family. The work undertaken for the UHNS 2008 has
shown that to respond to the likely profile of the key workers a high
number of 1 and 2 bedroom properties will be required (82%). This is to
accommodate the fact that the key worker housing will be predominantly
occupied by research staff who, due to their age, are typically single or
part of a couple without children, who can occupy a 1 bedroom property,
or with younger children, who can occupy a 2 bedroom unit. Family sized
units of 3 and 4 bedrooms will make up approximately 15% of the key
worker units to accommodate those key workers with larger families. The
other 3% of units will be 4 bedroom units that can be a shared property
(four individuals).

The proposed mix of key worker units is based on the evidence
undertaken by the applicant and is considered acceptable as the housing
on this site has to respond to the need identified. The market housing mix
provides for a balanced mix across both smaller and larger units.

Unit size | Key % of Market % of Total % of
worker KWH units Market | units Total
units

1 bed 645 43 240 16 885 29.5

2 bed 585 39 555 37 1140 38

3 bed 190 13 380 25 570 19

4 bed 80 5 325 22 405 13.5

Total 1500 100 1500 100 3000 100

Table 1 - Indicative Housing Mix

Policy NW7 of the NWCAAP requires that the affordable housing be
intermingled with the market housing in small groups or clusters, whilst the
student housing can be provided in a number of groups distributed across
each phase. The aim of this policy is to minimise social exclusion and
avoid the creation of tenure monocultures.

The proposal has been designed to avoid tenure monocultures. This
development is different from other fringe sites development, as it is a true
mixed-use development, which assists in breaking down monocultures.
The mix of land uses across the site as identified within the land use
parameter plan ensures that there will be a good integration of uses
between residential, student, employment and local centre uses. This is

Page 42
42



8.184

8.185

8.186

8.187

enhanced further with uses such as senior care housing, a hotel and the
provision of neighbourhood hubs that may include a local shop and/or
nursery.

In addition to the differing land uses, there will be a further requirement for
the residential element of the scheme to be broken down to ensure the
clustering of tenures (market and key worker housing) as per the policy.
The subtext to the policy indicates clusters of 6-25 units would achieve the
policy aim. Significant discussion with the applicant has taken place
regarding this aspect, as there is the need to balance the requirements of
the policy with practical elements such as energy efficiency and
management.

The NWCAAP policy requiring Code for Sustainable Homes Level 5 is a
challenge for any development, but achievable here largely because of the
high proportion of units that will be owned by the applicant, and the links
with other University uses on site. The provision of the key worker
dwellings and student accommodation at medium and high density
enables the implementation of a cost effective district heating system. The
economics of the district heating system are enhanced here by the fact
that the University may privately provide the electricity it produces to its
own buildings rather than sell to the open market. EU law, however,
outlaws private electricity supplies to market houses and therefore all
those properties must have a connection to public supply. Therefore
‘pepperpotting’, or small clusters of different tenures would compromise
the energy efficiencies required to hit code level 5.

While the applicant has noted that the affordable housing on this site will,
by its very nature, experience 100% employment the local authorities still
require a successful integration of housing to ensure a balanced
community. The key worker housing will, to an extent, be a more transient
population changing occupier(s) every 2-3 years which may provide a
tension with longer term residents in the market housing which supports
justification for slightly larger clusters than prescribed. There is merit in
placing together residents who will be in the same ‘boat’, and will be able
to advise and support new residents, but a balance between keeping
these key workers together, and mixing with the ‘market house’ residents
has to still be achieved.

Mindful of all the above and the general need for the applicant to manage
its housing and wider estate efficiently, but conscious of the need to
achieve tenure balance across the site, the detailed designs will, for the
housing areas, be designed so that no more than 25 key worker houses
will have an interface with any one street. This means that, for example,
there could be a block of back to back key worker houses; 50 in total, but
the streets they front onto would be mixed with market housing. Key
worker housing would have front doors to the street encouraging
interaction and community cohesion, and making sure the units don’t turn
their back on the street. The KWHS contains an illustration as to how this
can be achieved.

Page 43
43



8.188

8.189

8.190

8.191

8.192

For the apartment blocks in the high density areas there will generally be
more key worker units than market units, and clustering with the numbers
indicated within the policy would be difficult to achieve. Many of the
apartment blocks in themselves will exceed the 25 units within the policy.
Sensible planning of high-density units will mean that they are generally
located around the local centre and main transport nodes throughout the
proposal. This places them close to areas of high social interaction and
movement, and will minimise any potential social exclusion. The provision
of the community and recreational elements of the scheme in the local
centre and other neighbourhood nodes, discussed elsewhere in the report
will have a strong influence on the successful integration of key worker
and market housing occupiers on this site.

It is considered that the proposal will conform to the policy and enable the
development to be laid out to minimise social exclusion and avoid tenure
monocultures. While the numbers within the policy will be ‘flexed’ for
justifiable reasons, the aims of the policy can fully achieved and therefore
on balance there can be no objection. All of the development will be
designed ‘tenure blind’ making sure that key worker housing and the
market housing is indistinguishable architecturally. Policy NW7 also
requires a proportion of new homes to be designed to lifetime homes
standards and a condition (condition 22) is suggested to achieve this.

Rental Principles and Monitoring

Rental policy on this site is extremely important if it is to achieve the aims
set out in the NWCAAP. Rents will be based on 30% the occupier's net
household incomes, and less than 30% for a shared four-bedroom
property. If an individual chooses to rent a larger property than they would
otherwise be allocated, a higher rent to reflect this would be negotiated.
Rental levels will be subject to review on renewal of tenancy agreements.

The University will be required to provide an annual report to the local
planning authorities to report on the implementation of the key worker
allocations. The annual report will cover rental levels applied, the
University’s salary profiles across different grades, and a review of
occupier incomes versus rents applied at the application site. It will also
contain a review of the allocation principles to ensure that if the
University’s targeted staff groups change, the modifications are reflected in
the allocation principles. Following the annual report, the University’s
representatives will hold a meeting with the local authorities if required.
The provision of this annual report will be secured through the legal
agreement.

Student accommodation

Policy NW5 requires the housing supply on the site to provide for
approximately 2000 units of student accommodation. The proposal
conforms with this policy in terms of quantum, and identifies two areas
within PP04 for student development, one area to the west of the local

Page 44
44



8.193

8.194

8.195

8.196

centre, adjacent to the proposed sports pitches, and one area situated to
the western end of the development either side of the primary road.

The locations proposed for student accommodation are considered
acceptable, well linked to cycling and walking connections and local
facilities and amenities. The student units will have to be designed to deal
with elements such as noise, but student accommodation is more flexible
in design terms and it is considered that noise can be designed out at the
detailed stage. Policy NW7 accepts that the student properties can be
grouped in large clusters as proposed due to the nature of the use.

Faith Worker Housing

The application proposes four residential units (in addition to the 3000
proposed) for the specific use by faith workers. There are many benefits of
providing housing for faith workers early on in the life of a development,
faith leaders will be able to take an active part in community life, engage
with residents and provide a number of social activities and enable new
residents to adapt quickly into the local neighbourhood where a range of
existing facilities are present, as well as the wider network within the City.
The housing will complement the on-site community facility where larger
gatherings can take place. Two of the four properties will be located within
the local centre, in the first phase.

The concept is supported by the Cambridgeshire Horizons study on
Facilities for Faith in New Communities (2008), and will be a valuable
asset to the site and community. The units will be offered at affordable rent
(30% of net household income of the occupier), and it is expected that the
four units will provide accommodation for between 4-12 residents. In any
event that there is no take up of a faith unit, the property will temporarily
act as an additional key worker unit, with a period of review built in to
ensure that it reverts to faith worker accommodation as soon as it is
required.

In conclusion, the proposals put forward through this application are
consistent with the aims of the NWCAAP and build on the evidence
provided historically. It is considered that the principles contained within
the Key Worker Housing Statement submitted with this application comply
with NWCAAP Policies NW6 and NW7. Conditions are suggested to
secure provision of 15% lifetime homes on the site, as well as the
adequate clustering of the family housing as detailed in the paragraphs
above (Conditions 20 and 22). The legal agreement will secure the use of
the key worker dwellings for that purpose in perpetuity. The proposal also
complies with Policy NW5 in respect of providing for students
accommodation on the site.

Community Infrastructure and Support

NWC Community Strateqy

Page 45
45



8.197

8.198

8.199

8.200

8.201

Policy NW20 states that: “the development will provide an appropriate
level and type of high quality services and facilities in suitable locations to
serve all phases of the development. In order to identify the appropriate
level, detailed assessments and strategies will be required to be prepared
with key stakeholders prior to granting planning permission.”

In addition the NWCAAP highlights the importance of the following issues
in relation to community provision:

¢ Given that the development will take place over a long period of time,
that adequate provision being made at all stages.

e The provision of community development workers to help establish a
cohesive and distinct new community.

e The role of high quality management regimes to provide properly for
the long-term, including arrangements for adoption and maintenance.
Strategies for these to be agreed ahead of granting planning
permission.

In this context, the applicant has provided a detailed Community Strategy
to support the outline planning application. This has been subject to
extensive negotiation over several months with the district councils in
particular, with input and advice from the City Council's Heads of
Community Development, Streets and Open Spaces and Arts and
Recreation, City Council portfolio holders, SCDC key officers and portfolio
holders. There has also been coordination with a number of non-local
authority service providers, including the Primary Care Trust, Police and
faith groups. The final version of the Community Strategy will be appended
to the S106.

The Community Strategy sets out the applicant’s approach to the following
key aspects of community infrastructure provision:

Community centre —interim and permanent provision;
Timing of provision in relation to phasing of development;
Community development support provision;

Community engagement strategy;

Management and maintenance strategy.

Community Centre — Temporary and Permanent Provision and Timing

The local authorities have identified a need for a permanent community
building of a minimum of 500 square metres to serve the development.
This would be similar in size to Browns Field community centre in
Chesterton (although the functionality of the facility would be different in
focus). In response, the applicant has committed to the provision of a
multi-purpose community building of between 500-600 square metres to
be located within the local centre (and within the City Council
administrative boundary but serving the whole development), which will be
delivered as part of Phase 1 of the overall development. The precise
layout and size of the building would need to be subject to the design
development process that would take place at a later stage, as it will be

Page 46
46



8.202

8.203

8.204

important that the final design reflects the outcomes of consultation with
key stakeholders including the local authorities, Girton Parish Council,
residents and other community groups and the emerging new community
within the development itself. However, a strategic design brief setting out
the principles that the design development process should address,
including consultation as described above.

There have been extensive negotiations in relation to the timing of the
opening of the community centre and officers have been mindful of the
need to ensure that the community facilities are available for use as early
as possible, to fit in with early occupations on the site. It should be noted in
this respect, that the residential part of Phase 1 will be predominantly
University key worker housing. However, the local centre, within which the
community building will be located, is complex in terms of delivery logistics
and construction demands. It is likely that the building would be
surrounded by construction sites for a considerable period. The applicant
has therefore proposed that a temporary community building should be
provided for the earliest stages of the development, whilst the local centre
around the permanent community building is under construction. This
could take the form of a temporary building, use of vacant units within the
local centre (depending on construction constraints), or re-use of existing
farm buildings. An outline schedule of accommodation for the temporary
building is included within the Community Strategy that would be
appended to the S106. Safe and convenient access and satisfactory
opening hours would also need to be secured.

The temporary facilities are proposed to be provided on commencement of
residential development and the permanent community building on first
key worker occupation, approximately mid-2015 (it should be noted that
the key worker housing is likely to be occupied in large tranches rather
than more gradually, coinciding with college terms).

The above proposals, which have been discussed in detail with the City
Council’'s Head of Community Development and relevant SCDC officers,
are considered to be acceptable and in accordance with the requirements
of Policy NW20 of the NWCAAP, subject to a number of key provisions
being secured through the S106. These would include:

e Strategic design brief for the community centre setting out the key
principles for the design development process, including community
and key stakeholder engagement;

o Procurement and delivery process;

Community access agreement, setting out opening hours for both the
permanent and temporary buildings, terms of hire, booking
arrangements etc.;

¢ Final details of the temporary community building;

Triggers for community facilities.

Management and Maintenance Strategy

Page 47
47



8.205

8.206

8.207

8.208

8.209

8.210

The University has expressed a strong wish to retain ownership of its
community assets and to manage and maintain these itself. Land transfers
or transfers of community assets in these circumstances (either to local
authorities or alternative bodies) can only take place when both parties are
in agreement. The local authorities cannot therefore compel the University
to transfer the community assets within the development either to the local
authorities or to third parties.

However, given the large scale of the development and the need to ensure
that the community centre, which will have an important role in promoting
community cohesion, is managed to ensure optimum benefits and access
for all sectors of the residential population of the development and the
wider community, extensive negotiations have taken place over the last six
months in relation to the management strategy for the community centre.

It is therefore proposed that the permanent community building will be
managed and maintained via a Joint Management Vehicle (JV)
arrangement that will be set up by the University and Cambridge City
Council (to also cover Storey’s Field open space). The principle of the City
Council entering into JV arrangement was agreed by the Council’s
Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Committee on 9 July 2012, with a
funding commitment being secured through Council on 19 July 2012.

The JV would potentially take the form of a company limited by guarantee
or most probably a charitable company and would be a legal entity
separate from the Council. It is proposed that the JV body would have
control over the two assets, based on a 50: 50 split of governance control
between the University and the City Council and that a 101 year lease of
the assets would be vested in it, at a peppercorn rent. In terms of the
ongoing costs of the managing and maintaining the JV assets (less income
generated), it has been agreed between the parties that they would be split
50:50, (including the administrative costs associated within the set up and
running of the JV) but that the City Council would not contribute towards
the costs until Year 13, so that the structure agreed effectively provides for
a twelve year commuted sum period, similar to more standard
management and maintenance arrangements where assets are
transferred to the City Council. The University would therefore cover all the
costs for the first twelve years.

Details of the JV arrangements would be secured through the S106 as well
as fall back arrangements for management of the community building in
the event that the JV is wound up.

Community Development Support

The applicant has agreed to provide an S106 contribution to the local
authorities towards the provision of 1.5 FTE community development
workers to serve the market and key worker housing population within the
development as well as a community chest contribution. It is likely that the
community development worker(s) would be based at the community
buildings within the development for at least part of the time, particularly in

Page 48
48



8.211

8.212

8.213

8.214

8.215

the very early stages of the development. Given the expected
demographics of this site a requirement for youth project workers was not
considered justified and youth project work will be carried out by
community development workers who will have a wider remit in relation to
this development.

The student part of the development will be supported through the
University’s existing arrangements. The applicant has provided
confirmation that high levels of pastoral and tutorial support will be
provided and each student would have a personal tutor. Colleges are also
required to provide sports and social facilities, health care and counselling.
These proposals are considered to be acceptable.

Community Engagement

The applicant’'s community strategy outlines in detail how the facilities on
site will be managed, setting out who will be responsible for all facilities
and areas of open space. This includes taking into account the various
management bodies being proposed, such as the JV and the estate
management company, and establishes the principles for how they will
engage with Girton Parish Council and the various community groups that
will have an interest in the site through the development of the site, initially,
and once it is established.

In combination with the applicant’s strategy local authority chief officers
have informally agreed a community engagement strategy for the NW
Quadrant developments, building on experiences from the Southern
Fringe, Orchard Park and Northstowe. The North West Forum will oversee
community engagement across all the NW Quadrant developments and
provide a focus for community consultation and engagement activity at key
stages of the individual developments as they move forward post outline
permission stage.

Public Services Infrastructure

Policy NW31 requires that the application provide suitable arrangements
for infrastructure, both in terms of provision and phasing in order to make
the proposal acceptable in planning terms. Policy NW21 indicates that
both provision for health care and for the police should be made within the
local centre.

Health Provision

Cambridgeshire NHS have been consulted throughout the pre-application
and application stage and have viewed the provision of healthcare
strategically across the north west including the adjacent NIAB site. Once
full development levels were known Cambridgeshire NHS concluded that
there should be two separate health facilities, one on the NIAB site and
one on this site.

Page 49
49



8.216

8.217

8.218

8.219

8.220

The Environmental Statement submitted with the application states that
the requirement for Primary Medical services and supporting Community
Health services, for the population proposed on this site is a 700sqm, 5 GP
health facility. This view is supported by the advice from Cambridgeshire
NHS and the proposed development provides for this amount in terms of
floorspace.

The timing of this provision is important, and advice is that it should be
provided early on in the development, due to the lack of capacity to pick up
provision elsewhere. As the first phase of the proposed development will
be located around the local centre, there is no need to provide for a
temporary facility, and the permanent facility will be made available for the
NHS either (a) before the occupation of the 400" key worker unit or (b)
before the occupation of the 250" market unit, or (c) before a total of 575
dwellings have been occupied, whichever trigger is the sooner. The facility
will then be provided rent free for a period of 10 years then stepped rents
by 20% per year up to year 15, enabling the facility to be open in the early
years of the development which it would otherwise run at a loss.

The above terms have been accepted by Cambridgeshire NHS (although
still subject to full board approval) and will be secured through the S106
agreement. Subject to the completion of the legal agreement it is
considered that the proposal mitigates the impact of development in terms
of health provision and complies with NWCAAP Policy NW31. Although
the proposal allows for provision within the local centre the exact location
of the facility will be determined at the reserved matters stage.
Notwithstanding this, the proposal is compliant with NWCAAP Policy
NW21.

Police Office

Provision for a police office was requested by Cambridge Constabulary to
cater for the new developments in the northwest. During discussions of the
NIAB proposal adjacent it was considered that one facility to cover both
sites would be sufficient. It was considered that this should be provided on
this site (balancing out uses across both sites) and payment towards fit out
was secured through NIAB proposal.

The police office would serve as touchdown space and working offices for
police officers and community support officers (B1 use). The facility may
not be permanently staffed but would provide a base for officers to go out
into the community with space for administration and meeting members of
the public. It would not serve as a typical Police Station (Sui Generis use)
as there will be no traditional enquiry office or ancillary elements. The
applicant will provide the facility and, along with the contributions from the
NIAB developer, fit out costs, and the facility will be officered at a
peppercorn rent prior to the 1,200" residential unit. It is considered that
through securing this provision through S106 agreement the proposal
accords with Policy NWCAAP Policy NW31.

Fire and Rescue

Page 50
50



8.221

8.222

8.223

8.224

8.225

8.226

8.227

Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue have considered the nature of the
development, and requested that provision be made for fire hydrants to
installed on site. They have not deemed it a necessary for a designated
facility to be provided on-site. Provision for fire hydrants is proposed to be
secured by planning condition (Condition 65).

Public Art

Policy NW22 requires that public art be provided as part of the
development to help generate pride in the area, increase sense of
ownership, develop cultural identity, create distinction, character and
identity and contribute to quality of life. The policy requires a Public Art
Strategy (PAS) to support the application and that the value of the public
art should be equal to 1% of the construction cost of the project.

A PAS has been submitted with the outline submission which identifies six
key strands that will be delivered throughout the lifetime of the
development. These are:

1. Habitation — Artist Research and Residency Programme
2. A Distributed Collection — Public Art Commissions

3. Activation: Temporary and Event Programme

4. Making Place - Naming Commission

5. Education Programme

6. Legacy

The strands are interlinked, with public art commissions and temporary
programme developed by artists participating in the residency programme.
The PAS also identifies strategic themes that set an agenda that will run
through all strands above. These themes include 21% Century
Communities, History and Archaeology, Ecology, and Sustainability. The
PAS shows the largest major commissions will take place within the open
spaces/landscape and local centre which are both important community
hubs.

The PAS sets out the principles of public art on this site, as well as the
management structure moving forward, the role of the applicant, public art
advisory panel and the role of the local authorities. This section of the PAS
is very much supported, although it is considered that the project steering
group must include members of the community/local residents and this
should be followed through by the applicant moving forward.

The PAS also identifies an overall budget for public art on this site, this
value in £3,428,000 and which is exclusive of the on-going maintenance
budget. This budget was identified by working up the cost of producing the
strands within the strategy for the lifetime of the development.

The City Council's SPD states that “there is a good case for saying that
1% is not an appropriate measure in the case of very large developments
and Areas of Major Change where the capital value runs into tens or

Page 51
51



8.228

8.229

8.230

8.231

8.232

hundreds of millions of pounds and which bear very significant costs for
infrastructure and other community benefits. In such cases, it is more
appropriate to negotiate the level of public art support so that it is able to
meet the objectives set rather than calculated from a formula”. The SPD
notes that South Cambridgeshire District Council's Public Art SPD is
consistent with this flexible approach. The budget proposed is consistent
(when considered pro-rata as this site is larger and includes non-
residential uses) with the public art monies obtained on other growth sites,
and is considered adequate to fulfil the objectives and aims of the PAS.

Reserved Matters submissions will need to provide a Public Art Delivery
Plan (PADP) showing how the public art proposed relates to the PAS. A
condition is suggested to ensure that this is provided, and is done so in
accordance with supplementary planning guidance in terms of required
content including community involvement referred to above. It is
considered that with the condition (Condition 64) suggested the PAS, and
therefore the proposal, complies with Policy NW22 of the NWCAAP.

Conclusion

By virtue of the measures outlined above, including physical infrastructure,
such as the community centre, health and police facilities, and the non-
physical measures proposed, including the provisions for community
development workers, public art, and the wider management and
maintenance arrangements for facilities, the development is considered to
adequately provide for community infrastructure, arts and culture, in
accordance with the standards set out in Policies NW20, NW21, NW22
and NW31.

The provision and timing of delivery of these facilities, with a focus upon
permanent facilities being concentrated in the local centre at the heart of
the development, alongside arrangements for interim provisions to meet
the needs of early residents, are to be secured through the S106
agreement. The timing of the provision will be in line with requirements as
they arise from the build-out of the development, ensuring the delivery of
facilities at the earliest viable opportunity, with long-term arrangements in
place to reflect the changing implications arising from a growing population
on site as more houses are occupied.

Open Space and Recreation

Policy NW23 of the NWCAAP requires the development to provide public
open space facilities in accordance with the Open Space and Recreation
Standards set out in Appendix 3. It also requires the development to
provide improved linkages to the adjacent open countryside.

The standards set out in the Appendix provide for five separate types of
open space and recreation:

. Outdoor Sports Facilities (playing pitches, courts and greens)
. Indoor Sports Provision (e.g. sports halls and swimming pools)
Page 52

52



. Provision for children and teenagers (equipped areas of play and
youth provision)

. Informal Open Space (recreation grounds, parks and natural green
space)
. Allotments

8.233 Based on the proposed population identified within the Environmental
Statement, (6,490 people excluding the 2000 students and 100 senior care
occupants) the required open space on the site is set out in the table
below along with the proposed amount submitted through the application.

Type of | Standard set out | Populati | Required | Proposed
space in NWCAAP policy | on amount | amount
propose
d
Outdoor 1.2ha per 1,000 | 6,490 7.8ha 6.2ha (inc.
sports people All
Weather
Pitch)
1 sports hall per 0.5 Access to
13,000 people sports West
Indoor sports 6,490 hall Cambridge
facilities or
450sgm on
site
1 swimming pool 0.1 Access to
per 50,000 people swimmin | West
g pool Cambridge
facilities or
Commuted
sum
Children and | 0.3ha per 1,000 | 6,490 1.95ha 1.95ha
Teenagers people
Informal 1.8ha per 1,000 | 8,490 15.45ha | 38.15ha
Open space | people (students
included)
Allotments 0.4ha per 1,000 | 6,490 2.59ha 2.59ha
people
Table 2 - open space provision
Page 53

53



8.234

8.235

8.236

8.237

8.238

8.239

8.240

The above table sets out the provision proposed in terms of quantity,
however a qualitative assessment also needs to be made with regard to
the appropriateness of the proposed open space locations in practical, and
planning terms to fully adhere to the policy.

The Open Land and Landscape Areas Parameter Plan (PP03) identifies
those areas of the site set aside for open space provision and excludes
these areas from other land use development. Most of this space is within
the Green Belt boundary, however there is also space provided within the
developable area to ensure open space is spread across the development
and allow strategic open space connections.

Previous National Planning Policy Guidance (PPG2) stated that ‘Once
Green Belts have been defined, the use of land in them has a positive role
to play in fulfiling the certain objectives. These objectives include;
providing opportunities for access to the open countryside for the urban
population, providing opportunities for outdoor sport and outdoor
recreation near urban areas, and to retain attractive landscapes, and
enhance landscapes, near to where people live. Although PPG2 has been
superseded by the NPPF the principles have been carried over and the
use of the Green Belt for recreational use is therefore supported in
principle.

Outdoor Sports Facilities

PPO03 identifies three areas where formal sports provision could be
located. The main grouping of the formal pitches is located to the south
west of the site, between the Park and Ride, and the M11. This area
constitutes 3.7ha of sports pitches including an All Weather Pitch (AWP)
complete with floodlighting.

Table 2 above shows an under provision in quantity of outdoor sports
(6.2ha instead of 7.8ha). It is considered that the carrying capacity of a
floodlit AWP, allowing late night play in the winter months, and durability in
wet conditions is equal to that of three grass pitches (a standard that has
been used elsewhere on other urban extensions). Therefore the 6.2ha,
which includes 0.79ha of AWP, is an acceptable alternative to 7.8ha of
grass provision in this instance.

Floodlighting would not normally be encouraged within a Green Belt
location. However, given the proximity of the site to the Park and Ride
facility on Madingley Road, which has previously established the principle
of lighting in this location, additional lighting to serve the AWP would be
read against this context and, through appropriate design, would not serve
to significantly alter the impact or appearance of the site upon the Green
Belt. Accordingly, provided that it is contained within this area, the principle
of floodlighting is considered acceptable for such a facility here.

A second area of sports pitches are situated within the strategic gap, to the
north of the primary school playing fields, with a third, shown as a cricket
pitch located central to the site to the west of the local centre. While the

Page 54
54



8.241

8.242

8.243

8.244

parameter plan drawing does not identify the types of pitches, or exact
location, (something that will form the basis of detailed applications to
follow), the illustrative Masterplan shows one way that the provision could
be achieved in a successful manner. For each of the areas, ancillary
elements such as changing facilities and car parking will be provided
accordingly. Both the NPPF and PPG2 support the principle of outdoor
sport within the Green Belt, and allow for associated structures, such as
changing facilities, to located within it. Accordingly, the proposal to
incorporate such facilities in the Green Belt is acceptable, in principle,
subject to the detailed design process.

Sports pitches will be delivered in phases throughout the development, in
relation to detailed build out. The first pitch(es) totalling 1ha will be
provided by occupation of the 400™ unit, and then further pitches will be
provided at triggers of 400 units beyond that. The exact location of these
pitches will need to relate to the development build out (i.e logically linked
to development parcels and not isolated surrounded by a construction
site). This phased provision is considered to be acceptable.

Indoor sports

Provision for indoor sports covers two categories; sports hall based
provision and swimming pool provision.

Sports hall

The requirement generated by the development/population proposed is
0.5 of a sports hall. Originally, the applicant proposed sports hall provision
on site (450sgm). However, the applicant has reconsidered this
requirement in the context of the wider area, as the University has recently
commenced development on phase 1 of a sports centre on the
neighbouring West Cambridge site. This sports centre comprises a large
main sports hall (Sport England eight badminton court standard), multi-
purpose sports rooms, weights room, fitness suite, sports courts, changing
rooms and entrance hall and café). The provision of this large-scale facility
would be likely to have an adverse impact on the viability of any smaller
indoor sports facility in the immediate locality, such as on the NWC site.
The applicant therefore proposes to make the West Cambridge indoor
sports facilities available to occupiers of the NWC development instead of
providing additional indoor sports facilities on the NWC site. The principle
of this is considered to be acceptable, given the close proximity of the
West Cambridge facilities to the NWC development. However, as no
additional facilities are being proposed for West Cambridge, beyond those
previously approved, the University has been required to demonstrate
additionality to mitigate the impact of the NWC development, in relation to
public accessibility and physical linkages between the developments in
order to comply with NWCAAP policy.

Given the wide range of indoor sports facilities already being provided on
West Cambridge the approach to demonstrating additionality has focused
around enhancing public access to the facilities. This is in accordance with

Page 55
55



8.245

8.246

8.247

8.248

the City Council’'s Sports Strategy 2009-2013 (which was informed by a
study carried out by Sport England in partnership with the County Council
and SCDC that tested five locations for provision of a new indoor sports
hall — Northstowe, Cambridge Regional College, Cambridge University,
Southern Fringe and Cambridge East) which states in paragraph 4.7.5 in
relation to future need for indoor sports halls:

“‘Because the unmet demand is spread throughout the area of study, there
is no one location in the area where a new hall could be justified on these
grounds alone...The study concludes that the Council should pursue a
programme of refurbishment and negotiating community use in existing
facilities...(other than in Southern Fringe and Cambridge East)”

The outline permission for the West Cambridge site limited access of this
facility to recognised sports or community groups. This would mean that
residents of the NWC site would not be able to gain access to the facilities,
unless they were associated with a recognised sports or community group.
The applicant has now agreed the principle of widening access to the
West Cambridge facilities to the general public. The City Council’'s Head of
Arts and Recreation and relevant SCDC community officers support the
proposals. This will be formalised through a Deed of Variation to the West
Cambridge s106. As such a proposal to vary the S106 for the West
Cambridge site was reported to the City’s Planning Committee in July on
the above basis. This will enable not just residents of this site, but existing
city and SCDC residents to access the facilities. For an annual registration
fee (set between £30- £40 in 2013-2014), the public will be able to access
facilities on a paid basis (in line with pricing policies for a similar standard
local authority facility).

City Planning Committee approved the variation and the variation will be
executed should this proposed development be approved by the JDCC.
The recently approved reserved matters application for phase 1 of the
sports centre contains a condition, which states:

Prior to first use of the sports centre, a management strategy for
the use of the building hereby permitted, which will include the level
of access for members of the public, sports and community groups,
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The development shall then be run in accordance with
the management strategy with such further variations as the City
Council may agree in writing.

The University have committed to develop a management strategy in
consultation with sports and recreation officers from Cambridge City
Council and SCDC as well as building on the University’s existing links
with organised sports and recreation groups across the City. The sports
centre will then be managed in accordance with the approved strategy as
secured through the above condition, as well as the NWC community
strategy which will be appended to the NWC S106. The West Cambridge
facilities will be wholly funded by the University.

Page 56
56



8.249

8.250

8.251

8.252

8.253

8.254

8.255

Given that the works for the first phase of the sport centre has commenced
the provision of this facility in a timescale to marry up with the
development is fairly certain and the University’s current programme is for
the facilities to be open for use in September 2013. According to the
phasing information provided so far, this would be ahead of the first major
tranche of occupations on the NWC development. However, in the unlikely
event that the sports centre is not completed, a fall back scenario has
been proposed for NWC which would involve a 450 sgqm gym and dance
studio, located in the local centre to be provided. This would be secured
through the S106.

In addition, improved walking and cycling linkages between the West
Cambridge and NWC developments would also be secured through the
S106.

Swimming Pool

The open space standards within the NWCAAP require 0.1 of a swimming
pool as a result of the new population on this development. Given this
small percentage requirement, there is no justification for the applicant to
provide a new facility on this site, but as with sports hall provision above,
there is potential for provision to be made on the neighbouring West
Cambridge site.

The swimming pool element of the sports centre is phase 2 of the overall
scheme, and the applicant is currently undertaking business planning for
this part of the scheme with the expectation that it will be delivered within
five years. The applicant will be focusing on securing funding for the pool
for a three year period, followed by a delivery programme of about 32-38
months. It is therefore considered that the swimming pool commuted sum
for this development be directed towards the facility on West Cambridge in
the first instance, as through the variation to the outline S106 mentioned
above, the facility will be open to the wider public. This will be a significant
benefit to the wider City and SCDC areas, as well as the residents of the
NWC development.

Should the second phase of the sports facility not be forthcoming, then the
commuted sum would be directed at an appropriate fall back scheme
agreed by the local authorities.

Subject to securing the variation to the West Cambridge S106, improved
access between the West Cambridge and NWC sites and the fall back
schemes/commuted sums in the event that the sports centre building is
not forthcoming, the proposals in respect of indoor sport are considered to
comply with NWCAAP policy.

Children and Teenager Provision

Provision of 1.95ha of children’s play space will be provided in accordance
with the NWCAAP standards. There will be a range and mix of play areas
distributed evenly across the entire site situated both within the built area,

Page 57
57



8.256

8.257

8.258

8.259

8.260

8.261

along green fingers and within pocket parks, and within the Green Belt
where appropriate, close to the development edge.

The applicants are looking to move away from the more traditional
approach of Local Areas of Play (LAPs), Local Equipped Areas of Play
and Neighbourhood Equipped Areas of Play (LEAPs and NEAPs). It is
proposed that the spaces take a more flexible approach designed to
complement the site and the conditions in the locality to provide more
natural play.

The spaces proposed are to be a mix of ‘doorstep’ play for 0-5 year olds,
local playable space for 0-11 year olds, neighbourhood playable space for
all ages and youth space for 12 year olds plus. These spaces will provide
adequately for a range of children without strict reliance on the standard
fixed play equipment- something that is supported by officers. In order to
ensure that the provision is looked at comprehensively a site wide strategy
for a Youth and Play Strategy condition is suggested (condition 9). The
detailed treatment of individual areas would then be approved through
reserved matters applications (Condition 10). A phased build out of the
Children’s Play Areas are secured through the S106 agreement providing
a total of 0.26ha every 400 units and will need to be highlighted on the
detailed phasing plan to ensure they complement the wider build out of the
site.

Informal Open Space

The proposed development allows for informal open space distributed
across the development. In total the development allows for over 38ha of
informal space, well in excess of the 15.4ha set by the adopted standards.
The strategic gap accommodates some of this informal open space
integrating other elements such as formal pitches, children’s play, the
SSSI, and the ridge and furrow field.

The central part of this gap which includes the SSSI is approximately the
size of Parker’'s Piece, albeit different in nature. This area will maintain the
separation between Girton and the City and provide a central open space
rich in biodiversity, landscape, recreation and amenity ensuring a cohesive
development, as required by Policy NW4.

The green fingers proposed throughout the development, which
accommodate swales as part of the sustainable drainage system will also
include recreational pedestrian and cycle links as well as play space and
planting. These spaces will be at least 25m wide (when a drainage
channel is included) helping to provide green spaces within the developed
area. Where there is no drainage channel the spaces will be at least 20m
wide.

Informal open space is also accommodated within the western edge. The
evolution of the western edge has required consideration responding to
several aspects of the development in order to look at how to address the
visual, recreational, ecological and drainage impact of the development as

Page 58
58



8.262

8.263

8.264

8.265

well as looking at how best to mitigate noise from the M11. The
recreational benefits in terms of informal open space within the western
edge will centre around walking and cycling provision, with dry and wet
meadow areas, and informal play space closer to the development edge.
The western edge connects into the development through the green
fingers, helping legibility from the western edge into the built area.

The first informal open space is to be provided by the 200" residential unit
(0.78ha), and another 0.78ha will be provided at the 400" unit. Beyond
that triggers are identified as the residential elements build out, and
additional triggers for informal open space are provided for both the
student accommodation and senior care facility.

Allotments

Allotment provision is provided in two locations, with overall provision of
2.59ha in line with the NWCAAP standards. Almost 2ha of this provision is
located in the south-western section of the site, between the existing Park
and Ride site and the proposed sports pitches. The remaining allotments
will be situated at the north-western end of the site close to the
development edge. Both areas will be provided with necessary ancillary
elements such as water points, security measures, storage facilities and
composting areas, details of which will be secured by planning condition,
alongside the relevant management details (Condition 17).

Due to archaeological sensitivities (requiring an impermeable cap over the
existing soil) and construction practicalities around the area adjacent to the
Park and Ride the initial allotment provision will be delayed until the 1600"
occupation, while this is unfortunate after this delay the allotments will be
delivered comprehensively, and will have ‘caught up’ with, and for a time
exceed, the housing numbers.

Management Strategy

Through the proposed community strategy, the applicant has set out their
intentions for management of the public realm across the application site.
Table 3, below, summarises the management strategy for each type of
sport/open space facilities.

Facility Location | Strategy Funding Public access
Storey’s City JV University and | General  public
Field City Council access
informal
open space
Other City and | University- Estate General public
informal SCDC led management | access
open spaces charge

(except

Western

Edge)
Sports City University University General  public

Page 59

59




pitches and Sports access but
pavilions Syndicate prioritisation  to
occupiers of
development
Play areas City and | University- Estate General public
SCDC led management | access
charge
Allotments City and | University- University General public
SCDC led, in access as per
accordance LA policy
with LA
Policy
Indoor Sport | City University University General public
led, in access
accordance
with
management
strategy
agreed with
LAs

Table 3 - Summary of Management Strategy

8.266 Alongside the proposed JV, which would manage the community building
and adjoining Storey’s Field informal open space (which includes the
Travellers Rest SSSI), the applicants intend to establish an estate
management board, to retain and be ultimately responsible for all
remaining areas of informal open land within the site, whilst formal sports
pitches would be managed by the University’s Sports Syndicate.

8.267 Through the terms of the community strategy, which would appended to
the S106, the applicant has undertaken to commit to the following:

The estate management board to comprise: 2 market housing
representatives, 1 commercial/retail representative, 1 student
representative, 2 key worker housing representatives, 2 University
representatives, and a University nominated chair. Cambridge City
and South Cambridgeshire Councils would each have a non-voting
representative on the board,

The booking arrangements for formal sports pitches and community
facilities would be prioritised to provide access to estate residents
first, with open access thereafter,

The charging schedule for facilities would be in-line with public
facilities currently owned by Cambridge City Council,

Allotments would be managed in accordance with the Cambridge
Allotments Policy for Growth Sites,

Decision making for all on-site facilities would be undertaken in
consultation with the North West Cambridge Development
Community Group. This group would include Parish Councillors,
Ward Councillors, Residents Associations, Faith Groups and other
relevant stakeholders.

Page 60
60




8.268

8.269

8.270

8.271

8.272

8.273

The Estate Management Company would be a not-for-profit organisation
and the cost of its operation, including staffing, would be recharged at
cost. The operation of the Estate Management Company would be funded
by an estate charge on properties (freeholders and head lessees) within
the estate, which includes all the market dwellings, flats, key worker
housing, student bedspaces, commercial and academic floorspace, and
local centre commercial uses. The primary school, police office, and
community centre would not be subject to the charge.

The current estimate is that the estate would require an annual budget of
£2.35M per year to provide high quality management, which means that
for a medium sized 3 bedroom semi-detached house, the monthly charge
would be around £40 a month.

Sports Development Officer

The S106 will require payment (total £23,625 over 3 years) towards a
Sports Development Officer (SDO). The SDO post will co-ordinate
community sport across the northwest and therefore is apportioned
between all the sites. The central role of the SDO is to increase
participation in sport of all kinds, and also address issues of health, often
working with organisations such as health boards, schools, and sports
governing bodies. They work in partnership with government bodies to
deliver government initiatives relating to sport. The SDO will help create an
inclusive new community through sport, which is necessary to deliver
sustainable development principles in local and national policy.

Links to the open countryside

Policy NW23 requires the development to provide improved linkages to the
adjacent open countryside. This is supported by criterion (c) in Policies
NW17 and NW18 (Cycling Provision and Walking Provision respectively)
which states that the development should be linked with the surrounding
walking and cycling network and orbital routes including links to nearby
villages and open countryside.

The proposed development, through new transport improvements and
junctions, allows for better links to the adjacent network of footpaths and
cycle ways. The new Huntingdon Road west junction will allow for better
access between footpath no.4 and no.5 towards the north-western section
of the development, linking the site with the northern part of Girton.

The footpath under the M11, where no.5 links into footpath no.3 will be
improved, both in terms of the underpass itself and along the length route,
with contributions secured through this development providing a more
attractive link towards Madingley. Several other routes in this area have
been looked at to help improve links to Madingley village and complement
the network already in place. Unfortunately due to land ownership issues,
(the land is not owned by the applicant) it has not been possible to secure

Page 61
61



8.274

8.275

8.276

8.277

8.278

additional upgrades and it would be unreasonable to withhold consent if
the land is not in control of the applicant.

The Huntingdon Road east junction provides for a demand activated
crossing which links this site into the orbital cycle route that runs along the
western edge of the NIAB development, this then links into routes to be
secured through that consent into the south eastern side of Girton.

The Madingley Road junction will provide improved crossing points linking
to the West Cambridge Site. A new footpath along the southern side of
Madingley Road isn’t possible due to future road upgrade secured through
the West Cambridge S106, so it is not possible to link into footpath 30
which runs parallel to the M11. The applicant has committed to providing a
designated Public Right of Way through the West Cambridge Site, which
will link up with either footpath 30 or 31a (Coton footpath) allowing access
from this site to the Coton Countryside Reserve. A route has been agreed
in principle. The detailed route/location will be confirmed either through the
future review of the West Cambridge development Masterplan, which is
anticipated shortly, or if the West Cambridge Masterplan isn’t reviewed
within a reasonable period, by virtue of a modification to the existing
access arrangements for the West Cambridge development, to
complement the existing Masterplan. The arrangements for the provision
of this route, including the necessary fall-back criteria, will be secured
through the S106.

The proposal has secured adequate links to the open countryside and
therefore conforms with the NWCAAP Policies. There are limitations to
what can be achieved in terms of deliverable off-site improvements due to
land ownership issues. Improvements must also be reasonable and
mitigate the impact of this development in order to comply with the tests of
the planning circular.

Conclusion

While the parameter plans proposed don'’t set out the detail of the open
space areas, the application has adequately demonstrated that it can
successfully meet, and in some instances exceed the required open space
standards. Although the quantity of formal outdoor sports is slightly under
the required standard, the quality of the provision through the All Weather
Pitch is considered to compensate for this, and will allow a more diverse
range of sports, and greater use in the evenings and during the winter
months. Sport England has confirmed that they support the proposals
subject to securing the provision through legal agreement.

The provision and timing of delivery of these pitches are to be secured
through the S106 agreement, along with the provision of the ancillary
elements such as pavilions and parking. The timing of the provision will be
in line with the development build out, ensuring that adequate provision is
provided in the early stages of development and continue to develop as
more houses are occupied.

Page 62
62



8.279

8.280

8.281

8.282

8.283

8.284

With enhancements to the open countryside secured through the S106, it
is considered that the development adequately provides for public open
space, sports facilities and countryside access in accordance with the
standards set out in Policy NW23.

Local Centre and Retail Provision

The NWCAAP seeks to create a local centre that will act as the focus for,
and heart of, the development of the North West Cambridge site, whilst
also providing facilities that will service not just the proposed community,
but also help meet the needs of the wider quadrant.

Policies NW1 and NW21 set out the vision and approach for the local
centre, identifying that it should be the home for all services and facilities
within the development, where appropriate, and also setting out an
approximate location for it, adjacent to the strategic gap and within
reasonable distance of all parts of the development. The latter policy,
particularly, identifies a range of services and facilities that would be
expected to be found in the local centre, including: primary school and pre-
school care; an appropriate level of local shopping and other services; a
library; flexible community meeting rooms and spaces; provision for
emergency services, including the police; a children’s play area; a
neighbourhood recycling point; and healthcare provision, although it was
also accepted that some facilities could be located outside of the North
West site, subject to their location being appropriate to the intended
function.

Building upon the above, Policy NW9 seeks to establish criteria against
which small scale employment uses, within the local centre, should
perform. It seeks to limit their size to under 300sgm, in order to be of a
size compatible with a generally residential area, and provided as demand
requires.

Throughout all policies, the accessibility of the local centre and its various
functions via sustainable transport modes, and most particularly walking
and cycling, is critically important. Although not directly focussed upon the
local centre, Policies NW11, NW17 and NW20 set out various sustainable
transport and accessibility aspirations against which the local centre will
need to perform.

In addition to the NWCAAP policies, Cambridge City Council and South
Cambridgeshire Councils undertook a study of foodstore provision in the
north west Cambridge quadrant to analyse the needs of residents in the
area and address how to meet those needs for existing and new residents
in the quadrant going forward, as the various new developments within the
area (Orchard Park, the NIAB sites and the University site) progress. The
Council’'s adopted Informal Planning Policy Guidance on Foodstore
Provision in North West Cambridge (IPPG) in March 2011 sets out the
required quantum and timing of facilities for each of the growth sites. For
the University site, it was established that one medium sized supermarket
of 2,000sgm net floorspace should be provided within the local centre,

Page 63
63



8.285

8.286

8.287

8.288

delivering mainly convenience goods (food and everyday essential items),
in an accessible location, to high quality and sustainable design, and
should be delivered within the early phases of development, to anchor the
local centre and create linked trips to other shops and community facilities.

In response to the NWCAAP and other policy aspirations, the applicants
have proposed that the local centre will be delivered within first phase of
the development. The various submission documents, but most notably in
Parameter Plan 04, identify the local centre as being a residential and
complementary mixed use area, located immediately to the west of the
strategic gap known as Storey’s Field (the local centre area is coloured in
dark purple on the parameter plan).

The components proposed within the local centre constitute the following:

Primary school, up to 3,750sgm (Class D1),
Pre-school, in total up to 2,000sgqm (Class D1), although this figure
includes sufficient floorspace for a number of nurseries which will be
distributed into smaller district centres located across the development
and identified on Parameter Plan 04,

e Community Building and indoor sport, up to a combined maximum
floorspace of 950sqgm (Class D1),

¢ Retail up to 5,300sgm, of which the foodstore is a maximum 2,000sqm
(Use Classes A1/A2/A3/A4/A5), although, as with the pre-school
facilities, it is likely that some of this floorspace will be distributed into
smaller district centres located across the development and identified
on Parameter Plan 04,

o Energy Centre, up to 1,250sgm (Class B2, Sui Generis),

Flats/Houses, up to 1,600 units (Classes C3 and C4 — Market and Key

Worker),

Police touchdown/office, up to 200sgm (Class B1),

Health facility, up to 700sqgm (Class D1),

Faith residential (one/two units) (Class C4),

Hotel (130 bedroom), up to 7,000sgm (Class C1),

Senior Care Facility, up to 6,500sgm (Class C2).

Location and Accessibility

The local centre is proposed to be located broadly at the central point in
the development, immediately adjacent to the western edge of the Storey’s
Field strategic gap, at a point where both primary vehicular and
pedestrian/cycle streets into the site intersect (namely the orbital and
radical vehicular routes, and the ridgeway pedestrian/cycle route,
combined within the radial pedestrian/cycle route that links the NIAB
development through the strategic gap through to the West Cambridge site
— see Parameter Plan 02).

Secondary vehicular and pedestrian/cycle routes are proposed to
complement the primary connections to the local centre and further build
linkages with the surrounding development, to the mainly residential
proposals in Storey’s Field to the east, the mixed residential and

Page 64
64



8.289

8.290

8.291

8.292

8.293

8.294

commercial land uses in the west, and the area of informal open space
along the western edge of the site, as well as the immediately adjacent
strategic gap, with its various amenity and formal sporting functions.

To preserve the nature of the local centre as a pedestrian friendly space,
whilst maintaining accessibility, the applicants have proposed a restricted
access zone to cut through the local centre. This area would be limited to
access by public transport and service vehicles only.

Given the proposed location of the local centre, with its various primary
and secondary vehicular and pedestrian/cycling connections, it is clear that
the applicants have sought to meet the NWCAAP aspirations for a local
centre well connected within the development site, as well as being
accessible to the wider community by virtue of not only those linkages, but
also through the provision of the public transport route through the site.

Mix of uses

From the list of uses proposed within the local centre, the applicants have
provided a complementary set of uses that clearly mirror the intentions set
out in Policy NW21 to provide for a diverse and mixed-use centre.

There are a number of elements to the local centre, however, that will
need to be delivered carefully, within the parameters proposed by the
applicants, to ensure that they fully comply with the NWCAAP aspirations,
whilst other uses were not originally envisaged by the NWCAAP and need
further detailed consideration. The issues are as follows:

Retail

The overall retail provision proposed for the development equates to
5,300sgm. Whilst the NWCAAP does not set out upper limits for the total
quantum of retail floorspace to be provided within the local centre, Policy
NW9 does seek to place an upper floorspace limit of 300sgm per unit on
business premises within the local centre, whilst both Policy NW21 and the
IPPG discuss the need to provide a mix of A1 to A5 retail uses of an
appropriate scale to the location such as to provide variety and diversity
without one use dominating or attracting a significant proportion of inward
movement such as to place an undue burden upon the transport network.
In any regard, Policy NW30 requires a needs statement to be submitted
with any application to demonstrate that the University has a need for the
land to be released for the proposed development.

In response to this, the applicants have provided a retail impact study that
sets out the intended breakdown of the intended floorspace, outlining that
this would take the form of a 2,000sgm net floorspace foodstore,
supplemented by a local pub of circ 185sqm net floorspace and an
additional 790sgm net floorspace retail uses (A1 to A5 uses) which would
provide small scale shop units.

Page 65
65



8.295

8.296

8.297

8.298

8.299

8.300

Whilst the NWCAAP did not originally make provision for a foodstore of
this size and nature, the size of store proposed is in line with the IPPG,
which has been adopted by both South Cambridgeshire District Council
and Cambridge City Council.

The indicative amount of floorspace within the local centre is acceptable
and evidence for the IPPG concluded that there is a need for main
foodstore provision in this part of Cambridge and, therefore, it should be
viable.

However, units should be designed to be flexible spaces in case there are
problems with viability. The retail proposed also includes a University
cafeteria and a number of small individual shops to serve the local
population, which would be acceptable. Through the design code and
reserved matters processes it will be necessary to carefully develop the
design and development principles relating to the foodstore and the local
centre to ensure that such flexibility is built in and retained to ensure that
the local centre becomes and remains and vibrant space going forward.

Community Services and Facilities

The proposed local centre includes provision for a primary school,
community building, health facility, police office and nursery.

As with the retail provision on site, the location of these facilities within the
local centre is welcomed, as it helps to underline the purpose of the area
as the heart of the development, and should serve to draw people into the
area. The detailed design process will need to include provisions for
accessibility, both taking into account the need to access such facilities by
motorised transport and within the design and layout of the buildings, to
ensure that they meet their intended function. This will also need to include
their design and location within the setting out of the local centre as a
whole, to ensure that elements such as the restricted access zone don’t
serve to impede users. The S106 agreement will secure the quantum of
floorspace to be provided, in combination with the timing and management
principles for the facilities, having been previously agreed with the relevant
service providers.

With regard to the issues relating to the education and community
facilities, these are addressed within the specific detailed sections of the
report, whilst the timing of facilities overall is addressed within the S106
planning obligations section. Provisions related to the appropriate trigger
and specifications for delivery have been discussed in detail to ensure that
the final facilities are delivered in accordance with the needs of the
development. Overall though, the underlying principle of delivering the
local centre in the first phase of the development is welcomed and will
serve to overcome some of the issues encountered within other growth
sites where community facilities have been delayed, causing problems for
the initial intake of residents to the development.

Uses not Identified in the NWCAAP

Page 66
66



8.301

8.302

8.303

8.304

8.305

8.306

8.307

Within the local centre the applicants have proposed two particular uses
where the NWCAAP is silent, namely the Hotel and Senior Care Facilities.

With regard to the Hotel, and in response to Policy NW30 of the NWCAAP,
the applicants have submitted a hotel needs assessment. The assessment
includes a comprehensive range of evidence in support of the
development of a mid-range, 130-bed hotel within the development,
located within the local centre.

The assessment considers the following:

a study of hotel demand in Cambridge, which considers current

demand and expected levels of market growth,

e the nature of, and occupancy rates for, current hotel provision within
the city and the northwest quadrant,

e a study of planned new hotels in the city and surrounding area and
where they fit into the market, and

e a sequential study of potential alternative sites for new hotels to

come forward to meet demand

The evidence submitted identifies that there currently exists an unmet
demand for additional accommodation within the mid-tier (three star)
market sector. In addition to current unmet demand, the assessment
projects a 23% market growth by 2018, creating additional demand for
hotel accommodation within the vicinity of the site and wider city.

At the request of officers the applicants have provided further information
to support this calculation and what this represents in terms of bedrooms.
The assessment builds upon a study undertaken on behalf of EEDA in
March 2011, taking into account Cambridge’s role in driving the local
economy in a number of areas and how this affects demand for varying
types of hotel accommodation. Essentially, the study identifies that,
despite the current national recession, by virtue of the city’s role as a hub
for high tech business and research, and its role as an international visitor
destination and regional centre, the economy in the city is expected to
experience continuing annual growth, with a resultant demand for
increased supporting infrastructure including hotel provision of an
appropriate nature to the activities driving demand.

Furthermore, it is apparent that whilst there are other hotels coming
forward within the city, there is no other provision planned within the
northwest quadrant, which would meet the identified increased demand
that the applicant's proposal intends to service. The sequential
assessment has demonstrated that there are no city centre sites, which
are preferable to the application site.

Officers have assessed this information and determined that, whilst the
assessment has overlooked some sites that are expected to come forward
in the city and surrounding area, the overall structure of the assessment
and its findings are reasonable, and identify a gap in the market that would

Page 67
67



8.308

8.309

8.310

8.311

otherwise be likely to continue to remain vacant that the proposal intends
to service. Importantly, the findings of the report are broadly consistent
with the recent Cambridge Hotel Futures report, commissioned by the City
Council and published in April 2012, which concluded that, although there
has been a moderate slowing in market growth recently, over the period to
2031 significant additional demand for mid-to-high end hotel
accommodation in the city area will arise from factors such as the
corporate sector, university related activities, leisure and tourism and
through health related activities associated with the development of
Addenbrookes. Accordingly, the scheme would be unlikely to prejudice
other planned and consented hotel provision elsewhere in the City centre
and inner city area, and also does not prevent uses anticipated within the
NWCAAP from coming forward.

In respect of the Senior Care facility, the applicants have provided a needs
statement outlining provision of such facilities in the vicinity of the
application site and contrasted this with predicted demand for such
facilities, demonstrating an existing shortfall.

Overall, although the NWCAAP is silent on such provision, national and
local policy would serve to support Senior Care provision within the
scheme, as it can assist in the creation of a mixed and balanced new
community on the site by allowing opportunities for an increased diversity
of population. The location of such a facility within the local centre would
allow for eased accessibility for residents to community facilities and would
be compatible with its purpose. The evidence presented by the applicants
suggests that there is a need for this type of use and, therefore, this is
supported by Policies NW2, NW7 and NW30 of the NWCAAP. In order to
ensure the effective use of the facility, and securing the sought community
diversity by stipulating occupancy restrictions, provisions will be secured
through the S106 agreement.

The hotel, and senior care accommodation, as well as the foodstore are all
put forward as enabling development, additional to those put forward in the
NWCAAP, to secure additional capital and revenue funding for the
proposed development. These are valid arguments that support the
application and are in line with the National Planning Policy Framework,
and will help secure essential amenities and facilities in phase 1 around
the local centre.

Conclusion

Overall the applicant’'s proposals for the local centre area present an
exciting opportunity to provide an accessible, vibrant space. The
confluence of uses should complement one another and serve to underpin
the function of the local centre as the heart of the development, in
accordance with Policy NW21. Whilst the hotel, senior living and foodstore
were not originally envisaged within the NWCAAP, their inclusion within
the scheme does not undermine or detract from the purpose of the local
centre, and could serve to support its viability in the long-term, nor do they
come at the expense of any conforming uses.

Page 68
68



8.312

8.313

8.314

8.315

8.316

8.317

Whilst the proposals at present are at the outline stage, the indicative
design proposals contained within the DALS illustrate how the combination
of uses proposed could be shaped to provide a well-scaled, active,
inclusive and accessible space, in accordance with the NWCAAP
aspirations. The commentary provided within the DALS should provide the
basis for the development of more a detailed design code, design briefs
and reserved matters submissions going forward.

Education

The NWCAAP requires through Policy NW31 the improvement, or
provision of infrastructure necessary to make the development acceptable
in planning terms, and through Policy NW21 services such as early years
and childcare and a primary school are to be provided in or around the
local centre. This policy acknowledges that some of the facilities, for
example secondary school provision, may be provided outside the
development on the land to the north of Huntingdon Road (NIAB site).

Site demographics and child yield

The Environmental Statement includes a socio-economic chapter that
highlights the anticipated population of the finished development. The
population and age profiles and estimated child yield have been
determined using a demographic model that relates average household
sizes to household tenure and type. These models have been based on
research, ONS census data, NOMIS labour market statistics and the
University’s own Housing Need Survey 2008.

These demographic forecasts have been developed in conjunction with,
and reviewed by, the County Council. The forecasts and assumptions set
out in the Environmental Statement accord with those produced by the
County Council.

Early years provision

The forecasts set out in the Environmental Statement demonstrate the
development would create demand for an additional 339 early years
places. These forecasts accord with those produced by the County
Council.

To provide capacity to meet this demand, the applicant is proposing a day
nursery, providing 100 spaces for 0-4 year olds, within the first phase of
the development. This would be in addition to the accommodation for
early years provision the County Council will provide. The applicant is
proposing to provide two additional nurseries as part of later phases of the
development. These will be located within two of the neighbourhood
centres, and will provide additional capacity to meet the demand from later
phases of the development.

Page 69
69



8.318

8.319

8.320

8.321

8.322

8.323

In addition to this provision, the applicant is contributing, through the S106,
towards a children’s centre to meet the demands of the whole North West
Quadrant. This children’s centre will be co-located with the primary school
on the NIAB development to provide support and services for children 0-5
years old and their families.

Primary school provision

The proposed development is forecast to result in demand for around 466
primary school places, for children 4-10 years old. This equates to around
2.2 forms of entry (FE). These forecasts accord with those produced by
the County Council. To provide for this demand, and ensure sufficient
future capacity, the development proposals include a 3ha primary school
site. This provides sufficient capacity to provide a 3 FE (630 place)
primary school and on-site provision for early years and childcare
provision. In addition, to the site, the applicant, through the S106, is
providing capital for a 480 place school.

The school site, which is identified on Parameter Plan 04, is located to the
north-east of the local centre adjacent to the strategic gap, part of which
will form the playing field portion of the school site. The County Council are
satisfied that the size and location of the primary school, proposed by the
applicant, is adequate to address the needs of this development.

The capital costs of the school (land and capital) will be secured through
the S106 agreement. The S106 will also provide an initial pump priming
revenue contribution to the County Council should this be required
following the Government’s review of school funding arrangements.

Secondary school provision

The demographic forecasts suggest that the development will create
demand for 236 secondary school places, for children 11-15, which
equates to 1.57 FE, once development is complete. This accords with the
County Council’'s forecasts. The lower numbers of secondary-aged pupils
reflect the impact of the housing mix and tenure arrangements for the key
worker homes to be built as part of the development. These are forecast
to have a significantly lower proportion of secondary aged pupils than
would be expected on other sites.

The County Council has adopted a strategic approach in planning
secondary school provision for the North West Quadrant. A Secondary
school site is to be provided as part of the NIAB application
(C/07/0003/0OUT), on land within the NIAB2 development. This site has an
allocation within the SCDC Site Specific DPD for primarily residential use.
However, the supporting text states that:

“A secondary school is proposed on the site to serve the
needs of all proposed new development in the north-west
part of Cambridge both north and south of Huntingdon Road.
As such, the secondary school must be provided according

Page 70
70



8.324

8.325

8.326

8.327

8.328

8.329

8.330

to a trigger point relating to development in the whole
quadrant, which may be ahead of development on the site in
South Cambridgeshire. An appropriate mechanism will be
included in the planning obligation for the site to ensure
timely provision of this key community facility.”

Although the S106 securing the NIAB site is still under consideration, it is
well advanced, and, therefore, has a high likelihood of being completed.
The applicant has, therefore, been asked to contribute towards the capital
and, if applicable, initial pump priming revenue costs of that secondary
school to accommodate children from this site.

In any event that the S106 referred to above is not signed, or development
is delayed/not implemented on the NIAB site, the monies obtained through
this proposal will be used to create capacity for secondary education
elsewhere by the County Council. Triggers and costs for both scenarios
have been secured through the S106 agreement.

Post 16 provision

The proposed development will create demand for around 113 spaces for
post-16 education when completed. The County Council has advised that
there is sufficient capacity within Cambridge City to meet this demand.
Therefore, as there is no justification under the CIL regulations, no
contribution has been sought. This is consistent with the approach on
NIAB and Cambridge southern fringe.

Conclusion

It is considered that, with the provision across all forms of education, as
outlined above, the proposals comply with Policies NW21 and NW31 of
the NWCAAP.

Employment

Evidence from the applicant during the formulation of the NWCAAP
indicated that the University has a need for a further 100,000 sgm of D1
(higher education uses) and B1(b) (sui-generis research institutes and
commercial research) uses in the long-term. This was accepted by the
Inspector, and through Policy NW10 approximately 60,000sgm of D1 and
up to 40,000sgm of B1(b) floorspace has been allocated.

In addition to Policy NW10, Policy NW8 of the NWCAAP seeks to ensure
that any occupier of the employment floorspace that come forward on the
site can demonstrate that they have a special need to be located close to
the University and that the occupation is subsequently restricted as such
for a period of 10 years from first occupation.

The application makes provision, through PP04, for land to be given over
to Academic/Research uses on a number of sites along the Western Edge

Page 71
71



8.331

8.332

8.333

8.334

8.335

8.336

and adjacent to Madingley Rise, in order to accommodate the floorspace
specified in Policy NW10.

The long-term need for additional employment space is accepted and the
proposed land-uses and accompanying level of detail are considered
compatible and sufficient with the status of the application as an outline
submission, compliant with Policy NW8 and NW10. Policy NW30 relating
to need recognises there are other sites that should be developed in
advance of this one (namely West Cambridge), and given the need for
occupiers to demonstrate their need to be located near to the University to
comply with the terms of Policy NW8, reserved matters applications for
individual land parcels will need to be accompanied by a needs case,
providing justification for the release of the land at that time, along with
details of the end user of the building to ensure that the reserved matters
submission is in accordance with policy. There may still be justification for
reasons such as clustering with neighbouring departments for land to
come forward in advance of other sites being built out; the suggested
condition allows for such circumstances.

The requirement to submit a needs case with any reserved matters
application, and the subsequent restriction of occupation upon first users
and for a period of ten years thereafter are secured through planning
conditions (Condition 18 and 19).

The provision of the employment floorspace within the application was
strongly supported by the East of England Development Agency,
recognizing the positive impact that this space would have on the
economy.

Sustainable Development

Carbon Reduction

Policy NW24 of the NWCAAP identifies the requirements of the plan with
regard to climate change and sustainable design and construction. In
response to this policy the applicants have submitted a detailed Carbon
Reduction Strategy and Sustainability Statement as part of the outline
application.

The proposed development seeks to achieve the standards set out in
Policy NW24; namely meeting Code for Sustainable Homes (CfSH) Level
5 for residential development, BREEAM ‘excellent’ standards for non-
residential, and showing that the development has been designed to adapt
to future climate change. In order to achieve these levels, the NWCAAP
recognises that some form of decentralised energy will be required.

The Carbon Reduction Strategy sets out the opportunities and constraints
of the site and identifies the baseline for consumption and emissions. For
each of the building types on this site (residential, student, desk based and
laboratory based commercial and academic research, primary school,
foodstore etc.) building design and efficiency has been looked at, along

Page 72
72



8.337

8.338

8.339

8.340

8.341

8.342

with daylighting requirements. All low and zero carbon technologies have
been assessed as to their appropriateness to the proposed development,
given the scale, and mix of uses on site.

A hierarchical approach to carbon reduction is proposed, starting first with
the enhancement of the fabric performance of the building. It then looks at
orientation, daylighting, ventilation, and energy efficiency, and finally the
use of low carbon and renewable technologies, allowing the housing on
the site to meet CfSH level 5, and setting out the applicant's commitment
to reach level 6 beyond 2016.

The document identifies the short, medium and long-term strategy for
meeting the requirements of the policy. In the short term the strategy is
based around technologies that are currently available and proven.
Modular gas fired Combined Heat and Power (CHP) is to be implemented
in an energy centre within the local centre, with the heat distributed around
the site via a main provided from the outset. The modular system is
capable of increasing its capacity as the development progresses, with
different phases connecting to the mains heat as appropriate.

To supplement this, other elements to the strategy are proposed such as a
district cooling network connected to some of the commercial and
academic buildings, export of heat from refrigeration at the foodstore, solar
thermal panels and ground source heat pumps where effective and the
widespread use of photovoltaic panels throughout the site. A 20%
reduction in carbon emissions through the use of renewable energy
technology will be achieved across the site on the non-residential
development.

Another encouraging element of the strategy is the proposal to use the
energy centre as an educational facility to teach residents and visitors
about the sustainable technologies across the site. It is recognised that the
physical infrastructure is one element, but needs to be supplemented with
the supporting and educating of residents through the education centre,
smart metering, variable energy tariffs and home visits and information
packs, to help people make the transition to lower carbon lifestyles.

In the medium and long term, acknowledging that in the lifetime of the
proposed development new technologies and fuels will become available
which offer more optimal solutions, a site has been set aside in the north
west corner of the site which will be reserved for a future renewable
energy use. This would allow a new technology to ‘plug’ into the district
network within, and then potentially beyond, this site. No formal approval
for this reserved land is being proposed through this application, and any
detailed proposal would need a separate application in its own right in the
future.

The Carbon Reduction Strategy is a well-considered and comprehensive
document that responds positively to an ambitious policy within the
NWCAAP. It is considered that the strategy fully embraces carbon
reduction and carbon footprinting (options for reducing indirect carbon

Page 73
73



8.343

8.344

8.345

8.346

8.347

emissions across the site dealing with transport, waste, consumables and
public services), and achieves the objectives set out in the plan, helping
the development become an exemplar in terms of sustainable
development.

Sustainability

The proposed development also contains a Sustainability Statement that
sets out clearly a holistic approach to sustainable development. The
document shows how the development considers sustainable measures in
relation to thirteen principles ranging from CO, emissions, water, food and
ecology through to construction materials, internal environment, transport
and pollution. The statement also provides example CfSH and BREEAM
assessments to help give certainty that the requirements within the
NWCAAP can be met.

The comprehensive coverage of the statement is welcomed; as is the way
in which the principles are then covered within the other application
documents such as the Drainage Strategy, Transport Assessment and
Design and Access Statement. The document clearly references climate
change adaptation looking at issues such as overheating, and sets out the
requirements for thermal modelling of all buildings to be undertaken taking
into account both current and future data.

References are also made as to how the applicant will embed these
principles in the evolution of the detailed design, through design codes and
design briefs and the selection of developers for specific development
phases. These are important elements to ensure sustainability is designed
in at the earliest stage.

Policy NW1 of the NWCAAP sets out the vision for the proposed
development, which states that ‘the development will embody best practice
in environmental sustainability’. The objectives of the plan are set out in
Policy NW2 and state that the development must ‘make the best use of
energy and other natural resources, to be built as an exemplar of
sustainable living with low carbon and greenhouse gas emissions and be
able to accommodate the impacts of climate change’.

Planning conditions (Conditions 23, 24 and 25) with regard to securing the
CfSH level 5 for residential development, BREEAM excellent and 20%
renewable energy for non-residential uses are suggested along with a
condition relating to 15% of all residential buildings being built to lifetime
homes standards (Condition 22). Also proposed is a condition (Condition
21) to secure super-fast broadband for future occupants to aid home
working. Due to the long-term nature of the development it is important to
ensure that, by giving consent at this moment in time, the local authorities
are committing to lower sustainability standards than will otherwise be
achieved in the future. Therefore a condition (Condition 25) to secure a
future uplift in renewable energy, should government or local policy specify
as such after a seven-year period from the date of the permission,
provided it is technically and financially viable is also suggested.

Page 74
74



8.348

8.349

8.350

8.351

8.352

8.353

It is considered that, with the conditions suggested above, in combination
with the documentation submitted with the outline submission, the
proposed development has clearly demonstrated that it can achieve the
strategic aims in Policies NW1 and NW2, as well as the more detailed
requirements within Policy NW24 and is therefore acceptable.

Flood Risk and Drainage

Policy NW25 of the NWCAAP requires that the surface water drainage for
this site should be designed, as far as possible, as a sustainable drainage
system (SuDS). The policy aims to reduce overall run off volumes leaving
the site, control the rate of flow, and improve water quality before it joins
any watercourse. The SuDS will need to be capable of reducing the
downstream floodrisk associated with rainfall events, and take into account
climate change. The NPPF supports this view ensuring that as a result of a
development flood risk is not increased elsewhere.

The current site is made up of primarily arable farmland associated with
the University Farm. The Washpit Brook (a tributary of the Cottenham
Lode/Beck Brook catchment) flows through the western part of the site,
and is classified as an Award Watercourse. Downstream of the site, it is
designated as a Main River. The geology of the site varies with head
gravels in the north eastern part of the site (above the proposed
Ridgeway), and head deposits (mainly clays) in the south western part of
the site. In the eastern part of the site, reworked Chalk Marl is locally
present.

As a greenfield site there is limited public surface water sewers, and public
foul water sewers within the application boundary. There are no potable
water supply mains located within the site, however, there are water
supply mains servicing existing development along Madingley Road and
Huntingdon Road.

Flood Risk to the Development

The flood map for the area published by the Environment Agency shows
that, with the exception of a small area to the northern part of the site, the
site sits within Flood Zone 1 (Flood Zone 1 comprises land assessed as
having a less than 1 in 1000 annual probability of river or sea flooding
(<0.1%) in any year). The areas immediately adjacent to the Washpit
Brook is partly located in Zones 2 and 3 as a result of predicted flooding
from the watercourse.

To overcome this issue the Environmental Statement and Flood Risk
Assessment (FRA) state that, by applying a sequential test to the land use
on the proposed site, the least vulnerable development (things such as
open space, landscaped areas or car parking) will be located in the higher
flood risk areas. This process will ensure that all main buildings would
mainly be located within Flood Zone 1. This approach is consistent with
the Parameter Plans submitted.

Page 75
75



8.354

8.355

8.356

8.357

8.358

Flood Risk as a Result of the Development

Surface Water Management Strategy

As identified by the NWCAAP policy a cascading system of SuDS are
proposed in order to attenuate and improve the quality of runoff. This is set
out within the surface water management strategy developed as part of
the FRA. The management system proposed has been sized to ensure
that the rate and volume of surface runoff discharged from the site will not
be increased above current greenfield runoff rates for all events up to and
including the 1 in 100 year event including climate change.

There are two separate components to surface water runoff namely; (1)
roof runoff, which will be attenuated at source using green roofs or
directed to an underground collection tank by each dwelling and used for
internal uses such as flushing toilets or external uses such as gardening,
and (2) runoff from roads and other hard standing, which will be collected
and attenuated locally in swales, porous paving, filter drains and
underground cellular storage. The swales will direct the discharge to
control features such as retention ponds in the western edge, which will
hold and treat the water (the retention time will allow sediments and
pollutants to settle) before discharging to the watercourse.

Flood Alleviation

There is potential for flooding downstream if no mitigation is undertaken,
therefore this development must, at very least, not make that situation any
worse than existing. Several representations from the public identified a
particular issue at Dodford Lane in Girton. In order to reduce risk to, and
from the application site, the proposed development includes an online
flow control structure (general location secured by Parameter Plan 03)
within the Washpit Brook and a two-stage channel capable of storing
attenuated flood waters.

This strategy enables the existing peak flow downstream of the site to be
reduced for a range of return periods and for excess flow to be stored
within the landscaped areas of the proposed development. The hydraulic
modeling submitted with the application indicates that with the proposed
measures in place, existing peak flows downstream of the application site
may be reduced by up to 25% for a 1 in 20 year event, and 10% for a 1 in
100 year event.

In an extreme event there is some potential for surface runoff to be
transferred between the peripheral areas of the proposal and the existing
dwelling that sit adjacent to the site. This is especially true in the eastern
part of the site, where water eventually extends to one of the wetspots
identified in the Cambridge and Milton Surface Water Management Plan.
Surface runoff from the proposed development which falls towards the
wetspot will be intercepted and either recycled within the proposed
buildings or attenuated within long term storage devices and discharged

Page 76
76



8.359

8.360

8.361

8.362

via the proposed surface water drainage network to the Washpit Brook.
The surface water management strategy will effectively control run off that
is discharged from the site towards the wetspot, and existing watercourse
that extends adjacent to Thornton Road and Wellbrook Road and will
thereby potentially reduce flood risk to peripheral areas of the existing
residential development.

Design of Sustainable Drainage System

Through the amendments submitted to the application an addendum to the
FRA was included, which built upon the original strategy and provided
further detail, and added robustness to satisfy both Council officers and
the Environment Agency. The addendum to the FRA highlighted one way
that the strategy could be worked up which demonstrates that as well as
alleviating the flood risk issue, the scheme can work in terms of landscape,
ecology, noise and provide recreational space.

The scheme provides for swales within the strategic green fingers, which
run down the natural gradient to the western edge, where linear ponds will
be located to attenuate to runoff. Prior to entering the swales the water is
temporarily stored at source where it is reused or is allowed to soak back
into the ground. The water will then pass under the landscaped berms,
through a culvert into a low flow channel. This channel is at the bottom of a
larger channel that will be designed to accommodate floodwater storage in
storm events. Eventually the low flow channel feeds into the Washpit
Brook and water runs downstream after being regulated by the flow control
structure than ensures that there is a reduction of the pre development
peak flow downstream.

Potable Water

The proposed development will require considerable potable water
resources and as a result several measures will be incorporated into the
proposed development, to reduce overall water demand from dwellings
and non-residential buildings. These measures will include water efficiency
measures, visible water meters, rainwater harvesting and greywater
recycling. The proposed potable water demand will have to comply with
the standards set out in the Code for Sustainable Homes for Level 5 and
6. Cambridge Water Company’s final Water Resource Management Plan
identifies that there is no immediate threat to water resources within
Cambridge Water’s resource zone, and that there is capacity within its
current licensed abstractions for the forecast development.

Wastewater

The development will create a large amount of wastewater requiring
treatment and discharge. Anglian Water has been consulted during the
application process and has indicated that discharges should be directed
to the Cambridge Wastewater Treatment Works, and that there is
sufficient capacity within the exiting works.

Page 77
77



8.363

8.364

8.365

8.366

8.367

8.368

This Wastewater will not affect groundwater, and due to the nature of the
proposed uses on site there are unlikely to be significant volumes of fuels
and/or chemicals stored on site. In order to ensure that there is a
satisfactory foul (wastewater) strategy a condition has been suggested
(Condition 30). With the satisfactory discharge of this condition the
application will comply with Policy NW26 (Foul Drainage and Sewage
Disposal). All relevant stakeholders would be consulted in the discharge of
this condition.

Management and Maintenance

Policy NW27 of the NWCAAP requires details of the management regime
of the drainage features in order to ensure that there is comprehensive
management in perpetuity. At this point in time there is a lot of uncertainty
regarding the management of drainage systems on the back of the Flood
and Water Management Act 2010.

There are still some elements of that Act which are unclear, and which will
be resolved over time. The sustainable drainage system proposed at this
stage in outline form is above adoption standards, and consultation is on-
going with the Councils and drainage bodies such as Anglian Water and
Cambridge Water. The details of the SuDS will be required through the
reserved matters applications, and will have to be provided in accordance
with the County’s SuDS handbook, and the City Council’'s SuDS adoption
design guide. While the full implications of the Act are yet to be
understood, the proposed scheme in terms of drainage is provided to a
high standard, which will, subject to approving the detail, comply with
adoption guidelines if they are offered for adoption. The proposal, in so far
as it can at this stage, complies with Policy NW27.

Conclusions

The information submitted with the application, both in terms of the FRA
and Drainage Strategy has been worked up with, and has gained support
from, both internal officers at the Councils and the Environment Agency.
The FRA addendum expands on the outline strategy and provides
sufficient evidence that not only can the site provide a reduction in the
existing flood risk downstream by reducing runoff rate and volume, but can
work in design terms when looking at other aspects such as ecology,
landscape, noise and recreation.

Conditions (Conditions 26 and 27) have been suggested by the
Environment Agency requiring a surface water strategy, that builds on the
submission documents, to be submitted, and that each reserved matters
application shows how it contributes to that strategy, i.e. downstream
runoff and volume must be controlled at each development stage.

Parameter Plan 07 identifies contour lines (which have a +/-2.5m flex)
which ensures that the strategy can be carried out giving comfort on flood
attenuation, but allowing for the design to be finalised through the reserved
matters applications. Parameter Plan 03 identifies the zone for the location

Page 78
78



8.369

8.370

8.371

8.372

8.373

8.374

of the flow control (which will need detailed permission), and a zone for
any works to the Washpit Brook, if required.

The proposal in terms of drainage, subject to the conditions suggested, is
strongly supported and complies with Policies NW25, NW26 and NW27
within the NWCAAP.

Ecology and Landscape/Heritage Assets

The application site is predominately made up of arable land combined
with various landscape elements such as mature hedgerows along field
boundaries, an avenue of protected Horse Chestnut trees, a protected
veteran Oak tree located centrally, and the Washpit Brook award drain,
which runs along the south western boundary of the site. In addition to
these elements, there are two further landscape features of significant
interest. The first is the Travellers Rest SSSI, which represents itself as a
depressed landform located centrally within the site, to the south of the
World Conservation Monitoring Centre, accessed from Huntingdon Road.
The second is an area of historic Ridge and Furrow field pattern, located
between the Madingley Road Park and Ride site and Conduit Head Road.
Although no significant historic buildings are located on the site, there are
a number of older buildings and residential properties on the fringes of the
site that provide a setting and visual inter-relationship that will need to be
considered through the application process.

Policies NW1, NW2 and NW4 of the NWCAAP seek to preserve the
setting of Cambridge and the land surrounding the development, prevent
undue harm to historic, ecological and landscape features and promote
biodiversity throughout the new development.

The applicants have responded to the NWCAAP aspirations by
undertaking a number of desktop and field surveys on the application site
and the surrounding area. The surveys have identified the various
ecological, landscape and cultural assets on and around the site, including
the presence of Bats, Farmland Birds, Water Voles, Brown Hare,
Amphibians, Otters, Invertebrates, Reptiles and Badgers; historic field
patterns, the Travellers Rest SSSI, various important and protected trees
and the absence of any statutorily protected buildings on the site itself.

Ecology and Landscape

The Masterplan for the development has been designed with the
ecological constraints identified through the survey work in mind. Where
possible the Masterplan has used the ecological constraints within the
submitted design, and, where ecological impacts cannot be avoided, a
package of on-site and off-site mitigation measures are proposed to
compensate for the identified impact.

The submitted Environmental Statement details the mitigation measures
proposed in the design of the development principles for lasting on-site
solutions, the necessary off-site measures proposed where it is not

Page 79
79



8.375

8.376

8.377

8.378

otherwise possible to incorporate such measures within the new
development, as well as providing a site-wide Construction Environmental
Management Plan which details the protection measures proposed during
the construction phase of the development.

The ‘green corridors’ theme, which serves to connect the informal
landscape area along the western edge of the site with the development
areas, as illustrated on Parameter Plan 03, will help to enhance the
ecological potential on site, creating habitats and transit routes for animals
through the development, and also creating the opportunity for areas of
wetland using swales and berms as part of the overall SuDS system.
Although there is not a proliferation of existing hedgerows on site, the
contextual plans within the DALS show that the majority of the existing on-
site hedgerows and ditches have been incorporated within the Masterplan
design, with some of the drainage channels, such as the Washpit Brook,
enhanced to created increased opportunities for water retention within the
site, to increase habitat for wetland species.

The on-site SuDS system has been designed to deliver ecological
benefits. As much water as possible within the proposed drainage strategy
will run through open swales and ditches that will include planting and aim
to incorporate permanent water. Concern has been raised in respect of
how wide the green corridors will need to be to successfully incorporate
such drainage and landscape features whilst also providing a recreational
and amenity function, with adjustments made to the DALS to account for
these concerns. The detailed design process will need to establish further
how all features can be accommodated successfully.

The overall package of on-site water retention features, such as the berms
located within the Western Edge particularly, have been the subject of
detailed design discussions to enhance ecology, such as the creation of
steep banks in places for water vole burrowing to allow these species to
be enhanced on site. Native planting and habitat manipulation can also
provide for badger foraging opportunities within the scheme as well as
provision for grassland strips seeded with native wildflower grassland mix
for wildlife. Detailed reserved matters applications will need to develop
these themes further to ensure delivery, but it is considered that the
parameters illustrated at this stage provide comfort that such benefits can
be achieved in the final, detailed, proposals.

Overall, the Western Edge will provide an important landscape feature,
providing a multitude of functions, including drainage, and informal
recreational functions, as well as providing a landscape edge to the site
when viewed from the M11 and beyond. The applicants have provided
additional detail and indicative sections of this area, to provide
reassurance that all facets to this space can be delivered successfully.
Officers have been comforted by the level of detail provided to date, and
are of the opinion that this space can be designed to meet its various aims
through the detailed design process. Following amendments to the
submitted parameter plans, particularly Parameter Plan 07 which sets out
the proposed topography of this space within a tolerance of +/- 2.5m,

Page 80
80



8.379

8.380

8.381

8.382

8.383

officers are satisfied that sufficient flexibility exists within the plans to allow
for a suitable design solution to be delivered, although careful regard will
need to be had to ensure that the vision proposed through the outline
scheme is delivered through detailed design submissions, especially
allowing for the likely long-term and phased nature of the delivery of the
western edge, which is to be formed using ‘cut and fill from the developed
parts of the site.

Following amendments to the Environmental Statement, Geological Site
Management Plan (GSMP) and Construction Environment Management
Plan (CEMP), Natural England is supportive of the survey work
undertaken and proposed mitigation and enhancement measures.
Notwithstanding the submission of the current CEMP, a further submission
of a revised CEMP is to be secured by condition (Condition 52) to ensure
that the ecology of the site is protected during each development phase
and best practice is applied, alongside other construction phase specific
issues discussed elsewhere.

One outstanding area of concern for Natural England relates to specific
references within the DALS to enhancement works within the Travellers
Rest SSSI, including references to ramped footpaths/cycleways through
the site and lighting proposals for that space. Whilst Natural England does
not object, in principle, to some form of low-level activity within the SSSI, it
is concerned that construction works within the SSSI could prove harmful
to the landform. As any such works would constitute an engineering
operation, they would require the submission of a reserved matters
planning application. Any such application would be required to include the
necessary level of detail to satisfy Natural England that their concerns
have been overcome.

Due to the nature of the proposed development, the ES has identified that
is not possible to either retain or provide alternative habitats for certain
species of farmland animals, due to the very nature of the site no longer
being retained as arable land. Accordingly, the ES proposes that off-site
mitigation measures are proposed for skylark and brown hares. Through
discussions with the Council’s Ecology officers, it has been accepted that
off-site delivery of such mitigations is acceptable, with a potential receptor
site identified. Timing and implementation of such off-site measures will be
secured through the S106 agreement for the scheme.

In respect of the existing landscape features on site, for the most part the
applicants have presented proposals that respect the value that these
assets bring to the site. There are, however, two areas where officers are
concerned that the development presents the potential to impinge upon
important landscape assets, namely the Veteran Oak tree with adjoining
Ash Tree, located in the centre of the application, and the avenue of Horse
Chestnut trees, located towards the eastern end of the site, within the
proposed ‘Storey’s Field’ district.

In both instances, by virtue of the scale of the parameter plans, but also
given some of the indicative arrangements illustrated within the DALS,

Page 81
81



8.384

8.385

8.386

8.387

there is concern that these important features will either not benefit from
sufficient space for the plants to survive, or that the space illustrated does
not work to provide them with a suitable setting, which latterly could
threaten their well-being and retention once the development is occupied
and pressure is exerted to enable elements such as sunlight within
residential curtilages to proliferate. Given the importance of these specific
assets, conditions (Conditions 12, 13 and 14) are proposed to stipulate
protection zones for these features, and other previously unidentified
features worthy of retention. The detailed design coding and reserved
matters processes will also need to have careful regard to ensure that the
features are suitably accommodated into the surrounding development
and form an active part of the scheme moving forward.

Cultural/Heritage Assets

The DALS is a comprehensive document that seeks to draw design cues
from a range of local assets, both in Cambridge and the wider area. The
analysis of views into and out of the area is generally supported, with no
dramatic views of the City Centre from the site or the M11 to provide a
contextual relationship.

However, the importance of the wider setting is still relevant and whilst
there are no historic buildings or listed structures located within the
application site, there are areas where the submitted ES has failed to
identify undesignated heritage assets (historic buildings) outside of the
site, for example the former Country Centre on the north side of
Huntingdon Road, which was built around 1852 as an imposing country
residence (now in use as the Hotel Felix). The success of the scheme will
be based upon providing a contextual relationship with adjoining buildings
and the impact on the adjacent Conservation Areas, listed buildings and
other heritage assets. Whilst some concern exists around how these
elements will be reflected in the scheme, this will depend very much on
detail and things such as the design and final scale of the buildings, and
through the quality of materials proposed.

There is also some concern over the height of the buildings proposed in
the Storey’s Field section of the site as this will have an impact on
Churchill College and the West Cambridge Conservation Area. The design
of the buildings in this area and any ‘landmark’ building proposed will need
to take the sensitive surroundings into account to ensure that no harm
arises. The design coding process (secured by Condition 7) and reserved
matters applications will need to provide parameters for reflecting the
surrounding heritage context within the development as it progresses
through the detailed design and implementation stages.

With the provision of a strong CEMP the value of this site in ecological
terms will be equal to and in many cases greatly enhanced from the
existing arrangement. The CEMP required by condition (Condition 52) will
be implemented during construction to mitigate and control any adverse
impacts that may occur.

Page 82
82



8.388

8.389

8.390

8.391

8.392

It is accepted that the proposed development will have impacts in terms of
ecology and biodiversity. The ES submitted with the application,
incorporating the site wide CEMP, GSMP, and Biodiversity Strategy,
satisfactorily highlights the potential conflicts and suggests mitigation
measures that will not only compensate for the development, but also
serve to enhance the local area in terms of ecology and biodiversity.

With regard to the various landscape and heritage assets on and around
the site, it is considered that although a number of unregistered heritage
assets have not been identified within the submissions, on balance the
development suitably makes provision for, and respects the setting of,
these assets in outline terms. However, given the level of detail proposed
at this stage, and the inherent potential for detailed design considerations
to have an impact going forward, careful attention will need to be paid
through the design coding and reserved matters applications processes to
ensure specific relationships are preserved and, where possible,
enhanced.

One area where specific concerns have been raised by residents relates
to the relationship between the site and the adjoining areas within Storey’s
Way Conservation Area, including the potential impact of the development
upon the Ascension burial ground and the impact on the existing trees
located in the area at which the Ridgeway cycle route is proposed to exit
into Storey’s Way. With regard to the first point, the applicants have
amended PP03 to remove an area of secondary open land that was
previously shown abutting the Ascension burial ground. This has served to
overcome concerns from residents who had requested a Development
Control Forum regarding the long-term security of the site, which could
have been compromised by an area of open space, with no significant
purpose, adjoining the relatively low wall boundary wall to the church yard.
No Development Control Forum took place as the change was agreed with
the applicant removing the need for the forum.

With regard to the existing trees and the potential impact of the Ridgeway
route, the applicants have provided an updated survey of the trees in this
area and how the route could travel through this zone. Although the details
have not been submitted for approval at this stage, they do serve to
provide some comfort that a solution can be identified whereby the cycle
route can be achieved without compromising the long-term health of the
trees, which provide a significant level of amenity to the Conservation Area
and adjoining residential properties. The full detail of this route will be
secured through the reserved matters process.

Subject to the conditions proposed, and the strategic measures being
secured through the S106 process, it is considered that development
complies with the NWCAAP.

Environmental Health Considerations

Lighting

Page 83
83



8.393

8.394

8.395

8.396

8.397

Policy NW2 of the NWCAAP seeks to resist development where it would
result in an unacceptable level of light pollution, whist the supporting text
to the policy seeks the submission of a lighting strategy, to assess the
effects of lighting on residential and wider amenity, adjoining land uses,
and address lighting of key buildings, routes across the strategic gap and
the lighting treatment of the urban edge.

In response, the ES includes a review of existing lighting, identifying a
baseline lighting condition, identifying and assessing the sensitivity of
receptors, setting out required lighting provisions for the proposed
development, and assessing and benchmarking the baseline to cumulative
lighting condition variance, both due to the construction phase of
development, and at stages of completion. No detailed proposals are
included as the application is at the outline stage only. It is, therefore,
proposed that lighting details be included within the design codes, and a
separate condition (Condition 51) is proposed to agree final site lighting.

Concerns have been expressed through the consultation process that
lighting from the new junctions will impact on residential amenity, including
where the new access routes will result in the removal of some existing
landscape screening for existing light sources, such as the Park and Ride
site on Madingley Road. Care will be needed with regards to the position
of road signs and the design of street lighting all of which will be necessary
associated infrastructure. Although the junctions are proposed for approval
as part of this application, the details submitted provide limited information
in this respect. As with the lighting for the proposed All Weather Pitch,
which will adjoin the Park and Ride site (discussed in paras 8.237 to 8.239
above), officers will need to work with the applicant to provide a suitable
landscape screen to ensure that light spill from these facilities does not
affect the amenity of existing and proposed adjoining residents.
Accordingly, although officers have already been working with the
applicants to consider options for advanced landscaping around the Park
and Ride site to minimise disruption to residents ahead of development
commencing, conditions (Conditions 45, 46, 47, and 48) are proposed
requiring details of the lighting, traffic signals and landscaping, alongside
the other technical elements of the junctions to be submitted for approval
ahead of works commencing.

Soil and Contamination

Although the majority of the site is given over to arable land, it has been
the subject of a mixture of uses through its role as a University facility, with
a number of agricultural buildings remaining on site at present.

A desktop study recorded potential sources of contamination, including
laboratories, former gravel and quarry pits and above ground fuel tanks.
Intrusive ground investigations have been undertaken across the site, and
did not record any significant contamination. However, given the size and
nature of the site, with some buildings and uses remaining on site,
Environmental Health officers have recommended that further testing in
some areas of the site should be undertaken through the construction

Page 84
84



8.398

8.399

8.400

phase of development. It is not considered that there are any pollutants on
site that would preclude development and therefore subject to further
testing where necessary, with mitigation and remediation where relevant,
the proposal conforms to Policy NW2 of the NWCAAP. To ensure the
necessary testing and remediation is carried out to an acceptable standard
a condition (Condition 49) is proposed to require all the necessary details
to be agreed prior to the commencement of development. In addition to
this, although a Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) has
been submitted that addresses the main issues on the site to an
acceptable standard, detailed soil management plans for each phase of
development will be required to ensure that any contaminated soil that is
discovered is suitably managed. Accordingly, a condition (Condition 52)
requiring a further CEMP to be submitted to include such details is also
proposed, in addition to the other elements listed within the condition.

Noise and Vibration, Dust, Fumes and Odours

Policy NW2 of the NWCAAP states that planning permission will not be
granted where a development would be exposed to (inter alia) levels of
noise, vibration and other forms of pollution that are unacceptable in
relation to the nature of that development. Policy NW28 seeks to prevent
disruption to adjoining land uses throughout the construction phase of the
development. This proposal raises a number of issues that will need to be
addressed effectively in order to minimise both the potential adverse
effects on the existing local residents in proximity to the site, and provide a
suitable environment for the future occupants of the both the dwellings and
other uses included within the proposed development.

Impact on future occupiers of the site

The Environmental Statement submitted with the application provides data
to support the application in terms of both its impact on the existing
population, and the amenity of future occupiers of the site. The report uses
the NEC categories identified in PPG24 and assesses the suitability of the
site for residential development.

The report identified that the adjoining M11 carriageway, alongside the
A14 and Huntingdon Road corridors, as well as internal site traffic noise,
are significant sources of noise and, therefore, present design
requirements upon residential properties to ensure that noise levels within
the development are managed to an acceptable standard. Measures
proposed include the location of non-noise sensitive buildings on the
western perimeter of the developed area of the site, and the use of
building massing, internal layouts of specific buildings, employment of
appropriate stand-off distances from internal site roads and the
specification of appropriate glazing and ventilation. The design of the
western edge, with the inclusion of the landscaped berms, has also been
proposed to reduce noise and improve the amenity value within this area
of informal public open space.

Page 85
85



8.401

8.402

8.403

8.404

8.405

8.406

8.407

Environmental Health officers accept the findings of the survey work and
agree that an integrated design mitigation approach can serve to
intrinsically “design out” traffic noise impact, negating the need for a noise
insulation scheme in the majority of cases. However, they raise concerns
that this may not be possible for all cases, whilst also raising some
concerns about the specific technologies proposed to assist with the
designing out process. Accordingly, given that the layout and footprints of
residential premises are not finalised at this stage, they have
recommended that a condition (Condition 50) be imposed to ensure the
submission of suitable design and mitigation for each phase of residential
development.

Impact on existing residential properties

The ES recognises that noise and dust from the construction of the
proposal has the potential to affect nearby residents, whilst the
introduction of the new access points into the site presents the potential for
long-term noise impacts upon adjoining existing residents. Increased traffic
upon the surrounding road network also has the potential to increase noise
and disturbance to residents.

Environmental Health Officers have suggested a number of conditions
relating to various aspects of the construction phase, alongside conditions
to mitigate the noise impacts of the new junctions. The proposed
conditions include details of the Construction Environmental Management
Plan (CEMP), Construction Method Statement, construction phasing, piling
details, limits on hours of construction and hours of delivery (Conditions 5,
31, 52, 53).

Further to this, the Transport Assessment proposes mitigation measures
at various points in the wider area to overcome the potential increase in
traffic in residential areas. These measures are being secured through the
S.106 process.

By virtue of the proposed conditions and mitigation measures, officers are
satisfied that there will be no undue adverse impacts through noise to
existing residents.

Impact of proposed local centre and other non-residential uses.

The development proposes a mix of non-residential uses, with a particular
concentration in the local centre and along the western edge of the
development. Such uses may have an impact on adjoining residential
properties, particularly within the local centre and in close proximity to it,
where development density is higher.

As such, careful regard will need to be had when designing the local
centre, its component elements and the other non-residential uses across
the site (including elements such as school playing field equipment, Multi-
use games areas etc.), to take into account proximity of uses and the
potential noise and other disturbance, for example through air conditioning

Page 86
86



8.408

8.409

8.410

8.411

8.412

or other mechanical elements, or through associated activities such as
timing and nature of deliveries. Although conditions of consent would be
premature at this stage to address such issues, Environmental Health
officers have recommended a number of informatives to be attached to
any consent, to advise the applicants of the various elements that should
be considered when identifying design solutions, whilst also commenting
that regard will need to be given to potentially limiting hours of operation,
timings of deliveries and other elements, at the time of considering specific
reserved matters submissions.

Air Quality

Policy NW2 of the NWCAAP states that, inter alia, ‘planning permission
will not be granted where the proposed development or associated
mitigation measures would have an unacceptable adverse impact on air
quality’.

The application site lies in close proximity to the Cambridge Air Quality
Management Area (AQMA), which covers the junction of Huntingdon
Road, Histon Road, Victoria Road and Castle Hill and also the South
Cambridgeshire AQMA which runs along the A14 and the A10/Histon
Road junction. The traffic movements generated from this development
will impact on both of these AQMAs and, therefore, an Air Quality
Assessment (contained within Chapter 14 of the Environmental Statement)
has been provided to quantify the impact and identify mitigation methods
to reduce or neutralise the impact.

The assessment provided has been evaluated by the Councils’ Scientific
officers who, despite noting a number of limitations, agree with the findings
that there will be a degree of adverse effect as a result of this
development. They do, however, advise that, by virtue of the limitations of
the model, the overall impact is likely to have been under-estimated.

While it is almost impossible for development of this scale to have no
adverse impact on air quality, through design, and mitigation measures the
impacts can be reduced considerably. Commitments through both the site
wide and University-wide travel plans, to reduce car dependency and
mitigate the need for longer trips into the City from further afield, such as
car clubs, enhanced public transport provision, adequate cycle parking
provision, as well as speed limits imposed through the development, will
help reduce the impact. There are also wider strategies that will help
improve air quality over the long term. It is also proposed that a level of
verification monitoring for air quality is carried out before occupancy of the
site and continued post occupation. The monies for this monitoring are
being sought through the S106 agreement.

Further to the proposed mitigation measures outlined above, the Councils’
Scientific officers have requested that the a range of transport related
emissions reduction measures are secured and that the type of fuel to be
used within the Energy Centre is restricted to those already tested through
the ES (these are secured through the Travel Plan, S106 obligations,

Page 87
87



8.413

8.414

8.415

8.416

Code for Sustainable Homes, and Condition 61). They have also
requested that facilities to meet the needs of new residents be provided in
the early stages of development, to mitigate the need for extended off-site
trips which would also have a resultant impact upon air quality. This is
being secured via the triggers imposed for the delivery of facilities under
the various relevant S106 obligations. Officers have also recommended a
number of informatives, to be attached to any consent, to advise the
applicants of best practice and other consents likely to be required outside
of the planning application process.

In isolation it could be considered that the proposal has a small negative
effect on air quality and thus is contrary to Policy NW2 of the NWCAAP.
This consideration must, however, be balanced against the overall aims of
the Area Action Plan and site allocation, discussed in this report, that aim
to meet the long-term needs of the University of Cambridge and provide a
high-quality mixed use development that will benefit the City and
surrounding area. Mitigating measures are proposed to ensure any
negative impact is as minimal as possible.

Heath Impact

The applicants have submitted a detailed Health Impact Assessment (HIA)
as part of their proposals, which considers the health care requirements of
the new residents, and assesses how those needs will be fulfilled, taking
into consideration existing facilities within the area. Through this
assessment, the need for additional facilities has been identified, resulting
in the proposal to incorporate a health care facility within the local centre of
the development.

The HIA has been assessed by both the Council’s Public Health Specialist
and the NHS, with the findings accepted. Discussions regarding the
method of delivering the health care facility have resulted in S106
obligations, the details of which are addressed below.

Waste Strategy and Management

Policy NW2 of the NWCAAP requires that the development proposed
provides for integrated refuse and recycling facilities and reduces the
amount of waste produced, through good design. In addition to this, the
RECAP Waste Management Design Guide Supplementary Planning
Document was adopted by Cambridgeshire County Council on 22
February 2012. This SPD addresses the issue of waste management in
new developments and redevelopments of a residential, commercial or
mixed use nature. The application has been supported by a Site Waste
Management Plan, and an addendum to this covering the proposed
system of collection on this site was submitted with the amendments to the
application.

Construction Phase

Page 88
88



8.417

8.418

8.419

8.420

8.421

It is anticipated that the construction phase across all of the uses on this
site will produce around 109,000m> of waste. This figure is based on
published data and recently completed projects. It is considered that
through the use of a challenging and robust Site Waste Management Plan
this level of waste can be significantly reduced. Reducing waste will add
credits towards the BREEAM excellent standards and Code for
Sustainable Homes Level 5 being achieved on this site.

A Construction Environmental Management Plan will include the
requirement for an Outline Waste Management Plan (OWMP), which will
provide a statement of site specific reuse and recycling objectives with
appropriate targets, compliance training for sub-contractors, construction
code of conduct together with regular auditing and reporting on target
achievements and quantities disposed. Each reserved matters submission
will then require a Detailed Waste Management Plan for that particular
phase (Condition 54). With the suggested conditions imposed the
proposed development complies with Policy NW28 of the NWCAAP.

Waste Strategy for Occupied Development

It is expected, when fully completed, that the development will produce in
the region of 6,091 tonnes of waste per annum. The applicants looked at
options for possible waste solutions to this site given policy
encouragement to look at innovate solutions. The local authorities and
County Council took part in the assessment of the possible solutions.

During the feasibility assessment for waste a communal, underground
vertical bin system scored highest for both high density and medium
density residential buildings. Conventional wheelie bins scored highest for
low-density residential properties, where an underground system would be
less efficient serving fewer properties in any 30m radius, however it is
considered that a single site solution for the residential element would be
most efficient, allowing for reduced vehicle movements. Above ground
compounds scored highest for commercial/education waste on the site
due to the potential for specific waste collection requirements, for example
clinic waste.

Underground bin system

In addition to the policies noted at the start of this chapter the City Council
(through its Environment Scrutiny Committee 15 March 2011) has an
approved ‘Household Waste and Recycling Policy’. Policy 7 (New
Developments) which recognizes the benefits of underground schemes in
terms of aesthetics, reduction in fly tipping and efficiencies of collection. It
states that underground bins should be considered by developers for high-
density housing developments, and notes that these underground systems
are innovative, but are becoming more popular with local authorities in this
country. They are already being used extensively in mainland Europe, e.g
Germany, Denmark, Spain and Portugal.

Page 89
89



8.422

8.423

8.424

8.425

8.426

8.427

The RECAP design guide is also supportive of underground systems and
states that ‘as an alternative (to more conventional systems) developers
are encouraged to consider underground storage of waste. Such systems
may be particularly suitable for use within multi-occupancy residential
developments’.

The proposed underground system comprises a concrete bunker set in the
ground, a bin-liner or container which holds the waste and is located in the
bunker, and a surface entry point, which often looks like a conventional
street waste bin mounted on a section of paving or platform. All that is
visible at the street level is the input receptacle (an example is shown in
Appendix O). Although examples of this system are present in
Peterborough, Tower Hamlets and are proposed in Edgbaston
(Birmingham), this scheme would be the first in this country at this size
and scale.

The underground bins will be situated in groups of 3 (or multiples of 3 if
one location serves a high number of residents). The three bins will allow
for the following streams of waste; dry recycling, paper and residual waste
including residual food waste. Fortnightly collection of residual and co-
mingled recycling is anticipated with up to every 6 weeks for paper
although an automatic fill indicator will allow for optimum emptying
frequencies to be obtained. It is anticipated that a solution will also be
provided for batteries with the underground banks. Kitchens within
residential properties will be provided with adequate built-in storage for
waste in accordance with the Code for Sustainable Homes, Level 5 to
complement the underground system.

Organic waste will be dealt with through promotion of home composting.
All dwellings with gardens will be provided with composting facilities for
grass and hedge clippings, dead plants, flowers etc. and also some food
waste; for example vegetable peelings. All areas that have managed
gardens such as apartments will be covered through a management
company will be covered by an onsite in vessel composting facility that will
be run by the applicant.

There are clear benefits to the underground system in terms of visual
amenity, and there are some economic and operation cost
benefits/efficiencies that can also be attributed to the underground system;
for example a reduction in vehicle movements on site, reducing the carbon
impact. The applicant has discussed with the local authorities how
potential fly-tipping will be monitored and dealt with, as well as ensuring
that assisted collection is available for elderly, infirm, and disabled
residents with impaired mobility or sight. 90% of the bins will be within a
30m radius of any one property with 100% being within 35m. In the higher
density areas the distance is likely to be significantly less than this.

Management and Delivery

Detailed conversations have taken place with representatives from both
local authorities regarding both the scheme proposed and the practicalities

Page 90
90



8.428

8.429

8.430

8.431

of collection. It was considered that it would be most cost/time efficient to
have one waste collection authority collecting for the entire site. Both the
City Council's Environment Scrutiny Committee and the South
Cambridgeshire’s Portfolio holder for Waste have agreed in principle,
subject to a service level agreement being put in place, that the City
Council will collect on behalf of both authorities.

Costs with regard to the operation of the underground system are yet to be
fully determined because the applicant is yet to procure the bin system,
and costs are difficult to estimate due to the fact that there are no
precedents from elsewhere to derive similar costs from. As a result the
estimated costs with regard to collection, maintenance, replacement and
repair cannot be established precisely at this stage (there is considerable
difference between different systems) meaning that the amount of (if any)
money to pay the Councils cannot be determined now. Should the system
cost more than the baseline service (currently an alternate weekly wheeled
bin service operated throughout the City and South Cambridgeshire) the
applicant has committed to covering any additional operational and
replacement costs to ensure that the Councils do not pay anything more
than they would have done through operation of the baseline service and
are therefore not adversely financially affected.

A formula is being drawn up which, with the correct inputs when known
post procurement, will confirm the amount payable to the local authorities
(the amount above the costs of the baseline service). The formula will
calculate an annual cost based on the difference between the
underground system and the baseline service, and this amount will then
be payable to the local authorities in perpetuity through the S106.
Formulae are also being drawn up to secure a contribution for a vehicle
‘upgrade’ (above baseline costs of a normal vehicle) to enable collection
from the underground system.

Bring Sites and Recycling Centres

The RECAP design guide requires developments of this size to provide for
bring sites. The expectation within the guide is that one additional Bring
Site facility will be required for significant residential developments for
every 800 residential dwellings. Policy NW21 of the NWCAAP requires
one to be located within the local centre, and given that in order to comply
with the design guide 4 bring sites will be required in total a condition
(Condition 59) is suggested to secure these within the local centre and the
three other neighbourhood centres identified within Parameter Plan 04.
These sites will provide for additional streams of recycling such as textiles,
small waste electrical and electronic equipment etc.

The condition proposed also requires temporary recycling facilities to be
installed prior to the 50" occupation, and thereafter incrementally provided
upon the completion of every 800 dwellings to ensure suitable interim
provisions are in place until the permanent bring site is completed.

Page 91
91



8.432

8.433

8.434

8.435

8.436

8.437

A network of Household Recycling Centres are provided by
Cambridgeshire County Council. The sites are positioned in strategic
locations across the county and enable the public to bring and deposit
bulky household wastes and other waste types of household waste that
are not normally taken as part of the normal collection round. Sites
encourage the segregation of waste for recycling and reuse. This site is
not allocated to provide a Household Recycling Centre, but a financial
contribution to be secured through the S106 will be provided to give
increased capacity and help provide a permanent replacement for existing
temporary facility at Milton.

Conclusion

The proposal by the applicant introduces an innovative waste solution to
this site which should help encourage responsible waste management and
recycling for future residents, provide economic efficiencies and improve
the aesthetics of the built environment. Contributions are being secured
through legal agreement to ensure that the cost to the local authority is no
greater than the baseline conventional system. It is therefore considered
that the proposal complies with both the NWCAAP policies and the
RECAP design guide.

Archaeoloqgy

The NWCAAP requires that the development of the site will take into
account existing site conditions and ensure that there will be no
unacceptable adverse impact upon a broad range of issues. Policy NW2
sets the development principles for the site, and seeks to ensure that,
amongst other elements, that there will be no adverse impact upon
archaeological interests on the site.

In response, the applicants have undertaken an extensive investigation of
the site, the results of which are published fully within Chapter 9 of the
submitted Environmental Statement, supplemented by a range of
mitigations proposed within the Construction Environmental Management
Plan.

By undertaking a combination of a desktop study and various on-site
investigations, carried out in accordance with the criteria set out within
PPS5, the applicants have identified that, whilst twelve distinct
archaeological areas of the site exist with evidence/findings across a
broad spectrum of dates, none is of such importance to warrant statutory
designation, and therefore worthy of in-situ preservation.

However, given the nature of the findings, and inability to access some
parts of the site at the time of the initial investigations, either due to the
presence of existing structures, or nature of current uses, a condition
(Condition 63) will be required to secure a programme of archaeological
work through the construction phase of development to ensure the suitable
identification, recording and preservation of assets uncovered at that
stage. Subject to this condition being imposed the County Council do not

Page 92
92



8.438

8.439

8.440

8.441

8.442

object to the principle of development on this site and therefore the
proposal complies with policy.

Third Party Representations (not addressed in previous sections)

The maijority of third party representations have been addressed through
the detailed assessment of various elements of the scheme above.

In addition to the points previously addressed, however, third party
representations have raised additional concerns in respect of the potential
for the development to ultimately be perceived as a University enclave,
with limited accessibility through the site and queried the impact it will have
upon the value of adjoining properties.

In respect of the first point, although a significant proportion of the site will
be retained by the applicant for University related uses, the principle for
this was established at the time of the site being released from the Green
Belt and further detailed through the adoption of the NWCAAP. To ensure
that the scheme is inclusive, it has been designed to include a permeable
layout and establishes principles to ensure that the development is tenure
blind, and represents a mixed and vibrant community. In combination with
this, the applicant has committed to an estate management structure and
level of consultation with stakeholders and public bodies that will ensure
that the long-term interests of all elements of the existing and future
community will be incorporated into the development as it is established.

In respect of concerns regarding the impact of the development upon the
value of adjoining development, although there is no evidence submitted
to support or disprove such a claim, such impact is not a material planning
consideration for members. Notwithstanding this point, the NWCAAP
seeks to provide a high quality development that respects its setting and
brings benefit to existing residents that will neighbor the new development.
Through the introduction of new community and leisure facilities, retail
opportunities and other publicly accessible elements, such as the
proposed additional areas of informal open space, the development is
considered to represent an enhanced environment that will meet the aims
of the NWCAAP, and one from which existing residents will also benefit in
the long-term.

S106 Planning Obligations

CIL Regulations and NWCAAP Policy

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 have introduced the
requirement for all local authorities to make an assessment of any
planning obligation in relation to three tests. If the planning obligation does
not pass the tests then it is unlawful. The tests are that the planning
obligation must be:

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
(b) directly related to the development; and

Page 93
93



8.443

8.444

8.445

8.446

8.447

8.448

8.449

8.450

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

The applicants have indicated their willingness to enter into a S106
planning obligation in accordance with the requirements of the NWCAAP.

Policy NW31 in the NWCAAP relates to Planning Obligations and
Infrastructure Provision and requires any proposal to make suitable
arrangements for the improvement or provision of Infrastructure, services
and facilities necessary to make the scheme acceptable in planning terms.

Section 106 Obligations

Appendix K provides a summary of the Heads of Terms within the S106 to
be secured as part of any permission granted. The summary identifies the
description of the S106 item, the cost of the contribution and the triggers
proposed. The summary is split into key themes as identified below. If any
substantial changes are made to the triggers post committee then these
changes will be reported back to the Joint Development Control
Committee. Minor changes to the changes would be reported to Chair,
Vice Chair and Spokespersons.

Affordable Housing

This will secure the use of 50% of the units on the site as affordable key
worker housing in perpetuity, and will ensure that the provision of these
units is brought forward alongside the delivery of market housing. It will
also provide for the faith worker units and the associated triggers.

Open Space and Sports Provision

The S106 will secure the timely provision all open spaces and sports
facilities on the site, along with children’s play spaces and allotments (All
provided to relevant specifications). The S106 will also require provision of
pavilions associated with sports pitches.

Triggers for open space will be secured so that open space is provided
early on for early residents and that after that it comes forward
contemporaneously with the residential completions in accessible
locations.

The S106 will also cover the management and maintenance of the above
facilities and will secure the widening of access to the Indoor Sports
Facility on West Cambridge. A Contribution towards a sports development
officer that will work across the NW area is also secured.

Ecology
As a result of the development there is a requirement for some off-site

Biodiversity mitigation measures (to improve habitat for farmland birds and
brown hares). This will be secured through the S106

Page 94
94



8.451

8.452

8.453

8.454

8.455

8.456

8.457

8.458

Access to the Countryside

Provisions for upgrades to the M11 underpass and footpath (upgrade to
Bridleway standard) leading up to Madingley village, as well as the
creation of through the West Cambridge Site linking the proposal will
routes towards Coton and Coton Countryside reserve are secured.

Community Infrastructure

The S106 will secure the provision of the on-site community centre (total
area between 500-600 sgqm) and a trigger of the first key worker
occupation. A temporary facility will be provided on the commencement of
residential development to ensure that there is provision for the earliest
residents.

Indoor sports provision will be secured though the opening up of access to
the West Cambridge Sports Centre, but if this is not achived within the first
3 years of residential development on this site, then a fall back scenario of
a dance studiof/fitness suite on this site will be provided.

The Health facility (700sqm) will be provided before the 400" key worker
unit or 250" market dwelling (or a total of 575 dwellings) whichever is the
sooner to secure adequate health facilities on this site. The Police Office
(200sgm) will also be provided on by the 1200 residential occupation. A
contribution will also be made to library sit out costs on the adjacent NIAB
site.

Money is also provided for a community chest payment (£5000) upon
occupation of the first residential dwelling and community development
worker(s) for 3 years.

Education

Payment towards the children’s centre on the adjacent site is secured
through the S106 and both provision for primary education (on site) and
secondary education (off site) along with revenue payments (if applicable)
are identified in the legal agreement.

Waste

Payments to the County Council for an off-site Household Recycling
Centre is secured through the S106. The S106 also secures any money
necessary to cover the waste collection authority in the event that the
costs are above baseline collection costs, this includes a contribution for a
vehicle upgrade necessary to complement the bin system chosen.

Transport
The S106 will secure the travel plan associated with the development, a

framework for which was submitted with the application. This travel plan
will have to take into account the items raised from both the County

Page 95
95



8.459

8.460

8.461

8.462

8.463

Council and Highways Agency. This travel plan will be implemented from
the first residential occupation and will be monitored (and
amended/adapted as necessary) throughout the lifetime of the
development. Money will be set aside for the travel plan measures will
include promotional campaign for the Guided Busway, University wide
Travel Plan Measures, monitoring for a need of a Controlled Parking Zone
in nearby residential streets and possible works to the M11 slip road
(dependent on monitoring).

Payments are also secured for bus revenue (to help fund public transport
during the ‘unviable’ stages, and physical improvements such as traffic
calming measures on Oxford/Windsor Road, enhancements to cycle
provision along Huntingdon Road and at the junction with Victoria
Road/Castle Street. Improvements will also be provided to Madingley
Road/Queen St/Northampton Street junction and payment of £235,000 to
the WCATP is also provided that could provide traffic mitigation in the local
area.

Other payments/obligations

The S106 secures funds for Public Art across the site, and monitoring for
air quality. There is also a payment for S106 monitoring to ensure that the
local authorities have the resources to monitor the provisions in the
agreement.

The applicant has accepted the need for air quality monitoring in principle.
The Councils’ Scientific Officers propose that monitoring is done in two
forms, firstly by diffusion tubes which will be installed on the site and
measure Nitrogen Dioxide, and secondly by continuous monitoring for
which equipment has already been purchased and installed on the corner
of Girton/Huntington Road. This second form of monitoring not only
records Nitrogen Dioxide but also PM10 and PM2.5 which were
highlighted in the Environmental Impact Assessment. This continuous
monitoring equipment was funded via Cambridgeshire Horizons Growth
Area Bid in anticipation of the development of NW Cambridge.

The contribution for air quality monitoring set out in the Heads of Terms
(Appendix K) identifies a sum that covers the cost of the first form of
monitoring only. The second form is still the subject of on-going
discussions, being led by South Cambridgeshire, as it relates to the air
quality monitoring zone in its area. A formal written request was made in
June 2012. A sum of £88,000 has been requested to cover revenue costs
over a 10 year period, including data collection, service and maintenance
and electricity supply).

At present the applicant has not agreed to meet the costs associated with
the second form of monitoring. Discussions on this will to continue with the
applicants regarding this point, as part of the
S106 process moving forward. An update to members will be provided at
Committee.

Page 96
96



8.464

8.465

8.466

8.467

8.468

8.469

8.470

Viability

Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act states that in
determining planning applications, a local planning authority ‘shall have
regard to, inter alia, any local financial considerations, so far as material to
the application’. Viability of any development is therefore material in
assessing a planning application.

In terms of overall viability of the scheme the applicants have not raised
any viability issues; that is to say that all S106 requirements, including
50% affordable housing can be provided over the lifetime of the
development. The applicants have however raised issues with cash flow in
the first phase, which is heavy in terms of up-front costs, where significant
infrastructure is required in terms of utilities improvements, provision of
new roads in to the site as well as the community, educational and sports
facilities.

The application has included provision for a hotel and senior care facility in
order to assist with this viability of this first phase, and will help offset the
up-front investment that the applicant will need to provide the early
facilities. As discussed in the report above there are other benefits that
result from these facilities in terms of place making and addressing need,
and these elements do not come at the expense of any of the provisions
within the NWCAAP (i.e they are not replacing housing or employment
provision which was key to release of the land in the first place).

It is therefore considered that as the local centre first phase is crucial to
placemaking, and providing facilities early on in the development
encouraged by the NWCAAP Policy NW20, and given that there is no loss
of facilities expressly highlighted in the NWCAAP, then both the senior
care facility and the hotel should be considered favourably given their role
in the viability of the first phase.

Phasing

NW30 of the NWCAAP relating to phasing and need, requires a needs
statement to be submitted with any planning application to demonstrate
that the University has a need for that land to be released for the specific
development the subject of the application. The University has already
provided significant evidence that there is a need for housing and
therefore it is not necessary to require this for every reserved matters
application.

The outline submission included a needs case for all other uses such as
retail, hotel and senior care facility which have been accepted by the local
authorities. The release of the employment land will still need to be proven
at the time of the reserved matters application and is therefore subject of
condition (condition 18).

The policy states that ‘phasing for the development will be determined
through masterplanning and as the needs of the university are proven’. In

Page 97
97



8.471

8.472

8.473

8.474

8.475

addition to this Policy NW20 requires high quality community services, and
facilities to serve all phases of development.

Lessons learnt from elsewhere support the approach proposed by the
applicant that the first phase will be centred around the local centre
creating facilities and amenities in the early phase and creating a
community hub. A large amount of key worker housing and market
housing will also form part of this first phase which will provide the orbital
link from Madingley Road to Huntingdon Road, as well as open space and
works to the western edge.

Beyond this first phase indicative phasing shown in the Design, Access
and Landscape Statement shows housing then being developed in a
logical manner both sides of the strategic gap, with residential
development making its way towards the north west of the site. It is
expected that the employment uses on the western edge will be the last
development to take place due to the fact that the need will have to be
proven once other site have been built out. A final, more detailed phasing
plan, which will need to account of the S106 triggers, other strategies such
as drainage, and elements such as strategic landscaping (Required by
Policy NW29) will be secured through condition (Condition 11).

Adoption Strateqy

The County Council’'s note on New Estate Road Adoption (April 2010)
establishes that the construction of new highways on housing estates is
the responsibility of the developer, and that the developer can choose
whether to offer these roads for adoption. The applicants are proposing to
hand over for adoption the primary routes through the site (radial and
orbital route), and designate the orbital cycle way through the strategic gap
as a public right of way. All secondary and tertiary roads on the site will
remain in the applicant’s control.

An Adoption Strategy has been developed and will be appended to the
S106 which sets out the principles for both the adopted roads and non-
adopted roads in terms of maintenance and management of street
furniture, street trees, SuDS, etc. and ensuring that these elements are
provided consistent with elsewhere in the City and South Cambridgeshire.
It also ensures that where roads are not adopted, the road will meet
guidance for things such as load bearing requirements (for removal, fire
and waste vehicles).

The Strategy includes an access agreement, which will be given to all
three authorities and will subsist for the life of the development. This will
ensure that agreed routes are kept open at all times and are kept clear
and unobstructed, that bus routes will be made available for the bus
companies, that refuse vehicles can access the street etc. It also ensures
that street cleaning is consistent with the rest of the City and South
Cambridgeshire, and illumination of routes.

Page 98
08



8.476 Funding for the non-adopted roads will be collected through an estate
management charge, and an estate management company will maintain,
repair and replace the non-adopted roads. Estate charge for the Key
Worker Units will be covered by the University, which would also cover
facilities such as the school, police, and community facility.

Page 99
99



9.0

CONCLUSION

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

The current proposals are the result of extensive negotiation over a
prolonged period, both at pre application stage and during the application
process, engaging the views of council officers, external stakeholders,
members of the public and other public bodies. The above assessment,
undertaken against both the new National Planning Policy Framework and
local planning policy, as well as supplementary planning documents,
concludes that the development, should be supported subject to the
relevant conditions and S106 agreement.

In looking at the proposed scheme which provides for 50% affordable
housing in the form of University key worker housing, it successfully
achieves the aims and principles identified as the reason the site was
originally released from the Green Belt through the review of the 2003
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan, Cambridge Local Plan
2006 and subsequently set out in detail through the adoption of the North
West Cambridge Area Action Plan in 2009.

More comprehensively, the proposal has assessed the environmental
impacts associated with the development in line with the EIA regulations
2011. The Environmental Statement (ES) associated with the application
covers all relevant environmental factors and the mitigations measures
and proposes a suite of mitigation measures which are secured either
through being inherent to the proposal itself, secured through condition, or
secured through S106 legal agreement. Table 2.1 within the ES provides a
summary of the measures to avoid, reduce, or manage any adverse
effects and/or to deliver beneficial effects identified in each of the
individual chapters. The works within this table are conditioned (Condition
6)

The scheme has involved, and will continue to involve, the local
community. Both neighbouring residents of the site and future residents of
the scheme have helped, or will help, shape the development and its
future, illustrated through the provision of the applicant's Community
Strategy.

The proposal, through the establishment of on-site facilities and
relationships with the adjoining West Cambridge and NIAB sites, provides
a good level of social infrastructure and open space, along with local
shops and services. The applicants have committed to bringing facilities
forward at an early stage through the creation of the local centre within the
first phase of the development.

The proposed scheme establishes a layout that will enable good public
transport and integration with surrounding roads/neighbourhoods to
encourage walking and cycling. Street design within the development will
encourage low vehicular speeds and prioritise softer modes of travel. The
proposed travel plans will ensure a sustainable development which meets

Page 100
100



9.7

9.8

policy expectations in terms of reducing carbon and encourages
sustainable lifestyles.

The proposal further sets out to achieve an exemplar standard of
sustainable development, through the commitment to delivering homes
and non-residential buildings to Code for Sustainable Homes Level 5 and
the BREEAM ‘Excellent’ Standard, and through the provision of a
bespoke, innovative waste collection system. Sustainable drainage
underpins the development of the Masterplan and will be employed on the
site to reduce flood risk and enhance biodiversity and ecology. The
Masterplan provides a solid base for a full range of house types, styles,
sizes and tenures all to be integrated within a high landscaped setting and
open space.

Overall this proposal represents an urban expansion that will connect to
Cambridge, but also respect its relationship as a gateway to the adjoining
villages and surrounding Green Belt. It is entirely consistent with the vision
and objectives of the NWCAAP and will provide for a development that will
ensure future residents can enjoy a good quality and sustainable lifestyle,
whilst meeting the long-term development needs of the University of
Cambridge. The proposal complies with all national, regional and local
policy and therefore is recommended for approval.

Page 101
101



10

RECOMMENDATIONS

C/M11/1114/0UT

APPROVE subject to the following:

1)

The satisfactory execution of the S106 agreement incorporating the
Heads of Terms identified in Appendix K by December 21 2012

2) Agreement on any outstanding S106 items, including phasing and
triggers, that are still under negotiation

3) Addition to the reasons for approval to reflect discussion at the Joint
Committee

4) The following conditions:

S$/1886/11

APPROVE subject to the following:

1)

2)
3)

4)

The satisfactory execution of the S106 agreement incorporating the
Heads of Terms identified in Appendix K by December 21
December 2012

Agreement on any outstanding S106 items, including phasing and
triggers, that are still under negotiation

Addition to the reasons for approval to reflect discussion at the Joint
Committee

The following conditions:

Page 102
102



11

PROPOSED CONDITIONS

1.

No development on any individual development parcel shall commence until
approval of the details of the appearance, landscaping, layout and scale
(hereinafter called the reserved matters) within that parcel has been obtained
from the local planning authority in writing. The development shall be carried
out as approved.

REASON To ensure that all necessary details are acceptable In accordance
with the requirements of section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

The first application for approval of reserved matters shall be made to the
local planning authority no later than three years from the date of this
permission.

REASON In accordance with the requirements of section 51 of the Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The commencement of each development parcel pursuant to this outline
consent shall begin before the expiration of two years from the date of the
last reserved matter of that parcel to be approved.

REASON To prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning
permissions and in accordance with the requirements of section 51 of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Application(s) for approval of all the reserved matters shall be made to the
local planning authority before the expiration of 10 years, in respect of any
residential development, and 20 years, for all other uses, from the date of this
permission.

REASON To prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning
permissions and in accordance with the requirements of section 51 of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and provide a consistent
approach to the development of the site alongside adjoining developments.

Phasing

Prior to or concurrently with the submission of the first of the reserved matters
application(s), a Site Wide Phasing Plan which accords with the section 106
triggers shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval. The
Phasing Plan shall include the sequence of providing the following elements:

(@) development parcels

(b)  major distributor roads/routes within the site, including timing of
provision and opening of access points into the site

(c) the local centre

(d)  strategic foul surface water features and SUDS

(e) open space and allotments

() strategic electricity and telecommunications networks

Page 103
103



(g)  environmental mitigation measures

No development shall commence apart from enabling works agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority until such time as the phasing plan has been
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved phasing contained within the
phasing plan.

REASON: To clarify how the site is to be phased to assist with the
determination of subsequent reserved matters applications and in order to
ensure that major infrastructure provision and environmental mitigation is
provided in time to cater for the needs and impacts arising out of the
development. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW1, NW2
and NW30.

Environmental Statement

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation
measures as set out in Chapter 2 (table 2.1) of the Environmental Statement,
dated March 2012, and the amended Construction Environment Management
Plan and Geological Site Management Plan, dated June 2012.

REASON: To ensure that the development takes place in accordance with
the principles and parameters contained within the Environmental Statement.
North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW1 and NW2.

Design Code

Prior to or concurrently with the submission of the first of the reserved matters
applications for the development, a Design Code, shall be submitted to the
Local Planning Authority for approval. The Design Code shall be prepared in
accordance with the principles and parameters established by this outline
approval and shall include both strategic and detailed elements. The Design
Code shall include:

a) The overall vision of the development;

b) The character, mix of uses and heights established through the
approved parameter plans and include the block principles and
the structure of public spaces, making reference to the phasing
of land parcels

C) The street hierarchy, including the principles and extent of the
adoptable highway, along with traffic calming measures;

d) Typical street cross-sections which will include details of tree
planting, tree species, underground utility/service trenches, and
on street parking;

e) How the design of the streets and spaces takes into account
mobility and visually impaired users;

f) Block principles to establish use, density and building
typologies. In addition, design principles including primary
frontages, pedestrian access points, fronts and backs and
threshold definition shall be provided;

Page 104
104



g)

)

Key groupings and other key buildings including information
about height, scale, form, level of enclosure, building materials
and design features;

Approach to incorporation of ancillary infrastructure/buildings
such as substations, pumping stations, pipes, flues, vents,
meter boxes, external letterboxes, fibres wires and cables
required by statutory undertakers as part of building design;
Details of the approach to vehicular parking across the entire
site including the location and layout of parking for people with
disabilities and for each building type, including details of a
design approach for access points into and the ventilation of
undercroft/underground parking;

Details of the approach to cycle parking for all uses and for
each building type, including the distribution (resident/visitor
parking and location in the development), type of rack, spacing
and any secure or non-secure structures associated with the
storage of cycles.

The approach to the character and treatment of the structural
planting to the development areas within the primary open land
and secondary open land (including the approach to SuDS
design integration into the green fingers);

The approach to the treatment of any hedge or footpath
corridors and retained trees and woodlands;

The conceptual design and approach to the public realm
(making reference to the Public Art Strategy, materials, signage,
utilities and any other street furniture).

The conceptual design and approach to the lighting strategy
and how this will be applied to different areas of the
development with different lighting needs, so as to maximise
energy efficiency, minimise light pollution and avoid street
clutter;

Details of waste and recycling provision for all building types
and underground recycling points.

Utility routes, type and specification

Measures to demonstrate how the design can to maximise
resource efficiency and climate change adaptation through
external, passive means, such as landscaping, orientation,
massing, and external building features,

Details of measures to minimise opportunities for crime,
Measures to show how design will address/minimise the impact
of traffic noise etc on future residents,

Details of the Design review procedure and of circumstances
where a review shall be implemented.

The Design Code shall explain its purpose, structure and status and set out
the mandatory and discretionary elements where the Design Code will apply,
who should use the Design Code, and how to use the Design Code. No
development apart from enabling works agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority shall commence until the Design Code for the entire site
has been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 105
105



10.

11.

REASON To ensure high quality design and coordinated development. North
West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW3.

Applications for reserved matters shall include a Design Code Statement that
demonstrates how the application accords with the approved site wide
Design Code.

REASON To ensure high quality design and coordinated development. North
West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW3.

Youth and Play Strategy

Prior to or concurrently with the submission of the first of the reserved matters
application(s) for residential development, a Strategy for Youth Facilities and
Children’s Play provision, in accordance with the principles set out in the
Design and Access Statement and Community Strategy, shall be submitted
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The strategy shall include
sufficient details to demonstrate the implementation of that strategy including
specifications, location and phasing. Development shall take place in
accordance with the approved strategy.

REASON To ensure that appropriate facilities for youth facility and children’s
play provision are provided in relation to the development of the site. North
West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW20 and NW23.

Any reserved matters application which includes youth facilities or children’s
play provision pursuant to this outline approval shall include the detailed
design and specification of youth facility and play provision within the
reserved matters site for which approval is sought and include full details of
all adventure play and play equipment areas, including surfacing materials.
The details shall be accompanied by a Play Statement that demonstrates
how the proposal accords with the approved Strategy for Youth Facilities and
Children’s Play provision and any emerging or approved details sought as
part of a Design Code for the site. The youth facilities and play provision shall
be provided in accordance with the approved phasing programme, unless an
alternative programme for provision is otherwise agreed in writing by the local
planning authority. The youth facilities and play provision shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved details.

REASON To ensure that appropriate facilities for youth facility and children’s
play provision are provided in relation to the development of the site. North
West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW20 and NW23.

Landscape and Trees

Within any reserved matters application for landscaping details pursuant to
this approval the details required by condition 1 shall include detailed
landscape designs and specifications for the associated reserved matters
site. The details shall be accompanied by a design statement that
demonstrates how the landscaping scheme accords with any emerging or
approved details sought as part of the design code for the site and shall

Page 106
106



include the following:

Soft Landscaping

a)

9)

Full details of planting plans and written specifications, including
cultivation proposals for maintenance and management
associated with plant and grass establishment, details of the
mix, size, distribution, density and levels of all
trees/hedges/shrubs to be planted and the proposed time of
planting. The planting plan shall use botanic names to avoid
misinterpretation. The plans should include a full schedule of
plants.

1:100 plans (or at a scale otherwise agreed) with cross-sections
of mounding, ponds, ditches and swales and proposed
treatment of the edges and perimeters of the site.

The landscape treatment of roads (primary, secondary, tertiary
and green) through the development.

A specification for the establishment of trees within hard
landscaped areas including details of space standards
(distances from buildings etc.) and tree pit details.

The planting and establishment of structural landscaping to be
provided in advance of all or specified parts of the site as
appropriate.

Full details of any proposed alterations to existing
watercourses/drainage channels.

Details and specification of proposed earth modelling,
mounding, re-grading and/or embankment areas or changes of
level across the site to be carried out including soil quantities,
topsoil storage to BS 3882 : 2007, haul routes, proposed levels
and contours to be formed, sections through construction to
show make-up, and timing of works.

Hard Landscaping

Full details, including cross-sections, of all bridges and culverts.

The location and specification of minor artefacts and structures,
including furniture, refuse or other storage units, signs and
lighting columns/brackets.

1:200 plans (or at a scale otherwise agreed) including cross
sections, of roads, paths and cycleways.

Details of all hard surfacing materials (size, type and colour)

The landscaping within the application site areas shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved plans for implementation and replacement of

landscaping.

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of residents and to ensure that a
detailed approach to the development of the built-up area (or parcels thereof)
is agreed, in order to safeguard the setting and special character of the site

Page 107
107



12.

13.

14.

and its surroundings, and to ensure a suitable relationship and integration of
the built development with its surroundings. North West Cambridge Area
Action Plan Policies NW2 and NW29.

Within any reserved matters application for landscaping details pursuant to
this approval, the details required by condition 1 shall include a land survey,
tree and hedge survey and arboriculture implications assessment, applicable
to the associated phase, in accordance with the relevant British Standard(s),
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority:
The surveys shall include:

a) Plans showing the location of all trees, shrub masses and
hedges, categorizing the trees or groups of trees for their quality
and value in accordance with the British Standard(s).

b) Plans showing trees to be removed identified by number.

c) Plans showing trees to be retained identified by number, with
canopies accurately plotted

d) A tree constraints plan that identifies root protection areas of
retained trees within, adjacent to, or which overhang the
development site.

e) The precise location and design details for the erection of
protective tree barriers and any other physical protection
measures.

) The location of streams, buildings and other structures,

boundary features and services.

2) Spot heights of ground level throughout the site.

h) A method statement in relation to construction operations in
accordance with paragraph 7.2 of the British Standard.

REASON In the interests of accurately establishing the quality and value of
trees and hedges on or adjacent to the site and the implications for
development. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW2 and
NW29.

Within any reserved matters application for development adjacent to the
protected trees in the centre of the site, (TPO number 01/2009), or adjacent
to the avenue of horse chestnut trees (TPO number 20/1992), a protection
zone, in accordance with BS 5837:2012 Trees, in relation to design,
demolition and construction, shall be provided.

REASON To protect and safeguard the trees subject to Tree Preservation
Orders. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW2.

No development within a site for which reserved matters approval has been
granted shall take place until such time as fencing for the protection of any
retained tree within, adjacent to, or which overhangs the development site,
has been fully erected in accordance with the approved plans and particulars.
The fencing shall be retained intact for the full duration of the adjacent
development until all equipment, materials and surplus materials have been
removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed in any fenced area
in accordance with this condition and the ground levels within those areas

Page 108
108



15.

16.

17.

shall not be altered, nor shall any excavations be made without the written
consent of the local planning authority.

REASON In the interests of visual amenity and safeguarding trees that are
worthy of retention. North \West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW2
and NW29.

No development within a site for which reserved matters approval has been
granted, and which require the installation of services, shall take place until
such time as full details of the position and proposed depth of excavation
trenches for all services (including cables, pipes, surface water drains, foul
water drains and public utilities) and their means of installation which pass
underneath the canopy of any retained tree within, adjacent to, or which
overhangs the relevant land for which permission is being sought, have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON In the interests of visual amenity and safeguarding trees that are
worthy of retention. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW2
and NW29.

Any trees or plants provided as any part of any landscaping scheme which,
within a period of 5 years from the planting date, die, are removed or become
seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season
with others of a similar size and species as those originally planted.

REASON In the interests of visual amenity and safeguarding trees that are
worthy of retention. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW?2
and NW29.

Allotments

Any reserved matters applications which incorporate allotment provision shall
include an allotments strategy with the following details:

A.

Management guidelines to show how they will be managed and how
the provision of plots will potentially adapt following the occupation
of the allotments and community gardens to meet the needs of
future plot holders and local residents;

. A plan of the allotments, principles of plot layout and design

providing for a range of plot sizes designed to allow flexibility to
meet the needs of future plot holders and access to areas for the
communal storage of, for example, manure and compost.

Shadow studies to the allotments, taking into account proposed
landscaping and boundary treatment and buildings both within and
adjacent to the site demonstrating that adequate levels of sunlight,
rainfall and nutrition will be available to the allotments;

Provision of good quality soil to British Standard or equivalent, with
structure and texture to allow free drainage and cropping;

Access and parking arrangements to allow easy and safe access to
the allotments, including regular access by plot holders and for the

Page 109
109



18.

19.

occasional delivery of bulk goods. This should include vehicular
access and a turning area, access for those with disabilities and
cycle and vehicle parking on site and / or within the adjacent
residential area;

F. Permeability of the sites to encourage access to communal areas,
enjoyment of biodiversity and natural surveillance whilst maintaining
security and integrity of food growing areas and standing crops;

G. Location and form of the communal buildings including secure
storage for tools, seeds and crops serving allotments and
community gardens, provision for administration with toilet provision,
possibly including a composting toilet;

H. Boundary treatment, including security arrangements for the
allotments;

I. Location of communal areas;

J. Water supply, including use of stored rainwater and SUDS for
watering crops

No development apart from enabling works agreed in writing by the local
planning authority shall commence until such time as the Allotments Strategy
has been approved in writing by the local planning authority. The provision of
allotments shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and
accordance with the approved phasing programme.

REASON To ensure that appropriate allotments are provided in relation to
the development of the site. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies
NW23.

Employment

With any submission of reserved matters for Academic/Research floorspace
(use classes D1, B1(b), and sui generis, within the areas illustrated on
drawing ref. NWC/OPA/PAR/04/A) a needs assessment, to demonstrate that
the University has a need for the land to be released for development shall
be submitted to the Local Planning Authority.

REASON The strategic need for development at this site has been accepted;
however other sites which are currently under development should remain
the priority for development until they have reached capacity, unless a
suitable needs-based argument can be established for the early release of
land on the application site. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy
NW30.

Prior to first occupation of any of the Academic/Research floorspace (use
classes D1, B1(b), and sui generis, within the areas illustrated on drawing ref.
NWC/OPA/PAR/04/A) approved by this permission, or prior to any
subsequent occupier within the first 10 years from the date of first occupation,
details of the proposed occupier(s) shall be submitted to the local authority for
approval.

a) The proposed occupier(s) for any D1 educational use, associated sui
generis research establishment or academic research institute shall

Page 110
110



20.

21.

demonstrate that their need to be located on this site is either in the
national interest, or can show a special need to be located close to the
University of Cambridge.

b) The proposed occupier(s) for any commercial research within Use
Class B1 (b) shall demonstrate a special need to be located close to
the University of Cambridge.

No employment building shall be occupied until the local authority has agreed
in writing that the occupier conforms to the criteria above, and the building
shall then only be occupied by those previously approved.

After 10 years from the date of first occupation for each building, the occupier
is not limited to the above criteria, only the Use Class.

REASON To ensure that any occupier on this site has an essential need for a
Cambridge location, and hence balance the growth of the local economy with
the local housing need and protection of the environment. North West
Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NWS8.

Affordable Housing

Any reserved matters application for residential development shall include a
plan showing the distribution of market and key worker units, including a
schedule of dwelling size (by number of bedrooms) within the reserved
matters site for which approval is sought.

Where the key worker housing is proposed in any zone excluding zones J, K,
E (fronting the Primary pedestrian route) and G (fronting the Primary
pedestrian route) on drawing number NWC/OPA/PAR/O5/A, the number of
total key worker units (including any apartments or duplex units) that have a
frontage any street shall not exceed 25 units.

The distribution of the key worker units shall then be provided in accordance
with the approved details.

REASON To ensure that there is a mixed and balanced distribution of tenure
types across the development. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan
Policy NW7.

Sustainability

Prior to the commencement of any residential development, a strategy to
facilitate super-fast broadband for future occupants of the site shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
strategy shall seek to ensure that upon occupation of a dwelling, either a
landline or ducting to facilitate the provision of a broadband service to that
dwelling from a site-wide network, is in place and provided as part of the
initial highway works and in the construction of frontage thresholds to
dwellings that abut the highway, unless evidence is put forward and agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority that technological advances for the

Page 111
111



22.

23.

24.

provision of a broadband service for the majority of potential customers will
no longer necessitate below ground infrastructure. The development of the
site shall be carried out in accordance with the approved strategy.

REASON: To ensure that the needs of future residents to connect to the
internet does not necessarily entail engineering works to an otherwise
finished and high quality living environment. North West Cambridge Area
Action Plan Policies NW1, NW11 & NW31.

A minimum of 50% of all residential units shall be designed to meet Lifetime
Home standards. In the event that such standards are replaced by a
comparable national measure for building design, the equivalent measures
shall be applicable to the proposed development.

REASON To ensure that new dwellings cater for the needs of residents
throughout their lifetime, including the possibility of impaired mobility. North
West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW7(2).

No development of a residential building on any development parcel shall
commence until an interim certificate following a design stage review, based
on design drawings, specifications and commitments, has been issued by a
Code for Sustainable Homes Licensed Assessor to the Local Planning
Authority for that phase, indicating that the building is capable of achieving a
minimum of level 5 of the Code for Sustainable Homes.

Where the interim certificate shows a shortfall in credits for level 5, a
statement shall be submitted identifying how the shortfall will be addressed.

All residential buildings shall be developed to a minimum of level 5 of the
Code for Sustainable Homes. In the event that such a rating is replaced by a
comparable national measure of sustainability for building design, the
equivalent level of measure shall be applicable to the proposed development.

Upon receipt of the final certificate(s) for that development parcel a copy shall
be submitted to the local planning authority for their records.

REASON In the interests of reducing carbon dioxide emissions and
promoting principles of sustainable construction and efficient use of buildings.
North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW24.

Prior to, or concurrently with, the submission of the reserved matters
applications, which include non-residential uses, a plan illustrating the non-
residential uses, prepared by an accredited BREEAM Assessor, shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval.

The details and plans shall indicate the location and floorspace of the
proposed non-residential buildings, which shall be constructed to at least
BREEAM ‘excellent’ rating.

Where the interim certificate shows a shortfall in credits for BREEAM
‘Excellent’, a statement shall be submitted identifying how the shortfall will be

Page 112
112



25.

addressed.

All non-residential buildings, except for those exempt from BREEAM
standards shall be developed to a minimum of BREEAM ‘Excellent’. In the
event that such a rating is replaced by a comparable national measure of
sustainability for building design, the equivalent level of measure shall be
applicable to the proposed development.

Upon receipt of the final certificate(s) for that building/development parcel a
copy shall be submitted to the local planning authority for their records.

REASON In the interests of reducing carbon dioxide emissions and
promoting principles of sustainable construction and efficient use of buildings.
North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW24.

Prior to, or concurrently with, the first reserved matters application for non-
residential development, a Renewable Energy Strategy for the non-residential
element of the site as a whole shall be submitted to, and approved by, the
local planning authority. The Strategy should demonstrate that at least 20%
of the total predicted carbon emissions associated with non-residential
floorspace across the site as a whole will be reduced through the
implementation of on-site renewable energy sources. For each phase of non-
residential development the strategy shall set out a schedule of proposed on-
site renewable energy technologies, their respective carbon reduction
contributions set against the overall 20% requirement, size and specification,
location, design and maintenance programme.

Each subsequent reserved matters application for non-residential
development will be required to update this strategy and identify its
renewable energy contribution, set against the site wide cumulative
contribution. It shall also include an assessment of any air quality, noise, or
odour impact and mitigation measures required to maintain amenity and
prevent nuisance. The development shall then be carried out in accordance
with the agreed details.

After 7 years from the date of this permission the site wide Renewable
Energy Strategy shall be updated to include any uplift beyond 20%, if such an
uplift has been formally adopted through the Local Development Framework,
for any buildings that do not have reserved matters approval, unless it is
demonstrated that to require full compliance of the new policy would not be
economically or technically viable.

REASON In the interests of reducing carbon dioxide emissions, and because
the period of consent for which outline planning permission is given is for a
longer period than standard. Given that Government policy on sustainable
development and renewable energy is moving rapidly, new policies may be
adopted within the Councils respective Local Development Frameworks
which could require a higher renewable energy percentage requirement that,
without this condition, could not be accounted. North West Cambridge Area
Action Plan Policy NW24(3).

Page 113
113



26.

27.

28.

Flood Risk and Sustainable Drainage Systems

Prior to, or concurrently with, the submission of the first reserved matters
application, a strategic site wide surface water strategy building on that set
out in the Surface Water Management Strategy within the Environmental
Statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority.

The strategy will complement the site wide phasing plan, secured by
condition 5, and shall include the provision of details of any alterations to the
Washpit Brook associated with flood reduction measures (if applicable),
surface and foul water drainage infrastructure (as set out in the agreed Site
wide Strategy), and pollution control measures.

The development shall be fully carried out in accordance with the approved
details prior to the occupation of any building.

REASON In order to safeguard against the risk of flooding, to ensure
adequate flood control, maintenance and efficient use and management of
water within the site, to ensure the quality of the water entering receiving
water courses is appropriate and monitored and to promote the use of
sustainable urban drainage systems to limit the volume and pace of water
leaving the site. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW25,
NW26 and NW27.

Any reserved matters application shall include a detailed surface water
strategy, which must be in accordance with the agreed Site Wide Surface
Water Strategy (above), pursuant to the reserved matters site for which
approval is sought.

The strategy shall include details of the design, location and capacity of all
such SUDS features and shall include ownership, long-term
management/maintenance and monitoring arrangements/responsibilities,
including detailed calculations to demonstrate the capacity of receiving on-
site strategic water retention features without the risk of flooding to land or
buildings. The strategy should also demonstrate that the exceedence of the
designed system has been considered through the provision of overland flow
routes. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details and no building pursuant to the particular reserved matters
for which approval is being sought shall be occupied or used until such time
as the approved detailed surface water measures have been fully completed
in accordance with the approved details.

REASON In order to safeguard against the risk of flooding, to ensure
adequate flood control, maintenance and efficient use and management of
water within the site, to ensure the quality of the water entering receiving
water courses is appropriate and monitored and to promote the use of
sustainable urban drainage systems to limit the volume and pace of water
leaving the site. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW25,
NW26 and NW27.

No development shall commence until such time as a full flood reduction

Page 114
114



29.

scheme is submitted to reduce flood risk downstream in accordance with the
Addendum to Level 3 FRA dated September 2001 and addendum March
2012 and Design, Access and Landscape Statement dated March 2012, and
must be accordance with NPPF 2012 guidance. The final model and flood
alleviation measures offered by possible Washpit Brook modifications must
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior
to commencement of development. The final channel modifications and
associated works must be constructed in accordance with the satisfactory
flood reduction scheme. The model and associated works shall ensure the
following 6 points:

a) The minimum percentage reduction in peak flow downstream of
the Application Site shall be at least 25% and 10% for events with
a return period of 1in 20 and 1 in 100 years (including an
allowance for climate change) respectively.

b) The flow control structure shall be designed ensuring that the peak
flood level at the M11 culverts does not exceed 12.54mAOD and
12.76mAOQOD for events with a return period of 1 in 20 and 1 in 100
years (including an allowance for climate change) respectively.

c) Floodwater shall be stored within landscaped areas of the area
designated as Primarily Open Land 5 as shown on Drawing No
NWC/OPA/PAR/03/A dated February 2012 on Parameter Plan 03
and shall not encroach upon structures within the Proposed
Development including any surface water attenuation features.
The Landscape Management Plan shall compliment this and shall
recognise floodwater areas that must be able to naturally drain
back into the Washpit Brook and those which shall be promoted as
wetted areas.

d) The new (proposed) fluvial flood extent including Flood Zones 2
and 3 shall not result in any encroachment into the built
development except that shown within Figure E of the Addendum
to the Level 3 FRA dated March 2012. This encroachment area
will be fully mitigated against flooding.

e) Cleaned modelled outlines and levels are produced in order to
consider these within the context of the EA flood maps.

f) The final model will contain manning's n values that satisfactorily
represent the roughness values for the Primarily Open Land 5

The flood reduction scheme shall include precise specification and detail of
the works/measures required and an assessment of the downstream and
upstream impacts of the proposed works once completed.

The works/measures shall be carried out in accordance with an agreed
phasing plan, and the approved details.

REASON To ensure that the development does not result in any increased
flooding within the Washpit Brook catchment and offers an amount of
reduced flood risk downstream. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan
Policies NW25, NW26 and NW27.

Prior to commencement of development a strategy to outline the provision of
water supply to the site shall be submitted to and approved by the Local

Page 115
115



30.

31.

32.

Planning Authority. The water supply strategy should identify how the supply
meets the requirements of the Code for Sustainable Homes Level 5, and
identify adoption, management and maintenance bodies for the water supply.

REASON To ensure that there is adequate supply of water for the site and
long term management. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies
NW25, NW26 and NW27.

Prior to the commencement of any development a detailed Foul Water
Drainage Strategy, based on that within the FRA and Drainage Strategy,
dated March 2012, shall be submitted and agreed in writing with the Local
Authority. The strategy should include the phasing of such works. The
strategy shall include details of any necessary improvement of the existing
sewerage system to ensure that sufficient capacity exists to cater for the
needs of the development. The works/scheme shall be constructed and
completed in accordance with the approved plans/specification and such
time(s) as may be specified in the approved scheme.

REASON To prevent environmental and amenity problems arising from
flooding and ensure that sufficient capacity exists within the sewerage
network to meet the needs of the development. North \West Cambridge Area
Action Plan Policies NW25, NW26 and NW27.

No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground is permitted other
than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which
may be given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that
there is no resultant unacceptable risk to controlled waters. The development
shall be carried out in accordance with the approval details.

REASON To protect the quality of inland fresh waters and groundwaters in
accordance with Policies P9-6 and P4-1 to P4-12 of the Environment
Agency’s Groundwater Protection: Policy and Practice (GP3) document. The
infiltration of surface water through land affected by contamination can result
in the pollution of coastal waters, inland fresh waters and groundwaters. We
encourage the use of sustainable drainage systems; however they must be
carefully considered and controlled. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan
Policies NW25, NW26 and NW27.

Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be
permitted other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning
Authority, which may be given for those parts of the site where it has been
demonstrated that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater.
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

REASON To protect the quality of inland fresh waters and groundwaters in
accordance with Policy P10-3 of the Environment Agency’s Groundwater
Protection: Policy and Practice (GP3). Piling through contaminated ground
can result in the pollution of coastal waters, inland fresh waters and
groundwaters. Foundation options should be carefully considered and
controlled. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW25, NW26

Page 116
116



33.

34.

and NW27.

Prior to the commencement of any development, a scheme for the provision
and implementation of pollution control of the water environment, shall be

submitted and agreed in writing with the Local Authority. The works/scheme
shall be constructed and completed in accordance with the approved plans.

REASON To prevent the increased risk of pollution to the water environment.
North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW25, NW26 and NW27.

Ecology

Prior to, or concurrently with, the submission of the first of the reserved
matters application for residential development for the site, a site wide
Biodiversity Strategy shall be submitted to the local planning authority for
approval. The plan shall set out how the development will improve the
biodiversity of the site in accordance the principles proposed in the
Environmental Statement and ancillary documents/strategies submitted with
the application and include:

a)  Full details of appropriate habitat and species surveys (pre,
during and post-construction), and reviews where necessary,

b)  Full details of measures to ensure protection and suitable
mitigation to all legally protected species and those habitats and
species identified as being of importance to biodiversity both
during construction and post-development, including
consideration and avoidance of sensitive stages of species life
cycles, such as the bird breeding season, together with details
of any protective fencing and/or phasing of works to ensure the
provision of advanced habitat areas and minimise disturbance
of existing features.

c) ldentification of habitats and species worthy of management
and enhancement together with the setting of appropriate
conservation objectives for the site. Prescriptions shall be
provided to detail how habitat and species management and
enhancement shall be provided alongside measures to provide
habitat restoration and creation to deliver targets in the
Cambridgeshire and UK Biodiversity Action Plans such as: the
provision of bat and bird boxes on buildings and on trees
around the site; the provision of other nesting features for bird
species such as kingfisher nest banks; reptile hibernacula; the
creation of new aquatic habitats including specific measures for
water vole and otter conservation; measures for badger
conservation; measures for amphibian conservation; the
management of grassland, orchards and veteran trees.

d) A summary work schedule table, confirming the relevant dates
and/or periods that the prescriptions and protection measures
shall be implemented or undertaken by within, and who will
specifically over-see their delivery and compliance, such as an
Ecological Clerk of Works.

e)  Monitoring shall be carried out in accordance with the

Page 117
117



35.

36.

37.

Biodiversity Strategy, part 7, with an annual report provided to
the Local Planning Authorities.

f) Long-term maintenance, management and monitoring
responsibilities for a period of 15 years to ensure an effective
implementation of the Ecological Management Plan ensuring
periodic review of the objectives and prescriptions.

No development shall commence until such time as the Biodiversity Strategy
has been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All species and
habitat protection, enhancement, restoration and creation measures shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved Strategy. Any variation to the
prescriptions, measures, timing of delivery and/or personnel shall be agreed
in writing and formally submitted as an approved variation to the Strategy.

REASON To ensure that the development of the site conserves and
enhances ecology. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW2.

Any reserved matters application shall include a site Biodiversity Survey and
Assessment that demonstrates how it accords with the aims and objectives of
the Biodiversity Strategy. It shall detail which specific ecological
enhancement and/or mitigation measures are proposed and the timing for
their delivery. No development shall commence within the site for which
reserved matters approval is being sought until such time as the Biodiversity
Survey and Assessment has been approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall only commence in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON To ensure that the development of the site conserves and
enhances ecology. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW2.

Transport and Parking

No dwelling shall be occupied until any road and/or footway linking that
building to a public highway network is complete to base course level; main
services installed and available for connection to said building; and the
relevant underground bin compound installed and operational for the benefit
of occupants of said building.

REASON In the interests of the amenity of the occupants of the proposed
dwellings and in the interests of highway safety. North West Cambridge Area
Action Plan Policy NW15.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1, Class F of the Town
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any
Order revoking and re-enacting that order with or without modification) the
hard surfacing of front gardens shall not be carried out without the granting of
specific planning permission or reserved matters approval from the local
planning authority.

REASON In the interests of visual amenity ensuring that front gardens are
retained as attractive landscape elements and in the interests of sustainable

Page 118
118



38.

39.

40.

41.

travel ensuring that there is no uncontrolled proliferation of car parking within
the site. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW2 and NW19.

No development, apart from enabling works agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority, shall commence until such a time as details relating to the
location, design, specification, management and maintenance and phasing of
bus stops within the development have been submitted to and approved by
the local planning authority. Development shall then be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

REASON To ensure that adequate public transport is provided for future
residents of the site. Policy NW16 of the adopted North West Cambridge
Area Action Plan 2009.

No development, apart from enabling works agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority, shall commence until such a time as details relating to the
location, design, specification, management and maintenance and phasing of
means by which the controlled public transport route within the development
will control access to the private car have been submitted to and approved by
the local planning authority. Any details shall include any associated CCTV
provision. Development shall then be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

REASON To ensure that adequate public transport is provided for future
residents of the site. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW14
and NW16.

Car parking for residential properties shall be provided in accordance with the
standards set out in the North West Cambridge Area Action Plan.

The total number of residential parking spaces for the entire development will
not exceed 4000 spaces. The development could also provide for visitor
spaces as appropriate, which shall be on street and not be allocated to any
individual residential property, and shall be marked as such. The approved
car parking spaces shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plans
prior to occupation of the associated dwelling(s).

REASON To ensure an appropriate level of car parking provision, and to
ensure that highway safety and amenity is not compromised by ad hoc
parking. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW19.

Prior to, or concurrently with, the submission of the first reserved matters
application for any development within the Residential and complementary
mixed uses (as defined by drawing number NWC/OPA/PAR/04A), a strategy
for the provision of car parking within this area shall be submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority. Subsequent reserved matters
submissions shall then be submitted in line with the approved strategy.

REASON To ensure there is an appropriate level of car parking for the
amenities and services in the local centre comprehensively, but allow
flexibility for individual plots. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy

Page 119
119



42.

43.

44,

NW19.

Prior to, or concurrently with, the submission of the first reserved matters
application for development, a strategy for the provision and distribution of a
minimum of 12 spaces across the entire site to be used exclusively used for
car club(s), shall be submitted to, and agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority. The spaces shall be provided in accordance with the
approved strategy.

REASON To ensure the appropriate provision of the car club spaces and
sustainable transport options throughout the development. North West
Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW11.

Any reserved matters application for a residential unit, non-residential
building or public open space shall include details of facilities for the covered,
secure parking of bicycles for use in connection with the approved
development and demonstrate that the provision is in accordance with the
approach to cycle parking approved as part of the Design Code for site. The
facilities shall be provided in accordance with the approved details before use
of the development commences and shall thereafter be retained and shall not
be used for any other purpose.

REASON To ensure appropriate provision for the secure storage of bicycles.
North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW19.

Prior to the occupation of any residential property, details of the Parking
Management Arrangements relating to that phase (prior to any formal
adoption) for the Highway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include:

a) how parking within the development is to be managed and
controlled so that it occurs within designated vehicular parking
bays.

b) how the proposed measures are to be publicised to potential
purchasers.

C) how the subsequent enforcement of parking that occurs outside
designated vehicular parking bays is to be managed.

d) what transitional arrangement will be put in place and secured
with the Highway Authority to ensure that such arrangements or
similar continue, should the roads be offered for adoption.

Prior to the use of any highway for access to an occupied residential
property, the submitted Parking Management Arrangements shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved details.

REASON To avoid the proliferation of parking across the site that is
uncontrolled and can limit the proper functioning of the site, to ensure that
parking management of the site is consistent at an early stage in its
development, in the interests of sustainable travel choice and to ensure that
the site does not become a parking refuge for commuters. North West
Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW19.

Page 120
120



45.

46.

No development of the Huntingdon Road West junction (Drawing number
NWC/OPA/APP/03/A) shall commence until the details of the scheme for the
following have been submitted to and agreed with the Local Planning
Authority.

(a) Provision of Scoot and Mova traffic signal optimisation to link with the
Huntingdon Road East Junction (if developed), and the Lawrence
Weaver Way junction

(b) Demand responsive pedestrian and cyclist crossings

(c) Proposed cycleway along south side of Huntingdon Road between
Bunker’s Hill and the proposed junction.

(d) Final road markings, signal heads and kerbs, including the proposed
repositioning of the 40mph speed limit on Huntingdon Road.

(e) Adjacent landscaping

(f) Details of the method proposed for constructing the access, junction
and cycleway in the area adjacent to the retained TPO trees (to include
‘no-dig’ construction where necessary to conform with Arboriculture
Practice Note APN1 as issued by the Arboricultural Advisory and
Information Service)

The works shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details,
and the junction remain closed for vehicular access until the approved works
have been implemented and completed to the satisfaction of the Local
Planning Authority.

The junction shall be opened for vehicular access prior to occupation of the
first academic (D1) or commercial B1(b) building (with the exception of any
such uses located within the Residential and Complementary Mixed Uses
area illustrated on drawing number NWC/OPA/PAR/O4/A), unless an earlier
trigger is agreed relating to residential units through condition 5), whichever is
the sooner.

REASON To ensure suitable junction design and connectivity. North West
Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW12 and NW14.

No development of the Huntingdon Road East junction (Drawing number
NWC/OPA/APP/04/A) shall commence until the details of the scheme for the
following have been submitted to and agreed with the Local Planning
Authority.

(a) Provision of Scoot and Mova traffic signal optimisation to link with the
Lawrence Weaver Way junction and the Huntingdon Road West
Junction (if developed)

(b) Provision of toucan crossing linking the strategic cycleway from the
development to the cycleway adjacent to Whitehouse Lane

(¢) Final road markings, signal heads and kerbs.

(d) A scheme of permanent noise attenuation / mitigation measures to
protect residential premises in close proximity to the access

(e) Adjacent landscaping

The works shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details,

Page 121
121



47.

48.

and the junction remain closed for vehicular access until the approved works
for criteria (b), (c), (d) and (e) have been implemented and completed to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. The junction shall be opened for
vehicular access prior to the occupation of the first non-residential occupation
within the Residential and Complementary Mixed Uses area illustrated on
drawing number NWC/OPA/PAR/O4/A or the occupation of the400"
residential unit on the site, whichever is the sooner.

REASON To protect the amenity of nearby properties and to ensure suitable
junction design and connectivity. North \West Cambridge Area Action Plan
Policies NW2, NW12 and NW14.

Prior to implementation of any employment uses in the areas identified as R
and T on Drawing number NWC/OPA/PAR/05/A details of the

(a) road markings
(b) toucan crossing
(c) signal heads

in association with the Madingley Road East Junction (Drawing number
NWC/OPA/APP/06/A) shall be submitted to and approved by the local
planning authority.

The approved details shall then be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans prior to occupation of employment uses in the areas identified
as R and T on Drawing number NWC/OPA/PAR/05/A

REASON To ensure suitable junction design and connectivity. North West
Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW12 and NW14.

No development of the Madingley Road West junction (NWC/OPA/APP/05/A)
shall commence until the details of the scheme for the following have been
submitted to and agreed with the Local Planning Authority.

(a) Provision of Scoot and Mova traffic signal optimisation to link with M11
J13 Northbound off slip road, M11 J13 Southbound on slip road, Park
and Ride Junction and West Cambridge Site junctions.

(b) Details of the cycle path improvement along Madingley Road (as
shown on Drawing number NWC/OPA/APP/05/A and 06/A)

(¢) Final roadmarkings, signal heads and kerbs.

(d) Adjacent landscaping

The works shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details,
and the junction remain closed for vehicular access until the approved works
for criteria (c) and (d) have been implemented and completed to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

The junction shall be opened for vehicular access prior to the 1% residential
occupation on the site.

Criterion (a) shall have been completed to the satisfaction of the Local

Page 122
122



49.

Planning Authority prior to occupation of the first academic (D1) or
commercial building B1(b). Criterion (b) shall have been completed to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority prior to occupation of the 400th
residential unit.

REASON To ensure suitable junction design and connectivity. North West
Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW12 and NW14.

Land Contamination

Notwithstanding the submitted contamination report as part of the
Environmental Statement, prior to the commencement of development on
any land parcel, a contaminated land assessment and associated remedial
strategy, together with a timetable of works for that development parcel, shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
contaminated land assessment and associated remedial strategy shall
adhere to the following points:

(a) The contaminated land assessment shall include a desk study to be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The desk
study shall detail the history of the site uses for that particular area of
the site and propose a site investigation strategy based on the
relevant information discovered by the desk study. The strategy shall
be approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to investigations
commencing on site.

(b) The site investigation, including relevant soil, soil gas, surface and
groundwater sampling, shall be carried out by a suitable qualified and
accredited consultant/contractor in accordance with a quality assured
sampling and analysis methodology.

(c) A site investigation report detailing all investigative works and
sampling on site, together with the results of the analysis, risk
assessment to any receptors and a proposed remediation strategy
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning
Authority shall approve such remedial works as required prior to any
remediation commencing on that development parcel. The works
shall be of such a nature as to render harmless the identified
contamination given the proposed end use of the site and surrounding
environment including any controlled waters.

No development within that parcel shall commence until a contaminated
land assessment and associated remedial strategy, has been submitted
to, and been approved by the local planning authority. This applies to
paragraphs a), b) and c). The results of each stage will help decide if the
following stage is necessary.

(d) Approved remediation works shall be carried out in full on each
development parcel under a quality assurance scheme to
demonstrate compliance with the proposed methodology and best
practice guidance.

(e) If, during the works contamination is encountered which has not
previously been identified then the additional contamination shall be

Page 123
123



50.

51.

fully assessed and an appropriate remediation scheme agreed with
the Local Planning Authority. Upon completion of the works, this
condition shall not be discharged until a closure report has been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The
closure report shall include details of the proposed remediation works
and quality assurance certificates to show that the works have been
carried out in full in accordance with the approved methodology.

(f) Details of any post-remedial sampling and analysis to show the site
has reached the required clean-up criteria shall be included in the
closure report together with the necessary documentation detailing
what waste materials have been removed from site.

No buildings with the development parcel shall be occupied prior to the
completion of any remedial works and a validation report(s) being
submitted to, and approval from, the Local Planning Authority. This applies
to paragraphs d), e) and f).

REASON In order to ensure that any contamination of the site is identified
and remediation measures are appropriately undertaken to secure full
mitigation in the interests of environmental and public safety. North West
Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW2.

Noise

Within any reserved matters application for residential premises pursuant to
this approval a noise attenuation / insulation scheme (having regard to the
building fabric, glazing and mechanical ventilation requirements) for the
residential units, to protect occupants from M11, A14, Huntingdon Road and
internal site traffic noise, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

The noise insulation scheme shall demonstrate that the “good” external and
internal noise levels recommended in British Standard 8233:1999 “Sound
Insulation and noise reduction for buildings-Code of Practice” shall be
reasonably achieved and shall include a timescale for phased
implementation, as necessary.

The scheme as approved shall be fully implemented before the residential
use hereby permitted is commenced / prior to occupation of the residential
units and shall be retained thereafter and not altered without prior approval.

REASON To ensure that sufficient noise attenuation is provided to all
residential properties to protect residents from the impact of M11, A14,
Huntingdon Road and internal site traffic noise and safeguard the amenity
and health of future residents. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy
NW2.

Lighting

Within any reserved matters application pursuant to this approval the
reserved matters details required by condition 1 shall include details of the

Page 124
124



height, type, position and angle of glare of any final site lighting / floodlights
including isolux contours. The details and measures so approved shall be
carried out and maintained in accordance with the approved lighting
scheme/plan.

REASON To protect the amenity of the nearby residential properties. North
West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW2.

Construction

Prior to the commencement of development, a site wide Construction
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP shall accord
with and give effect to the principles for such a Statement proposed in the
Environmental Statement submitted with the application and shall include, but
not be limited to, the consideration of the following aspects of construction:

a) Site wide construction and phasing programme.

b) Contractors’ access arrangements for vehicles, plant and personnel
including the location of construction traffic routes to, from and within
the site, details of their signing, monitoring and enforcement
measures, along with location of parking for contractors and
construction workers.

c) Construction and demolition hours, which shall carried out between
0800 hours to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, and 0800 hours to 1300
hours on Saturday and at no time on Sundays, Bank or Public
Holidays, unless in accordance with agreed emergency procedures for
deviation.

d) Prior notice and agreement procedures for works outside agreed limits
and hours.

e) Delivery and collection times for construction purposes.

f) Outline Waste Management Plan (OWMP), providing a statement of
site specific reuse and recycling objectives with appropriate targets,
compliance training for sub-contractors, construction code of conduct
together with regular auditing and reporting on target achievements
and quantities disposed, ensuring that such materials are only
consigned to authorised treatment/recovery or disposal facilities,
including consideration of participation in a Materials Re-use and
Recycling Forum.

g) Soil Management Plan/Strategy, including the reuse of potentially
contaminated recycled building materials onsite and any importation
and storage.

h) Noise and Vibration (including piling) impact / prediction assessment,
monitoring, recording protocols and consideration of mitigation
measures in accordance with BS 5528, 2009 - Code of Practice for
Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open Sites Parts 1 -
Noise and 2 -Vibration (or as superseded) including the use of best
practical means to minimise noise and vibration disturbance from
construction works.

i) Confirmation on whether a concrete crusher will be used

j) Dust suppression management and wheel washing measures,

Page 125
125



53.

including the deposition of all debris on the highway

k) Site lighting details.

[) Drainage control measures including the use of settling tanks, oil
interceptors and bunds.

m) Screening and hoarding details.

n) Access and protection arrangements around the site for pedestrians,
cyclists and other road users.

0) Procedures for interference with public highways, (including public
rights of way), permanent and temporary realignment, diversions and
road closures.

p) External safety and information signing and notices.

q) Liaison, consultation and publicity arrangements including dedicated
points of contact.

r) Consideration of ecological and other sensitive receptors.

s) Membership of the Considerate Contractors Scheme.

t) Complaints procedures, including complaints response procedures.

u) Location of Contractors compound and method of moving materials,
plant and equipment around the site.

The detail requested above shall include and expand on, where necessary,
the Construction Management Plan dated May 2012. Development shall be
carried out in accordance with approved details.

REASON To ensure the environmental impact of the construction of the
development is adequately mitigated and in the interests of the amenity of
nearby residents/occupiers. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies
NW2 and NW28.

Prior to the commencement of development of any reserved matters
approval, a Construction Method Statement (CMS) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CMS shall
demonstrate how the construction of the reserved matters approval accords
with the details of construction criteria A-R (except criteria F) of the
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP). In addition to criteria
A-U, the CMS shall also provide a specific construction programme and a
plan identifying: the contractor site storage area/compound; screening and
hoarding locations; site lighting; wheel washing and dust suppression
measures; the need or otherwise for a concrete crushing machine on site;
access arrangements for vehicles, plant and personnel; building material,
plant and equipment storage areas; contractor parking arrangements for
construction and personnel vehicles; and the location of contractor offices.
Thereafter the development shall be undertaken in accordance with the
agreed details.

REASON To ensure the environmental impact of the construction of the
development is adequately mitigated and in the interests of the amenity of
nearby residents/occupiers. North \West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies
NW2 and NW28.

Construction waste

Page 126
126



54.

55.

Prior to the commencement of development of any reserved matters
approval, a Detailed Waste Management Plan (DWMP) shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The DWMP shall
demonstrate how the construction of the reserved matters approval will
accord with the details of the principles of the Outline Waste Management
Plan. The DWMP shall include details of:

a) the anticipated nature and volumes of waste.

b) Measures to ensure the maximisation of the reuse of waste.

C) measures to ensure effective segregation of waste at source
including waste sorting, storage, recovery and recycling facilities to
ensure the maximisation of waste materials both for use within and
outside the site.

d) any other steps to ensure the minimisation of waste during
construction

e) the location and timing of provision of facilities pursuant to criteria
b/c/d.

f) proposed monitoring and timing of submission of monitoring
reports.

9) the proposed timing of submission of a Waste Management
Closure Report to demonstrate the effective implementation,
management and monitoring of construction waste during the
construction lifetime of the development.

Thereafter the implementation, management and monitoring of construction
waste shall be undertaken in accordance with the agreed details and no
individual building subject to a Detailed Waste Management Plan shall be
occupied until the Waste Management Closure Report has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON To ensure the sustainable management of construction waste.
North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW2 and NW28.

Waste

Within any reserved matters application for residential development pursuant
to this approval the details required by condition 1 shall include full details of
the on-site storage facilities for waste including waste for recycling:

(i) For any residential dwellings details shall include

(@) The detailed position and layout including capacity size of
underground bin compounds

(b)  The provision of protection bollards and/or high kerbs adjacent
to underground bin compounds

(c) Proposals for lighting of the bin compounds

(d) A layout which precludes parking spaces which will impede
collection of the underground bin compounds

(e) A tracking diagram showing collection route, turning circles,
and operational safety zone for the crane lifting.

() The walking distances for all residential properties to the

Page 127
127



56.

underground bin compounds
(9) Proposals for assisted collection
(h)  The provision of home composting facilities

(i) For any residential apartment or dwelling with communal garden
details shall include

(@) The detailed position and layout including capacity size of
underground bin compounds

(b)  The provision of protection bollards and/or high kerbs adjacent
to underground bin compounds

(c) Proposals for lighting of the bin compounds

(d) A layout which precludes parking spaces which will impede
collection of the underground bin compounds

(e) A tracking diagram showing collection route, turning circles,
and operational safety zone for the crane lifting.

() The walking distances for all residential properties to the
underground bin compounds

(9) Proposals for assisted collection

(h) Details of maintenance and management for disposal of green
waste in association with the apartments proposed

The approved facilities shall be provided, along with a remote fill level
monitoring and alert system for all containers, access system to restrict and
monitor access to all containers by designated users, and scheme for battery
collection prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted and shall
be retained thereafter unless alternative arrangements are agreed in writing
by the local planning authority.

REASON To ensure the provision of waste collection infrastructure on site
and to protect the amenities of nearby residents/occupiers and in the
interests of visual amenity. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy
NW?2.

Within any reserved matters application for student accommodation pursuant
to this approval the details required by condition 1 shall include full details of
the on-site storage facilities for waste including waste for recycling:

(a) The detailed position and layout including capacity size of
underground bin compounds

(b) The provision of protection bollards and/or high kerbs
adjacent to underground bin compounds

(c) Proposals for lighting of the bin compounds

(d) A layout which precludes parking spaces which will impede
collection of the underground bin compounds

(e) A tracking diagram showing collection route, turning circles,
and operational safety zone for the crane lifting.

(f) Details of maintenance and management for disposal of
green waste in association with the apartments proposed

(g) Collection contract details

Page 128
128



57.

58.

The approved facilities shall be provided, along with a remote fill level
monitoring and alert system for all containers, access system to restrict and
monitor access to all containers by designated users, and scheme for
battery collection prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted
and shall be retained thereafter unless alternative arrangements are agreed
in writing by the local planning authority.

In the event that an underground solution for student accommodation is not
proposed full details of the on-site storage facilities for waste including waste
for recycling shall be identified on a plan. Such details shall identify the
specific positions of where facilities for domestic bins, or any other means of
storage will be stationed and the arrangements for the disposal of waste,
and shall identify collection contract details. The approved facilities shall be
provided prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted and shall
be retained thereafter unless alternative arrangements are agreed in writing
by the local planning authority.

REASON To ensure the provision of waste collection infrastructure on site
and to protect the amenities of nearby residents/occupiers and in the
interests of visual amenity. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy
NW2.

Within any reserved matters application for commercial and employment
uses pursuant to this approval the details required by condition 1 shall
include full details of the on-site storage facilities for waste including waste for
recycling. Such details shall identify the specific positions of where facilities
for commercial or industrial waste, or any other means of storage will be
stationed and the arrangements for the disposal of waste, and shall identify
collection contract details. The approved facilities shall be provided prior to
the commencement of the use and shall be retained thereafter unless
alternative arrangements are agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

REASON To ensure the provision of waste collection infrastructure on site
and to protect the amenities of nearby residents/occupiers and in the
interests of visual amenity. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy
NW2.

Prior to, or concurrently with, the first submission of reserved matters for
development full details of the in-vessel composting solution for on-site green
waste and/or food waste shall be submitted to, and approved by the local
planning authority. The details shall include final location and phasing for
provision. The permanent compound shall be retained thereafter in
accordance with a management scheme agreed with the local planning
authority which shall include hours of operation for at least 2 hours on one
week day evening and two hours at the weekend.

Should a temporary arrangement be required full details of a temporary
solution shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority.
The temporary arrangements shall then be implemented prior to occupation
of the first building and retained until a permanent in-vessel compound is
provided.

Page 129
129



59.

60.

In the event an in-vessel solution cannot be delivered alternative
arrangements for the disposal of green waste shall be submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority. The alternative solution shall then
be carried in accordance with the approved details and thereafter retained.

REASON To ensure the provision of waste collection infrastructure on site
and to protect the amenities of nearby residents/occupiers and in the
interests of visual amenity. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy
NW?2.

No more than the number of dwellings in column one, in the table below,
shall be occupied across the entire site until the number of temporary and
permanent neighbourhood waste recycling facilities in column two are
provided on site in accordance with details submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

50 dwellings 1 temporary facility (or 1 permanent
facility)

850 dwellings 1 temporary facility and 1 permanent
facility (or 2 permanent facilities®)

1650 dwellings 1 temporary facility and 2 permanent
facilities™ (or 3 permanent facilities™)

2450 dwellings 1 temporary facility and 3 permanent
facilities™ (or 4 permanent facilities™)

3000 dwellings 4 permanent facilities™

*Or the equivalent capacity on fewer sites, if considered more appropriate

The temporary facilities shall remain in place until one of the permanent
‘bring site’ facilities are provided and available for use. The land on which the
temporary facility is sited shall be made good within a period of 3 months
from the installation of the permanent bring site.

REASON To ensure that future residents have adequate temporary and
permanent means by which to recycle prior to permanent North West
Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies NW2 and NW28.

Within the any reserved matters application that includes the local centre, or
a neighbourhood centre (both defined as Residential and complementary
mixed use areas within the Land Use Parameter Plan
(NWC/OPA/PAR/04/A)), details relating to the location, design, specification,
management and maintenance, and phasing of permanent underground
recycling ‘bring sites’ to be located in those areas shall be submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority. A total of four bring sites (or the
equivalent capacity on fewer sites if considered more appropriate) shall be
provided across the site. Development shall then be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

REASON To ensure that future residents have adequate means by which to
recycle. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW2 and NW21.

Page 130
130



61.

62.

63.

64.

Energy Centre

The gas fired Energy Centre incorporating a combined heat and power (CHP)
and associated boiler system shall only be fuelled by natural gas. The use of
any other fuel type shall not be permitted.

REASON To prevent deterioration of air quality the vicinity of the Energy
Centre and an unacceptable adverse impact on the air quality in the wider
environment. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW2.

Health Impact

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the health impact
and needs mitigation measures as set out in the North West Cambridge,
Health Impact Assessment, September 2011 and Health Impact Assessment
Clarification statement, March 2012, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Statements shall be submitted at milestones
confirming the measures and facilities that have been put in place during the
relevant development period in compliance with the principles established
within the HIA

REASON To ensure that the development takes place in accordance with the
principles and parameters contained within the North West Cambridge,
Health Impact Assessment. North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policies
NW1 and NW2.

Archaeology

No development shall take place the implementation of a programme of
archaeological works in accordance with a written scheme of investigation
which has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Development within areas identified for archaeological investigation in the
approved written scheme shall not commence until the archaeological
fieldwork in those areas has been completed and the Local Planning
Authority has confirmed in writing that the archaeological fieldwork has been
completed satisfactorily. The 'archive report and publication shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority within 6 months following
completion of the archaeological investigations

REASON To ensure the implementation of an appropriate archaeological
investigation, recording, reporting and publication. North West Cambridge
Area Action Plan Policy NW2.

Public Art

Within any reserved matters application a Public Art Delivery Plan shall be
submitted which accords with the approved Public Art Strategy dated March
2012. The Public Art Delivery Plan shall include the details as set out in
Appendix 2 and 4 of the Cambridge City Council Public Art SPD. If no Public
Art is proposed for that reserved matters submission then a short statement

Page 131
131



65.

66

67

68

referring back to the Public Art Strategy should be submitted.

REASON To ensure that the site provides public art in a satisfactory way that
relates to the agreed Public Art Strategy and that accords with policy. North
West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW22.

Fire Hydrants

Within any reserved matters application a scheme for the provision of fire
hydrants shall be submitted to the local planning authority. Development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved details and the approved
scheme shall be fully operational prior to the first occupation of that
development parcel.

REASON To ensure the provision of adequate water supply infrastructure to
protect the safe living and working environment for all users and visitors.
North West Cambridge Area Action Plan Policy NW?2.

Development Limits

Any development carried out under this permission, when combined with any
development carried out under planning approval S/1886/11 OR
C/11/1114/0UT [Delete as relevant} shall not exceed the development levels
set out in the description of development at the top of this decision notice
(and set out within the Description of Development and Application Drawings
document March 2012)

REASON To ensure that all necessary details are acceptable and that the
level of development on the site does not exceed those assessed. In
accordance with the requirements of section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Parameter Plans

Notwithstanding the details on NWC/OPA/PER/06/A (Building Heights
Parameter Plan), an area equal to that represented by Zone T on
NWC/OPA/PER/05/A (Building Zones Parameter Plan) shall be limited to a
maximum of 33.5 AOD.

REASON In the interest of neighbour amenity. Cambridge North West Area
Action Plan Policy NW2.

Notwithstanding the details on NWC/OPA/PER/04/A (Land Use Parameter
Plan), the table within the Parameter Plan Statement shall have a total
maximum of 7,400 square metres for D1 and D2 uses.

REASON To be consistent with the description of development and ensure
that the floorspace approved is consistent with that tested through the
Environmental Statement. Cambridge North West Area Action Plan Policy
NW2.

Page 132
132



Drawing Numbers

69 The development, hereby permitted, shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:

NWC/OPA/APP/01A (Application Site Boundary South
Cambridgeshire District Council) Date stamped 21% September 2011)
NWC/OPA/APP/01B (Application Site Boundary Cambridge City
Council) Date stamped 21 September 2011)

NWC/OPA/APP/02/A (Demolition Plan) Date Stamped 3™ April 2012
NWC/OPA/APP/03/A (Huntingdon Road Junction West) Date stamped
3" April 2012

NWC/OPA/APP/04/A (Huntingdon Road Junction East) Date stamped
3" April 2012

NWC/OPA/APP/05/A (Madingley Road Junction West) Date stamped
3" April 2012

NWC/OPA/APP/06/A (Madingley Road Junction East) Date stamped
3" April 2012

NWC/OPA/PAR/01/A (Zone Parameter Plan) Date stamped 3™ April
2012

NWC/OPA/PAR/02/A (Access Parameter Plan: Zone B) Date stamped
3" April 2012

NWC/OPA/PAR/03/A (Open Land and Landscape Areas Parameter
Plan: Zone B) Date stamped 3™ April 2012

NWC/OPA/PAR/04/A (Land Use (Built Development and Ancillary
Space) Parameter Plan: Zone B) Date stamped 3™ April 2012
NWC/OPA/PAR/05/A (Development Building Zones Parameter Plan:
Zone B) Date stamped 3" April 2012

NWC/OPA/PAR/06/A (Building Heights Parameter Plan: Zone B) Date
stamped 3™ April 2012

NWC/OPA/PAR/Q7/A (Topography Parameter Plan: Zone B) Date
stamped 3™ April 2012

NWC/OPA/PAR/08 (Parameter Plan: Huntingdon Road Highway and
Utility Works) Date stamped 21 September 2011

NWC/OPA/PAR/09 (Parameter Plan: Madingley Road Highway and
Utility Works) Date stamped 21 September 2011

REASON To facilitate any future application to the Local Planning Authority
under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Proposed Informatives

Construction

i. To satisfy the above the applicant should have regard to the CCC’s
Supplementary Planning Document — Sustainable Design and Construction
2007, and the Control of dust and emissions from construction and
demolition - Best Practice Guidance produced by the London Councils.

ii. During construction there shall be no bonfires or burning of waste on site
except with the prior permission of the Environmental Health Officer in

Page 133
133



accordance with best practice and existing waste management legislation.

iii. Considerate contractors informative: New development can sometimes
cause inconvenience, disturbance, and disruption to local residents,
businesses and passers by. As a result the City council runs a ' Considerate
Contractors Scheme' aimed at promoting high standards of care during
construction. The City Council encourages the developer of the site, through
its building contractor, to join the scheme and agree to comply with the
model Code of Practice, in the interests of good neighbourliness. Information
about the scheme can be obtained from the Considerate Contractor Project
Officer in the Planning Department.

iv. Notification to the Environmental Protection Team will be required under
the Pollution Prevention and Control Regulations if an on site concrete
crusher will be used during the demolition stage. Please refer to permit
issued to operator.

Noise Condition- Noise Attenuation / Insulation Scheme for M11, A14,
Huntingdon Road Traffic Noise Impact on Development

To satisfy the noise insulation scheme condition to provide an adequate
level of protection against M11, A14, Huntingdon Road and internal primary
road traffic noise, residential units shall be carefully designed and or
acoustically protected by a noise insulation scheme to ensure noise levels
within habitable rooms and in external private amenity areas comply with
British Standard 8233:1999 “Sound Insulation and noise reduction for
buildings-Code of Practice” derived from the World Health Organisation
Guidelines for Community Noise: 2000.

In terms of a hierarchy of traffic noise mitigation / attenuation measures, the
careful orientation / internal configuration of habitable rooms and the location
of external amenity areas should be considered first in the early design
stages. A noise insulation scheme for the external building envelope with an
alternative form of mechanical ventilation as necessary should only be
considered as a last resort.

Where sound insulation requirements of the building envelope preclude the
opening of windows for rapid ventilation and or thermal comfort / summer
cooling, acoustically treated mechanical ventilation may also need to be
considered within the context of this internal design noise criteria.
Compliance with Building Regulations Approved Document F 2006:
Ventilation will also need consideration.

If internal acceptable noise levels cannot be achieved with windows partially
open for ventilation (assuming a 13dB reduction across / for an open
window) and where the associated rooms are not dual aspect (to a quieter
facade), mechanical ventilation should be provided.

AD F- Ventilation does not control ventilation noise but advises that self-
generated ventilation system noise should not discourage their use by
occupants. In duct attenuation / lined ducting may be required for whole

Page 134
134



house systems. It will therefore be necessary to demonstrate that the
operating sound level of any system does not discourage the use by
occupiers and an internal Noise Rating level of 30 to 35 dB is
recommended. Ventilation systems should be tested in accordance with
ISO 3741:2010: Acoustics -- Determination of sound power levels and sound
energy levels of noise sources using sound pressure -- Precision methods
for reverberation test rooms or similar.

Each complete window system, including frames, glass and seals should be
tested in accordance with BS EN ISO 140-3:1995 and rated in accordance
with BS EN ISO 717-1:1997 or as superseded. The test certificates should
be provided to the LPA when available.

General Environmental Health

The Food & Health & Safety Team, South Cambridgeshire District Council,
or the Food & Occupational Safety Team at Cambridge City Council for
advice concerning the proposed premises design/layout, Food and
Occupational Safety/Welfare Regulations/requirements and Food Premises
Registration, Tel No: 01954 713111 and or The Food & Health & Safety
Team, Health & Environmental Services, South Cambridgeshire District
Council, Tel No: 03450 450 063.

The Housing Act 2004 introduces the HHSRS as a way to ensure that all
residential premises provide a safe and healthy environment to any future
occupiers or visitors.

Each of the dwellings must be built to ensure that there are no unacceptable
hazards for example ensuring adequate fire precautions are installed; all
habitable rooms have adequate lighting and floor area etc.

The applicant/agent is advised to contact The Housing Standards Team of
the Refuse and Environment Service at Cambridge City Council on
telephone number (01223) 457890 and or Health & Environmental Services
at South Cambridgeshire District Council on 03450 450 063 or e-mail a
request to: env.health@scambs.gov.uk for further information.

Anglia Water, Tel No: 0800 145145 regarding the installation of a grease
trap for the foul water. If drains are to be altered the foul water from the
kitchen should be passed through fat/oil/grease interceptor facilities (prior to
entering any shared private drain and/or the public sewer), designed and
constructed to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority (LPA).

Contamination
The Environment Agency recommends that developers should:
1) Follow the risk management framework provided in CLR11, Model

Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, when dealing with
land affected by contamination.

Page 135
135



2) Refer to the Environment Agency Guiding Principles for Land
Contamination for the type of information required in order to assess risks to
controlled waters from the site. The Local Authority can advise on risk to
other receptors, e.g. human health.

3) Refer to our website at www.environment-agency.gov.uk for more
information.

The Council's document ‘Developers Guide to Contaminated Land in
Cambridge’ and SCDC’s Supplementary Planning Document - “District
Design Guide: High Quality and Sustainable Development in South
Cambridgeshire”, Adopted March2010: Chapter 10- Environmental Health &
associated appendices provide further details on the responsibilities of the
developers and the information required to assess potentially contaminated
sites. It can be found at the City Council’'s website on

http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/ccm/content/environment-and-
recycling/pollution-noise-and-nuisance/land-pollution.en.

Hard copies can also be provided upon request.
Sustainable Drainage Systems

In accordance with the Environment Agency’s Groundwater Protection:
Policy and Practice (GP3) document, we offer the following advice on
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDS).

Soakaways must be constructed in line with guidance provided in Building
Research  Establishment 365 (BRE365) - Soakaway Design.

SUDS must be constructed in line with guidance provided in Construction
Industry Research and Information Association C697 (CIRIA C697) - The
SUDS Manual. Direct discharges into groundwater of surface water run-
off are not acceptable.

All infiltration structures (permeable pavements, infiltration trenches,
soakaways, etc.) should be constructed to as shallow a depth as possible to
simulate natural infiltration.

The maximum acceptable depth for infiltration structures is two metres
below existing ground level with the base of these infiltration structures at
least 1.20 metres above the highest seasonal groundwater-table. Deep bore
and other deep soakaway systems are not considered by the Environment
Agency to be appropriate in areas where groundwater constitutes a
significant resource (i.e. where aquifer yield may support or already supports
abstraction).

Infiltration structures must not be constructed in contaminated ground.
Only clean, uncontaminated water should be discharged to any infiltration
structure.

Infiltration structures should only be used in areas on site where they would
not present a risk to groundwater. If permitted, their location must be

Page 136
136



approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA).

Prior to being discharged into any surface water sewer or soakaway system,
all surface water drainage from parking areas and hard standings
susceptible to oil contamination should be passed through an oil separator
designed and constructed to have a capacity and details compatible with the
site being drained. Roof water should not pass through the interceptor and
should discharge to separate infiltration systems to those used for road and
vehicle parking areas. Any SUDS from car or lorry parking areas would need
to incorporate suitable measures for the protection of water quality; this is
likely to include measures to mitigate the discharge of hydrocarbons to
surface water or ground. Details of treatment techniques are outlined in
CIRIA Report C609. The Environment Agency would wish to be consulted
on any protection measures. Any oil interceptors should include separate
provision for the interception and removal of sediment (as collection of solids
within the interceptor will reduce the capacity and function of the
interceptor). Any oil interceptors/sediment chambers should be regularly
maintained in accordance with manufacturer’s guidelines.

Waste storage and Processing areas: Any facilities, above ground, for the
storage of potentially polluting substances should be sited on impervious
bases and surrounded by impervious bund walls. The entire area where any
potentially polluting substances are delivered, stored and processed should
be isolated from the surface water drainage system, open ground or other
porous surfaces. Potentially contaminated water and spills should be
directed through an oil interceptor and prevented from seeping into the soil
and groundwater below the site. The interceptor should be an adequate size
to serve the surface area catchment of the site.

Piling

In accordance with Policy 10-3 of the Environment Agency’s Groundwater
Protection: Policy and Practice (GP3) document we recommend that piling
on contaminated sites underlain by aquifers is avoided where possible, and
that non-invasive methods, such as rafts, should be used instead. Where
there is no alternative to piling, a method should be selected that minimises
the risks of groundwater pollution or gas migration. Mitigation measures
and/or environmental monitoring may need to be incorporated into the
design. The method selected should be presented in a “Foundation Works
Risk Assessment Report" which should be submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority before development commences.

Due to the proximity of this site to existing residential premises and other
noise sensitive premises, impact pile driving is not recommended.

CEMP - Soil Management Plan /Strategy -Contaminated Land

Within the submission of the Construction Method Statement (CMS) with
each reserved matters, In order to discharge details under criterion G of
Construction Environment Management Plan details will be required relating
to the management, re-use, importation, storage and specification of soil for

Page 137
137



use within the site. Detailed soil management plans (SMP) produced for
each phase of the development and should include the following details:

. Strict chain of evidence should be kept for any material recycled on
site. It should document the location from which the soil originated and
where it was subsequently placed (in order to avoid reusing unsuitable
material). Depending on the source of the recycled material we might still
request additional testing for a full suite of contaminants.

o Any material imported on site will need to be tested for a full suite of
contaminants. The results of the chemical testing should be submitted to
the local authority for review prior to soil importation.

o Any imported material within the private gardens should be tested for
full suite of contaminants at a sampling rate of 1 sample every 20m?® or
one per lorryload, whichever is greater. If the material originates from a
‘clean source’ the developer should contact the Scientific Team for further
advice and recommendations.

o Material imported in other areas (including landscaped areas) could
be tested at a different sampling frequency. The sampling frequency
could be agreed with the local authority once the details of the source
material have been provided to the local authority.

Lighting: artificial lighting scheme

When submitting details of any artificial lighting scheme, the submission.

shall include details of any external commercial, recreational and residential
lighting of the site such as street lighting, floodlighting, security /
advertisement lighting and an assessment of impact on any sensitive
residential premises on and off site, shall be carried out.

This information shall include layout plans / elevations with luminaire
locations annotated, full vertical and horizontal isolux contour maps, hours
and frequency of use, a schedule of equipment in the lighting design
(luminaire type / profiles, mounting height, aiming angles / orientation, angle
of glare, operational controls) and shall assess artificial light impact in
accordance with the Institute of Lighting Professionals “Guidance Notes for
the Reduction of Obtrusive Light GN01:2011".

Artificial lighting to the development must conform to requirements to meet
the Obtrusive Light Limitations for Exterior Light Installations for
Environmental Zone — E2, contained within Table 1 of the Institute of
Lighting Professionals “Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light
GNO01:2011”.

Air Quality

The applicant is advised that in addition to planning permission and or
building regulation approval any flue, chimney and arrestment plant

Page 138
138



associated with the Energy Centre incorporating the proposed Combined
Heat & Power and boiler combustion system and any other combustion /
heating appliance may require a separate “Chimney Height Approval” under
The Clean Air Act 1993.

In addition any large combustion plant depending on the size and rate of fuel
use may also require a pollution control permit under the Environmental
Permitting (England & Wales) regulations 2010.

The purpose of any approval / permit is to to ensure that emissions of any
pollutants are at a safe height and dispersed sufficiently in the atmosphere
so that they will not be detrimental to health or cause a nuisance and, in
particular, to help improve air quality.

Further information and advice can be obtained by contacting the Refuse
and Environment Service at Cambridge City Council on telephone number
(01223) 457890 and Health & Environmental Services at South
Cambridgeshire District Council on 03450 450 063 or e-mail your request to:
env.health@scambs.gov.uk.

Noise (other than traffic impact related) & Odour

Any reserved matters applications should consider / assess and conditions
may be imposed in relation to but not exclusively, the following topics /
matters:

Noise

-Noise assessment and mitigation / insulation scheme for industrial , trade or
business and academic use buildings, operational plant and equipment,
delivery yards, recreational uses and in particular MUGAs, local household
waste recycling points, renewables including the Energy Centre and the
proposed in vessel composting facility

-Opening hours of and collections / deliveries to industrial , trade or business
premises

-Noise management strategies

Odour

Odour / fumes assessment and mitigation / abatement scheme for odour /
fume generating uses as necessary such as industrial , trade or business
and academic uses including any food premises and the prosed in vessel
composting facility.

Drainage Strategies

The strategy identified in condition 26 shall be based upon a SUDS
management train, as espoused by publication 'Sustainable Drainage
Manual CIRIA C697' The strategy shall promote, where practicable,
measures to control water at source to limit the rate and quantity of run-off.

If source control infiltration SUDS methods are demonstrated to be
impracticable or only partly feasible, the strategy shall promote other

Page 139
139



measures such as swales, surface water retention ponds, wetlands or other
surface water retention measures to promote infiltration and mimic, as far as
possible, Greenfield run-off patterns.

The strategy shall include a full site detailed technical drawing setting out the
final location of the strategic SuDS features and show details of each
catchment area and give the associated allowable impermeable area,
discharge rates and attenuation volumes.

This drawing may also contain sub catchment information. This drawing will
compliment the Site Wide Strategy which will hold full details of the design,
location and capacity of all such strategic SUDS features, including flow
control systems and shall include ownership, long-term
management/maintenance and monitoring arrangements/responsibilities,
including detailed calculations to demonstrate the capacity of the measures
to adequately manage surface water within the site without the risk of
flooding to land or buildings.

The strategy identified in condition 27 must demonstrate that it is in
accordance with the Landscape Maintenance and Management Plan for this
site. The strategy shall demonstrate how the management of water within
the reserved matters application site for which approval is sought accords
with the approved details of the strategic site wide surface water strategy.
The strategy shall be based upon a SUDS management train, as espoused
by publication 'Sustainable Drainage Manual CIRIA C697' The strategy shall
promote, where practicable, measures to control water at source to limit the
rate and quantity of run-off. If source control infiltration SUDS methods are
demonstrated to be impracticable or only partly feasible, the strategy shall
promote other measures such as swales, surface water retention ponds,
wetlands or other surface water retention measures to promote infiltration
and mimic as far as possible Greenfield run-off patterns. Drainage Infiltration
structures will not be permitted, and must not be constructed in
contaminated ground.

Waste

Guidance on suitable arrangements e.g. specifications, locations, numbers
required, capacities etc will be contained within an Informative and include
reference to the Recycling in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough (RECAP)
Waste Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document (February 2012).

Landscaping and Highways

Adjacent landscaping within conditions 45, 46 and 48 is taken to mean the
landscaping that is directly adjacent to the junction(s) so as to make the
junction(s) acceptable in terms of visual impact and compatible with
surrounding character, the extent of which, but not the detail, should be
consistent with contextual plans 04, 05, and 06 submitted with the
application. It does not include areas that will be covered through condition 1
for other parts of the site.

Page 140
140



11.0 REASONS FOR APPROVAL

This development has been approved subject to conditions and following
the prior completion of a S106 planning obligation because subject to
those requirements, and in accordance with the Town and Country
Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2011 (SI 2011/1824) as amended and Environmental
Statement submitted with the application dated September 2006, and
amended in March with subsequent additions in June 2012, it is
considered to generally conform to the Development Plan, particularly the
following policies:

¢ National Planning Guidance: The National Planning Policy
Framework; Outgoing Planning Policy Guidance Notes and
Statements: PPS1, PPG2, PPS3, PPS9, PPS10, PPS12, PPG13,
PPG15, PPG16, PPG17, PPS22, PPS23, PPG24, PPS25;
Circulars: 11/95, 05/05; Community Infrastructure Levy: An
overview (March 2010).

e Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (CPSP) 2003
policies:P6/1, P8/10, P9/2B, P9/2C, P9/8 and P9/9.

e Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Local Plan 2003 (Saved
Policies): WLP18 and WLP20.

e Cambridge Local Plan (CLP): 3/1, 3/2, 3/3, 3/4, 3/5, 3/6, 3/7, 3/8,
3/11, 312, 3/13, 4/1, 412, 4/3, 4/4, 4/6, 419, 4/10, 4/11, 4/13, 4/14,
4/15, 4/16, 5/1, 5/5, 5/9, 5/10, 5/12, 5/13, 5/14, 7/1, 7/2, 8/2, 8/3,
8/4, 8/5, 8/6, 8/7, 8/10, 8/11, 8/16, 8/18, 9/1, 9/2, 9/3, 9/7, 9/8 and
10/1.

e South Cambridgeshire District Council LDF: ST/1, ST/2, DP/,
DP/2, DP/3, DP/4, DP/5, DP/6, DP/7, GB/1, GB/2, GB/3, SF/7,
NE/4, NE/6, NE/9, NE/10, NE/11, NE/12, NE/14, NE/15, NE/16,
NE/17, CH/2, TR/1, TR/3

e Cambridge City and South Cambridgeshire District Council Joint
Policy, North West Cambridge Area Action Plan (2009): NW/1,
NW/2, NW/3, NW/4, NW/5, NW/6, NW/7, NW/8, NW/9, NW/10,
NW/11, NW/12, NW/13, NW/14, NW/15, NW/16, NW/17, NW/18,
NW/19, NW/20, NW/21, NW/22, NW/23, NW/24, NW/25, NW/26,
NW/27, NW/28, NW/29, NW/30, NW/31

This decision has been made having had regard to all other material
planning considerations and in particular those areas where objection
have been lodged. As such, it is considered that the proposal adequately
addresses issues and objections to all issues highlighted in the officer's
report particularly with regard to design issues, transport impact, drainage
and flooding.

Page 141
141



Revised plans to the application and EIA documentation were received to
address many objections to the original submission. The final approved
plans are listed on this decision notice.

Transport issues have been thoroughly addressed and neither the
Highway Authority nor Highway Agency object to the proposal subject to
the conditions and legal agreement being secured as part of this consent.
Despite the objections raised locally, the scheme is considered to accord
with the relevant local and national policies.

Drainage and floodrisk issues have been comprehensively considered with
consultation with the relevant water providers, the Environment Agency
and the Cambridge City Council technical Officers. It is considered that the
proposal conforms to the principles set out within PPS25 and local policies
within the CLP and SCDC LDF.

The proposal provides for sufficient open space and recreational provision,
and provides for both primary and secondary education to the satisfaction
of Cambridgeshire County Council. Community facilities have been
adequately provided for and secured through the S106 agreement. The
proposal meets sustainability policies in terms of design and renewable
energy, ecology, biodiversity and waste management and sufficient
mitigation is provided for noise and contamination issues. Air Quality
issues can only be adequately addressed on a strategic level.
Notwithstanding that there are slight adverse impacts on air quality, only a
combination of strategic action on transport issues and full use of
sustainable development principles can maintain current levels of air
quality and deliver growth of Cambridge. For these reasons, it is not
considered that it would be reasonable to refuse the application under the
terms of NWCAAP policy NW2.

Having considered all the representations it is not considered that any of
those representations made constitute a significant material reason to
refuse permission. Many of the representations have been addressed
through revisions to the application or the proposed conditions as outlined
in the Committee report. These reasons for approval are a summary of the
reasons of the reasons for the grant of planning permission, for further
detail on the decision please see the officer report by visiting either
Councils’ Planning Department.

Page 142
142



ALTERNATIVE RECOMMENDATION IN THE EVENT OF THE S$S106
NOT BEING SEALED

Unless prior agreement has been obtained from the Head of Planning
Services, and the Chair, Vice Chair and Spokespersons of this Committee
to extend the period for completion of the Planning Obligation required in
connection with this development, if the obligation has not been completed
by 21 December 2012 it is recommended that the application be brought
back before this Committee with a recommendation for refusal. The
reasons for this refusal would reflect the reason why the S106 has not
been sealed.

Page 143
143



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 144



APPENDIX A

GOVERNMENT AND REGIONAL GUIDANCE AND ADVICE
National Planning Policy Framework 2012

Planning Policy Statements and Guidance

PPS1: Delivering Sustainable Development (2005)

PPG2: Green Belts (1995)

PPS3: Housing (2006)

PPS9: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation (2005)
PPS10: Planning for Sustainable Waste Management (2005)
PPS12: Local Spatial Planning (2008)

PPG13 Transport (2001)

PPG15 Planning and the Historic Environment (1994)
PPG16: Archaeology and Planning (1990)

PPG17: Planning for Open Space, Sport and Recreation (2002)
PPS22 Renewable Energy (2004)

PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control (2004)

PPG24: Planning and Noise (1994)

PPS25: Development and Flood Risk (2006)

Government Circulars

Circular 11/95 — The Use of Conditions in Planning Permissions
Circular 05/2005 - Planning Obligations

Regional Guidance
Regional Planning Guidance for East Anglia to 2016

Regional Spatial Strategy for the East of England
Regional Economic Strategy for the East of England

The new Coalition Government is planning to rapidly abolish Regional
Spatial Strategies (RSS), and this is already a material consideration in
planning decisions (from May 2010). Until such time, the RSS remains
part of the development plan but should not be afforded as much

weight as previously, in the decision making process.

Page 145

144



APPENDIX B

CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH STRUCTURE PLAN,
CAMBRIDGE LOCAL PLAN AND SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL LDF POLICIES

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003

P6/1 Development-related Provision

P8/10 Transport Investment Priorities

P9/2b Review of Green Belt Boundaries

P9/2c Location and Phasing of Development Land to be
Released from the Green Belt

P9/8 Infrastructure Provision

P9/9 Cambridge Sub-Region Transport Strategy

Cambridge Local Plan 2006

3N Sustainable Development

3/2 Setting of the City

3/3 Safeguarding Environmental Character

3/4 Responding to Context

3/5 Mixed Use Development

3/6 Ensuring Co-ordinated Development

317 Creating Successful Places

3/8 Open Space and Recreation Provision Through New
Development

3/11 The Design of External Spaces

3/12 The Design of New Buildings

3/13 Tall Buildings and the Skyline

4/1 Green Belt

4/2 Protection of Open Space

4/3 Safeguarding Features of Amenity or Nature
Conservation Value

4/4 Trees

4/6 Protection of Sites of Local Nature Conservation
Importance

4/9 Scheduled Ancient Monuments/Archaeological Areas

4/10 Listed Buildings

4/11 Conservation Areas

4/13 Pollution and Amenity

4/14 Air Quality Management Areas

4/15 Lighting

4/16 Development and flooding

51 Housing Provision

5/5 Meeting Housing Needs

5/9 Housing for People with Disabilities

5/10 Dwelling Mix

5/12 New Community Facilities

5/13 Community Facilities in Areas of Major Change

145
Page 146



5/14 Provision of community facilities through new
development

7" Employment Provision

712 Selective Management of the Economy

8/2 Transport impact

8/3 Mitigating measures

8/4 Walking and Cycling Accessibility

8/5 Pedestrian and Cycle Network

8/6 Cycle Parking

817 Public Transport Accessibility

8/10 Off-street car parking

8/11 New Roads

8/16 Renewable Energy in Major New Developments

8/18 Water, Sewerage and Drainage Infrastructure

91 Further Policy/Guidance for the Development of Areas of
Major Change

9/2 Phasing of Areas of Major Change

9/3 Development in the Urban Extensions

9I7 Land between Madingley Road and Huntingdon Road

9/8 Land between Huntingdon Road and Histon Road

101 Infrastructure improvements

South Cambridgeshire Local Development Framework

Core Strategy (2007)
ST/ Green Belt
ST/2 Housing Provision

Development Control Policies DPD (2007)

DP/1 Sustainable Development

DP/2 Design of New Development

DP/3 Development Criteria

DP/4 Infrastructure of New Development

DP/5 Cumulative Development

DP/6 Construction Methods

DP/7 Development Frameworks

GB/1 Development in the Green Belt

GB/2 Mitigating the Impact of Development in the Green Belt

GB/3 Mitigating the Impact of Development Adjoining the
Green Belt

SF/7 Underground Pipes, Wires, Fibres And Cables

NE/4 Landscape Character Areas

NE/6 Biodiversity

NE/9 Water and Drainage Infrastructure

NE/10 Foul Drainage — Alternative Drainage Systems

NE/11 Flood Risk

NE/12 Water Conservation

NE/14 Lighting Proposals

146
Page 147



NE/15 Noise Pollution

NE/16 Emissions

NE/17 Protecting High Quality Agricultural Land
CH/2 Archaeological Sites

TR/ Planning for More Sustainable Travel
TR/3 Mitigating Travel Impact

Joint Policy

Northwest Cambridge Area Action Plan (2009)

NW1 Vision

NW2 Development Principles

NW3 Implementing the Area Action Plan

NwW4 Site and Setting

NW5 Housing Supply

NW6 Affordable Housing

NW7 Balanced and Sustainable Communities

NW8 Employment Uses

NW9 Employment Uses in the Local Centre

NW10 Mix of Uses

NW11 Sustainable Travel

NW12 Highway Infrastructure

NW13 Vehicular Access

NW14 Madingley Road to Huntingdon Road Link

NW15 Highway Provision

NW16 Public Transport Provision

NW17 Cycling Provision

NW18 Walking Provision

NW19 Parking Standards

NW20 Provision of Community Services and Facilities and Arts
and Culture

NW21 A Local Centre

NW22 Public Art

NW23 Open Space and Recreation Provision

NW24 Climate Change and Sustainable Design and
Construction

NW25 Surface Water Drainage

NW26 Foul Drainage and Sewage Disposal

NW27 Management and Maintenance of Surface Water
Drainage Systems

NW28 Construction Process

NW29 Strategic Landscaping

NW30 Phasing and Need

NW31 Infrastructure Provision

147
Page 148



APPENDIX C

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENTS AND MATERIAL
CONSIDERATIONS

Supplementary Planning Documents
Cambridge City Council

Sustainable Design and Construction (2007)
Affordable Housing (2008)

Public Art (2010)

Planning Obligation Strategy (2010)

South Cambridgeshire District Council

Biodiversity (2009)

District Design Guide (2010)

Health Impact Assessment (2011)
Landscape in New Developments (2010)
Open Space in New Developments (2009)
Public Art (2009)

Trees and Development Sites (2009)

Material Considerations

Biodiversity Checklist for Land Use Planners in Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough (March 2001)

Cambridge City Nature Conservation Strategy — Enhancing Biodiversity
(2006): and Cambridge City Wildlife Sites Register (2005)
Cambridgeshire Bio-Diversity Action Plan (2000)

Cambridge City Council - Open Space and Recreation Strategy (2006)
Cambridge City Council - Provision of Public Art as Part of New
Development Schemes (2002)

Cambridgeshire County Council - Northern Corridor Area Transport
Plan (2003)

Cambridgeshire County Council-Western Corridor Area Transport Plan
(2003)

Cambridgeshire Design Guide (2007)

Manual for Streets (2007)

Cambridgeshire Horizons - Green Infrastructure Strategy

Cycle Parking Guide for Residential Developments (2010)

Cambridge Sustainable Drainage Design and Adoption Guide (2009)
Cambridge City Council and South Cambridgeshire District Council -
Foodstore Provision in North West Cambridge IPPG (2011)

Cambridge City Council and South Cambridgeshire District Council —
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (2010)

148
Page 149



APPENDIX D

EXTERNAL CONSULTATIONS
Statutory Consultees
Cambridgeshire County Council

June 2012 Comments

Since the time of the original submission, the applicants have
submitted amendments to the application, and have continued to work
with officers to resolve outstanding matters of detail, with all points
either agreed, close to agreement, or will be the subject of detailed
reserved matters applications.

The County makes detailed comments with regard to the following:
Education
On-Site Primary School

An approach has been agreed between the University and the County
Council to secure, through the S106, a number of clauses that provide
sufficient flexibility and assurance to meet both party’s statutory
obligations and design aspirations.

The school site will be provided to the County, alongside appropriate
capital funding to deliver the school. Mechanisms will be put in place to
enable the University to have design input into the school through
either appropriate consultation or by virtue of being the promoter for the
school themselves.

Off-Site Secondary Education

A contribution towards the requisite secondary education provision off-
site has been agreed, with delivery mechanisms designed to be flexible
to meet the varying needs arising from the potential location of this
provision.

Transport

Originally concerns were expressed in a number of areas, addressed
now, as follows:

¢ Design of Site Access Junctions - officers are now content with
the design of the junctions, subject to approval of detailed
design points. These can be resolved through design stage,
design codes and reserved matters/discharge of conditions.

149
Page 150



e Design of On-Site Highways — satisfied with level of detail
currently provided. Detailed design considerations will need to
be addressed at Design Code and reserved matters application
stages.

e Bus Strategy — A full bus strategy has now been provided,
containing S106 measures. Officers consider the proposals to
be acceptable.

e Transport Mitigation Measures to be Provided or Secured
Through S106 — the package of measures proposed, both on-
site and off-site are considered acceptable, although detailed
design considerations will need to be resolved at the appropriate
stage, whilst timing of S106 contributions in some areas still
needs to be agreed.

Adoption and Public Access

The submitted Adoption Strategy is acceptable, in principle, although a
number of issues exist that are suggested could be resolved through
planning conditions.

¢ Dedication of rights of way needs to be clarified to inform design
process

¢ A suitable connection to Bridleway 30 needs to be identified and
secured prior to the approval of the application.

e Public access needs to be secured at all times.
The parking and cycling strategy need to be clarified prior to the
commencement of development.

Other Matters

Minerals and Waste officers and Ecology officers wish to see various
measures outlined in the submitted Environment Statement and
Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) secured through
planning condition(s).

September 2011 Submission Comments

The County Council have issued a holding objection to the application,
until such time as a number of concerns are resolved to their
satisfaction.

The main issues identified revolve around:
e S.106 Package
e Education and Community
o Key transport elements of the application

S106 Package

150
Page 151



Although the County does not object, in principle, to the list of items
included as Heads of Terms by the applicant, further discussions are
required.

Given that the current s106 package is not agreed, a holding objection
is lodged until such time as this has been completed and contains all of
the elements that the Council expects.

Education and Community

There are concerns in relation to aspects of the school’s design and
access arrangements, which the County Council has set out in detail
within its comments. Issues include:
e Fibre optic network coverage
Building heights
Delineation of school building and playing field site and uses
Locations for parking and access
Provision of on-site drop-off
Connection between school site and adjoining areas of open
land
e Timetable for provision and cost of energy provided through
CHP, and ability of school to source heat/energy to secure
best value

In addition, the emerging draft s106 Heads of Terms includes
provisions for on-site and off-site contributions for appropriate
educational facilities, library and community facilities. The quantum of
these contributions is currently being negotiated although the broad
principle of contributions has been agreed. Recently updated
demographic profiles have been produced. Whilst these are being
discussed between the Council and the applicant, it is not possible to
finalise the size of the schools.

Transport

The Transport Assessment and Travel Plan are regarded as being
robust and completed to a standard acceptable to the County Council.

Whilst officers have worked with the applicant at significant length, and
much progress has been made, there are a number of transport related
items of concern and these will require further discussions between the
University and the County Council. These items are:

Design of the site access junctions

e Design of on-site highways

e Adequacy of the walking/ cycling/ Rights of Way connectivity
between the development site and external destinations

o Completion of the bus strategy

151
Page 152



e Confirmation of the transport mitigation measures to be provided /
s106 items.

Other Matters

Beyond the matters raised above, the County Council also made
comments in the following areas:

e Waste plans are broadly acceptable although more detail is
required in respect of Site Waste Management Plan and
particular areas of the site.

¢ Green infrastructure plans are supported, although some minor
errors on plans need correcting and conditions or obligations will
be required to secure measures.

¢ Outline archaeological proposals are appropriate and need to be
secured by condition.

Highways Agency
April 2012 Amendment Comments

The amendments have satisfactorily addressed the Agency’s
objections.

To ensure the development fully meets the Agency’s expectations it
has recommended a number of planning conditions to be attached to
any consent. The recommended conditions address the following
issues:
¢ Implementation of the Site Wide Travel Plan
e Mechanism to secure the scope, nature and timing of
improvement works at M11 junction 13
e Details to be contained within the Construction Environment
Management Plan, including: construction and phasing
programme; contractors access arrangements; construction
hours; construction delivery times; Outline Waste Management
Plan; Soil Management Strategy; noise management and
mitigation; vibration management; dust management; site
lighting; drainage control measures; and screening and hoarding
details.

September 2011 Submission Comments

It originally placed a holding direction, issued until 29" February 2012.
Environment Agency

April 2012 Amendment Comments

Having reviewed the amended documentation, the Agency has
commented that the proposals are acceptable to it, but only on the

152
Page 153



provisio that conditions recommended by it are attached to any
consent.

The proposed conditions address the following issues:

e Strategic Site Surface Water Drainage — details to be submitted
to build upon submitted documentation prior to any reserved
matters application

¢ Individual Site Surface Water Drainage — to be submitted
alongside any reserved matters application

¢ River Modelling: Wash Pit Brook — flood reduction scheme
required ahead of commencement of development, in
accordance with the applicant’s submitted FRA

e Phasing — to address phased construction of development
alongside necessary flood mitigation works

e Groundwater & Contaminated Land - to address any
contamination discovered during development works not
previously identified, and its subsequent mitigation; and also the
control of piled or other penetration foundation designs

e Construction Environmental Management Plan — addressing
ecological impacts, timing of onsite works and any necessary
mitigations.

¢ Protection of on-site species of brown hares and skylarks

In addition to the above conditions, the Agency has also requested a
series of informatives to be attached to any consent, that seek to
provide background information to the developers and further guidance
in respect of the proposed conditions and their general responsibilities,
including elements in respect of the use of SuDS, water
quality/wastewater, fisheries, recreation & biodiversity.

September 2011 Submission Comments

Have reviewed the documents and held recent discussions with the
applicants in respect of flood risk and surface water drainage, the
Agency has reserved its position regards these areas until further
information is received from the applicant's consultants. However, it
commented with regard to the following areas:

Groundwater & Contaminated land

It is satisfied with the conclusions in the ES that the site does not pose
a risk to the quality of controlled waters. However, it has recommended
conditions and informatives in respect of securing a remediation
strategy for the site, contamination discovered during construction,
surface water infiltration and penetrative foundation design, to ensure
no harm arises through the detailed phases of development.

Fisheries, Recreation & Biodiversity

153
Page 154



Recommendations within the ES should be followed, particularly in
respect of off-site habitat mitigation and protection of the Washpit
Brook.

Area Environment Planning and Waste Issues

Documentation is comprehensive, the recommendations of which
should be followed.

Wastewater/Water Quality

It accepts the recommendations in REC WW1 of the Detailed Water
Cycle Study. It agrees to a condition that references a scheme that
mitigates the impact of the proposed development on the sewerage
network, but comments that it has experience of Anglian Water being
wary of greywater recycling systems due to increased potential for
cross-contamination with clean drinking water. It is essential that any
such drainage plan is agreed with Anglian Water alongside an adoption
regime for new infrastructure.

Water Resources

Recommendations in the ES should implemented, particularly with
regard to timing of development relative to water supply, locating
development relative to existing water resources, and ensuring that
water efficiency is planned into the development.

Anglian Water

Anglian Water has assessed the application with regard to waste water
treatment, the foul sewerage network, surface water disposal and trade
effluent.

It has noted that, whilst capacity exists in the existing wastewater
system for the flows from the site, in respect of foul and surface water
drainage it has concerns with the submitted information/strategies. It
has also noted that, given that the scheme includes
employment/commercial uses, permission to discharge effluent into the
public sewer will require its consent.

Accordingly it has recommended two conditions to secure satisfactory
foul and surface water drainage strategies and three informatives
regarding trade effluent permissions and the use of technologies in
construction.

With regard to these points, Anglian Water is in the process of agreeing
a drainage strategy with the developer.

Commission for Architecture and the Built Environment (CABE)

154
Page 155



CABE comment that there is much to commend the proposed
masterplan, considering it to be clear and logical, presenting good
principles of connectivity and a reasoned co-ordination of uses to
create a mixed community. However, it has specific concerns that the
diagrams lack spirit, with particular concerns that the illustrative block
typologies suggest a generic form of development that does not reflect
the particular character of the site.

To resolve some of these concerns it has suggested that further
information should be captured to provide street level perspectives to
illustrate how vistas may be achieved through the development and
how the scheme may respond to the need to provide a coherent
walking and cycling network and how potential conflicts between uses
that overlap, such as the proposed hotel adjoining the central park,
may be resolved.

East of England Development Agency (EEDA)

EEDA supports the development, considering it to make a significant
contribution to the approved development strategy for the Cambridge
sub-region and consequently the future strength of the economy.
However, it highlights the findings of the 2011 study ‘Cambridge at 50 —
The Cambridge Economy Retrospect and Prospect’, which seeks to
understand long term threats and opportunities to Cambridge and its
high-tech economy. Accordingly, it stresses the critical importance of
considering how the development will create opportunities for social
interaction and also the appropriateness of user restrictions for the
employment provision on site, given the study’s findings that there will
be limited scope for general business uses in the City in 5 to 10 years
time.

Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue

The Fire Authority request that if the application is approved then
provision for fire hydrants be made either through S106 agreement or
planning condition.

Cambridgeshire Constabulary

It is unable to comment on the detail of layout and permeability at this
stage, however, it highlights a number of statements within the
application documents which are supported.

It notes that, from the Masterplan, there will be a combination of on
street, basement and parking court car parking. There is a requirement
under Secure by Design for parking courts to be gated. Any on street
parking will need to be the subject of good surveillance. Statistically,
the safest places to park a vehicle is either in a garage or within the
curtilage of a dwelling.

155
Page 156



Cambridgeshire Constabulary does not object to the proposals and
does not have any specific comments to make on the general layout
but would ask for further information regarding crime prevention
measures, traffic calming, size and orientation of parking areas
together with layout and surveillance of open spaces be subject to
further consultation at reserved matters stage from a Secure by Design
perspective.

Cambridgeshire NHS

Cambridgeshire  NHS consider that the proposals appear to be
generally in line with the North-West Cambridge Area Action Plan and
support the ambition of the University in much of what they set out to
achieve. However, it considers there to be a lack of detail about how
some of the hard infrastructure elements will be delivered and
sustained (including lack of detail regards timing) and little detail about
how social infrastructure will be installed to integrate the new
community with those existing that surround the site.

Commenting specifically regards health provision, it has two principle
concerns:

Although the NHS have previously agreed that a 700sgm facility would
be required by the site and that it could be provided on site (in part to
mitigate the effects of the economic down turn and potential for it to not
come forward if delivered off-site), it has now reviewed this position
and now seeks one co-located facility on the NIAB site to service all 3
proposed developments in the North-West Quadrant of the city (NIAB,
NIAB Extra, and the University scheme).

The proposal sets out that the developers would build the health facility
in the first phase on the development (although the timing and
mechanism of delivery is unclear), and then rent it out on commercial
terms to the NHS. This would be unacceptable and unaffordable,
particularly in the early stages of the site’s development, therefore
presenting an unacceptable risk that adequate health provisions would
be made to service the site in the long-term. The facility should be
provided as fully funded through S.106 obligations, with no premises
revenue cost passed on to the NHS.

In respect of the proposed Senior Care facility, the NHS challenge the
assertions in the application that there is a lack of capacity within the
existing network or that it will help provide for a mixed and balanced
community, given the lack of apparent support network for such a
facility.

Regarding the submitted Health Impact Assessment, the NHS
comments that the recommendations should be expanded to
encompass the wider determinants of health; that the health policy
section should be updated in light of recent policy changes; and that
the health effect of the development are only potentially positive at this

156
Page 157



stage, and that careful attention will need to be paid at the detailed
planning stage to ensure that such benefits are achieved.

Ministry of Defence

No safeguarding objections, in respect of Cambridge Airport, provided
no buildings or structures exceed 45.7 metres above ground level.

Natural England
June 2012 Amendment Comments

The amendments address most of the concerns raised previously, and
it is, therefore, now content to remove its objection.

Its outstanding concerns now only include the need for clarification of
the proposed enhancement measures within the SSSI and for
inconsistencies, in relation to lighting proposals and inclusion of
ramped walkways, within the Design, Landscape and Access
Statement to be addressed. It has confirmed that its concerns could be
addressed by way of planning condition.

April 2012 Amendment Comments

Detailed concerns and required points of clarification, expressed at the
time of the original submission, appear to have been overlooked, in
respect of comments made within Chapters 2 and 8 of the
Environmental Statement and the submitted Geological Site
Management Plan (GSMP), Construction Environment Management
Plan (CEMP) and Design, Access and Landscape Statement,
regarding the impact of elements of the development upon the
Travellers Rest SSSI.

September 2011 Submission Comments

Whilst acknowledging a number of areas to commend the application,
Natural England objects to the scheme as currently submitted, on the
grounds of concerns that significant detrimental impact could occur to
the integrity of the Traveller's Rest Pit SSSI.

Most specifically, whilst it generally welcomes the findings of the
contamination investigations, utilities and services strategy,
sustainability proposals across the site, Design, Access and Landscape
Statement, and the proposed construction code of conduct, in respect
of the various themed areas such as sustainable use of soils on site,
loss of agricultural land, the connectivity within the site (including the
linkages between green spaces) and the ecology and nature
conservation strategy for the site (mindful that some such details will
need to be secured by either planning condition or S.106 obligation), it
is concerned that the Geological Site Management Plan (GSMP) and

157
Page 158



Environmental Statement either contain some vague statements or
appear to encourage elements such as footpaths, steps, boreholes,
drainage pipes and services into the SSSI that may serve to disturb or
damage the important features of the site.

Furthermore, it is also concerned no mention is made at present
seeking to restrict elements such as the proximity of certain
development types to the fringes of the SSSI or boundary treatments
for adjoining uses such as the school, that would seek to discourage
disturbance to the SSSI either during the construction phase of the
development or post-occupational use.

Finally, whilst not objecting to the Public Art Strategy, Natural England
is disappointed that it does not make specific reference to the nationally
important geology on-site and would welcome further discussions with
it to understand how this could be reflected in the strategy going
forward.

Sport England
April 2012 Amendment Comments

Given that the proposals have not significantly changed since the
original submission, Sport England’s position has not changed overall.
It supports the approach of securing sporting facilities via the S.106
and an agreed phasing plan. It would welcome the opportunity to
comment of detailed proposals when they are submitted.

September 2011 Submission Comments

Sport England has assessed the application in regard to quantity and
quality of outdoor sport, indoor sport, and youth provisions and with
regard to phasing and maintenance/management of spaces.

In principle it is broadly supportive of proposals, but raises some
specific comments/concerns, around the following:

Outdoor Sport

Population projections would require 7.8ha of outdoor sport provision.
At present there is a lack of detail provided regards the quantum of
provision proposed. It would request that quantum of space details are
provided, alongside indicative details of pitch mix and layout.

No objection, in principle, to the quality of space provided, but it would
require further information to be provided, either by condition or through
later submissions, to secure details of ground conditions to identify
development constraints and inform design/mitigation measures, and
the submission of details of siting and design of facilities required to
service outdoor sports, such as pavilions and clubhouses.

158
Page 159



Indoor Sport

Support principle proposals, but require further information. Most
specifically, the proposed 450sgm of indoor sport provision meets
policy standards, but it is unclear whether this accounts for ancillary
facilities within that floorspace. Equally, it is unclear what the proposed
dimensions of the floorspace would be, which requires careful design
so as not to preclude some activities.

Support the principle of contribution towards an off-site swimming
facility. Using its own costing models and the anticipated population,
would expect a contribution to equate to £405,600.

Youth Provision
Broadly supported, but wishes to see more information regards the
development meeting the specific needs of teenagers.

Phasing
Broadly supported, and recommend that such details are secured by
condition or planning obligation.

Maintenance and Management
Comment that it is important to secure these details at an early stage
for at least a 10 year period.

Sport England would object if such measures are not resolved, either
prior to consent or by condition/planning obligation, and expect that any
scheme to be agreed in consultation with local authorities and relevant
national sports governing bodies.

English Heritage

English Heritage comment that the most significant aspect from their
point of view is the impact of the scheme upon the historic setting of
Cambridge and the Green Belt. When reviewed in light of PPS5, they
consider that the scheme will result in a degree of harm to the historic
setting of the City, and therefore the Authorities must satisfy
themselves that the benefits of the scheme to the wider public benefit
outweigh such harm.

In assessing such benefits, English Heritage highlights several key
areas for consideration:

Setting of Cambridge

It identifies the existing city edge and the importance of views into the
site. Accordingly it identifies that the western edge of the scheme and
the landscape fingers that permeate it will be extremely important in
establishing the appearance of the site from the west. It has concerns

159
Page 160



that the green fingers may be too narrow, whilst it would wish to see
more detailed modelling of the built form along the western edge.

Response to Cambridge

It would like to see more information about how street forms will be
designed to reflect the historic street pattern within the City. Whilst
agreeing that courtyards can present public realm issues, they would
not wish to see them precluded in the detailed scheme.

Landmarks

It agrees that landmark buildings/features are important across the site,
but challenges that landmarks can be achieved through design detail,
and would wish to guard against a reliance on height and scale to
achieve landmark status.

Floodlight of Sports Provision

Given the location of the formal sports provision on the western edge,
English Heritage has concerns that this location is highly visible and
therefore light sensitive from views into the countryside.

Other organisations
Ramblers Association (Cambridge Group)

The Association has commented stating that the development must
protect and enhance footpath access to the countryside from the
development site.

Specifically, it has suggested that the existing Girton Footpath 5
crossing of Huntingdon Road be at least maintained, if not enhanced
within the scheme, whilst provisions should be made to enhance its
links beyond the site to the west, possibly including some measures
that originally formed part of the now abandoned A14 upgrade
package. It welcomes the proposals to improve the M11 underpass in
this location.

The Association has also proposed that an additional connection be
established between Bridleway 30 and the application site to improve
links to the countryside, with a further suggestion that new countryside
links could be established towards Madingley, including a potential new
crossing of the M11 into the scheme’s proposed Western landscape
edge.

Cambridge Cycling Campaign

Has written stating that whilst it has no objection to the principle of the
NW Cambridge development, it strongly opposes the application at
present for two principal reasons: 1) The scale of the many of the major
junctions and associated difficulties for cyclists, 2) the lack of detail and
clarity regards cycling infrastructure.

160
Page 161



The Campaign has made specific comments in relation to the proposed
junction designs and considers that foot and cycle users should be
designed to have priority over motor vehicles at these junctions, whilst
it supports the proposed demand responsive signal at the North-\West
junction for the site, it considers the overall designs lacking in user-
friendliness, highlighting specific concerns with design of the junction
on Madingley Road which links into the West Cambridge site.

Further to junction specific issues, the Campaign is also concerned that
the indicative designs for the primary routes within the site give rise to
concerns regarding relationships with parking areas and the crossings
over the ‘green fingers’, whilst overall it is critical of a lack of detail
regards the design of the Ridgeway cycle route. It endorses the
aspiration for 20mph speed limits across the site and wishes to see
measures incorporated from the outset of development to ensure this is
secured.

The Campaign goes on to state its preferences for cycling to be
incorporated between footpaths and drainage systems, the
maximisation of the use of Home Zones and red raised table crossing
points across the site, and query where cycle parking would occur
throughout the development.

Faith Representatives for NW Cambridge

The group is encouraged by the provision of the four houses proposed
to be available for faith group leaders from the first phase of
development, considering these critical for facilitating the early
contribution of faith leaders in the development of the community.

They consider that it is key the that the Community Centre be
accessible for faith groups, and also, in part, designed and managed
by their members to ensure that it is fit for purpose. They query
whether the applicant has engaged with such groups sufficiently at this
stage to achieve such aims.

They also query whether the proposed community facility is sufficiently
sized to meet the needs of faith users, as well as other elements of the
community. In making such comments they cite several case studies
and provide a dossier of Shared Faith Facilities in the UK.

Sustrans

Overall, consider the scheme to present a realistic possibility of
achieving low car usage and considers the Transport Assessment
(‘TA’) to be generally encouraging. Furthermore, it considers the
movement network proposed to be good.

161
Page 162



However, it is concerned that the scheme lacks detail in parts and
therefore lacks clarity. It suggests use of a Design Code to include a
car and cycle strategy, taking into account parking principles in the
residential and employment areas of the site. It wishes to see a code to
underpin principles of designing the scheme consistently to promote
walking, cycling and public transport. It would wish to see the road
network designed to restrict vehicles to a maximum 20mph speed limit.

Sustrans also notes comments in the TA regards overall traffic flow
management from the site into the surrounding road network and
presumes that this accounts for what it considers to be “very large road
junctions”, which it believes to be inappropriately large given the stated
aims of achieving low car use across the site. It also considers that the
chosen design solutions of the junctions have been previously shown
to discourage walking and cycling.

Parish Councils

Girton Parish Council

April 2012 Amendment Comments

The Parish Council rejects the plans in their present form.

It has challenged a number of detailed comments within the application
in respect of the following:

o Strategy of reducing the number of car parking spaces as a
means to reduce car ownership

e Impact upon Oxford Road and Windsor Road, the need for
identified mitigation and query where displaced traffic will go if
not on these roads.

e |t requests more detail in respect of enhancements along
Huntingdon Road, Victoria Road, Castle Street and a crossing of
Huntingdon Road at Whitehouse Lane

e Queries why a base year of 2010 is chosen for modelling and
queries the potential for disproportionate impact on Girton, citing
impacts of existing ‘new’ developments.

¢ |dentifies a number of areas where negative impact is possible
to Girton residents, such as severance, level of fear and
intimidation and impact upon sensitive receptors within the
village (such as LEAPS, schools and churches) and contests
that the level of impact is disproportionate/unacceptable.

¢ Request that motorcycles be removed from cycle survey
Also highlights areas where spelling mistakes have occurred.

September 2011 Submission Comments

The Parish Council wishes to object to the Planning Application on the
following grounds:

162
Page 163



The education assessment is flawed and proposed provision
inadequate. It requests that the County undertake a more
rigorous demographic study on likely school places at both
primary and secondary levels (noting that there will certainly be
no capacity in Girton or its environs) and that a plan to ensure
that adequate provision can be made is in place before even
outline permission can be granted.

It believes the proposed transport plans do not adequately take
the transport hierarchy and Manual for Streets advice into
consideration, either in the pathways proposed through the site
or in the two main entrances. It requires clarification on
predicted levels of traffic through the site and on provision to be
made for it, also on speeds and permeability by pedestrians.

It believes that the design of the two access points, and the
cycle provisions along Huntingdon Road, generate unnecessary
and dangerous conflict between various classes of user, in
particular cyclist/pedestrian and bus/cyclist.

It requests more detailed descriptions of the energy generation
measures to ensure that the development will satisfy carbon and
renewable criteria.

It requests more work be done on the “Girton gap' layout, which
must function as a gateway to the village as well as a gateway
to the City.

The transport assessment places significantly more traffic on
Huntingdon Road and (particularly) on Windsor Road/Oxford
Road. The latter cannot just be dismissed as anomalous, since
this traffic must go somewhere else if it is believed that it will not
enter Oxford Road. It requires the modelling to be re-run with
proper data and the assessment revised.

Bar Hill Parish Council

It notes that the application does not include a cycle path link between
the application site and Cambridge Road, Madingley, which would then
link to Dry Drayton and Bar Hill. The Parish Council considers that lack
of such provisions would constitute a non-compliance with the adopted
AAP for the site in respect of access to the countryside, specifically
policies NW17 and NW18.

163
Page 164



Histon and Impington Parish Councils
No comments received.

Coton Parish Council

April 2012 Amendment Comments

The Parish Council doesn’t agree with findings of Transport
Assessment and consider that there will be a negative impact upon
Coton village. It objects until a suite of mitigation for the village is
outlined.

September 2011 Submission Comments

Coton Parish Council met to discuss the application on 8" November
2011. It is currently awaiting a follow-up response from the University in
respect of a traffic analysis of the effect on Coton before responding.

Madingley Parish Council

Madingley Parish Council has expressed two principal concerns that it
would wish to see addressed: 1) the large number of high buildings
proposed will be visible across high quality land when viewed from
Madingley. Steps should be taken to mitigate this impact, potentially
including significant tree planting on the western edge, 2) the proposals
do not include a cycle path link to Madingley, contrary to Policies
NW17 & NW18 of the AAP, which seek to secure linkages to the
surrounding villages and countryside.

Residents Associations
Nineteen Acre Field Residents Association (NAFRA)

April 2012 Amendment Comments

NAFRA initially commented that the submitted documentation was
presented in a manner which made it difficult to establish whether/how
the submission addressed the officer comments.

Notwithstanding that point, they made comments in the following
regard:

Open Space and Recreation

NAFRA have not been able to locate a ‘strategic management strategy’
and so has concluded that a University-led management solution is not
proposed.

Community and Local Centre

164
Page 165



NAFRA supports the inclusion of a health facility on the site, but is not
convinced that the need for the hotel has been made.

Transport

NAFRA considers it unfortunate that the bus strategy is being prepared
bilaterally with the County Council and not available to public scrutiny.
Whilst welcoming the appearance of the Framework Car Parking
Management Plan, there is also concern at how enforceable the
arrangements/aspirations will be given previous experience of
managing student car ownership. Similarly concern also remains that
the connection to Storey’s Way for bicycles/pedestrians will threaten
the well-being of existing trees in the area where the connection will be
created. Alongside this, NAFRA expected more information to be
provided by the applicants in respect of connections to external
destinations. Whilst some information has been submitted, this does
not appear sufficient to address concerns regarding the overall
connectivity of the scheme. Finally, plans are under consultation for the
30mph speed limit on Huntingdon Road to be extended, which NAFRA
supports. The scheme/junction designs should be compatible with such
potential changes.

Parameter Plans

PP02 - cannot see any changes and would ask officers to ensure
changes required have been actioned.

PP03 — Removal of the secondary open land adjacent to the Burial
Ground is noted and appreciated.

PPO05, 06, 07 — still finds the relationship between these plans difficult
to grasp and, as such, is unclear whether changes are sufficient to
overcome concerns.

S.106

NAFRA is pleased to see a working summary of the Section 106
agreement, which is clearly an extensive list of major items. There is
some concern that residents are not involved in such discussions, with
limited opportunity to debate issues of considerable interest to
residents.

September 2011 Submission Comments

The proposed development will have a significant impact upon the
residents of properties surrounding the field known as Nineteen Acre
Field in terms of:

e Future loss of amenity and outlook.

e The impact of a lengthy construction programme.

e The increase in traffic and congestion from a result of this

development.
¢ A fundamental change to the nature of this corner of Cambridge.

165
Page 166



Notwithstanding these basic concerns NAFRA has set out some core
expectations for the development of the parcel of land that is
immediately adjacent to the residents.

Properties on the perimeter of the field should be detached,
substantial, 2 storeyed family dwellings, with gardens no less than
20 metres that will abut the back gardens of the surrounding
properties; parking should be at the front of the house, not the back.
NAFRA acknowledges that the application reflects this but it would
like to be involved at the design guide stage to ensure that this is
followed through to the detailed design stage.

Objection to the open space adjacent to the cemetery, which will
encourage a short cut through the cemetery into the city. NAFRA
requests that this open space is removed and replaced with a
unbroken line of housing along the perimeter of the site.

Concerns over the traffic impact of the proposed supermarket within
the local centre.

NAFRA urge that particularly close attention is paid to possible
environmental alleviating measures as the planning process
develops further.

The number of junctions/crossings on Huntingdon Road should be
kept to a minimum in order to facilitate the free flow of traffic on
Huntingdon Road.

It is recommended that the assumptions underpinning access to
public transport are challenged and that evidence beyond a
statement of aspiration is provided to support these assumptions.
NAFRA requires the University to provide firm evidence that it can
effectively regulate the level of car ownership and associated
parking requirements. In this regard reference to current regulatory
impact should be provided to the planning authorities. Concern is
expressed that if this is not done successfully that overflow parking
(from the reduced parking rate) on the site will occur in nearby
streets.

There should be the inclusion of a photographic/videographic
record of the development of the site (change from rural to urban)
as a strand within the Public Art Strategy.

Windsor Road Residents Association (WIRE)

April 2012 Amendment Comments

The resident’s association supports a number of elements within the
Transport Assessment Addendum:

the additional pedestrian/cycle crossing facility on the Eastern
Huntingdon Road arm of the proposed accesses (Chapter 2.4
(paras. 2.4.7 and 2.4.16; Appendix 2.1 plans 1 and 2))

166
Page 167



o the improved cycle facilities, especially between Girton Road and
the Huntingdon Road west junction (Chapter 2.6 (para 2.6.1 and
Appendix 2.4))

e the need for the public transport strategy to be sustainable
(Chapter 2.7).

Whilst it welcomes and supports the commitment to manage traffic
impact on Windsor Road/Oxford Road and to set up a fund to contain
any increase in vehicular movement, it requests clarification on how
this will be delivered — timescale and mechanism for establishing need
and consultation.

It also has specific concerns regarding the proposed traffic calming
measures illustrated in the addendum. Principal concerns relate to the
need for change to priority in Windsor Road from the existing setup and
the introduction of structures that may prevent larger or emergency
vehicles from accessing properties.

September 2011 Submission Comments

o WIRE appreciate the level of consultation with local residents and
appreciate the commitment to produce a high quality development
that will serve purpose well into the future.

e The proposal to monitor traffic levels in Windsor and Oxford Rd and
to provide measures to alleviate as necessary, is welcomed.

e Measures to upgrade cycle links off site, at Murketts corner and
interconnecting with NIAB are supported also.

e The ownership of the open space by the University is supported
since it will be in their interest to maintain this to a high standard.

¢ Infrastructure provision including roads, schools, open space,
health etc. should be integrated between this site and NIAB.

Oxford Road Residents Association (ORRA)

April 2012 Amendment Comments

It welcomes the acknowledgement that traffic will increase in Oxford

Road and the agreement to contribute financially to any traffic calming

measures. However, some concern over the details outlined, as

follows:

¢ Queries over the nature and responsibility for traffic monitoring

e The illustrated design for traffic calming causes a number of
concerns, including: may frustrate existing residents without
preventing rat-running, visually unappealing, increased traffic noise
through ‘funnelling effect’, cycle paths aren’t wide enough, loss of
parking spaces to residents.

September 2011 Submission Comments

167
Page 168



The Resident’'s Association is currently progressing with its own
independent traffic calming scheme and would like this to be given
consideration as an alternative.

e Concerns relate to transport in particular the impact on Oxford and
Windsor Road which is already a rat-run.

o Estimates suggest that a significant number of extra traffic
movements (ORRA estimate 97,750 cars per year) will be
significant. Most of the traffic using the road does not come from
residents but from people moving across the city or neighbouring
streets.

¢ While the monitoring of traffic is welcomed it does not present a
solution and the existing traffic is already too high and needs to be
reduced.

¢ More detail regarding the S106 commitments are required, and who
decides whether the traffic being monitored becomes too much.

e It would be far better to act sooner rather than later- and measures
should be put in place to discourage traffic from the start such as a
home zone transformation of the road or transponders/number plate
recognition.

e Broadly the development is welcomed but the traffic mitigation
measures need to be considered from the outset.

Friends of Ascension Burial Ground (FAB)

e Why is the green space adjacent to the Ascension Burial Ground
necessary?

e There is a security threat if this green space is retained and there
would have to be a substantial planting along the boundary for the
adjacent residents.

This green space would encourage a cut through into the city.

e Suggestion that this green finger will provide a vista to the chapel is
not correct, the trees within the burial ground would screen the
view.

e There is an avenue of trees within the middle of 19 acre field which
will provide a good vista- it seems unnecessary to extend the
avenue with this dog leg.

Storey’s Way Residents Association

e Concerned that trees are likely to be felled to make way for the
cycle and pedestrian paths that will exit the site into Storey’s Way. It
would like clarification of works in this area.

Elected Member Representations

One Representation from Clir Simon Kightley (on behalf of the Castle
Liberal Democrats) which is summarised as follows:

168
Page 169



It is essential that all steps are taken to mitigate the impact that the
development will have on traffic in the area. Good bus links must be
provided to the central train station, the science park and beyond to
the possible Chesterton train station.

The University should approach more than one bus company with
regard to the service to be provided.

Mitigation should be looked at for areas could be safer for cyclists
such as Magdalene Street and the crossing at Lady Margaret Road.
Seek assurance that there should be no motor vehicular entrance
or exit onto Huntingdon Road at Girton Gap during construction, nor
after residential occupation.

Concerns regarding the skyline impact when viewed from the
eastern edge. Residents will lose amenity and they have yet to see
a diagram of the proposed skyline.

If the playing fields are to be floodlit they would be better placed
near other sources of light such as the park and ride.

Concerns over the green space next to the cemetery, as this may
become an exit from the site.

Reassurance should be given that residents in the Conduit Head
Road/Landsdowne Road area of the ward have been consulted.
Reassurance should be given that no-one shall be displaced by the
development and/or that appropriate housing is forthcoming at a
similar rate.

A higher standard of co-operation with local authorities in terms of
street lights, drainage and transport is expected. Responsibility and
timing of handover is essential and has been a problem on other
sites.

The outline application is predicted on low car ownership- and
connection with car clubs is welcomed. We are keen to see the
steps the University propose to monitor car ownership on the site.
Now is also a good time to evaluate the powers of the motor
proctor’s responsibility.

We are interested as to why a P&R at the north of Huntingdon Rd
has not been discussed in the planning.

One Representation from Clir Douglas De Lacey (Girton Ward), which
is summarised as follows:

Major concerns are the very deleterious effect on Huntingdon Road,
and as part of the ‘gateway to Girton’.

The gateway needs to be effective and the road layout allows a
gateway ‘Welcome to Girton’ sign.

Concerns regarding the inability of the current system to cope with
the education of the children of early adopters (primary and
secondary). A planning condition must secure early delivery of the
school.

County representatives have admitted that multipliers used by
County for new communities had been increased, therefore the

169
Page 170



figures need to be revised upwards before outline permission is
granted.

There are concerns related to waste management of the site.
Queries in relation to the height of the CHP chimney and that there
should be local comparators to reference.

Several queries and concerns relating to the noise and air quality
modelling- especially the lack of hard data on air quality.

Concerns that some estimates regarding low water usage are
unrealistic, i.e. some people will rip out their low-flow showers. Hard
calculations should be based on hard realities, not pious
aspirations.

The cumulative and interactive effects section within the documents
makes some incorrect and/or optimistic assumptions, which will be
hard to correct and could result in repeating problems at
Cambourne and Orchard Park.

Several questions and concerns have been stated with regard to
the drainage and flood risk section of the EIA.

A critical commentary on the transport assessment including
questions and queries relating to assumptions made on cycling,
public transport and transport modelling.

170
Page 171



APPENDIX E
INTERNAL CONSULTATIONS
Urban Design

April 2012 Amendment Comments

Although some of their comments from the original submission remain
unaddressed (detailed points regarding treatment of existing
landscaping, outline junction interfaces, typical/illustrative plans of
street sections, block layouts and elevations, proximity of proposed
buildings to existing structures, and landscape/drainage corridors), they
consider that such matters can be resolved through the design coding
and/or reserved matters stages.

Key previous concerns in relation to the design of the primary street
and building heights parameters have now been addressed. There is a
clear need to ensure that the parameter plans afford flexibility given the
scale and build out period of the scheme, and they feel that the
parameters as now proposed strike a good balance between the level
of flexibility requested and the level of prescription they consider is
required in urban design and conservation terms.

As such, they support the scheme, as amended, and consider that it
has the potential to create an exciting and high quality new
development.

September 2011 Submission Comments

The Design Access and Landscaping Statement (DALS) presents a
logical and well considered master plan. The master plan has many
points to commend it and its underlying principles are supported.
However, they consider that more detail is needed in some key areas
and greater assurance required to demonstrate that the large zones of
flexibility are workable.

They also have concerns over the parameter plans and statements, in
particular those relating to building height. Some of the parameter
statements are confusing and need to be clarified. These statements
could be reworded whilst still retaining the flexibility that the applicant
seeks.

Some of the parameters are likely to restrict the aspirations for the
location of landmark buildings, but conversely allow excessive height in
other areas. They would welcome the opportunity to discuss with the
applicant how to better deliver a more simplified set of parameters in
relation to heights.

171
Page 172



They have also noted concerns over the illustrative street sections; in
particular the widths of the streets, which should be resolved given the
aspiration for streets to be limited to no more than 20mph.

In relation to illustrative blocks they believe that more information is
required. They would not wish to see the aspiration of green fingers
diminished by allowing the parameter plans to reduce the widths to
20m. As previously noted, they do not support the preferred Market
Square design.

Subject to all these matters being resolved to our satisfaction, they
would hope to be in a position to support approval of this application.

Planning Policy

Overall the application is welcomed and has carefully considered the
criteria detailed in the NWCAAP. Whilst most aspects of the
development accord with the advice in the AAP, it is noted that a
number of suggested uses, such as the Senior Care and Faith
Residential units, are not covered within the policy guidance. They
have considered both such elements and consider that they will assist
in the aims of providing mixed and balanced communities. They go
onto assess five key topic areas of the application, as follows:

Senior Care Needs

A few errors exist within the quoted Cambridge Local Plan policy within
the application documentation, whilst careful consideration needs to be
given to securing the appropriate use class and occupancy restrictions
through a S.106 agreement for the scheme. Consideration also needs
to be given to meeting the needs of the older part of the community by
providing evidence of need at the time of submitting any future
planning application for the facility and designing a proportion of the
facility to Lifetime Home Mobility standards.

Overall, national and local policy supports Senior Care provision within
the University scheme, as being part of the creation of a mixed and
balanced new community on the site. The evidence presented by the
University suggests that there is a need for this type of use and
therefore this is supported by policies NW2 and NW?7 of the North West
Cambridge Area Action Plan. However, in order to ensure the effective
use of the facility by occupiers requiring a level of care, it is considered
that this issue should be dealt with through the S106 agreement for the
application.

Faith Residential Needs

The arguments for the faith residential provision on the North West
Cambridge site have centred on the creation of a mixed and balanced
community through the establishment of community cohesion.

172
Page 173



As with the Senior Care Needs element of the submission, a few errors
exist within the quoted Cambridge Local Plan policy within the
application documentation.

Overall it is considered that national and local policy supports housing
provision for faith workers within the University scheme, as being an
important part of the creation of a mixed and balanced new community
on the site. The evidence presented by the University suggests that
there is a need for this type of use and therefore this is supported by
Policies NW2 and NW?7 of the North West Cambridge Area Action
Plan.

However, it is suggested that the use of the proposed residential units
is conditioned to ensure that they do not become centres for worship,
which may have detrimental impacts on the amenity and quality of life
of the wider community within North West Cambridge. Furthermore,
assurance of the long-term use of the faith residential units should be
secured through the S106 agreement to ensure that they do not revert
to market units should they not be taken up by a faith worker.

Retail Impact Assessment

The size of store proposed is in line with the IPPG, which has been
adopted by both South Cambridgeshire District Council and Cambridge
City Council. The indicative amount of additional floorspace within the
local centre is acceptable and evidence for the IPPG concluded that
there is a need for main supermarket provision in this part of
Cambridge and therefore it should be viable. However, units should be
designed to be flexible space in case there are problems with viability.
The retail proposed beyond the local centre includes a University
cafeteria and a number of small individual shops to serve the local
population, which would be acceptable. The IPPG should be referred
to for further information about the possible use of conditions and other
design and development principles relating to the foodstore and the
local centre.

Employment

The application varies subtly from the adopted policy position in that it
proposes up to 100,000sgm of employment floorspace (as opposed to
the AAP which states that there will be 100,000 sgm of such
floorspace), whilst at least 60,000 sgm will be academic floorspace (as
opposed to the AAP position of approximately 60,000 sgm of such).
The scheme therefore allows for less floorspace to be brought forward
overall than planned for in the AAP, whilst the overall proportion of
academic floorspace could increase if there is a consequential lowering
of the research space across the site. This approach is supported as
the land was released from the Green Belt to meet the needs of the
University, whilst higher education uses directly associated with the

173
Page 174



University incontrovertibly meet the needs of the University. The
supporting text of the Policy NW10 allows for such a change
furthermore.

The Planning Statement and the Design, Access and Landscape
Statement make reference to commercial employment floorspace
(Class B1(b) and sui generis research uses) and academic
employment floorspace (Class D1), but they do not make reference to
the special need to be located close to the University of Cambridge or
the national interest. However this can be controlled through the use of
a section 106 agreement; this agreement is a requirement of section 2
of the policy and can be used to ensure that these policy requirements
are met.

Therefore, subject to the issue of demonstrating need and phasing,
and a section 106 agreement being signed that controls the occupiers
of the employment and academic research institute uses to those with
a special need for a Cambridge location, for a period of 10 years from
the first date of occupation, the proposal is accordance with Policy
NW8: Employment Uses. This should be agreed at outline application
stage.

Policy NW30 sets the context for considering proposals for any uses
other than residential use, where the case for early provision was
accepted as part of the AAP preparation. Therefore for all other uses,
including employment, there is a need for any application to
satisfactorily demonstrate the need for the development and that it
cannot reasonably be met elsewhere. This would take into account
factors such as viability, the demand for various uses, land availability,
ownership, location, accessibility and suitability.

No evidence of need to provide employment provision immediately has
been provided, and needs case will be required as part of any reserved
matters application in the future to provide this usage.

Hotel

The assessment includes a comprehensive a range of evidence in
support of the development of a mid range,130-bed hotel within the
University’s development located within the district centre. It is evident
from this that there is no other provision planned within the northwest
quadrant of the city, which would meet the university’s needs. The
sequential assessment has proved that there are no city centre sites,
which are sequentially preferable to the application site. The food store,
a hotel and the senior living accommodation are all put forward as
enabling development additional to those put forward in the AAP to
secure additional capital and revenue funding for the proposed
development. These are valid arguments that support the application
and are in line with the National Planning Policy Framework.

174
Page 175



The assessment, however, is not entirely convincing in the
quantification of the future demand for hotel bedrooms in section 2.5 of
the assessment. Further evidence is needed to support the applicant’s
calculation of 23% market growth by 2018 and what this represents in
terms of bedrooms. On receipt of this officers would be able to assess
whether the scheme would be likely to prejudice other planned and
consented provision elsewhere in the City centre and inner city area
given the level of future provision for new hotel accommodation. It is
not possible to achieve this without adequate future quantification of
demand.

Strategic Housing

Having worked with the University over a period of time, they support
the principles of allocations, key worker housing characteristics and
clustering proposed.

They wish to see support mechanisms employed to assist key workers
settling into new job/area as well as home.

They welcome the Senior Care Facility, as it will assist in creating a mix
community, but consider that location close to shops and other facilities
to be key.

They require monitoring arrangements to be secured through S.106
and require further discussions with University around performance
information to be monitored.

Ecology and Biodiversity

The Ecology and Nature Conservation Environmental Statement (the
ES) concentrates on existing habitats (e.g. Washpit Brook, veteran
trees, hedgerows and ponds) and species (e.g. farmland birds, great
crested newts and badgers). Careful design in the masterplan has
sought to retain, protect and enhance these features, particularly with
regard to the western edge green corridor, although there are specific
comments within the ES that are challenged, such as the impact of
additional visitors on the Coton Countryside Reserve, the importance of
providing retained landscape features with sufficient space and
appropriate settings, as well as protection during development, whilst it
is unclear how the partial loss of a row of mature trees along Madingley
Road is to be mitigated.

Officers support the proposals overall, including the proposal to
mitigate the needs of arable dependent species off-site, but feel-
increased emphasis on habitat creation should be sought within the
built environment of the site. Little reference has been made to the
provision of biodiverse SuDS features and landscaping within the
public realm of these spaces, whilst they query the level of potential

175
Page 176



being sought from the green fingers within the development, including
challenging the minimum width of such spaces.

They request that more detail be given as to how design guides and
detailed drainage, landscape and planting proposals will be informed
by, or relate to, the statement.

With regard to the Biodiversity Strategy, officers are again broadly
supportive of the details contained therein, although comments are
made to seek clarification of some of the detailed components within
the strategy. One element that is not supported, except as a last resort,
is netting off trees to prevent birds from nesting, whilst local community
involvement in habitat management is welcomed, although queried as
to how it would be achieved and whether cost implications have been
factored in by the applicants.

Drainage and Flood Risk

The proposed scheme will provide a significant downstream reduction
in flood risk of between 10-25%, by utilising a control device in the
Washpit Brook, alongside the proposed attenuation of surface water
run-off and use of SuDS within the development. The modelled
information has been verified by the Environment agency and the
approach is fully supported.

The use of a number of methods to control the surface water discharge
will also improve the quality of the water entering the Brook, and is also
supported.

Given the nature of the proposals to date, further information will be
required to be submitted in respect of the following:
e The flow control structure in the Washpit Brook (prior to any
construction on site)
e Access provision for the maintenance of the Brook
A detailed surface water strategy to outline how attenuation on
site will be achieved, and provide a framework for each
individual plot Phasing of surface water infrastructure alongside
construction (the EA have also recommended such a condition).

Further to the above, the new development will place increased
demands upon the maintenance of the Washpit Brook by SCDC'’s
award drain team. The cost has been estimated at a total of £24,267
and can be recovered either through the S106 for the scheme, or
through the necessary Land Drainage Byelaw approval.

Informatives regarding the need for Byelaw approval, maintenance
strips for the Washpit Brook and details of any structures within the
watercourse and byelaw strips are also requested.

Disability Panel

176
Page 177



Generally commented that they recognised the outline status of the
application and look forward to further presentations in the future
regarding more detailed work. They did, however, make comments
regarding a number of areas, as follows:

¢ Internal site access and parking. The Panel noted that junction
layouts would not be submitted as part of this outline application,
which would be likely to follow through reserved matters
applications as the details were being worked through. The
submitted Transport Assessment, however, does specify the
number and type of car parking spaces. On-street parking will
be provided to allow the disabled to access the central space.
The overall strategy includes 1.5 parking spaces per dwelling
(market housing) with a smaller figure designated for student
accommodation.

To allow the safe movement of public transport, pedestrian and
cycle movement through the central space, measures such as
movable bollards to prevent cars, as well as changes to surface
texture should be included.

The Panel note the maximum speed throughout the site will be
20 mph.

e Central spaces - These are often inaccessible to the disabled,
with many likely to travel to the centre of Cambridge for their
shopping. Thought should be given to this during design work.

e Crossing points - These are particularly important to the partially
sighted as a method of route finding as well as crossing the
road. The Panel would welcome detail on these areas when
possible, but in the meantime would urge the design team to
liaise with Camsight http://www.camsight.org.uk/ during the
design stage. Merely making the site a 20mph zone does not
negate the need of crossing for disabled people of any disability.

e Accessible rooms - The Local Plan 2006 specifies that 6% of
student rooms should be accessible. Further detail on the
student accommodation as well as the other key facilities such
as the care home and hotel, would be of interest to the Panel
once these have been worked through.

Quality Panel

The panel highlighted a number of areas to commend the application,
notably the energy policy for the site, including the intention to build to
Code 5 homes and proposals for the energy centre. Whilst the
inclusion of the local centre in Phase 1 and the proposals for character
areas were also welcomed, as they would give a sense of place across
the site and would enable navigation. The panel also welcomed the
use of topography and the well thought out use of building heights
across the site.

However, they also concluded that there needs to be careful
consideration given to the social fabric of the site considering the two
occupancy groups and the likely different tenure and length of stay.

177
Page 178



There should be full integration of the site with surrounding areas
including the university west Cambridge site and existing and proposed
residential areas to the north and east, whilst facilities should be
available to the whole community living and working on the site.

Consideration should also be given to cycling uses and needs across
and within the site and also linkages to the city centre and university
uses to the south. In connectivity terms it is also important that greater
consideration is given to the park and ride and interaction with the site.
This will be a strong desire line and would help viability of the local
centre in the first development phases.

The Panel were also concerned about the indicative separation of the
cycle way and local centre. They did not accept the need for separating
the proposed ‘fast’ cycle lane from other uses. Cycle access across to
the NIAB site was also considered important particularly for secondary
school children.

At present they consider there to be a lack of detail to understand how
the spine road will work and how traffic will be slowed.

In terms of the green spaces around the site, the Panel were
encouraged by the proposals for the western edge, but consider that
thought needs to be given to the ambition of certain spaces, particularly
the ‘Girton Gap’ to help define a character.

Continuing that theme, the Panel were also concerned that there will
be a challenge in getting the relationship between the parts of the local
centre right, with particular concerns about what is ‘front’ and ‘back’
and how this will work as a place. Delineation of spaces and where and
how parking, including drop-off spaces for the school, is
accommodated has the potential to have a negative effect on
townscape if not correctly addressed.

Environmental Health

April 2012 Amendment Comments

The comments made previously are substantively unchanged. The
Environmental Impact Assessment and associated Environmental
Statement are in the main robust and acceptable. Accordingly, on
balance, officers do not object, in principle, to the application, subject to
the imposition of conditions, informatives, and S106 obligations to
mitigate the impact of the development as outlined previously.

September 2011 Submission Comments

Artificial lighting

The ES assesses the likely impact on existing residential properties
and new residential properties within the site. Artifical lighting should
provide an adequate level of lighting for safety and security without
compromising amenity or at worst causing a statutory light nuisance.

178
Page 179



The assessment of artificial lighting impact on residential sensitive
premises is generally comprehensive, robust and adequate. However,
there is no reference to section 2.9 of the North West AAP, and,
although there is a qualitative description/ review of existing lighting,
the ES doesn’t include quantitive objective measures in terms of lux
levels to characterize the ILE Guidance Notes (2005) District
Environmental Zones E1 to E4 stated for identified receptors. In order
to benchmark the existing levels of lighting on and in the immediate
vicinity of the site, illuminance readings (light spill/trespass) should
have been taken and recorded at representative sensitive
receptors/monitoring locations.

If carefully designed in accordance with the mitigation measures
proposed, the artificial lighting proposed should not have an adverse
impact. Conditions are suggested to require lighting scheme for
reserved matters submissions, and the impact of construction lighting
should be controlled through a Construction Environment Management
Plan (CEMP). Design codes (or similar) should include a section on
artificial lighting.

Soils and Geology

The review of historic maps and the site walkover recorded potential
sources of contamination including laboratories, former gravel and
quarry pits and above ground fuel tanks. Some of these areas have
been investigated and others have not.

A total of thirty-nine boreholes were undertaken and thirty-three soil
samples were collected and tested for a variety of contaminants. The
investigation did not record any significant contamination, however
further testing on site should include areas of the former and existing
buildings, in the areas of the proposed gardens and made ground.
Further ground gas monitoring around the areas for highest potential
for ground gas generation is also recommended.

A condition is suggested to cover the outstanding contamination issues
above.

Noise

Following the ES assessment officers are on the whole satisfied with
approach taken to assess the significance of impact and the approach
and methodology used for impact evaluation, prediction (nature, extent
and magnitude of noise impact) and mitigation measure identification.
It should be noted that the noise assessment is based upon inputs from
a satisfactory traffic assessment.

The noise assessment is robust and comprehensive and considers the
potential impacts, including the suitability of the site for the proposed

179
Page 180



mixed-use development. It also assesses construction noise and
vibration effects as well as the future impact of operational road traffic
noise, and operational noise generated by the proposed uses of the
site itself.

The assessment approach detailed and topics covered are
comprehensive. The methodology proposed is generally in
accordance with best practice and guidance for undertaking a
significance of impact / effect noise assessment and ultimately the
consideration of mitigation measures to avoid, reduce or remedy any
significant adverse impacts as necessary.

For each phase of the proposed development, it is stated that detailed
method statements based on the Construction Environment
Management Plan (CEMP) will be provided and appropriate methods
will be implemented to avoid, reduce or manage any disturbance due
to construction noise and vibration. The best practical means detailed
to mitigate construction noise and vibrations are welcomed and
acceptable. The CEMP should be conditioned.

As the final layout and footprints of residential premises are not
currently finalised and are detailed design issues it is, therefore,
recommended that a phased noise insulation scheme condition for
proposed noise sensitive residential premises be imposed to provide
an adequate level of protection internally and externally against traffic
noise associated with the M11/A14, Huntington Road and the internal
primary road routes.

In terms of the energy centre and fixed plant further quantitative noise
assessment with detailed specifications are only likely to be available
at the detailed design stages and, therefore, a noise insulation type
condition is required for buildings and plant / equipment.

On balance it is their view that acceptable engineering noise mitigation
measures are achievable for residential and can be implemented to
provide an adequate level of protection internally and externally against
traffic noise associated with the M11/A14, Huntington Road and the
internal primary road routes. A condition is recommended to secure
the necessary information at the detailed stage. Conditions are also
suggested for construction noise and vibration, and demolition.

Some additional clarification should be provided on the significance of
impact caused by two of the new primary accesses to the site which
run parallel and close to the existing residential properties.

The open spaces within the western edge are considered acceptable
providing that the landscaping on the western edge is conditioned or
designed into the scheme.

180
Page 181



Several conditions are suggested in relation to the local centre and the
uses proposed such as the foodstore to protect the future amenity of
local residents.

Air Quality

The air quality modelling presented in the ES shows that, as a result of
this development, air quality in the Cambridge City and SCDC air
quality management areas (AQMASs) is contrary to policy.

Development could be designed to lessen the impact on air quality, or
mitigation could be proposed to minimise further the negative air quality
impacts. The proposed development already has a significant number
of such design and mitigation features- although there are some areas
where further measures should be considered and integrated into the
development proposals to overcome the negative impact on air quality.

There are some limitations to the model provided, however, it generally
shows that air quality deteriorates within the Cambridge Air Quality
Management Area as a result of the first phase of development Victoria
Road is the worst affected. Air quality also deteriorates within the
Cambridge Air Quality Management Area as a result of the second
phase of development.

Air quality deteriorates within the South Cambridgeshire Air Quality
Management Area as a result of the first phase of development. The
worst affected area is on Huntingdon Road, close to the boundary with
Cambridge City. In addition, air quality deteriorates within the South
Cambridgeshire Air Quality Management Area as a result of the
second phase of development.

Going forward the emissions reduction measures suggested within the
application are welcomed should be secured along with making sure
there are no trip attractors on site, making sure NIAB has its own
facilities and that the community hubs proposed here are established
early on in the development. A low emissions strategy should also be
conditioned.

Waste

Both City and SCDC have a number of concerns with regard to waste
provision on the site. The proposal of the underground communal bins
(UCBs) at this stage cannot be supported, as there are a number of
outstanding issues that need to be resolved before they can be
accepted by the waste collection authority.

The developer’'s preferred waste management option, UCBs, could
potentially present the WCA with additional operational and financial
risks when compared with the WCA baseline wheeled bin service.

181
Page 182



There is insufficient detail in the business case for a whole site UCB
solution, particularly for low-density and medium density residential
housing, to support the strategy’s assertion that this represents the
best waste management solution.

Insufficient information is contained within the strategy in relation to
proposals for the student accommodation and arrangements for
assisted collections for houses on the site. Information has not been
included in the waste strategy regarding phasing and how this will be
managed, ensuring that the collection authority does not incur
additional costs, over phased baseline costs; this is required in
advance.

The Site Waste Management Plan should aspire to high standards of
reuse and recycling by segregating all waste types on site through the
operation of a ‘site waste management station’ with ‘reuse store’ for off
cuts and surplus items.

The Sustainable Resource and Waste Management Strategy makes
reference to travel distances for residents to waste storage points. The
districts do not support any proposal for these distances to be
extended beyond 30m to 50m as permitted by the Code for
Sustainable Homes. Equally the districts do not support the proposal
for street widths to be less than 5m.

Odour

The ES does not appear to consider the impact of possible odour
generation. Any proposed non-residential uses such as academic
research, dry cleaners, food premises and the proposed in-vessel
composting arrangements have the potential to generate odour.
Conditions to cover this are therefore suggested.

Health Impact Assessment

The scope and content of the report within the ES is acceptable. There
is a recommendation in section 10, which suggests that further HIA
work may be required as the scheme progresses. This is agreeable
but it is recommended that the scope of this further work be agreed as
the scheme progresses and submitted for approval in due course.

Conservation/Heritage

The Design, Access and Landscape Statement is a comprehensive
document, and the commitment within the documents to high quality is
welcomed along with many of the design cues quoted.

The analysis of views into and out of the area is supported, there are
no dramatic views of the City Centre from the site or the M11, however
the importance of the wider setting is still relevant. The impact on the

182
Page 183



adjacent Conservation Areas and listed buildings, as well as
undesignated heritage assets (such as the former Country Centre —
now the Hotel Felix) will depend very much on detail and things such
as the quality of materials proposed.

There is some concern over the height of the buildings proposed in the
Storey’s Field section of the site as this will have an impact on Churchill
College and the West Cambridge Conservation Area. The design of the
buildings in this area and any ‘landmark’ building proposed will need to
take the sensitive surroundings into account. The strategic gap could
be improved with the removal of the sports pitches that could detract
from the green corridor effect.

Landscape
April 2012 Amendment Comments

As before, they consider that the landscape proposals have been
thought through thoroughly and are of good quality. However, a
number of detailed points remain of concern that will need to be
addressed through the reserved matters process.

These are:

e Street sections — space for trees and surface water drainage.

e Street parking — over dependence on this will mean large
competition for space in street scene and may undermine
broader landscape principles being promoted if not properly
addressed.

e Green corridors — additional width welcomed, but would wish to
see stipulation that at least 30m will be required where these
spaces are providing for a combination of paths, surface water
management, tree planting, play areas between buildings above
3 storeys.

e SuDS sections — these will be dry most of the time. As such,
details should reflect their impact upon visual amenity. Depths
and gradients of swales will be required, alongside any
additional features such as retaining walls.

o Western edge — this proposed landform will have to provide a
number of functions and will form a prominent part of the site
and approach to the city when viewed from outside of the site.
As such, its detailing will be very important. Gradients greater
than 1:3 for public areas and landscape purposes cannot be
supported, as anything steeper will be difficult to either walk on,
plant or maintain. They understand that the western edge will be
provided in phases and that height of bunds will potentially vary
by +/- 2.5m, depending upon degree of cut and fill required
within the development site. Given that this could create
significant various in heights, regard should be had to condition
that gradients will not exceed 1:3 over 95% of the area open to
public access and that bunds in these areas shall not vary in

183
Page 184



height by more than +/- 1.5m. The northern part of the western
edge should have a rural grassland/meadow character rather
than lawn.

Flood plain — the concept proposals offer an exciting opportunity
for landscape, water management, ecology and aesthetics.
They look forward to seeing detailed design proposals.
Earthworks — full details will need to include: phasing, types of
material to be excavated, haul routes, sections through the
proposed landform on western edge, sections through
watercourse enhancements for ecology, explanations of
temporary states of landforms and transition arrangements,
construction details and specification of landforms.

Veteran Oak (and Ash Tree) — concern that the Ash Tree is not
shown on plans as retained, and that sufficient space for Oak is
allowed for to protect its root zone.

Access to open space — this needs to be explained, particularly
in respect of phased access during construction.

Protection of existing vegetation — standard planning condition
required.

Potential for advance planting — areas should be investigated,
together with details for delivery and protection.

Allotments — further detail required in respect of number, layout,
management etc.

New highways junctions — they appreciate the level of detail
provided to date, but are concerned that not all vegetation to be
removed has presently been identified. They require further
information ahead of works, particularly in respect of Madingley
Road west junction. Also, they are not convinced that the
indicative landscape proposals are suitable — this will require
further engagement and submission of details.

Parameter plans 05, 06, 07 — they would appreciate a simpler
way of calculating building heights.

Ridgeway — need to consider impact upon large trees adjoining
— root zones, construction methodology etc.

Street lighting — they do not support path lighting in the western
edge — this should be omitted.

Existing Chestnut Avenue — buildings are shown hard against
this avenue. Apart from root zone protection, they would also
question whether this is a satisfactory approach, given long-term
maintenance implications of crown spread etc.

Courtyard landscapes and private gardens — minimum sizes
should be calculated using the BRE report to ensure these are
useable and allow sunlight into them. Spaces around buildings
must be able to accommodate large tree species to reflect
design aspirations in masterplan.

Bin collection — underground bins are generally supported, but
further work needs to be undertaken to incorporate these with
other street and landscape functions successfully.

184
Page 185



o Site Wide Management — this should be expanded upon in the
DALS to explain how future management will work across the
whole site, in conjunction with individual land parcels given
impact and success upon long-term design and appearance.

e Spaces for Teenagers — spaces currently indicatively shown as
being located in isolated areas. This should be avoided as an
approach going forward.

September 2011 Submission Comments

Landscape officers consider that the documentation is generally
comprehensive and the proposals for this important edge of the City
are exciting and full of potential.

With regard to the western edge it is going to be very important to
calculate correctly the cut and fill and the parameter plans will need to
be looked at again to ensure that this is achieved especially in relation
to the Washpit Brook. Further information should be sought in relation
to advanced planting, which is in principle supported.

The strategic gap needs to function well and details such as ball stop
fencing, high level lighting, service buildings etc. need to be well
thought out at the detailed stage to avoid harming the gap. The green
corridors that run across the site are strategically supported, however,
they need to be at least 30 metres in width in order to accommodate
SuDS, cycle and pedestrian path, tree planting etc., 20 metres would
not be wide enough.

There is concern over the sections shown in the Design, Access and
Landscape Statement for the roads within the development. They do
not show enough distance from adjacent buildings and could lead to
future pressure to reduce the size/crown. The solution would be to
move the cycle way adjacent to the footpath and have the planting
between the cycleway and the road to help visually narrow the road
and give room for the planting. There is also concern in relation to the
loss of tree planting around the new junctions particularly the one on
Madingley Road and an alternative solution for the Park and Ride to
use this access (and remove the P&R access, and replant the
frontage) should be investigated.

Various elements of detail, and possible conditions have been
highlighted which can be followed through either as a condition at this
stage or necessary detail at the reserved matter stage.

Community, Sports and Open Space
The scheme meets the standards for outdoor sport, informal space and

community provision in the outline application, however the application
is lacking in detail which will be needed at the reserved matters stage.

185
Page 186



There is a general need to agree details on the management of
facilities before agreement of the application.

The University will need to clearly demonstrate that the proposed
community provision is appropriate for the projected demographic, both
in the early years of the development and long term. The proposed
design consultation, flexibility and adherence to a national body’s
design guide are welcomed but will need further development.

In terms of indoor sport, the balance of indoor sports hall provision
across the NW Quadrant maybe met via the NIAB development and, if
the plans go ahead, at the West Cambridge Site (subject to a good
level of public access). If this is the case then there is scope for
dialogue on how best to provide for indoor sport on this site.

We would require full details of how the proposed 450sqgm will work,
and ensure that there is no duplication with the proposed community
space. There would be no scope for on-going revenue support so any
business plan would need to be robust.

The provision of the Community Centre is supported, which could be
co-located with indoor sport. Early provision of this facility is essential
to the development and it must act as an early focal point to the
development. The facility must be available to the full community on
the site.

Provision of allotments on the site is supported and a joint allocation
policy would need to be agreed. The application demonstrates that
pitches can be sited on the open space, however the details shown do
not show detail in terms of buffer strips, alignment, size etc.

The standards for outdoor on-site sports provision cannot be met
without the provision of an all weather pitch, therefore one would be
expected at reserved matters stage. The application makes adequate
provision for informal open space and play areas.

Public Art

Overall the submission of the Public Art Strategy (‘PAS’) is welcome
and has much to commend it. The strategic themes and community
engagement proposed as part of the commissioning are also
welcomed. However, there are a few areas where clarity/additions are
requested:

e Public Art principles in Section 3 that inform the strategy are
unclear. The PAS should identify how art will contribute to place
making, and the creation of a distinctive local identity, but fails to
makes this clear at present. This clarification is required in
relation to a number of strands in the PAS.

e Clarification of the term ‘Major Commission’

186
Page 187



e Concerns that the education strand is being driven by the
needs/desire of the University, rather than by the development
itself. It would fail CIL tests if not directly related to development

needs.
e Unclear how the applicants will deliver the aims of the PAS on
the ground throughout the scheme. - Questions over

management and delivery of programme through individual
development phases, particularly where land ownership may
change and individual developers may seek to restrict access to
sites. More information is needed as to mechanisms that will be
put into place to secure long-term cohesion and delivery of
strategy on the ground.

e The engagement with the Local Planning Authorities needs to
also address their role prior to artist commissioning and detailed
project development.

e PAS needs to address the aspiration to work with the County
Council to deliver public art within the school.

¢ No direct phasing or contextual details regards PAS across the
site.

e No methodology has been provided to understand how the
individual budgets have been allocated to each strand within the
PAS. This should be provided.

Sustainability
April 2012 Amendment Comments

Original comments still stand, although the applicant has provided
greater information in respect to the implementation of green roofs
within the development and the phasing of the CHP and community
heating network.

The information regards the use of green roofs provides some comfort
to officers, although they would still continue to encourage the
applicant to pursue the use of such technology wherever possible.

In respect to the phasing of CHP, the information provided allowing for
localised connections to individual plots as required provides the
clarification that officers required, and is supported.

September 2011 Submission Comments

Fully support the way in which the University and its development team
have embraced the NWC AAP for this to be an exemplar development,
and the detailed and comprehensive level of information that has been
presented. Equally supportive of the proposal to incorporate a district
wide energy network, and appreciate the need for a modular system to
reflect long-term nature of development.

187
Page 188



Clarity from the University that the necessary utilities infrastructure will
be provided from the outset for the district heating network would be
welcomed.

Encourage the University to establish baseline of exemplar
sustainability standards for designs, construction techniques and
materials through testing and monitoring. An example may be to
develop some units to particular exemplar standards.

Encourage the University to reconsider the approach to the use of
green roofs. Contrary to claims in the application, such roofs can
complement solar thermal and pv solutions. They note previous
compatibility issues with rainwater harvesting, but also consider that
technological advances would serve to overcome these.

Cycling and Walking Officer
April 2012 Amendment Comments

Whilst a number of changes within the application are welcomed,
notably in respect of changes to the Huntingdon Road west junction;
the retention of the on-road outbound cycle lane within the Huntingdon
Road east junction; and the reconfiguring of the Madingley Road east
junction, a number of significant concerns exist with regard to the
detailed designs proposed for the new junctions, summarised as
follows:

Huntingdon Road East junction includes a left turn vehicular lane,
reducing priority and safety of cyclists and pedestrians. A redesign to
two lanes would make the junction safer for both categories of user.
The link to the NIAB cycle/pedestrian orbital route is welcomed but
needs further detail, which should be conditioned. Consideration
should be given to the inclusion of a raised table within the design.

The new Madingley Road west junction poses a significant detrimental
impact to cyclists given the realignment of the cycle route to include a
significant off-set against the obvious desire line and passage through
a 2-stage junction. This will serve to lengthen and dis-incentivise the
route to cyclists, given the likely increase in vehicular traffic along the
road as a result of the development and where a west-bound, in-
carriageway solution doesn’t exist or would be considered safe given
the need to cross the M11 slip-road. Mitigation should be provided, with
a number of potential solutions available, including changes to the
existing Park and Ride junction, and an upgrade to the Coton footpath
route to divert cyclists away from these busy traffic areas.

Link to Girton should be controlled by condition to secure additional
detail necessary to ensure the safety of the link/crossing of Huntingdon
Road.

Existing accesses in the proximity of the new link with Storey’s Way
should have give-way markings at the junctions with the
cycle/pedestrian route.

188
Page 189



Further to the above comments, there is also concern that, although
the application sets out an aspiration for a 20mph speed limit, given the
attractiveness of the site as a through-route from Huntingdon Road to
Madingley Road, achieving this limit will prove to be a challenge.
Further detail of controlled crossings of the primary streets will be
required to ensure safe passage around the site. Similar concerns with
regard to control of speeds within secondary and tertiary streets exist
given indicative street sections at present.

The 2m wide cycle lanes and indicative street sections for the primary
streets are welcomed and supported. Crossing of side roads should be
designed to ensure pedestrian/cycling priority.

The pinch-point in the road near to the WCMC building has the
potential to be hostile to pedestrians. Consideration should be given to
the removal of this vehicular link, given potentially more attractive links
elsewhere in the site.

The indicative location for cycle parking within residential plots poses
potential access issues. Detailed design consideration will need to be
given to resolve concerns that such facilities will go un-used and result
in a proliferation of adhoc cycle parking in the street.

S.106 contributions should be sought for provision of city cycle maps,
amendments to cycle network signage and subsidised cycle training for
new residents and employees.

September 2011 Submission Comments

Whilst welcoming the inclusion of 2m wide cycle lanes on the principle
streets within the development, the officer raises a number of concerns
about principle design elements across the site, and specific elements
of the various junctions and streets within the scheme. In summary,
concerns are as follows:

Although roads are to be designed to 20mph across the site, the
indicative straight nature of some of the roads is likely to encourage
higher vehicle speeds and rat running, whilst junction designs make
vehicular movements too easy, to the detriment of pedestrians.
Location of cycle lanes needs to be carefully considered to avoid
potential conflict with car doors opening and allow for priority when
crossing junctions/side roads and create connectivity.

Concern that pedestrian crossings across principal streets to green
fingers will be difficult to incorporate safely given dominant vehicular
flow.

Connectivity of the Ridgeway to Huntingdon Road and across to Girton
Road and at its southern end to Storey’s Way should be provided, in
combination with how crossing principle streets will be achieved.

The orbital cycle route is welcomed, as is the one-stage toucan
crossing connecting the NIAB site. Further consideration should be

189
Page 190



given to how this will cross Whitehouse Lane and the open spaces to
the cycleway.

Design of JJ Thompson Avenue/Madingley Rise, Huntingdon Road
East and West and Madingley Road West junctions all present
potential issues regarding priority and ease of accessibility for
pedestrians and cyclists. A number of suggestions are made as to how
the junctions could be improved to resolve such concerns.

The Madingley Road cycle improvements are welcomed and should be
funded by the University.

Any combined cycle/pedestrian path must be a minimum of 3m width.
The indicative details of the tertiary streets and locations for cycle
parking are disappointing and would not be welcomed at the detailed
design stage.

The Travel plan is welcomed and should include contribution towards
cost of printing and design of cycle maps.

190
Page 191



APPENDIX F

NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS

4 All Souls Lane

8 Landsdown Road

10 All Souls Lane

lllyria, 12 Landsdown Road

3 Ascham Road

7 The Lawns

Bakers Field, Dry Drayton

Flat 8, 41 Madingley Road

140 Brandwood Rd, Kings Heath, B’ham

19a Madingley Road

1 Bunkers Hill, Girton

34 Madingley Road

30a Cambridge Road, Girton

36 Madingley Road

Avalon, 69 Cambridge Road, Girton

1 Marion Close

68 Canterbury Street

6 Marion Close

87 Castle Street

Camboro Farm House, Oakington Road,
Girton

10 Church Lane, Girton

4 Oakington Road, Girton

7 The Crescent, Storey’s Way

14 Oxford Road

Clements End, Conduit Head Road

38 Oxford Road

Conduit Rise, Conduit Head Road

58 Oxford Road

Conduit Head and Conduit Tail, Conduit
Head Road

112 Oxford Road

Cobbers, Conduit Head Road

10 Pepys Court

Shawms, Conduit Head Road

15 Pettitts Close, Dry Drayton

14 Conduit Head Road

23 Priory Street

18 Conduit Head Road

5 Richmond Road

22 Conduit Head Road

95 Richmond Road

42 Conduit Head Road

32 Selwyn Gardens

St John’s Innovation Centre, Cowley Rd

3 St Christopher’'s Ave

3 Croft Close

Mason’s Garden, St Peter’s Street

42 Dodford Lane, Girton

27 Sherlock Close

30 Eachard Road

6 Sherlock Court

8 Girton Road, Girton (x2)

16 Sherlock Road

38 Girton Road, Girton

45 Somerset Road

74 Girton Road, Girton

3 Sterndale Close

143 Girton Road, Girton

5 Storey’s Way

3 Hale Avenue

7 Storey’s Way

Girton Corner, Huntingdon Rd, Girton
(x2)

32a Storey’s Way

Huntingfields, Huntingdon Road, Girton

34 Storey’s Way

New Hayes, Huntingdon Road, Girton

54 Storey’s Way

West Acre, Huntingdon Road, Girton

30 Suez Road

143 Huntingdon Road

Dept of Pharmacology, Tennis Court
Road

145 Huntingdon Road (x2)

12 Thornton Close, Girton

147 Huntingdon Road

19 Thornton Close, Girton

151 Huntingdon Road

20 Thornton Close, Girton

161 Huntingdon Road

33 Thornton Close, Girton

163 Huntingdon Road

8 Thornton Court, Girton

165 Huntingdon Road

25 Thornton Court, Girton

177 Huntingdon Road

48 Thornton Court, Girton

179 Huntingdon Road

45 Thornton Road, Girton (x2)

183a Huntingdon Road

127 Thornton Road, Girton

191

Page 192




184 Huntingdon Road

43 Thornton Way, Girton

Flat 1, 197 Huntingdon Road

8 Trinity Close, Balsham

Flat 3, 197 Huntingdon Road

Bidwells, Trumpington Road

199 Huntingdon Road

153 Wellbrook Way, Girton

UNEP WCMC, 219 Huntingdon Road

59 Windsor Road

1 Landsdown Road

60 Windsor Road

3 Landsdown Road (x2)

111 Windsor Road

Trinity Farm, Huntingdon Road

51 Woodlark Road

4 Landsdown Road

Principle of Development

The proposal is an example of urban sprawl, and unacceptable the loss
of green spaces (lungs).

Is the development necessary and do we need all the new facilities?

It is both surprising and disappointing that an area just a few years ago
regarded a significant Green Belt should be developed.

The development (along with Northstowe) will destroy Girton as a
village.

The proposal is contrary to the sentiment of parliament leading up to
their localism bill- it is the duty of the local authority to hold a
referendum into the desirability and need for development of this
nature.

The development in this area is an unfair burden for residents of this
part of the City to bear.

Degradation of existing Green Belt around Cambridge and continual
erosion of boundaries between Cambridge and Girton.

The proposal is a reversal of half a century of planning policy aiming to
preserve Green Belt land in the area.

Public opinion has turned against development driven primarily by
economic benefit at the expense of the environment.

Appreciate the need for post- graduate accommodation, however,
concern over the other development to be built.

There has been no evidence for the need for this and other
developments other than Cambridge needs more houses. Are there
enough employers wanting to move to Cambridge - a lot of existing
office space elsewhere remains unused.

Overall a disappointing vision for the development- the development
should be in bite size sites across the city.

The scale of the development is too large and these developments
(inc. NIAB site) no longer respect the character of the existing area.
The Green Belt serves as the lungs of the city and it should be
prioritised.

The short sighted economic benefit should not be at the cost of a
sustainable development.

There is very weak justification for the development.

Does the University really need this development- what it needs is
good quality staff paid at a competitive level of remuneration- not a
large village including a care home.

192
Page 193



Has the impact on the environment been assessed?

This will destroy the rural feel of the city.

Has the impact of doubling the city’s physical size been considered in
terms of facilities and resources?

The development results in the loss of 125ha of agricultural land.

e Support for the necessity of the research development proposed,
however, objections to the use of the Green Belt for residential
development.

This seems like a very exciting and cutting edge development.

e When looking at the map of Cambridge this fills in an awkward gap
next to the M11.

o |like it, please go quickly.

Manifestly the University needs space to expand if it is to maintain its
status and Cambridge should do all it can to support the University- the
general principle is therefore supported.

Urban Design Principles, Scale and Visual Impact

The proposal will destroy one of the best gateways into Cambridge.
The development is out of scale and is a new town in its own right.

If the development has to go ahead then it should be reduced by at
least an order of magnitude in order to preserve some of the green
space.

e Zones P and Q, at a height of 15 metres will be too dense, and visible
and will overshadow the Huntingdon Road properties.

e The scheme should be a much more modest proposal of University
uses and private accommodation.

The design of the site should be of the highest quality (like Accordia).

e The proposal cannot be considered a s respecting the character and
context of the site and the surrounding area.

e The character of the buildings should be imaginative and local people
should be able to express opinions on design.

e The submission is too prescriptive and heights given here could be
undesirable, but not able to be refused at the detailed stage.

e The low density housing will require articulation.

e Some changes to the layout of the local centre could add more interest
and work much better and connect better to the open space.

e The character of Girton will be lost as this development is very large
and will result in the loss of the boundary between Girton and
Cambridge.

e The proposal should not be overly vast or overly dense- which at the
moment it isn’t, but any additional increase would not be sustainable.

e Any landmark buildings greater than three storeys high should be
located away from the development.

¢ Going forward the design stages should involve public consultation and
interaction.

e The density of the development needs to be seriously revised.

The houses must be in character with the area.

193
Page 194



Cambridge is losing its character and this will erode it further.

Student accommodation should be in 13 storey apartments.

The concept of the development is good.

The proposals, as far as they can be judged at this stage, offer the
prospect of a functional and attractive urban environment.

Support for the low density housing adjacent to the Huntingdon Road
properties and All Souls Lane properties with a limit of 10 metres in
height and 20m back gardens.

Residential Amenity

The Ridge and Furrow field should have limited public access to
ensure that there is a protection of amenity for Landsdowne Road
properties.

The buildings in zones S, P and Q will overshadow, overlook and
cause a loss of privacy to properties along Huntingdon Road.

Zone S is only 20 metres away from the Huntingdon Road properties
and 10 metres high. It is considered that these should be reduced in
height and have longer back gardens to protect amenity.

Zone R on the parameter plan proposes buildings at 15m high which is
too high and will have an impact on the amenity of neighbouring
properties in Conduit Head Road as well as the Conservation Area.
Steps should be taken to reduce this down to 10 metres and set back
from the boundary (along with planting) to protect amenity.

Concern expressed over the space adjacent to the burial ground - will
impact the amenity of that space.

The cemetery area is a quiet place and the avenue adjacent to it
should be removed to retain the tranquillity, and there should be no
access through.

The avenue up to the cemetery will create a short cut from the
development and will be vandalised, losing a special part of
Cambridge.

There is no justification for the view of the Cemetery, as the view is
very restricted. This element should be removed and replaced with
houses.

The plans need revising to increase the separation of the development
from surrounding properties and a reduction in the general density of
the site.

Conditions should be imposed:

o To link any reserved matters submission to the information
provided in the outline submission with regard to layout
drawings of the neighbourhoods.

o So that only detached dwellings can be erected adjacent to
properties on Huntingdon Road with rear gardens backing onto
the gardens of adjacent properties.

o That the dwellings (backing onto Huntingdon Road) shall not
exceed 10 metres in height and a minimum of 30 metres back
garden and have no rooms in the roofspace).

194
Page 195



o To establish landscaping treatment along the shared boundary
including landscaping bunds.
o To remove permitted development rights to stop the above
points being undermined.

No footpaths or roads should be created at the back of the gardens for
the low density housing backing onto Huntingdon Road/All Souls Lane.
No wind turbines or large solar panels should be provided to the
houses on the edge of the site.
The lighting for these houses should not impinge on the amenity of
neighbouring properties.
Limits to noise for construction should be imposed.
The impact of noise from roads on Conduit Head Road will impact on
quality of life.
Concern over the height of the development, which will not be in
character with the surrounding properties. Buildings similar to botanic
house are not appropriate to the area.
The local centre and access road will be in close proximity to Conduit
Head Road harming amenity.
The impact on properties in Conduit Head Road has been ignored.
The large University buildings adjacent to properties on Conduit Head
Road should be reconsidered.
What assurances will residents have that the proposals here will be
followed through at the detailed stage?
Properties should have some defensible space next to the road,
however small and show a clear public and private side. This is largely
the case shown here.
Support for the low density housing on the edge of the site providing
that the 20m back gardens are retained and the dwellings are only 10m
high.

In addition to the above a request was received for a Development
Control Forum in relation to the following issue

e The green strip of land adjacent to the Ascension Burial Ground
could easily be the beginning of using the cemetery as a short cut
into the city. Damage could then be caused by vandalism etc.

e The burial ground is a quiet place for reflection, but is also culturally
important and this green space could simply become a
thoroughfare.

Open Space and Recreation

The development will result in the destruction of one of the few
remaining green areas of the City- it is short sighted and unjustifiable.
The Ridge and Furrow field should have limited public access to
ensure that there is a protection of amenity for Landsdowne Road
properties.

The Girton Gap appears to be a mere nod to the Green Belt rather than
a physical separation.

195
Page 196



e There is not enough separation with Girton- the Girton Gap is not really
in Girton is it?

e There should be swimming provision on site, not simply contributions
off site- are residents expected to use Chesterton or Parker’'s Piece?

e Houses and gardens should back onto the burial ground.

e Opportunity should be taken here to plant some new woodland, readily
accessible to the public.

e Concern over how the ridge and furrow field will be maintained, and
concerns over potential illegal squatting.

e The green link past the school playing fields (where there is a pinch
point) should be expanded with a change in the school playing field
shape. The movement of the northern pitches would also help the
green space.

e Some of the common internal landscaped areas should be limited to a
through route only.

e The open space next to the M11 will be very noisy and there may not
be sufficient open space as a result.

e Grazing on the ridge and furrow field should be encouraged.

The open space next to the burial ground should not be a noisy use
and should have a strong and impermeable boundary.

e Careful consideration needs to be given to existing features such as
hedgerows on the site.

e The open space should be adopted by the City Council or the
University and home owners should not be expected to pay double
council tax.

e The neglected hedge between Conduit Head Road and the ridge and
furrow field should be re-established.

e The central open space should be widened and made bigger as the
western edge is unusable.

e The western edge has been handled well.

Retention of the ridge and furrow field is supported, the access from
Madingley Road could go through the P&R to help its preservation.

Affordable Housing and Dwelling Mix

e Cambridge is becoming a city for the rich, more social housing should
be provided.

Education
e Surprise at the lack of secondary school provision and lack of library
facilities.
e No secondary school which means people will have to access schools
off site which has been a problem elsewhere.

Community Facilities/Local Centre

196
Page 197



The cultural, economic, political and social implications have been
given limited consideration, and the impact on local infrastructure and
facilities are not clear.

This site represents adding 20% to the population of the city.

There should be space set aside for faith within the community centre.
The University should continue to consult with faith representatives
during this process and going forward.

What benefits will | see as a Cambridge resident?

Cambridge City Centre is not big enough to cope with all the additional
people.

The school, health centre and community facilities should be built first
as existing facilities are stretched.

Concern that the supermarket will increase in size and attract too much
traffic.

The University must be required to contribute to the quadrant wide
infrastructure such as secondary school, library, Police touchdown
space.

The area should be more alive outside of working hours- sufficient
social venues should be provided so that the atmosphere at West
Cambridge is not replicated.

There is concern that there could be separation from the University and
the rest of the city- efforts need to be made to ensure enclaves are not
created within the development.

Key worker housing will be bad for university staff whose home will be
tied to their job, removing flexibility.

Pleased to see that fostering the community is a high priority.

Pleased to see that the community facilities will be accessible to the
existing community.

Support for the 4 dwellings to be set aside for faith representatives.

Sustainable Construction and Design

Is the energy centre an alternative name for a power station? If so how
is it powered?

Concern that the district heating proposals won’t be regulated, driving
up cost with lack of competition.

Code level 5 homes is to be applauded.

Drainage and Flood Risk

The back of Huntingdon Road properties flood in winter due to the
water table- concern that the houses that are backing onto these
properties will exacerbate the problem.

We are already in a drought area and there will be a greatly increased
need for water as a result of the development.

Extra pressure on water resources is a problem- Cambridge is semi-
arid.

Increased water demand adds further strain to the sustainability of
water suppliers.

197
Page 198



Where is all the surface water going to go and stop flooding in Girton.
Flooding from Beck Brook at the Oakington Road end of Girton is
important and could do with better maintenance- this end of Girton
should not be forgotten.

The drainage data in the application gives concern that the strategy in
place will not account for the slow build up of water downstream- it is
not clear how the water retention system empties completely so that
the preceding days water doesn’t compromise the efficiency of the
system.

The significant tarmac areas will increase the flooding downstream.
The development will cause flash flooding in Washpit Brook.

The proposed weir should be supplemented with an adjustable flood
gate so that the height of the weir can be increased.

If the developers are confident in their modelling then they should
underwrite any damaged caused by flooding for houses at the bottom
of Dodford Lane and along Oakington Road.

Transport

Transport Assessment

The proposals cannot accord with planning policy unless the transport
infrastructure can cope with the increase in traffic that the proposal will
generate.

Huntingdon Road and Madingley Road will not be able to cope with the
traffic generated by this development.

Huntingdon Road and Madingley Road are already congested at peak
times, this development will make the situation worse.

Cambridge traffic is already at saturation point and building all the new
development will mean that the City will be gridlocked.

It is not accepted that traffic along Huntingdon Road may fall as a
result of this development.

There will be uplift in use of the A14 as a result of this development.
Have realistic assumptions been made with regard to the traffic
assessment especially the level of car ownership and car usage?

It is naive to think that that people on this site will not use their cars.
Journey time will be increased for existing residents.

Concern that it will outrun the +1% estimate on which the project relies.
Various planning consultants including the 2010 food study of North
West Cambridge consistently under estimate the amount of traffic
demand.

The proposed supermarket will generate significant traffic to the site.
Concerns over the increase of traffic through Windsor Road and Oxford
Road.

Increase in traffic will arise from the extra uses such as hotels, leisure
facilities etc.

School, medical centre and research space will all add to the traffic
generation.

198
Page 199



The proposal for further toucan crossing on Huntingdon Road will
create further backing up of traffic (already starting to happen on the
back of the NIAB junction)- minimising the number of controlled
crossings is suggested.

The junctions will cause delays in the traffic flow meaning that the
traffic could back up to the A14.

All 8,500 people on this site will want to use Cambridge City centre at
some point.

The A14 is notorious for bad congestion- and the government has
recently withdrawn the proposed improvements- a new report is
expected in 2012, and no development should be considered until that
has been published.

The development should be conditional on upgrading the A14 and M11
junctions.

The traffic impact seems to reply on hope and expectation in the
solutions proposed.

The notion that the car use can be reduced and the A14 can be made
less problematic appear to be pipe dreams.

The aim of 40% of residents to travel to work by car is an estimation,
even 39% will have an unacceptable impact on the road network.

The other uses on the site such as hotel, employment space and
supermarket will create a large number of HGVs to and from the site.
The traffic lights at the ‘car wash’ end (Murkett's Corner) will be a
complete bottle neck.

Transport modelling needs to consider live-in partners- where will they
work and how will they get there.

The speed limit on Madingley Road should be limited to 30 mph.

The exit opposite Thornton Road will cause delays for people exiting
this road.

The impact of all these developments will result in more traffic
accidents and gridlock on the surrounding roads.

Any increase in traffic along Oxford and Windsor road is considered
undesirable and will conflict with Mayfield School.

It is not realistic to assume people will live and work on this site.

No account has been made in the transport assessment of NIAB2,
which, although doesn’t have consent, is an allocated site with certainty
of coming forward.

Some of the transport trips allocated to the employment use would not
use the Huntingdon Road access as indicated in the assessment but
instead would use the Madingley Road access point.

The CSRM model should be re-run with the above new information.

Cumulative Impact

When combined with NIAB there will be too much traffic on Huntingdon
Road, which will be congested.
The impact including NIAB 1 and NIAB 2 will create significant traffic
and pollution problems. Pollution problems in Girton are already high
due to the proximity of the A14.

199
Page 200



Girton will be swamped by both this and Northstowe without any A14
upgrade. North Cambridge cannot assimilate such a massive project
on the networks.

Road linkages

The new roads through the development will create a new ring road-
will there be measures to reduce speed and avoid the impact from
HGVs.

A lot of the traffic pressure on Huntingdon and Madingley Road would
be relieved if the M11 junction has northbound access.

The development should have its own slip roads to the A14 and M11 in
both directions to allow residents to use the ring roads rather than go
through town.

Residential roads should be enclosed to stop rat running.

Bollards at the end of Storey’s Way (Huntingdon Rd) end should be
considered if the development proceeds.

The rat-run through the site should have traffic calming pinch points
rather than sleeping policeman which can be quite noisy.

The 20mph limit should be controlled through good road design.
Suggest that all traffic on Madingley Road should be diverted into the
West Cambridge site (follow the Uni 4 bus route) leaving the
intervening stretch of Madingley Road as 20 mph/local traffic and
cycles only to encourage use of the P&R.

This route through the site will allow traffic to cut through from
Madingley Road to Histon Road (through NIAB)- this should be cut off.
The A1307 north bound must be linked to the A428 West bound
leading to the M11.

A limitation on cut through of the site (like Addenbrooke’s) should be
imposed.

There is a missed opportunity here to link up key A14 and M11
junctions to aid access without having to go into the city. Two slip road
junctions on the M11 (northbound) would aid accessibility into this site.
Potential to connect the Huntingdon Road access with the eastern side
of the A14 would provide better access to this site, and linking
Huntingdon Road with the M11 would also be beneficial.

These works should be carried out at the cost of the developer.

A bridge or subway ought to be considered to assist with crossing
Madingley Road.

Encouraged that there is no rat run down Madingley Rise.

Support for the 20mph limit within the development.

The impact on the Huntingdon Road Access will be less than
predicated as people will not pass through Histon/Oxford/Windsor
Road to get to the site from the A14 they will go to the M11 and turn at
J12 and enter the site from J13/Madingley Road.

Detailed Junction Designs

200
Page 201



The P&R junction and the proposed Madingley Road junction must be
linked.

When considering the design for Madingley Road Access point light
pollution and privacy issues should be considered with respect to
Landsdowne Road properties.

The proposed junctions are inappropriate with the character of the
roads. The NIAB junction is an example of this and could have been
avoidable.

Sightline on exiting Landsdowne Road is hazardous at the moment.

A short window within the lights should allow for exit from Landsdowne
Road.

Small roundabouts should be explored; if not possible then the new
junction designs should be softened with tree planting where possible.
Tactile rather than audible aids for partially sighted users at junction
should be imposed to reduce noise.

The toucan crossing in between the NIAB and University junctions on
Huntingdon Road needs to be looked at to help with junction capacity.

Public Transport

Local public transport cannot be relied upon as an alternative to motor
car usage and the Guided Bus does not pass close to the
development.

There needs to be greater clarity with the proposed bus routes. Bus
routes to the Railway Station may increase parking in the area.

There is concern in relation to the word ‘possibly’ when referring to the
bus link through to the station- this site must be linked to the station.
Lack of public transport service for the Storey’s Field area of the site.
Transport links to the city are important to avoid the feeling of isolation
on the site.

Cycling

The cycleway from the development into the City centre is inadequate-
funnelling cyclists through Storey’s Way is irresponsible, as it is already
dangerous for cyclists.

How will the planning authority be able to enforce cycle use rather than
the car?

The cyclists must be able to get into the City centre safely with
improvements to Murkett's corner and Northampton Street all the way
to Kings College.

Cycleways in Cambridge must be improved.

There must be signed and dedicated cycle ways along Huntingdon Rd
and Madingley Road from the development.

The cycleway along the south side of Huntingdon Road possesses
some merit however there are concerns relating to the lack of detailed
design namely: impact on TPO trees, impact on street furniture and
visibility for properties exiting their properties on Huntingdon Road.

201
Page 202



Further information should be provided including a safety audit and
identifying any impact on trees.

There should be no creepage of boundary or cycle path along
Madingley Road.

The cycleway along Madingley Road should be completed and
improved.

The proposed internal cycleways should be moved adjacent to the
footway, they could be brought back adjacent to the highway next to
road crossings.

A demand activated crossing should be proposed at the Avenue of
trees to allow cyclists to cross Huntingdon Road and travel safely into
the City.

Concern that the proposals make too many ‘safe provisions’ for
cyclists. Cycling is a life skill and they should be fully integrated with
cars so that they both have to consider each other. There is a danger
that if roads are so cycle friendly, cyclists don’t have to think while
cycling. Safe riding is the key, not safe roads.

The Huntingdon Road is currently safe for cyclists and segregation is
not the answer. The solution to safer cycling is education.

Countryside Access

At the northern end of the site please provide a cycleway through the
underpass on the M11 connecting to Madingley Hill and the American
Cemetery.

This connection would allow for residents and students to use the
countryside and workers to connect from nearby villages.

There should be greater/enhanced access from this site into the
surrounding countryside under the M11 underpass- work should be
progressed with Trinity College to upgrade some of the existing
footpaths.

There should be an upgrade of the Madingley Road (Cambridge Road
Madingley) which is a hazard for many cyclists. It would be used for
residents of this site also.

There should be opportunity taken to enhance the sustainability of this
site/proposals and enhance access to the countryside.

Links to the Coton Countryside Reserve have been overlooked.

Car Parking

There must be adequate car parking spaces to avoid overspill of
parking onto nearby streets.

Reduced car parking on this site will cause residents to park in the
adjacent streets like Thornton Close.

Concerns for overflow of students parking in Conduit Head Road.

The University fails to live up to its obligation to control parking such as
the overspill of the West Cambridge site onto Clerk Maxwell Road.
Overflow parking could park at Churchill Court requiring residents to
put up gates.

202
Page 203



While understanding the University’s commitment to discouraging the
use of the car, the plan needs to be tempered with realism.

Larger units must have more than 2 spaces and 0 spaces for small fats
is unrealistic.

The reduction in parking on site will cause greater problems for the
surrounding existing residents.

Forward planning is essential here and a controlled parking area
appears to be a good solution.

Support for residents’ parking control in surrounding streets.

Parking for the low density housing should be at the front of the house
and not in the back gardens.

Parking surveys before, during and after development are suggested.
The high density areas should include underground parking- although
this should be semi-basement to avoid a hostile area.

All car parking should be underground.

The use of on street parking is welcomed, and has the benefit of
calming traffic.

Construction Impacts

The Council should impose stringent conditions controlling the impact
of development during construction.

There should be controls on the days and hours of construction,
phasing of external works, routing of construction traffic, dust and noise
levels etc.

Construction traffic should use Huntingdon Road as there will be far
less impact on trees and shrubs from the access point.

Other Transport issues

The Madingley Road P&R is already full so could not be utilised by the
residents of this development.

Lights at the Storey’s Way junction must be considered as it is already
hard to get off the road onto Huntingdon Road in the peak times.

The 30mph limit (currently outside Sherlock Road) should be extended
all the way past both proposed access points making entering and
exiting the road much safer and reducing the risk to cyclists and
pedestrians. New traffic cameras would also help enforce this.

A quieter tarmac should be used to reduce noise (the quieter tarmac is
being used by the Highway Agency).

Roads should be adopted, parking enforcement and street lighting
ought to be functional before residents move in.

Ecology and Biodiversity

Attention must be given to the predictable loss of wildlife habitats in the
area.

203
Page 204



The provision of the back gardens at the back of the Huntingdon
Road/All Souls Lane properties should serve as a strong ecology
corridor/ buffer.

The ecology/conservation in general around Conduit Head Road will be
impacted by the proposal.

The existing biodiversity (badgers, grey partridges and skylarks) will
decline further.

Significant wildlife uses the ‘small wood’ close to Conduit Head Road.
Development should be diverted around this feature including a buffer
zone.

The hedgerow along the northern edge of ‘The Drift’ should be retained
as it is important for wildlife. In addition, native tree species if planted
adjacent to this hedgerow would be welcomed.

The ridge and furrow field is important to wildlife and care must be
taken to help retain as much of this as possible.

The environmental assessment is very comprehensive however there
is concern over the reduction of several species, and in the case of
hares disappears all together.

More should be done to protect amphibians on this site.

The University should be required to carry out the enhancements for
hares and farmland birds promised.

Commitment to ensuring that building construction will take into
account the needs of declining species is welcomed.

Noise and Vibration, Dust, Fumes and Odours

The development will result in an increase in noise, pollution and crime
in this part of the City.

The Madingley Road access should consider the impact of light
pollution from the P&R on Landsdowne Road properties.

An access point further towards the M11 should be investigated. If this
is not possible then serious planting needs to mitigate the impact from
the access and the existing P&R.

Noise pollution from the pedestrian crossings should be considered.
There will be significant noise and disturbance from the development
including lighting.

Landscaping next to M11 needs to reduce noise pollution from the
M11.

New access on Madingley Road needs to be designed so that the
noise and light pollution from the access and the P&R is minimised
(from Landsdowne Road).

New tree planting along the new access road and timing on the P&R
lights will help reduce light and noise pollution from the access.
Something needs to be done about the A14 noise particularly on the
south side adjacent to Wellbrook \Way.

Traffic calming limiting the development to 20mph should be imposed
to help minimise noise.

Noise barriers/ trees and shrubbery should be used to shield Conduit
Head Road from the noise.

204
Page 205



¢ Using spoil as a noise barrier is supported, can this be extended further
along the M11- or low noise surfacing in the areas where there is no
barrier.

¢ Noise disturbance to the Institute of Astronomy.
Measures to reduce the noise for this development from the M11
should be strengthened- a bank should be provided enhanced with
trees, mostly conifers to provide year round protection.

e The buildings along the western edge should be commercial rather
than residential.

Other Issues

¢ The main cycle access into Storey’s Way needs to take into account of
the trees and preserve them.

e The application is not clear with regard to the boundary of the
development and is not clear on what works highway will be happening
outside certain properties. This should be made clearer.

e The centre of Cambridge cannot cope with additional people; it is
already choc-a-bloc on Saturdays, December, half term etc.

e Concern that elements such as the school and the roads will be owned
by the University, not the local authority — this will create a modern
version of Saltaire or Borneville.

e Details in relation to how the statutory tests have been met with regard
to the S106 Heads of Terms should be provided.

e The employment cannot be in the first phases, which does not support
the argument about building for the workers on the site.

e Concern regarding the development should it morph into a massive
commercial site.

e The University (or other developers) should not be able to acquire
properties on Huntingdon Road or All Souls Lane for the purposes of
creating additional access points into the site.

e The value of houses in the area will be diminished.

Residents must have competitive options for the provision of
broadband.

e The University’s proposed tenancy conditions ought to be considered,
so that tenants have their rights protected.

e The permission ought to be conditional on the development of the West
Cambridge site sports centre and ice rink which should be publicly
accessible.

¢ No retaining wall should be constructed between Landsdowne Road
and Conduit Head Road (it is appreciated that none is shown).

e Can the University carry through on such a project over the proposed
timescale? The West Cambridge development doesn’t give grounds for
confidence.Clarification regarding responsibility for the upkeep of
Bunkers Hill and whether this will pass to the developers (University)?
rather than is presently the case, (currently on a pro rata basis for the
upkeep of Bunkers Hill with residents). The question is posed, and very
important, in light of the intention for Bunkers Hill to become a
pedestrian/bicycle route

205
Page 206



April 2012 Amendment Comments

Welcome developer’s willingness to work with Oxford/\Windsor Road
residents to overcome potential traffic problems. However, suggested
plans will require modification — concern re. access for emergency
vehicles, refuse vehicles, large removal lorries and delivery vans; loss
of parking for existing residents; safe cycling provisions; and
landscaping.

Despite application aspirations, achieving sustainable transport aims
will not prove to be an easy task, given numerous potential impacts
e.g. Government funding withdrawal of A14 capacity enhancements.
Grateful for intentions in relation to massing and buildings, and general
intended amenity relationship between existing neighbouring buildings
and proposed buildings/uses. Would be useful to understand intended
boundary treatments on site fringes, and any architectural
impressions/plans of adjoining buildings to afford visual impression of
intended relationships.

There is currently a lot of undeveloped land at the University’s West
Cambridge site. This should be fully developed first.

Do not believe there is a need for another chain hotel.

The proximity of new junctions on Madingley Road and Huntingdon
Road to existing junctions will have a negative impact on these arterial
routes, which are already at breaking point.

Too many homes are already being built around the Cambridge fringes
— believe that there isn’t currently a need for such a number. Delivery
should be staggered, rather than be all in one go.

Believe that the University are using the guise of research facilities to
build 3,000 homes.

Unclear whether proposed cycleway on south side of Huntingdon Road
will adversely affect trees the subject of a Tree Preservation Order.
Question whether this cycleway is needed at all or could be
incorporated into existing cycleway on north side of Huntingdon Road.
Also appears that visibility splays for only two existing driveways
affected by the cycleway have been assessed — all affected driveways
should be assessed. Similarly a safety audit of all driveways should be
undertaken.

Minimum back garden lengths of 30m backing onto existing properties
on Huntingdon Road, and the removal of permitted development rights
for any new properties in this location should be stipulated to prevent
unacceptable harm to existing residents.

Note that construction impacts can be controlled by condition of
consent.

Query the clarity of some application drawings, where some
information shown as contextual, in respect of overall access
proposals, where it could be argued that they should be included at this
stage.

Also query what appear to be clerical errors where the application
boundary appears to stray into the property of adjoining dwellings, or

206
Page 207



where ‘junction works’ appear to be severed by the application
boundary. Query whether the appropriate notice has been served on all
properties, as a result.

207
Page 208



APPENDIX G - Red Line Site Boundary S/1886/11 - SCDC

KEY

602 abed

Contextual Information:
#Application site boundary Cambridge City Council

m= | Jniversity ownership boundary

For Approval:
— Application site boundary South Cambridgeshire District Council

All information other than that identified as being for approval is shown for con-
textual purposes only.

North West Cambridge
NWC/OPAAPPIO1A - Plan for Approval: Application
Site Boundary South Cambridgeshire District Council

September 2011
Bl UNIVERSITY OF 0 % WOm

208



0Lg obed

APPENDIX H - Red Line Site Boundary 11/1114/0OUT - City

KEY

Contextual Information:
Application site boundary South Cambridgeshire Distrct Council
== University ownership boundary

For Approval:
— Application site boundary Cambndge City Ciouncil

Al information other than that identfied as being for approval is shown for con-
textual purposes only.

North West Cambridge

NWC/OPA/APPIOMB - Plan for Approval:
Application Site Boundary Cambridge City Council

September 2011
S B UNIVERSITY OF 0% ® om
¥ CAMBRIDGE i

Figrocaces irors s Crnancs Sarvs Feoping by parmimsicr. of Crinoe Survmy or bevd o v Conooier of Har bisjesy's Siaonesy s
&1 S Copyyighi Al Ao ressevec Lioanos ro. AL 1000 S EIRAYS ey losmce
& Crowr Copyight, A4 Tighia raasrved 30 Lcans rursass £/3000 7

209



c
o
ot
—
o)
2
(2]
©
=
o
=
©
=
(2]
=)
N
x
(]
4
1]
o
o
<




APPENDIX J - Application Drawings

KEY

For Approval:

— Application site boundary

M Buildings and bridges to be demalished
B Buildings and bridges to be retained

All information other than that identified as being for approval is shown for con-
textual purposes only.

North West Cambridge

NWC/OPA/APP/O2/A - Plan for Approval:
Demolition Plan

February 2012
EEE UNIVERSITY OF em o aom

Ciapm e or u Orancs Saray PMEng T PRl of Crdranca Survey on sahad of ool of e Usaans Saicran Ofes
& Covr, Copyrgrn ll Fghes rassrvas Lianca ra L0808 [y businais Bosnea
£ v CEpymgE A g s, 2004 Liokna reiter HOXIHT

211



¢€1g abed

@

%
B
|

KEY

Contextual Flommaton ;
Roadmarkings
-« Highway land boundary
—_— Sgra| heads
— Flush knes
Canlageway works would 2e undertaken wlEls the spplkalon sk
boundary whermver unclon works am propased and meiend beyord

Fa rarkdngs for junctlen works. The exact estent of camlagmay works
o be the subject of a condiin,

|HSEf.$HDWiT'I{;_l new position of speed limit signs

Seale - 112500 41 A3

|
h For [:unt]r’

LN —

2
= .-,___..p"
Trafils lsland =
Comblnet fopoway {oucan trf:ﬁéln;l\ g :
| epckaway il
\ = Flush kerb to enable cyclsts o joh £ %
bus lare afies signallsed junction E Exlsling Footway %
2 =
= z
s , 2
Huntingdon Road =
- = ' - - - o
T T e e === _ 5
= i - Py L = — T Ve
e A A iy S g iy e YA VAT T I il N
e — = — — = __—p—g T "'.-—‘ R —
—T Fyaisal e Ceenblned footway /-
g-a:rliﬂi cycleway
Froposed contraller and
Tradfle [sland wvahilcls hardstarding TPO trea to b removed
{foucan crosslng)
dadn, o
foodl spae Bink g, wek
Comblned footwey | | b
cycleway % e llan (Rl
Traffle |sland (toucan crossing)
H Footway
E Cyele lare
[ Ui of Zone A Works N
e}
=
=]
w e
g e
ﬁ = ,,,;J}/,dx/////ff///sz/ < ik _‘E_l—Jur\:d
z '?g o F ML F A = = e = S ——
R — e e —

For apporesl ;
Apolization ahe Boundany

—_— dundlen weorks

All Informatlon othar than that [deniified
as belng for approva| |8 shown Tor core
leiug| purposes anly,

North West Cambridge

NWC/OPA/APPID3/A -
Huntingdon Road Junction West
February 2012
UNIVERSITY OF W s
CAMBRIDGE ‘—iowow

Frezeaicnd b Drgairon Sorvey £ el wvia ciia )
oo Syl 311, Al g mservecl Ulonon Ao (0B 675

212



v 12 ebed

Exbeing on canfagesay
Eyche e o be reld|ned

Exlsilng cyde e do b removed

whane bexlends hiough the
Junzilen
Extling sy
l—TﬂlchsI.m:l /

=== Cormhlned footsay ! cycleway

Trafe lakend (ieuzas cosshg)

\\ For continuation see below w
Ha)

B LRl

Howes Place

KEY
Cortastual nformadon |
Rosdrmaiklogs
= = = = = Highway Jand toundary
HIAE slin azoess
— Syl resds
Y Fhash heds

Carlsgeway works would Be undertaben wiiln the spolicallon ks
boundary wharewer uncllon works am proposed and mosnd bayond
e mardngs for unzlien wori, The exact axtect of carfagiway works
1o be the subjedt of & condilon,

For spprore
= Appllcation ske boundary

Juncilon works

Al Irfarmation other than that [denifled as belrg for approval |5 shown for cone
tetual purposes only,

North West Cambrldge

NWC/OFA/APP/04/A - Huntingdon Read Junction East

Fabruary 2012

UNIVERSITY OF I @
CAMBRIDGE SSak g 213

Magrochuces e e Survsy diakal maa dats (£ Cromn Comlar 2017 Al kg rusarvmd, oarcs Mumom DT



Glg ebed

Apclcation she Sourdary
and highway boundary
Apclication ske bourdany \
Highway boundary |
~~

1= 1 sede 150 a3

Proposed 1,5m high
retalelrg siruciues

Comtastusl pfoemadon ¢

Roadmarkings
+ = = = 4 Highway land Boundary
‘Wes=t Cambricge Develop=ent 5106 Werks

Cambrhigestie Cousty Couned Wackglay
Raoad Phase | Cycleway Schamn

- Syl Heats
oY Flush Feds

Camagewsy wotks would te wdenakan Wikl the spdllatn ske
undary whemrer funcion works ane propasisd and moend beyord

Inset showlng West Cambrdge 106 Warks
Seale i- 15500 41 A3

Traflc bkind

|Pe|hn.lpuq-| Foy =
srosahigh

. F:
iel.dnhgsrw.m:.ml-unhm
I support fochwey

1\ qﬂ!lr\e

Corbined fncheay Progosed cotlroler and

il harsstandng

e markngs for juncllon works, The exec! extent of carlageway works
tabe the subieet of 2 condbion,

Thee Focbweylcydeway shown on thls dewing hohedes jand seess
pesmlesdon for) lements sleady lorsleg gt of Cambebizesiie
Courty Cownll Madihgley Road Phass 1 Cpclrway Schame kR
envjsaged that thase elements wll be consirucied by ha Couny
Cound| a5 cumenily proposed end that footwarys sndior cyckeways
rarwly progosad by the Unbarslly sl be thd e dlements proddad
under that soeme, Detalls of any 4o |n would be for apprmal under
condton.

e ¥}z slonal Infrasiruciuce for e park and de jurction wll be
replaoed ax parl of Fwe proposaks.

For approee] !
e pplication sha boundary
Janction works

Fistabl-g shruchue | arhwerke |o supsot ety

Rttty strustus § aanfsrse
I suppoe fooway

Aetaining wal 1o

E-'PDD";-!E o Tratle ksland
byt [Touean cosshg)

All Information ather than that ldentiled as belng for approval 8 shown for cone
textual purposas only

North West Cambridge
NWC/OPAIAPPIOSIA - Madingley Road Junctlon West

Februany 2012
TUNIVERSITY OF i ow e @
—_—T
CAMBRIDGE P

214

et Fet Dronarcs Sy 80 raa dain (E} Coomn opyet 217, ALk ressrved, LJosris Huvom (0TS



9|g obed

N

I/ i F ' / /quaq sas ubl R 1o

Fehpery cpdde e '\- s
?‘3‘ S
L8]
thre ncan Emify
g : s Madingiey Roag
o i —
@ | b T N =
] |
5 "\ \ Eﬂ o
5 \ | 5
2 \ i
E II'~— sy ke §
B -
] &

KEY

Carlestusl klymalon @
Roadmarklsge

Casbragesnlm Seunty Coond| Madnghy Soac
Phase 1 Cyleway Scheme

[ Sgral Heads

Canlagewsy wotks would te underiaken Wil the spolleaton zke
boundary wherever juncllon works ane propased and roend beyend
e markings for uncllen works, The exact exent of conf ageway works
1o b the bt of & tondhon

Tha Foctwayicytleway shown on iHs drawing Ihohdes and seess
permisson for} lesents slesdy formleg pant of Carrbeldgeshin
County Councll Madlgley Rosd Fhese | Cycleway Scheme ks
envisaged tha thase slements wil be consirucied by e Couny
Courd)| as camenlly proposed 2nd thal footwarys sndior cycleways
renly prooceed by the Unberdiy wll be tled i elemens prodded
Lendar that scrama, Detalls of any da |n weuld ba b appros] undee
corebon.

Pedesidan crossings and rafic sigrals & be proviied by the
Unkerdly, uless proded beforetand by 'West Cambrdge,

For approal
Applleation sha bewndary

Jandlon works

Al Informatlen other than that Identliled as belng for approval ls shown for cone
tentual puvposas only,

North West Cambridge
NWCIOPAIAPPIOBA - Madingley Road Junctlon East

Fabruary 2012

CAMBRIDGE () 215

Regeadkiced Few Drcnance Surves ol mas dat (5} S Copplght 5015 Mg ressrvnd, Liomrcs Hioams (RODVTS



/12 obed

&
f

[ 5

I i.l::'ﬂft
it SELW W05

L T4
il arria

‘J n _&IHI [

ITEL

& e
= .-'f Tan?
L_ 15

=
*

All mformation other than that identified as being for approval is shown for con-
textual purposes only.

North West Cambridge
NWC/OPA/PAR/01/A - Zone Parameter Plan

Febrnary 2012

UNIVERSITY OF
CAMBRIDGE

210 3@ 199m
i

Senda 13000941

PR ol el LA e

216



81 abed

KEY

Contextual Information:
[ ]| Existing and retained buildings
Open land {reference NWCIOPAIRARIE)

. Open land within school site (reference NWC/OPAPARITI)

mem  Primary sireet

mm  Secondary sireet

=  Primary pedesirian/cycle route
mm  Secondary pedestrianicycle route

Faor Approval

—  Application site boundary
Primary street zone"
Secondary sireet zone *

- Prhm:jpedesbianﬁqﬂemulﬂ
one

- Secondary pedestrian/cycle route
zone ®

Il Restricted Access Zone

5| Market Square pedesirianised Zone

Zonaw may ceartp

All mformation other than that idendified as being for approval s shown for con-
textual purposes only.

North West Cambridge
NWC/OPA/PARIOZIA - Access Parameter Plan: Zone B

February 2012

UNIVERSITY OF o 3 1Em




612 abed

KEY

Contextual Information:

---- AAP Development Footprint /| Green Bett
Boundary

Existing and retained buildings

L]

Indicative primary and secondary

routes. {reference NWCIOPAPARIDZ)

555| boundary

5551 10m buffer

Washpit Brook

Areas of existing open |land, woodland & treecower
to be retained

Secondary open land

For Approval:

—  Application site boundary

[ Frmary open tand (1-5)

[0 Primary open tand boundary

[ open tand wihin schoo! site
Secondary open land zone

-

i Zone for works to Washpit Brook

{ % Zoneforlocation of flow control structure

-

All mformation other than that identified as being for approval is shown for con-
textual purposes only.

North West Cambridge

NWC/OPA/PARIO3/A - Open Land and Landscape Areas
Parameter Plan: Zone B

February 2012
UNIVERSITY OF p— @
" CAMBRIDGE ol 218




02c obed

KEY

Contextual Information:

[ ] Existing and retained buildings
Indizative primary and secondary
routes {reference NWCIOPA/PARIZ)
Open land {reference NWCIOPAIPARIDZ)

[ Open fand within school site (reference NWC/OPATPARID)

[ Fotential reserved Energy Centre site: sui generis (82)

For Approval:

— Application site boundary

= Development areas

Residential: G3, C4

Collegiate Housing: G2
AcademiciResearch: D1, B1(b), sui generis
Residential and complementary mixed uses:
Al, A2, A3, A4, AB, C1, C2,C3, C4. D1, D2,
sui generis (B2, Energy Centre)

Residential and complementary mixed uses:
C3. C4.D1, A1, A2 A3, A4 A

School

Land use fiexibility zone

lmE EEN

Western Edge land use flexdbility zone

All mformation other than that identified as being for approval s shown for con-
textual purposes only.

North West Cambridge
NWC/OPA/PAR/O4/A - Land Use (Built Development and
Ancillary Space) Parameter Plan: Zone B

February 2012
= UNIVERSITY OF L s @
i CAMBRIDGE S 1ot

219



122 abed

KEY

Contextual Information:

routes (reference NWCIOPAPARIDZ)

Open land (reference NWC/OPAIPARITS)

| Open land within school site (reference NWC/OPAIPARNZ)

For Approval:

— Application site boundary

= Building zones
BuildingZone Building Buildi Building Building Building Building

Frontaga (m) Frontaga (m) Dapth {m) Depth (m) Height* (m}) Height* (m)
A 4 200 4 B5 3 20
B & 200 & 25 3 15
[+ 4 150 4 25 2 10
D 4 200 4 40 3 15
E 4 150 4 25 3 18
F 4 200 4 40 3 15
& 4 150 4 25 3 18

H 4 150 4 25 3 10
1 4 200 4 25 3 15
J 4 180 4 25 3 15
K 4 180 4 60 3 18
L 4 180 4 65 3 10
M 4 18 4 18 i g
N 4 18 4 18 3 8
0 4 18 4 18 ] Ll
P 4 180 4 25 3 15
a 4 115 4 25 3 15
R 4 200 4 40 3 15
5 4 0 4 25 3 10
T & 200 & 40 3 10

*Measured from top of ground floor slab (at the principal entrance) to the apex of the roof

(excluding any lightning conductors, weather vanes, rooftop plant (or parapet used to screen
rooftop plant), equipment telecommunications equiprent, floodlighting and aerials).
*+* Excluding floodlighting

Al information ofher than that identified as being for approval is shown for

contextual purposes only.

North West Cambridge

NWC/OPA/PAR/OS/A - Development Building Zones
Parameter Plan: Zone B

February 2012

UNIVERSITY OF
CAMBRIDGE

0 M 1R
—

Scal 1:3000840

(M) 220




2cc obed

KEY

Contextual Information:
[] Existing and retained buildings
Indicative primary and secondary
routes (reference Access Parameter
Plan NWC/OPAPARMZ)
Open land {reference NWC/OPAPARIE)
. Open land within school site (reference NWC/OPAPARID3)
# Indicative location of Energy Cenire flue
s Indicative potential reserved locafion of Energy Centre flue
i  Existing ground level mefres ACD
= Reserved Zone for Potential Energy Cendre flue of 1.5m
diameter and 53.5m AOD
For Approval:
—  Application dite boundary
Maximum building heights
25.0 metres AOD R 35.5 metres AQD
2.5 metres AODD 380 metres ADD
20.0 metres AOQD R 36.5 metres AOD
29.5 metres ADD EEE 370 metres ADD
N 30.0 metres AQD I 375 metres AQD
310 metres AQD EEE 38.5 metres AOD
B 31.5 metres ADD EEE 380 metres ADD
320 metres AOD EEE 305 metres AQD
32 5 metres ADD EEE 400 meires AQD
N 330 metres AQOD B 405 metres ACD
B 33.5 metres ADD EE  41.0 meires ADD
EEE 340 metres ADD 430 metres ACD
{1 Zone for Energy Centre flue of 0.8m diameler and 42 5m ACD

North West Cambridge
NWC/OPA/PAR/D6/A - Building Heights Parameter Plan:
Zone B
Febrnuary 2012
UNIVERSITY OF ©10 30 1om

Q)

-n—wq-—uu;-_—'—qmm—m

221



cce abed

niot be modifled.

\ll information other than that identified as being for a lis fior

extual purposes only.

North West Cambridge

Pl one B

MMMMMMMM

OPA/PAR/OTIA - Topography Parameter
an: £




yee abed

KEY

For Approval:
— Application site boundany

Zone of highway works required to faciltate access o the

74 Froposed Development and associated utity duersions

I:‘ Zone for installation of utility apparatus to link existing
apparatus andior o supply telecommunication senvices to
the Proposad Dewelopment; related landscaping,
accommaodation works, street furmiture, drainage, telemelny
and utilities

All information other than that identified as being for approval is shown for con-
textual purposes only.

North West Cambridge
NWC/OPAPAR/DB - Parameter Plan:
Huntingdon Road Highway & Litility Works

September 2011
UNIVERSITY OF 0t s 1om
# CAMBRIDGE i

UL T T LS TRy PR T STTAMAOS 8 LA et 0 DR 3 T ST O i Sl SNy LR
T T LT A TR TATAS LA R AT FLANAS A R
T T 0 QT e A A ik P OO

223



Gee abed

KEY

For Approval:
—— Application site boundary

?;/ Zone of highway works required o faciltate access to the
4 Proposed Development and associated utiity dversions

Zone for installation of utility apparatus fo link to existing
I:' apparatus and'or to supply electricity, gas, potable water

and telecommunications senices to the

Development, construction of pumped foul rsing main and

ancillary highway works; related landscaping,

accommaodation works, street furmiture, drainage, t=lemetry

and utiliies

All information other than that identified as being for approval is shown for con-
textual purposes only.

North West Cambridge
NWC/OPAPAR/QD - Parameter Plan:
Madingley Road Highway & LHility Works

September 2011
UNIVERSITY OF 0w T0m
¥ CAMBRIDGE ks

o S T OGS Py PTG O ST O {TIRATGE B 5 G O T e o e 4. ey s
i 0GR AR QTN A Lk 1 AL AN AR LA kil R
B T T, el P i M L T 5 S ERS

224



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 226



/22 abed

APPENDIX K - S106 Heads of Terms Schedule

Description of $S106 Item

Transport

Northwest Cambridge
Travel Plan Measures

Contribution to LPAs or

other mechanism.

Applicant to deliver

Delivery Trigger

From the 1% residential occupation, with implementation in accordance with the Travel
Plan Framework (appended to S106), subject to annual reviews, for a maximum of 15

years.

University contribution to
support a County Council
delivered bus service.
Public Bus Transport
Subsidy towards:

Radial Bus Services
(including Uni 4 and Citi 5)

Orbital Bus Service

Total Revenue support =
£1,200,000

£600,000 in total.

£600,000 in total.

In year 1 (as soon as practically possible) the Uni 4 service will be extended into
the site, with its existing 20 minute frequency. A 30 minute frequency Saturday
service is introduced at the same time.

Once the commercial/academic floorspace is provided on site the Uni 4 service
will be increased in frequency to every 10 minutes.

At 800 dwellings a new service (Citi 8) running between the site and the city
centre will be introduced and will operate every 20 minutes Monday-Saturday
daytimes and hourly in the evenings and on Sunday.

Once the commercial/academic floorspace is provided on site (and on
completion of the radial route through the site) the Citi 5 service (Bar Hill to the
city centre) is to be diverted via the site, and will operate every 10 minutes on
Monday-Saturday daytimes and every 30 minutes in the evening and on Sunday.
Once this service is in place it will supersede the Citi 8 route in the above.

Upon completion of the NIAB through road (which will complete the orbital route,
and have public transport priority) and after 400 dwellings completed on this site,
an orbital hourly service from West Cambridge to the Science Park will be
provided.

movements along
Huntingdon Road including

Further traffic calming, £150,000 Prior to the occupation of the first residential unit with contribution capped at £150,000.
along Oxford Road /

Windsor Road link

Enhancements to cyclist £50,000 On occupation of 400th residential unit.

225




gcc obed

Description of S106 Item

signage and road markings
to link with new provisions
proposed by the University.

Contribution to LPAs or
other mechanism.

Delivery Trigger

Improve pedestrian and
cyclist movements through
Huntingdon Rd / Victoria Rd
/ Castle St junction

£60,000

On occupation of the 400th residential unit.

Enhancing the traffic
calming scheme along
Huntingdon road

£10,000

Prior to the completion of the Huntingdon Road West junction.

Madingley Road Corridor
Works

Queen St/ Madingley Rd/
Northampton St junction.

£5,000

On occupation of the 400™ residential unit.

University Site Wide Travel
Plan Measures

Co-ordinated Travel Plan
measures across
University’s facilities

To be provided by the
applicant: £500,000

Measures to be considered from occupation of the first B1(b) or D1 employment uses
and phased as part of the Travel Plan implementation and Monitoring in accordance
with requirements identified by annual monitoring for a maximum of 10 years.

Promotional campaign for
guided bus way

£300,000

Measures to be considered from occupation of the first B1(b) or D1 employment uses
and phased as part of the Travel Plan implementation and Monitoring, in accordance
with requirements identified by annual monitoring for a maximum of 10 years.

Other Works

M11 J13 Southbound slip
road, possibly incl ramp
metering

£130,000 for Ramp
Metering, and a further
£975,000 for Slip Road
improvements

Total Contribution of up to
£1,205,000.

Monitoring to commence on occupation of the first B1(b) or D1 employment uses.
Implementation of the ramp metering, with further monitoring to establish whether the
slip road enhancements are required, in accordance with requirements identified by
annual monitoring for a maximum of 10 years.

226




622 obed

Description of S106 Item

CPZ

Contribution to LPAs or
other mechanism.
£100,000

Delivery Trigger

Monitoring of the need for an off-site CPZ to commence following occupation of the
B1(b) or D1 employment uses. With implementation of CPZ in accordance with
requirements identified by annual monitoring for a maximum of 10 years.

Contribution of up to £10,000 for consultation on the scheme and £90,000 payable for
the implementation of any agreed scheme

Maintenance of traffic
signals

Indicative contribution to
CCC of £175,000

Upon completion of traffic signals installation over 10 years

WCATP Contribution £235,000 Prior to the first occuiation of the residential units.

480 place school with early
years provision.

Children’s Centre, located £262,000 Payment on occupation of 300" dwelling or commencement of NIAB primary school,
on Primary school site of whichever is later.

NIAB site.

Primary school £9,400,000 10% of total costs payment on commencement of development [save for infrastructure]

65% of total costs payment 12 months after commencement

25% on occupation of 1,300" dwelling

Primary school revenue
payment

Fallback provision, subject
to further discussion. To be
agreed on formulaic
approach

To be agreed

Secondary school

(Located on NIAB 2)

£5,919,293

NIAB Secondary School:
10% by occupation of 400" residential unit, 25% by occupation of 800" unit, 30% by
occupation of 1,200™ unit and remainder by occupation of 1,600™ unit.

Expansion of existing schools:
25% on occupation of 400" unit, 25% on occupation of 1050™ unit, 25% on occupation
of 1700™ unit and 25% on occupation of 2350" unit.

227




0gg obed

Description of S106 Item

Secondary school revenue
payment

Community Infrastructure

Community Centre facility
500-600m? floor area.

Contribution to LPAs or
other mechanism.
Fallback provision, subject
to further discussion. To be
agreed on formulaic
approach

Applicant to procure and
deliver, strategic design
brief to be appended to

S106

Delivery Trigger

To be agreed

To be provided on first key worker occupation.

Interim community facility

Size of interim facility
approx 200sgm

Applicant to procure and
deliver

To be provided on commencement of residential development. Facility to remain open
until permanent community centre facility is open.

Public Access to Sports
Centre on West Cambridge
Site

Provision of dance
studio/sports suite (450m?).
(Fallback provision only)

Cost of provision to be
borne by University through
provision at West
Cambridge

Applicant to procure and
deliver

If West Cambridge phase 1 not provided within 3 years of 1% residential occupation at
NWC, 450sgm dance studio/fitness suite to be provided on site.

Health facility

700m? to be provided on a
commercial basis in local
centre.

Applicant to procure and
deliver. Rent free period for
10 years, with stepped
rents up to 15 years.

Facility to be available by occupation of 400™ key worker unit or 250™ market unit, or
maximum of 575 dwellings.

Police office of 200m?,
including fit out.

Applicant to procure and
deliver.

Facility to be available after occupation of the 1,200™ residential unit on NW Cambridge
site

228



L£2 obed

Description of S106 Item

Contribution to LPAs or
other mechanism.

Police to pay maintenance
fee (ie building insurance,
building maintenance, etc),
not estate management
charge

Police to pay peppercorn
rent for lease.

Delivery Trigger

Library fit out costs
contribution - library facility
located on NIAB site

Key Worker Housing
Provision of 50% key
worker housing for
University and College Staff

Contribution of £32,710

Applicant to deliver

To be paid by occupation of the 1000th dwelling on NWC and after commencement of
the library building

To be provided alongside delivery of market housing, at rate of no more than 60%
market: 40% kwh (cumulative) by occupation of the 400", 800™, 1,200™, 1,600™, 2,000,
2,400" residential unit.

By occupation of the 1,425" market residential unit, all affordable housing will have
been provided.

Faith Worker Provision

ports Pitches

6.2ha incl 3G Artificial Turf
Pitch

Applicant to deliver

Sports and Open Land
S

Applicant to deliver

1 unit at 50" key worker occupation
1 unit at 400" key worker occupation
1 unit 800" occupation

1 unit at 1600" occupation

1.0ha or to be provided by occupation of 400" residential unit

1.1ha or All Weather Equivalent to be provided by occupation of 800" residential unit
2.1ha or All Weather Equivalent to be provided by occupation of 1,600" residential unit
2.1ha or All Weather Equivalent to be provided by occupation of 2,400" residential unit
1.5ha or All Weather Equivalent to be provided by occupation of 3,000" residential unit

229



2ec obed

Description of S106 Item

Changing facilities &
Associated car parking

2 team changing facility
[+associated car parking]

4 team changing facility +
associated car parking

6 team changing facility +
associated car parking

Contribution to LPAs or
other mechanism.
Applicant to deliver

Delivery Trigger

4 team changing facility to be provided when first pitch in Parameter Plan Open Land
Area 2 is delivered.

2 team changing facility to be provided when first pitch in Parameter Plan Open Land
Area 1 is delivered.

6 team changing facility to be provided when first pitch in Parameter Plan Open Land
Area 4 is delivered.

Children’s Play Areas

1.95ha

Applicant to deliver

0.26ha to be provided by occupation of 400" residential unit

0.26ha to be provided by occupation of 800" residential unit

0.26ha to be provided by occupation of 1,200 residential unit
0.26ha to be provided by occupation of 1,600 residential unit
0.26ha to be provided by occupation of 2,000" residential unit
0.26ha to be provided by occupation of 2,400 residential unit
0.26ha to be provided by occupation of 2,800" residential unit
0.13ha to be provided by occupation of 3,000" residential unit

Allotments

2.59ha

Applicant to deliver

Completion of the allotment area in Parameter Plan Open Land Area 4 (to a minimum
of 1.75ha) by occupation of 1,600"™ residential unit

2.59ha minus hectares provided in Area 4 provided by occupation of 2,900" residential
unit

Existing Open Land
(Ridge and Furrow, SSSI)

Applicant to deliver

Parameter Plan area 3 to be provided by occupation of the 800" residential unit.

SSSI conservation to be implemented alongside delivery of Parameter Plan area 1.

230




ceg obed

Description of S106 Item

Informal Open Land
Provision

15.4ha

Contribution to LPAs or
other mechanism.
Applicant to deliver

Delivery Trigger

0.78ha to be provided by occupation of 200" residential unit

0.78ha to be provided by occupation of 400" residential unit

1.56 ha to be provided by occupation of 800" residential unit

3.11ha to be provided by occupation of 1600" residential unit

3.11ha to be provided by occupation of 2,400™ residential unit

2.33ha to be provided by occupation of 2900" residential unit

and 12.8 ha to be provided by occupation of 1,000" student bedspace
and 0.18 to be provided by occupation of senior living facility

Open Land Provision
(Western Edge — open
space provision in addition
to policy)

Applicant to deliver

Requirement to complete area identified as Primary Open Land 5 on Parameter Plan 03

Management and
Maintenance of open space

University to manage and
maintain, except for area of
Storey’s Field identified as
JV facility

Contribution to expansion
of existing swimming pool
provision

ff-site Biodiversity
Mitigation Measures

‘Enhancement’ of arable
farmland out with the

Application Site to provide

Applicant to deliver

Fallback contribution
£343,000:

To be provided on West Cambridge, with fallback provisions to be paid to LA’s triggered
after period of 7 years from 1% occupation

@) £24,500. 5

0% on commencement and 50% at 1600™ occupation

231




yee abed

Description of S106 Item

Contribution to LPAs or

Delivery Trigger

improved habitat for
farmland birds and brown
hares to offset the habitat
losses associated with the
development

Access to Countryside
M11 Underpass upgrade

other mechanism.

£75,000

Contribution on occupation of 400" unit

Improvement of existing
footpath from site to
Madingley Road.

Contribution of up to
£30,000

Contribution on occupation of 400" unit

Creation of a link from
Madingley Road access to
Bridleway 30.

County Council Household
Waste Recycling Centre

To be provided through
West Cambridge
development.

Contribution of £706,125

To be delivered through West Cambridge Masterplan review, with fallback arrangement
if review has not proceeded within 10 years.

Payments at 1%, 800", 1600™ and 2,400™ occupations or once CCC has permission for
new recycling centre, whichever is the sooner.

On site waste provision and
waste collection
infrastructure.

Above baseline costs for
site wide underground
waste storage strategy to
be borne by University.

Provided as part of residential construction, with formulaic calculation to derive quantum
of annual payment.

Vehicle upgrade

Public Art
Public Art delivery, based
on detailed findings of the
Public Arts Strategy.

Community chest

Capital payment for
upgrade of vehicle above
baseline costs

Expenditure in line with
public art strategy.
Total value £3,450,000

Payment of £5,000

Formulaic calculation to derive quantum of payment.

Consistent with public art strategy.

On occupation of 1st residential dwelling.

232



Geg obed

Description of S106 Item

Community Development
Worker (s)

Contribution to LPAs or
other mechanism.
Contribution £245,000

Delivery Trigger
£61,250 on commencement of residential development, then

3 x annual payments of £61,250 from 1°' key worker occupation

Sports Development Officer

Contribution £23,625

3 annual payments of £7,875, from first key worker occupation

S106 monitoring

£75,000

Five equal annual instalments after commencement of development.

Air quality monitoring -
contribution towards costs
incurred by LPAs in
undertaking air quality
monitoring.

£7,245

Commencement of development.

233




APPENDIX L — NPPF Reference Table

North West Cambridge Area Action Plan — NPPF Compliance

The North West Cambridge Area Action Plan was adopted in October 2009 (in
accordance with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004). It is the main
consideration in the determination of planning applications within the area covered by
the bounds of the Area Action Plan, and forms part of the development plan for
Cambridge. It sets out the vision, policies and proposals for future development and
land use in the area between Madingley Road and Huntingdon Road.

The North West Cambridge Area Action Plan (2009) was prepared in the context of
the national planning regime that has now been superseded by the Localism Act
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2012).

The Area Action Plan has been reviewed to establish the extent to which it is
compliant with the NPPF.

Overall, the North West Cambridge Area Action Plan (2009) is considered to be
complaint with the NPFF. Where limited differences do occur, it is on the basis that a
new concept, initiative or change in policy direction at a national level has been
introduced since adoption in 2009.

Policy

Policy Summary & NPPF compliance

NW1 — Vision

Seeks to meet the long-term development needs (para 14) of
University; supporting employment cluster (paras 20-21); while
respecting the local environment (paras 80, 84-85).

NW2 -
Development
Principles

High quality design (paras 56-68); community needs (paras 69-78);
energy efficient, low carbon sustainable design (paras 93-98); avoid
noise & air quality issues (paras 109 & 124); geodiversity, biodiversity,
historic landscape & geology (paras 109-113, 117-118 & 170);
landscape (paras 96-97 & 109-113 & 116-117); access (paras 29-41);
minimise crime (paras 58 & 69); refuse & recycling (no reference in the
NPPF as considered too specific for strategic document); residential
amenity (para 17); urban edge (para 80); flooding (paras 93-108);
water quality (para 109); traffic (paras 29-41); Conservation Areas &
listed buildings (paras 126-141); trees (para 118); pollution (para 17,
109-110 & 120).

NW3 —
Implementing
the Area Action
Plan

Masterplan, parameter plan, design and access statement, and
reserved matters design statement (no reference — detailed
development management processes); design codes (para 59).

NW4 — Site Allocation for predominantly University uses (para 14); strategic gap

and Setting (paras 80, 109, 117, 118, 17, 70, 73, 120); high quality built edge
(paras 57-66, 80); safeguarding land post 2016 (paras 83-85).

NW5 — 3,000 dwellings (para 14); University needs (para 14); density (para

Housing 47); 2,000 units student accommodation (para 14).

Supply

NW6 — 50% affordable housing (paras 47, 50, 159 & 173); viability

Affordable considerations (para 173); for University staff (no reference this is a

Housing specific policy to this site); off site contributions not appropriate (para
50)

NW7 — Affordable housing intermingled (para 50); student housing in groups

Balanced and | (no reference in the NPPF as considered too specific for strategic

Sustainable document); suitable mix of housing types and tenures (NPPF: identify a

Communities

mix, paras 50 & 159 process carried out to identify mix different to that
identified in the NPPF but parallel process took place for the special

234
Page 236




site circumstances to identified housing mix on this site); lifetime home
mobility standards (para 50 & 159); mix determined by evidence at time
of planning application (NPPF: identify a mix, paras 50 & 159 process
carried out to identify mix different to that identified in the NPPF but
parallel process took place for the special site circumstances to
identified housing mix on this site).

NW8 — Educational and research institutes in national interest or linked to

Employment University (para 21); commercial research uses linked to University

Uses (para 21); occupation controlled for 10 years (no reference in the NPPF
as this is a policy that is specific to Cambridge).

NW9 — Small scale employment uses within local centre as demand requires

Employment (no reference in the NPPF as considered too specific for strategic

Uses in the document).

Local Centre

NW10 — Mix of | Detail on split of employment uses (paras 14, 17, 21 & 161).

Uses

NW11 - Reduce the need to travel (paras 29 & 32); maximise sustainable

Sustainable transport modes (paras 29 & 34); <40% journeys by car (paras 29 &

Transport 34); car clubs, employee travel plans residential travel planning (paras
29, 34 & 36).

NW12 — Highway capacity on surrounding roads (paras 17 & 29-41); mitigate

Highway impacts (paras 17 & 29-41).

Infrastructure

NW13 — Site specific detail on access points (no reference — detailed

Vehicular development management processes).

Access

NW14 Site specific detail on link road (no reference — detailed development

Madingley management processes); priority for walking cycling, public transport

Road to (paras 29 & 34).

Huntingdon

Road Link

NW15 — Highways funded by development (paras 173-177); timed to relate to

Highway development commencement / occupation (para 177).

Provision

NW16 — Public | High quality public transport (paras 17 & 35).

Transport

Provision

NW17 — New & improved cycle links (paras 17 & 35).

Cycling

Provision

NW18 — Attractive, direct & safe walking routes (paras 17 & 35).

Walking

Provision

NW19 — Car & cycle parking standards (para 39); minimise car parking (no

Parking reference in the NPPF as considered too specific for strategic

Standards document); maximise cycle parking (no reference in the NPPF as
considered too specific for strategic document); encourage sustainable
modes (paras 29 & 34).

NW20 — Appropriate level & type of community facilities (paras 17, 23 & 70);

Provision of detailed assessments & strategies (no reference in the NPPF as

Community considered too specific for strategic document); where appropriate

Services and delivered by community or voluntary sector (no reference in the NPPF

Facilities as considered too specific for strategic document).

NW21 A Local | Services & facilities provided in single centre (para 23 & 24); detail on

235
Page 237




Centre

location of centre (no reference — detailed development management
processes).

NW22 — Public
Art

Public art (no reference in the NPPF as considered too specific for
strategic document).

NW23 — Open | Open space and sports facility requirements (paras 17, 70, 73 & 171);
Space and improve linkages to countryside (paras 17, 73 & 171).

Recreation

Provision

NW24 — Adapt to climate change (paras 7, 94, 99 & 156); Code for Sustainable
Climate Homes (no specific reference, however paras 94-98); no adverse
Change & impact on water environment and biodiversity (paras 99, 109, 114, 117,
Sustainable 118 & 156); BREEAM excellent (no specific reference, however paras
Design and 94-98); renewably fuelled decentralised system (paras 96-97); on-site

Construction

renewables (no specific reference to onsite, however paras 17, 93, 97);
water conservation (paras 99 & 156); viability testing (paras 173-177).

NW25 — Sustainable Drainage Systems (para 103); reduce run-off (no specific

Surface Water | reference, however paras 17, 94, 99-108); improve water quality (para

Drainage 109); hold water onsite and release slower than existing (no specific
reference, however paras 17, 94, 99-108); water storage design with
drainage, recreation, biodiversity and amenity value (paras 17, 56-68,
70, 73,99, 109, 114, 117, 118 & 171); cope with downstream storm
events (no specific reference, however paras 17, 94, 99-108); make
allowance for climate change (paras 7, 94, 99 & 156).

NW26 — Foul No untreated wastewater (paras 17, 109, 110, 120, 121, 125); no

Drainage and increased floodrisk from treated waste water (paras 17, 94, 99-108);

Sewage planning conditions link development to availability and capacity of

Disposal wastewater treatment facilities and watercourses (paras 176, 203-206).

NW27 — Facilities managed by publicly accountable body(s) (no reference —

Management detailed development management processes).

and

Maintenance of

Surface Water

Drainage

Systems

NW28 — Recycle construction waste (no reference in the NPPF as considered

Construction too specific for strategic document); accommodate construction spoil

Process within the development (no reference in the NPPF as considered too
specific for strategic document); maximise reuse and recycling of
existing raw materials onsite (no reference in the NPPF as considered
too specific for strategic document); avoid disruption to nearby
communities (no reference in the NPPF as considered too specific for
strategic document).

NW29 — Landscaping complete prior to each phase of development (no

Strategic reference in the NPPF as considered too specific for strategic

Landscaping

document).

NW30 -

Needs statement (no specific reference, however paras 84-85);

Phasing & phasing determined through masterplanning (no reference — detailed
Need development management processes)

NW31 — Provision and phasing of infrastructure, services & facilities necessary
Infrastructure (paras 17, 156, 157 & 162).

Provision

236
Page 238




APPENDIX M - Quick Reference to NWCAAP Policies

Policy Section(s)

NW1 Vision Urban Design Principles and Visual Impact,

NW2 Development Urban Design Principles and Visual Impact; Local
Principles Centre and Retail Provision — Non-Conforming Uses
NW3 Implementing the Area | Urban Design Principles and Visual Impact

Action Plan

NW4 Site and Setting

Urban Design Principles and Visual Impact

NW5 Housing Supply

Urban Design Principles and Visual Impact, Affordable
Housing and Dwelling Mix,

NW6 Affordable Housing

Affordable Housing and Dwelling Mix

NW7 Balanced and
Sustainable Communities

Affordable Housing and Dwelling Mix, Local Centre and
Retail Provision — Non-Conforming Uses

NW8 Employment Uses

Employment, S106 Planning Obligations

NW9 Employment Uses in
the Local Centre

Local Centre and Retail Provision

NW10 Mix of Uses Employment,
NW11 Sustainable Travel Transport
NW12 Highway Infrastructure | Transport
NW13 Vehicular Access Transport

NW14 Madingley Road to
Huntingdon Road Link

Urban Design Principles and Visual Impact, Transport

NW15 Highway Provision

Urban Design Principles and Visual Impact, Transport

NW16 Public Transport
Provision

Transport

NW17 Cycling Provision Transport
NW18 Walking Provision Transport
NW19 Parking Standards Transport

NW20 Provision of
Community Services and
Facilities and Arts and Culture

Community Development and Infrastructure

NW21 A Local Centre

Urban Design Principles and Visual Impact , Education,
Local Centre and Retail Provision, Community
Development and Infrastructure,

NW22 Public Art

Community Development and Infrastructure

NW23 Open Space and
Recreation Provision

Open Space and Recreation

NW24 Climate Change and
Sustainable Design and
Construction

Sustainable Development

NW25 Surface Water
Drainage

Flood Risk and Drainage

NW26 Foul Drainage and
Sewage Disposal

Flood Risk and Drainage

NW27 Management and
Maintenance of Surface Water
Drainage Systems

Flood Risk and Drainage

NW28 Construction Process

Environmental Health Considerations

NW29 Strategic Landscaping

S106 Planning Obligations

NW30 Phasing and Need

Community Development and Infrastructure, S106
Planning Obligations

NW31 Infrastructure Provision

Education, Community Development and Infrastructure

237
Page 239




APPENDIX N — CSRM Modelling Outputs

. ___: Summary of total vehicle movements from the Development Do Minimum and Do
Something option tests — AM peak hour (matrix totals

NWC 7 93 119 219
Rest of 49 6,477 8,008 14,534
Cambridge

Outside 85 13,888 78,086 92,059
Cambridge

Totals 141 20,459 86,213 106,813

NWC 965
Rest of 290 6,396 7,917 14,603
Cambridge

Outside 683 13,514 77,778 91,975
Cambridge

Totals 1,058 20,282 86,202 107,542

: Summary of total vehicle movements from the Development Do Minimum and Do
Something option tests — PM peak hour (matrix totals).

NWC 4 74 110 188
Rest of 106 6,742 13,021 19,869
Cambridge

Outside 122 8,982 80,301 89,405
Cambridge

Totals 231 15,799 93,432 109,462

NWC

Rest of 389 6,627 12,688 18,703
Cambridge

Outside 535 8,869 80,073 89,478
Cambridge

Totals 1,005 15,838 93,511 110,353

Page 240




APPENDIX O - lllustrative Underground Waste Bin Proposal

Containar

The square collecton contzlner is mads
of galvanised shest steal and guarantees
long lasting operability. Apert from the
classic single-compartment design, the
contaliner s also avallable with two or
three corpartmens for the separate
collectlon of recyclbles, e.3. white glass
AN Lrow s glass,

Safaty platform
A safety plafformwith a camying capacity
of Lp to 150 kg ensures a safe emptylrg

process. Duing emptying, the platform Is
lifted with counterwe ghts, thereby closing
theshatt.

- Concrete Casing

© The mondithic concrete casing Is
ocomplotoly watorproot. It high qualty
ensuras along sericea Iire.

239
Page 241



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 242



	Agenda
	4 C/11/1114/OUT & S/1886/11 Land between Madingley Road and, Huntingdon Road, CB3 0LH
	2012_07_27 Appendix A-F Final
	2012_07_27 Appendix G-J Final
	2012_07_27 Appendix K-O Final


